Hanford Elementary School District

REGULAR BOARD MEETING AGENDA
Wednesaay, January 24, 2024
HESD District Office Board Room
714 N. White Street, Hanford, CA

OPEN SESSION

5:30 p.m.
e Call to Order
e Members Present
e Pledge to the Flag

CLOSED SESSION

o Student Discipline (Education Code Section 48918... requires closed sessions in order to prevent the
disclosure of confidential student record information)

Administrative Panel Recommendations
Case# 24-13 Kennedy

Case# 24-14 Wilson

Case# 24-15 Wilson

OPEN SESSION
5:45 P.M.
Take action on closed session items

1. PRESENTATIONS, REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS

(In order to insure that members of the public are provided an opportunity to address the Board on agenda items or
non-agenda items that are within the Board's jurisdiction, agenda items may be addressed either at the public
comments portion of the agenda, or at the time the matter is taken up by the Board. A person wishing to be heard by
the Board shall first be recognized by the President and identify themselves. Individual speakers are allowed three
minutes to address the Board. The Board shall limit total time for public input on each item to 20 minutes.)

a) Public comments

b) Board and staff comments

c) Requests to address the Board at future meetings

d) Review Dates to remember

e) Student Highlight — Lee Richmond Elementary — Israel Ruiz Medina & Santiago Medina

f) Annual Audit Report Presentation

2. CONSENT ITEMS
(Items listed are considered routine and may be adopted in one motion. If discussion is required, a particular item
may be removed upon request by any Board member and made a part of the regular business.)
a) Accept warrant listings dated December 8, 2023; December 13, 2023; December 15,
2023; December 20, 2023, December 22, 2023; December 27, 2023; December 29,
2023; January 5, 2024 and January 12, 2024.
b) Approve minutes of the Regular Board Meeting held on December 13, 2023.

»  Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to the Board after distribution of the agenda packet are available
for public inspection at the Superintendent’s Office located at 714 N. White Street, Hanford, CA during regular business
hours.,

> Any individual who requires disability-related accommodations or modifications, including auxiliary aides and services,
In order to participate in the Board meeting should contact the Superintendent’s Office at least 48 hours prior to the
meeting.
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o)
d)

Approve interdistrict transfers as recommended.
Approve donation of $274.56 from Simas PTC.

3. INFORMATION ITEMS

a)
b)

C)
d)

e)

Receive for information the second Williams Quarterly Report (Gabler)

Receive for information a report from the Parent Advisory Committee — December 12,

2023 (Heugly)

Receive for information a report from the District English Learner Advisory Committee

— December 14, 2023 (Gomez)

Receive for information the monthly financial report for the period of 07/01/2023-

11/30/2023 (Endo)

Receive for information the following revised Administrative Regulation: (Rubalcava)
e 5152.2 — Withholding Grades, Diplomas, or Transcripts

4. BOARD POLICIES AND ADMINISTRATION

a)
b)
c)
d)

e)
f)
9)
h)
i)

)

k)

Consider approval of the California School Accountability Report Cards (SARCs)
(Heugly)
Consider approval of agreement with WPS Western Psychological Services to provide
trainings for School Psychologists (Marain)
Consider approval of Grant from ROX — Ruling our Experiences Program for MLK and
Roosevelt (Strickland)
Consider approval of adjusted student attendance boundaries for MLK Elementary,
Lincoln Elementary, Richmond Elementary & Roosevelt Elementary effective for the
2024-2025 school year (Gabler)
Consider for approval the revised Board Policy and Exhibit: (Gabler)

¢ 0420.41 — Charter School Oversight
Consider for approval the revised Board Policy and News Exhibit: (Gabler)

e 1113 — District and School Websites
Consider for approval the revised Board Policy and Exhibit: (Gabler)

e 5145.6 — Parent/Guardian Notifications
Consider for approval the revised Board Bylaw: (Gabler)

¢ 9322 — Agenda/Meeting Materials
Consider for approval the revised Board Policy: (Martinez)

¢ 4151/4251/4351 — Employee Compensation
Consider for approval the revised Administrative Regulation: (Martinez)

¢ 4161.1/4261.1/4361.1 — Personal Illness/Injury Leave
Consider for approval the deleted Administrative Regulation: (Martinez)

¢ 4361.25 — Family Illness Leave

5. PERSONNEL (Martinez)

a)

Employment
Classified
e Loren Braga, READY Program Tutor — 4.5 hrs., Monroe, effective 12/14/23
e Verenise Bravo, Account Technician III — 8.0 hrs., Fiscal Services, effective
1/8/24
e Myra Guzman, Special Circumstance Aide — 5.75 hrs., Lincoln, effective 1/8/24
e Elizabeth Steen, READY Program Tutor — 4.5 hrs., Jefferson, effective 1/8/24
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e Alijah Turner, READY Program Tutor — 4.5 hrs., Roosevelt, effective 12/5/23
e Milagros Valdenegro, READY Program Tutor — 4.5 hrs., Jefferson, effective
12/15/23
Classified Temps/Subs
e Bryana Aguilar-Oliva, Substitute Yard Supervisor, effective 12/14/23
Dulce Ambrocio, Substitute Yard Supervisor, effective 12/5/23
Cecilia Ayala, Substitute Yard Supervisor, effective 1/8/24
Juan Botello, Substitute Yard Supervisor, effective 1/8/24
Clayton Crewse, Substitute Custodian I, effective 1/8/24
Juanita Cruz, Substitute Bilingual Clerk Typist II, effective 1/8/24
Cynthia Gonzalez, Substitute Yard Supervisor, effective 1/8/24
Dominic Izquierdo, Substitute Custodian I, effective 12/12/23
Mirandah Maciel, Substitute Yard Supervisor, effective 1/8/24
Aubreyanna Teague-Reeves, Substitute Yard Supervisor, effective 1/8/24
Esmeralda Torres-Gonzalez, Substitute Special Education Aide and Yard
Supervisor, effective 12/15/23
Lateral Change
e Michelle Banuelos, from Educational Tutor, K-8 — 4.5 hrs., Simas, to Special
Education Aide — 5.0 hrs., Jefferson, effective 1/8/24
e Lilly Goins, from Educational Tutor, K-8 — 4.5 hrs., Wilson, to Special Education
Aide — 5.0 hrs., Wilson, effective 1/8/24
e Carrie-Anne Rumpak, from Educational Tutor, K-8 — 4.5 hrs., Wilson, to Special
Education Aide — 5.0 hrs., Roosevelt, effective 1/8/24
Short Term Classified
e Melissa Arroyo, Short-Term Yard Supervisor — 3.25 hrs., Lincoln, effective
1/8/24-3/1/24
e Fatima Perico, Short-Term Yard Supervisor — 3.0 hrs., Lincoln, effective 1/8/24-
3/1/24
Employment and Certification of Temporary Athletic Team Coaches pursuant to Title 5
CCR 5594
e Weston Hardin, 7th Boys Soccer, Kennedy, effective 1/8/24-2/14/24

b) Resignations

Classified
e Nesreen Almuntaser, READY Program Tutor — 4.5 hrs., Jefferson, effective
12/15/23

Rosalie Chavez, Yard Supervisor — 3.5 hrs., Richmond, effective 12/15/23
Samantha Coons, Educational Tutor, K-8 — 4.5 hrs., King, effective 12/15/23
William Davis, Substitute Paraprofessional (TK/K), effective 10/10/23
Betsabe Figueroa, Alternative Education Program Aide — 5.5 hrs., Community
Day School, effective 1/19/24
Alexis Gasak, READY Program Tutor — 4.5 hrs., Richmond, effective 1/19/24
Lizette Gutierrez, Substitute Bilingual Clerk Typist II, effective 8/2/23
Ashley Ruby, READY Program Tutor — 4.5 hrs., Monroe, effective 1/1/24

e Elizabeth Steen, Yard Supervisor — 2.5 hrs., Washington, effective 1/5/24
Termination due to Failure to Complete Mandatory Training

e Jonathan Gutierrez, Substitute Custodian I, effective 6/9/23

e Kevin Ramirez, Substitute READY Program Tutor, effective 3/21/23
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Termination Due to Lack of Availability

James Allen, Substitute Custodian I and Yard Supervisor, effective 10/6/23
Jose Castorena, Substitute Maintenance Worker I, effective 1/6/23

Albert Chavez, Substitute Custodian I, effective 11/15/23

Maritza Chiang Mesa, Substitute Bilingual Clerk Typist I, Translators: Oral
Interpreters, Translators: Written Translators and Yard Supervisor, effective
11/6/23

Juliana Evans, Substitute READY Program Tutor, effective 9/19/23

Xavier Garcia, Substitute Special Education Aide, effective 5/2/23

Claire Hurtado, Substitute Educational Tutor, K-8, effective 1/18/23
Antonia Maldonado Arciga, Substitute Educational Tutor, K-8, Translators: Oral
Interpreters and Translators: Written Translators, effective 11/20/23

Daisy Maya-Gaona, Substitute Paraprofessional (TK/K), effective 12/5/23
Stephanie Medrano, Substitute Special Education Aide and Paraprofessional
(TK/K), effective 10/3/23

Margarita Meraz-Quintero, Special Education Aide, effective 10/20/23
Ileanna Molina, Substitute Food Service Worker I/1I, effective 5/19/23
Jenna Nesbit, Substitute Library/Media Technician, effective 8/10/22
Zoraida Rivera-Manrique, Substitute Yard Supervisor, effective 11/9/23
Rosa Rodriguez, Substitute Clerk Typist I, effective 4/28/23

John Stafford, Substitute Bus Driver, effective 7/15/22

Nathan Tsutsui, Substitute READY Program Tutor, effective 10/13/23
Gabriela Perez-Vigil, Substitute READY Program Tutor, effective 5/15/23

Retirement

Deborah Ann Bray, Teacher, Monroe, effective 6/7/24
Rhonda Ieronimo, Teacher, Monroe, effective 6/7/24
Susan Schneider, Teacher, Monroe, effective 6/7/24

c) Volunteers

Name School
Porsche Espindola Jefferson
Gloria Vega Jefferson
Celeste Zaragoza Jefferson
Norma Zuniga Jefferson
Amanda Garza Corral Monroe
Christina M. Newman Monroe
Patrita Norton Washington
Markie Grider District Office

6. FINANCIAL (Endo)
a) Consider acceptance of the annual audit report
b) Consider acceptance of the audit corrective action plan
c) Consider adoption of Resolution # 13-24: Kings County Investment Policy
d) Consider adoption of Resolution #14-24: allows the District to apply for funding from
the Public Benefits Grant — New Alternative Fuel Vehicle Purchase Program

ADJOURN MEETING



HANFORD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
AGENDA REQUEST FORM

TO: Joy Gabler

FROM: Jay Strickland
DATE: Jan 12, 2024

For: X Board Meeting

[ ] Superintendent’s Cabinet
[ ] Information
X] Action

Date you wish to have your item considered: January 24, 2024
ITEM: Administrative Panel Recommendations

PURPOSE:

Case# 24-13 Kennedy

Case#t 24-14 Wilson
Case#t 24-15 Wilson



HANFORD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

AGENDA REQUEST FORM

TO: Joy C. Gabler
FROM: David Endo

DATE: 01/13/2024

FOR: [X] Board Meeting
[] Superintendent's Cabinet

FOR: [ ] Information
X]  Action

Date you wish to have your item considered: 01/24/2024

ITEM:
Consider approval of warrants.

PURPOSE:

The administration is requesting the approval of the warrants as listed on the registers
dated: 12/08/23, 12/13/23, 12/15/23, 12/20/23, 12/22/23, 12/27/23, 12/29/23, 01/05/24
and 01/12/24.

FISCAL IMPACT:
See attached.

RECOMMENDATIONS:
Approve the warrants.

ADM-018
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Warrant Register For Warrants
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Page 1 of 2
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Warrant Number Vendor Number Vendor Name Amount
12732632 8307 MAGALI ALATORRE — Refund-Book $12.00
12732633 6431 AMAZON.COM — Materials/Supplies $5,587.15
12732634 949 AMERICAN INCORPORATED - Services/Repair $8,600.00
12732635 2352 AMS.NET — Other Services $65,987.24
12732636 8311 CYDNE ANDERSON - Reimburse-Materials/Supplies $200.00
12732637 6253 AT&T — Telephone Communications $249.96
12732638 3947 ATKINSON ANDELSON LOYA RUUD & ROMO — Other Services $4,343.06
12732639 91 AUTOMATED OFFICE SYSTEMS — Materials/Supplies $8,858.86
12732640 7366 BRECK'S ELECTRIC MOTORS INC. — Materials/Supplies $1,346.34
12732641 6658 BRICKS4KIDZ — Other Services $1,260.00
12732642 176 BSN SPORTS — Warehouse Inventory, Materials/Supplies $1,198.75
12732643 2019 BUSWEST — Materials/Supplies $52.31
12732644 6807 CA SCHOOL NURSES ORGANIZATION - Travel/Conference $2,875.00
12732645 236 STATE OF CALIFORNIA — Other Services $2,096.00
12732646 355 CDT INC. — Other Services $198.00
12732647 1667 CDW GOVERNMENT INC. — Materials/Supplies $1,311.67
12732648 304 NICK CHAMPI ENTERPRISES INC. — Materials/Supplies $353.89
12732649 4178 COOK'S COMMUNICATION — Materials/Supplies $868.73
12732650 8021 NATALIE DAMIAN — Reimburse-Materials/Supplies $200.00
12732651 8281 DAWN ELECTRIC INC. — Services/Repair $4,898.00
12732652 4815 DIGITECH INTEGRATIONS INC — Services/Repair $345.00
12732653 5786 DOCUMENT TRACKING SERVICES — Other Services $2,382.37
12732654 6708 FIGARO'S MEXICAN GRILL — Materials/Supplies $387.07
12732655 8083 BRENDA FIGUEROA — Reissue Reimburse-Mileage $13.00
12732656 6862 CRYSTAL FOSTER — Reimburse-Materials/Supplies $117.82
12732657 3479 FRESNO RACK AND SHELVING CO. INC. — Materials/Supplies $1,938.38
12732658 1393 GAS COMPANY - Utilities $2,639.06
12732659 592 DAVID GOLDSMITH - Reimburse-Travel/Conference $711.46
12732660 8137 YSELA GUZMAN — Reimburse-Mileage $149.34
12732661 8246 MANDI HANSEN — Reimburse-Materials/Supplies $91.93
12732662 8309 ADRIANA HAYES — Reimburse-Mileage $180.78
12732663 8249 CHRISTINE HERNANDEZ — Reimburse-Mileage $102.18
12732664 7770 CRYSTAL JEFF — Reimburse-Mileage $683.82
12732665 764 RICHARD JOHNSTON - Reimburse-Materials/Supplies $34.32
12732666 8289 KIMBALL MIDWEST — Materials/Supplies $677.31
12732667 4846 KINGS AREA RURAL TRANSIT — Other Services $50.00
12732668 3760 KINGS COUNTY AIR — Materials/Supplies $63,076.00
12732669 796 KINGS COUNTY OFFICE OF ED - Other Services $588.00
12732670 5363 BETHANEY KUENNING — Reissue Reimburse-Materials/Supplies $62.74
12732671 8250 KEIRSTY LEE — Reimburse-Mileage $425.49
12732672 7248 MEGAN LETSON — Reimburse-Materials/Supplies $200.00
12732673 912 MANGINI ASSOCIATES INC. — JFK HVAC Proiject, Monroe TK Wing Proje$69,953.48
12732674 8308 ELIZABETH MORRISON — Reimburse-Mileage $62.88
12732675 7949 AURORA PAEZ — Reimburse-Mileage $36.68
12732676 8114 ADRIANA RAZO — Reimburse-Mileage $58.69
12732677 8310 IMELDA RICABLANCA — Reimburse-Mileage $55.02
12732678 1303 SAVE MART SUPERMARKETS — Food Services-Food $79.98
12732679 1349 SIERRA SCHOOL EQUIPMENT CO. — Materials/Supplies $3,923.38



13 Hanford Elementary School District

Warrant Register For Warrants
Dated 12/08/2023

Page 2 of 2

12/8/2023 7:26:45AM

Warrant Number Vendor Number Vendor Name Amount
12732680 6368 SINCLAIR RESEARCH GROUP — Other Services $13,752.00
12732681 1801 SMART & FINAL STORES (HFD KIT) — Food Services-Food $204.85
12732682 1392 SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON CO. — Utilities $4,135.15
12732683 1404 STANISLAUS FOUNDATION — ADMIN - Health/Welfare Benefits $2,952.90
12732684 4381 STAPLES - BUSINESS ADVANTAGE — Materials/Supplies $518.48
12732685 1417 STENHOUSE PUBLISHERS — Books $124.41
12732686 5752 TEACHER CREATED RESOURCES — Materials/Supplies $88.53
12732687 3391 GRISELDA TORRES — Reimburse-Materials/Supplies $200.00
12732688 8192 KRISTI TOSTE — Reimburse-Mileage $561.99
12732689 6776 TULARE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT — Woodrow Entry Fee $250.00
12732690 3154 UPS — Postage $15.27
12732691 8248 JUANA VILLALOBOS — Reimburse-Mileage $396.14

Total Amount of All Warrants: $272,722 .86



13 Hanford Elementary School District Credit Card RegiSter For Payments

Dated 12/08/2023

Page 1 of 1
12/8/2023 7:27:03AM

Document Number Vendor Number Vendor Name Amount
14037721 176 BSN SPORTS — Materials/Supplies $1,867.12
14037722 5428 CONSERV FLAG COMPANY — Materials/Supplies $141.00
14037723 415 DELRAY TIRE & RETREADING INC. — Materials/Supplies $8,830.38
14037724 5840 KELLY SPICERS STORES — Materials/Supplies $1,496.67
14037725 1071 ORIENTAL TRADING CO. INC. — Materials/Supplies $523.18
14037726 898 WILLIAM V. MACGILL & CO — Materials/Supplies $427.93

Total Amount of All Credit Card Payments: $13,286.28



13 Hanford Elementary School District Warrant RegiSter For Warrants
Dated 12/13/2023
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Warrant Number Vendor Number Vendor Name Amount
12733115 2993 TIM REVIOUS — Reimburse-Travel/Conference $116.24
12733116 1367 SISC III — Health/Welfare Benefits $711,726.25

Total Amount of All Warrants:

$711,842.49



13 Hanford Elementary School District

Warrant Register For Warrants

Dated 12/15/2023
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Page 1 of 1

12/15/2023 7:28:28AM

Warrant Number Vendor Number Vendor Name Amount
12733235 8315 CARSON ARNOLD - Reimburse-Materials/Supplies $119.38
12733236 6253 AT&T — Telephone Communications $6,144.83
12733237 8317 LINDSEY BENTLEY — Reimburse-Mileage $134.73
12733238 7399 BIMBO BAKERIES USA — Food Services-Food $2,954.01
12733239 6552 CHILDREN'S STORYBOOK GARDEN - Study Trips $2,340.00
12733240 4178 COOK'S COMMUNICATION — Materials/Supplies $70.45
12733241 405 DASSEL'S PETROLEUM INC. — Food Services-Materials/Supplies $948.17
12733242 3237 CLAUDIA DAVIS — Reimburse-Materials/Supplies $194.75
12733243 8063 FIDELITY SECURITY LIFE INSURANCE CO. — Health/Welfare Benefits $156.77
12733244 8063 FIDELITY SECURITY LIFE INSURANCE CO. — Health/Welfare Benefits $11,278.19
12733245 6239 ANJALI FRY — Reimburse-Materials/Supplies $200.00
12733246 1393 GAS COMPANY - Utilities $5,644.00
12733247 591 GOLD STAR FOODS - Food Services-Food $13,299.66
12733248 4300 LESLIE GRIFFITH — Reimburse-Materials/Supplies, Mileage $591.10
12733249 5216 HANFORD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT — Insurance $3,923.95
12733250 632 CITY OF HANFORD - Utilities $17,418.13
12733251 4059 BRENT HANKE — Reimburse-Materials/Supplies $137.50
12733252 8318 WESTON HARDIN — Reimburse-Other Services $10.00
12733253 5946 THE HARTFORD — Health/Welfare Benefits $1,493.16
12733254 5513 HARMINI HERNANDEZ — Reimburse-Other Services $463.61
12733255 8257 IMPERIAL BAG & PAPER CO LLC — Food Services-Materials/Supplies $5,238.63
12733256 4923 JT2 INTEGRATED RESOURCES — Other Services $1,508.20
12733257 796 KINGS COUNTY OFFICE OF ED - Food Services-Other Services $91.23
12733258 3782 KINGS COUNTY SPORTS OFFICIALS — Other Services $7,730.00
12733259 808 KINGS WASTE & RECYCLING — Utilities $1,727.65
12733260 7522 LANE ENGINEERS INC — Monroe TK/K Classroom Project $6,279.00
12733261 6657 FRANK LOURENCO — Reimburse-Travel/Conference $20.00
12733262 7732 METLIFE SMALL MARKET — Health/Welfare Benefits $4,705.25
12733263 1058 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS LLC — Warehouse Inv, Materials/Supplies $405.43
12733264 7502 PLAIN INSANE GRAPHICS — Materials/Supplies $308.80
12733265 1168 PRODUCERS DAIRY PRODUCTS — Food Services-Food $18,524.05
12733266 7580 PRUDENTIAL OVERALL SUPPLY - Food Services-Other Services $361.79
12733267 4511 DOUG ROSE — Reimburse-Travel/Conference, Mileage $73.84
12733268 1801 SMART & FINAL STORES (HFD KIT) — Food Services-Food $115.70
12733269 1392 SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON CO. — Utilities $13,991.31
12733270 1403 STANISLAUS FOUNDATION — DENTAL — Health/Welfare Benefits $14,243.45
12733271 1444 SYSCO FOODSERVICES OF MODESTO — Food Services-Food $41,377.33
12733272 1561 CRAIG VIDAL — Reimburse-Materials/Supplies $102.69

Total Amount of All Warrants: $184,326.74
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13 Hanford Elementary School District Credit Card Rengter For Payments Page 1 of 1
Dated 12/15/2023 12/15/2023 7:28:46AM
Document Number Vendor Number Vendor Name Amount
14037785 827 LA TAPATIA TORTILLERIA INC. — Food Services-Food $990.00
14037786 1214 REALLY GOOD STUFF — Materials/Supplies $199.72
$1,189.72

Total Amount of All Credit Card Payments:
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Dated 12/20/2023 12/26/2023 7:38:56AM

Warrant Number Vendor Number Vendor Name Amount
12733642 2 A-Z BUS SALES INC — Materials/Supplies $1,382.23
12733643 8180 AIRGAS INC. — Materials/Supplies $29.99
12733644 949 AMERICAN INCORPORATED - Equipment $63,371.85
12733645 1690 BATTERY SYSTEMS — Materials/Supplies $746.66
12733646 1750 EMPIRE SUPPLY COMPANY INC. — Materials/Supplies $87.89
12733647 838 LAWRENCE TRACTOR COMPANY — Materials/Supplies $218.64
12733648 8100 NAPA AUTO PARTS — Materials/Supplies $700.09

Total Amount of All Warrants: $66,537.35



13 Hanford Elementary School District

Warrant Register For Warrants
Dated 12/22/2023
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12/26/2023 7:39:25AM

Warrant Number Vendor Number Vendor Name Amount
12733810 4566 ALLIED STORAGE CONTAINERS - Other Services, Equipment $6,123.98
12733811 6431 AMAZON.COM — Materials/Supplies $4,430.36
12733812 91 AUTOMATED OFFICE SYSTEMS — Materials/Supplies $42,039.50
12733813 5036 CALIFORNIA KEYBOARDS — Materials/Supplies $7,936.48
12733814 6964 CENTRAL VALLEY PRINT SOLUTIONS INC. — Materials/Supplies $441.83
12733815 304 NICK CHAMPI ENTERPRISES INC. — Services/Repair $1,500.00
12733816 4178 COOK'S COMMUNICATION — Materials/Supplies $673.11
12733817 3200 CROWN AWARDS — Materials/Supplies $628.48
12733818 416 DEMCO INC. — Materials/Supplies $702.25
12733819 7528 GLOBAL INDUSTRIAL — Materials/Supplies $1,974.63
12733820 5216 HANFORD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT - Insurance $715.00
12733821 647 HANFORD JT. UNION HIGH SCHOOL - Other Services $238.25
12733822 5855 HOBBY LOBBY - Materials/Supplies $1,382.38
12733823 1327 SCHOOL SPECIALTY LLC — Warehouse Inventory $985.71
12733824 3800 SONITROL OF FRESNO - Other Services $7,823.88

Total Amount of All Warrants: $77,595.84
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13 Hanford Elementary School District Credit Card Rengter For Payments Page 1 of 1

Dated 12/22/2023 12/26/2023  7:40:04AM

Document Number Vendor Number Vendor Name Amount
14037844 176 BSN SPORTS — Materials/Supplies $901.21
14037845 415 DELRAY TIRE & RETREADING INC. — Services/Repair $300.95
14037846 5184 DRISKELL'S APPLIANCE — Materials/Supplies $286.33
14037847 509 EWING IRRIGATION PRODUCTS — Materials/Supplies $1,213.12
14037848 4092 FITNESS FINDERS INC — Materials/Supplies $470.70
14037849 7836 FOLLETT CONTENT SOLUTIONS LLC — Books $2,725.92
14037850 5364 FORK LIFT SPECIALTIES INC — Materials/Supplies $108.79
14037851 599 GOPHER SPORT — Materials/Supplies $466.97
14037852 1111 J W PEPPER & SON INC — Books $600.59
14037853 5057 JMP BUSINESS SYSTEMS INC — Materials/Supplies $508.45
14037854 1350 SIGN WORKS — Materials/Supplies $782.93

Total Amount of All Credit Card Payments: $8,365.96



13 Hanford Elementary School District

Warrant Register For Warrants
Dated 12/27/2023
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Page 1 of 1

1/2/2024 7:29:07AM

‘Warrant Number Vendor Number Vendor Name Amount
12734134 6253 AT&T — Telephone Communications $144.67
12734135 3258 BANK OF AMERICA — Travel/Conference, Materials/Supplies $20,333.87
12734136 1393 GAS COMPANY - Utilities $3,855.06
12734137 1392 SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON CO. — Utilities $32,781.60
12734138 1403 STANISLAUS FOUNDATION — DENTAL — Health/Welfare Benefits $15,448.20
12734139 1403 STANISLAUS FOUNDATION — DENTAL — Health/Welfare Benefits $10,947.95
12734140 1558 VERIZON WIRELESS — Telephone Communications $1,559.36

Total Amount of All Warrants: $85,070.71



13 Hanford Elementary School District

Warrant Register For Warrants
Dated 12/29/2023
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1/2/2024 7:29:47AM

Warrant Number Vendor Number Vendor Name Amount
12734452 91 AUTOMATED OFFICE SYSTEMS - Services/Repair $5,599.46
12734453 2313 CALIFORNIA KINDERGARTEN ASSOCIATION — Travel/Conference $5,320.00
12734454 4841 STATE OF CALIFORNIA — Other Services $125.00
12734455 6859 CENTRAL COAST AQUARIUM - Lincoln Study Trip $50.00
12734456 4148 CARRIE CORTINAS — Reimburse/Materials/Supplies $40.14
12734457 2290 ROBERT A. GARCIA — Reimburse-Travel/Conference $87.18
12734458 8272 KRISTINE GONZALES — Reimburse-Mileage $47.68
12734459 2855 MARISSA HENDERSON — Reimburse-Materials/Supplies $200.00
12734460 4532 HENRY SCHEIN INC — Warehouse Inventory $946.70
12734461 5513 HARMINI HERNANDEZ — Advance-Travel/Conference $277.00
12734462 6436 MATCO TOOLS — Materials/Supplies $1,275.20
12734463 5620 ANGELA PROTZMAN — Reimburse-Materials/Supplies $107.42
12734464 2993 TIM REVIOUS — Reimburse-Travel/Conference $30.00
12734465 6826 SITELOGIQ — Other Services $5,099.53
12734466 6921 GREG STRICKLAND — Reimburse-Travel/Conference $120.26
12734467 8319 MILAGROS VALDENEGRO - Reimburse-Other Services $39.00

Total Amount of All Warrants: $19,364.57



13 Hanford Elementary School District Credit Card RegiSter For Payments

Dated 12/29/2023
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Page 1 of 1
1/2/2024 7:30:07AM

Document Number Vendor Number Vendor Name Amount
14037896 5490 CABE 2018 — Other Services $24,000.00
Total Amount of All Credit Card Payments: $24,000.00
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Page 1 of 1
1/5/2024 9:08:01AM

‘Warrant Number Vendor Number Vendor Name Amount
12734582 6253 AT&T — TELEPHONE COMMUNICATIONS $59.01
12734583 3505 CRYSTAL G. AVILA — TRAVEL/CONFERENCE $182.00
12734584 405 DASSEL'S PETROLEUM INC. — MATERIALS/SUPPLIES $3,808.96
12734585 405 DASSEL'S PETROLEUM INC. — MATERIALS/SUPPLIES $4,397.33
12734586 1393 GAS COMPANY - UTILITIES $5,485.58
12734587 5323 NATIVIDAD GEORGE — TRAVEL/CONFERENCE $182.00
12734588 6397 KATIE HEUGLY — TRAVEL/CONFERENCE $182.00
12734589 8313 SIERRAH HEUGLY — TRAVEL/CONFERENCE $182.00
12734590 8312 ALYSSA HOPE — TRAVEL/CONFERENCE $182.00
12734591 7881 INNOVED — OTHER SERVICES $4,107.50
12734592 8239 AMY LESLIE — TRAVEL/CONFERENCE $182.00
12734593 7248 MEGAN LETSON — TRAVEL/CONFERENCE $182.00
12734594 7260 LOWE'S PRO SERVICES — MATERIALS/SUPPLIES $2,860.85
12734595 912 MANGINI ASSOCIATES INC. — MON TK/K PROJECT $58,532.90
12734596 8145 MAYRA NARANJO — TRAVEL/CONFERENCE $182.00
12734597 1116 TRINIDAD PEREZ — TRAVEL/CONFERENCE $182.00
12734598 8242 BRITTNI ROBERTS — TRAVEL/CONFERENCE $182.00
12734599 5287 TRACY RYAN — TRAVEL/CONFERENCE $182.00
12734600 6574 MARIBEL SANTIAGO — TRAVEL/CONFERENCE $182.00
12734601 7871 KATHERINE SIPPEL — TRAVEL/CONFERENCE $182.00
12734602 3800 SONITROL OF FRESNO — SERVICES/REPAIRS $1,121.13
12734603 1392 SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON CO. — UTILITIES $31,769.89
12734604 4381 STAPLES - BUSINESS ADVANTAGE — MATERIALS/SUPPLIES $74.52
12734605 6933 CHRISTINE STOKES — TRAVEL/CONFERENCE $182.00

Total Amount of All Warrants:

$114,765.67
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13 Hanford Elementary School District Credit Card Rengter For Payments Page 1 of 1
Dated 01/05/2024 1/5/2024 9:07:00AM
Document Number Vendor Number Vendor Name Amount
14037909 7679 LEARNING WITHOUT TEARS — MATERIALS/SUPPLIES $969.73
14037910 1071 ORIENTAL TRADING CO. INC. - MATERIALS/SUPPLIES $532.65
$1,502.38

Total Amount of All Credit Card Payments:
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13 Hanford Elementary School District Credit Card Rengter For Payments Page 1 of 1
Dated 01/12/2024 1/12/2024 7:34:17AM

Document Number Vendor Number Vendor Name Amount
14037942 599 GOPHER SPORT — Materials/Supplies $1,503.38
14037943 3336 HOBART CORPORATION — Food Services-Services/Repair $498.49
14037944 5715 J&E RESTAURANT SUPPLY INC — Food Services-Materials/Supplies $314.65
14037945 827 LA TAPATIA TORTILLERIA INC. — Food Services-Food $990.00
14037946 1466 TERMINIX INTERNATIONAL — Food Services-Other Services $40.00

Total Amount of All Credit Card Payments: $3,346.52
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Page 1 of 1

1/12/2024 7:33:49AM

Warrant Number Vendor Number Vendor Name Amount
12735037 6431 AMAZON.COM - Materials/Supplies $3,383.34
12735038 949 AMERICAN INCORPORATED - Services/Repair $349.00
12735039 7062 YADIRA ARCIGA CASTREJON — Reimburse-Materials/Supplies $48.16
12735040 7399 BIMBO BAKERIES USA — Food Services-Food $581.55
12735041 6859 CENTRAL COAST AQUARIUM - Simas Study Trip $1,770.00
12735042 6957 SARA CRISP — Reimburse-Materials/Supplies $195.55
12735043 3973 DANIELLE DARPLI — Reimburse-Mileage $82.79
12735044 405 DASSEL'S PETROLEUM INC. — Food Services-Materials/Supplies $64.73
12735045 6006 JACQUELYN DOYEL — Reimburse-Materials/Supplies $80.85
12735046 6274 ANTHONY ECK — Reimburse-Other Services $120.00
12735047 2461 GAMETIME - Land Improvements $81,474.05
12735048 2687 JONI R. GARNER - Reimburse-Materials/Supplies $178.48
12735049 4225 KAYE GARRISON — Reimburse-Materials/Supplies $106.52
12735050 591 GOLD STAR FOODS - Food Services-Food $6,134.06
12735051 3512 BETHANY HANKE — Reimburse-Materials/Supplies $200.00
12735052 7740 JOSE IBANEZ — Reissue Reimburse-Materials/Supplies $16.08
12735053 8257 IMPERIAL BAG & PAPER CO LLC - Food Services-Materials/Supplies $6,570.92
12735054 8087 NOREMY KILGORE — Reissue Payroll $74.52
12735055 8082 KING KHAN DRILLING & CONSTRUCTION INC — Land Improvement ~ $20,936.00
12735056 808 KINGS WASTE & RECYCLING - Utilities $1,155.05
12735057 893 GARRETT D. LUTES — Reissue Payroll Refund $2.62
12735058 8321 MIRANDAH MACIEL — Reimburse-Other Services $39.00
12735059 6617 LESLIE MARAIN — Advance-Travel/Conference, Mileage $366.03
12735060 8098 THERESE MARQUEZ — Reissue Reimburse-Other Services $25.00
12735061 7876 CASSONDRA MIMS — Reimburse-Materials/Supplies $200.00
12735062 2909 MARCELA NICOLE NASH — Reimburse-Mileage $76.70
12735063 8076 P.A.T.Y. STUDIO — Other Services $2,100.00
12735064 8202 PAVLETICH ELECTRIC AND - Services/Repair $47,820.00
12735065 1168 PRODUCERS DAIRY PRODUCTS - Food Services-Food $8,890.06
12735066 7580 PRUDENTIAL OVERALL SUPPLY - Food Services-Other Services $135.91
12735067 7746 DANA RAULINO — Reimburse-Other Services $90.00
12735068 1303 SAVE MART SUPERMARKETS — Food Services-Food $274.94
12735069 7979 SENSORY ROCK LLC - Study Trips $2,000.00
12735070 1801 SMART & FINAL STORES (HFD KIT) — Food Services-Food $148.17
12735071 1404 STANISLAUS FOUNDATION — ADMIN — Health/Welfare Benefits $2,964.48
12735072 5622 JOANNA STONE — Reimburse-Mileage $281.19
12735073 8119 CORP. SUPERIOR SERVICE — Food Services-Services/Repair $467.68
12735074 1444 SYSCO FOODSERVICES OF MODESTO — Food Services-Food $14,344.65
12735075 5752 TEACHER CREATED RESOURCES — Reissue Materials/Supplies $52.07
12735076 1554 SONIA VELO - Reimburse-Mileage $122.88

Total Amount of All Warrants:

$203,923.03
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Hanford Elementary School District

Minutes of the Annual Organizational Board Meeting
December 13, 2023

Minutes of the Annual Organizational Board Meeting of the Hanford Elementary
School District Board of Trustees on December 13, 2023 at the District Office Board
Room, 714 N. White Street, Hanford, CA.

Call to Order President Revious called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. Trustees Garcia, Garner,
Hernandez, and Strickland were present.

HESD Managers Joy C. Gabler, Superintendent, and the following administrators were present:

Present Kristina Baldwin, Cristy Goins, David Endo, Javier Espindola, Ramiro Flores, Amy
Fochetti, Matthew Gamble, Lucy Gomez, Lindsay Hastings, Robert Heugly, Rick
Johnston, Jennifer Levinson, William Potter, Cynthia Purcell, Jill Rubalcava, Cruz
Sanchez-Leal and Jay Strickland.

CLOSED SESSION

Closed Session Trustees adjourned to closed session at 5:30 for the purpose of:
e Student Discipline pursuant to Education Code section 48918
e Conference with Legal Counsel-Existing Litigation

Open Session Trustees returned to open session at 6:00 p.m.

Case #24-08; Trustee Hernandez moved to accept the Findings of Facts and expel Case #24-08,
24-09; 24-10; #24-09, #24-10, #24-11 and #24-12 for the remainder of the 2023-2024 school
24-11; 24-12 year for violation of Education Code 48900 and/or 48915 as determined by the
Administrative Panel at hearings held on December 11, 2023. Trustee Hernandez
further moved that the expulsion order be immediately suspended, and students
may return to regular school in probationary status on a Behavior Conditions plan
through June 7, 2024. Trustee Garcia seconded; motion carried 5-0:
Garcia — Yes
Garner — Yes
Hernandez — Yes
Revious — Yes
Strickland — Yes

Conference with No action was taken by the Board.

Legal Counsel
President Revious stated he was thankful for having the privilege to serve as the
President to this Board. It's a good Board that gets along well.

ANNUAL BOARD ORGANIZATION

Secretary of the Board, Superintendent Gabler, conducted the election of officers
for 2024.
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Strickland
elected
President for
2024

Garcia elected
Vice-President
for 2024

Hernandez

Trustee Revious nominated Trustee Strickland for President of the HESD Board of
Trustees. There were no other nominations. Trustee Revious moved that
nominations be closed, Trustee Garcia seconded, and the motion carried 5-0:

Garcia — Yes

Garner — Yes

Hernandez — Yes

Revious — Yes

Strickland — Yes

Trustees then casted their votes by roll call for Trustee Strickland as President of
the Board of Trustees:

Garcia — Yes

Garner — Yes

Hernandez — Yes

Revious — Yes

Strickland — Yes
By unanimous vote, Trustee Strickland was elected to serve as 2024 President of
HESD Board of Trustees.

Trustee Strickland nominated Trustee Garcia for Vice-President of the HESD Board
of Trustees. There were no other nominations. Trustee Revious moved that
nominations be closed, Trustee Strickland seconded, and the motion carried 5-0:

Garcia — Yes

Garner — Yes

Hernandez — Yes

Revious — Yes

Strickland — Yes

Trustees then casted their vote for Trustee Garcia as Vice-President of the Board of
Trustees:

Garcia — Yes

Garner — Yes

Hernandez — Yes

Revious — Yes

Strickland — Yes
By unanimous vote, Trustee Garcia was elected to serve as 2024 Vice-President of
HESD Board of Trustees.

Trustee Garcia nominated Trustee Hernandez for Clerk of the Board of Trustees.

elected Clerk for There were no other nominations. Trustee Revious moved that nominations be

2024

closed, Trustee Garcia seconded, and the motion carried 5-0:
Garcia — Yes
Garner — Yes
Hernandez — Yes
Revious — Yes
Strickland — Yes

Trustees then casted their vote for Trustee Hernandez as Clerk of the Board:
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Committee
Appointments

Board Meeting
2023 Calendar

Public
Comments

Board and Staff
Comments

Requests to
Address the
Board

Garcia — Yes

Garner — Yes

Hernandez — Yes

Revious — Yes

Strickland — Yes
By unanimous vote Trustee Hernandez was elected to serve as 2024 Clerk for the
HESD Board of Trustees.

President Strickland appointed Trustees to serve on the following committees for
2024 as follows:

Budget Committee — Strickland and Garcia

Kings County School Boards Association — Garcia

HESD Educational Foundation — Revious
Trustee Strickland motioned to adopt the appointed Trustees. Trustee Hernandez
seconded; motion carried 5-0:

Garcia — Yes

Garner — Yes

Hernandez — Yes

Revious — Yes

Strickland — Yes

Trustee Garner motioned to adopt the Board Meeting Calendar for 2024. Trustee
Stricklad seconded; motion carried 5-0:

Garcia — Yes

Garner — Yes

Hernandez — Yes

Revious — Yes

Strickland — Yes

WINTER RECEPTION

Trustees adjourned for the Winter Reception from 6:08 - 6:23 p.m.
PRESENTATIONS, REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS

None

President Strickland stated Monroe and Simas Elementary did a good job with their
book fair sales. His wife was able to volunteer, and parents and teachers shared
with her how much their students loved it and how it increases their interest in

reading. President Strickland thanked them for what they do.

None
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Dates to
Remember

President Strickland reviewed dates to remember: Elementary Basketball Games —
December 15%; Winter Break - December 18% to January 5%; Holiday-Christmas —
December 22" and 25%; Holiday-New Years — December 29t and 1%t

CONSENT ITEMS

Trustee Revious made a motion to take consent items “a” through “g” together.
Trustee Garcia seconded; motion carried 5-0:

Garcia — Yes

Garner — Yes

Hernandez — Yes

Revious — Yes

Strickland — Yes
Trustee Revious then made a motion to approve consent items “a” through “g”.
Trustee Garcia seconded; motion carried 5-0:

Garcia — Yes

Garner — Yes

Hernandez — Yes

Revious — Yes

Strickland — Yes

The items approved are as follows:

a) Warrant listings dated November 3, 2023; November 13, 2023; November 15,
2023; November 17, 2023; November 22, 2023; November 27, 2023; November
29, 2023 and December 1, 2023.

b) Minutes of Regular Board Meeting held on November 8, 2023.

¢) Interdistrict transfers as recommended.

d) Donation of 125 gifts from Operation Christmas Blessing for HESD students.

e) Donation of 135 gifts from CHP for Monroe students.

f) Donation of $1,697.00 from Monroe PTC.

g) Donation of 16 gifts from Hanford Social Club.

INFORMATION ITEMS

HES Enrollment Joy Gabler, Superintendent, presented Ken Reynolds from School Works that joined
& Demographics us via Zoom to present a report on the recommended attendance boundary

Report

adjustments. Ken presented a PowerPoint presentation on the Demographics and
Boundary Study. He stated they use a computer system that analyses data while
showing a map with only HESD student enrollment. The Kindergarten Projections
based on births chart was reviewed. The number of births has dropped but has
stabilized over that past 9 years which is good for the community. The Transitional
Kinder program has expanded and will continue to expand to where all four-year-
olds will be eligible to attend. The enrollment projection for TK enroliment for 2025
is around 379. The cohort changes since kindergarten was reviewed showing that
overall the enrollment for each grade is stable over time. The new housing
development show an average of 179 new housing units per year for the next 6
years. This prediction that can change. The 10-year enrollment history and 6-year
enrollment projections was reviewed showing an average growth of 53 students per
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Monthly
Financial Report
7/1/23 -
10/30/23

year. The capacity and projected enrollment for Martin Luther King Elementary
chart and the school facility utilization was reviewed. It is projected that MLK will
exceed its capacity in 3 years. The 2023 demographics study shows that in 6 years
MLK is projected to reach nearly 800 students while Lee Richmond Elementary and
Lincoln Elementary around 425 students. Adjustments of boundaries will need to be
made to prevent overcrowding. The boundary adjustment focuses on managing
MLK from being overcrowded. Ken believes the best option is adjusting some
boundaries from MLK Elementary to Roosevelt Elementary and Lincoln Elementary
and some of Roosevelt Elementary’s boundaries to Lee Richmond Elementary. Maps
showing changes were showed on the PowerPoint. About 50 students from MLK
would go to Lincoln, about 50-60 from MLK going to Roosevelt and about 50 from
Roosevelt going to Lee Richmond. If the adjustment happens in 2024-2025 school
year, the current 3 to 5™ graders will get to stay for next year. TK to 2" grade
would get impacted. In summary, the boundary adjustments will impact current TK-
2 grade students, MLK enrollment will be kept below 700 to reduce the 100 student
enrollment projections for the next 6 years, and Roosevelt, Lincoln and Lee
Richmond are better utilized.

Vice-President Garcia asked if bus transportation will be provided for student being
affected. Superintendent Gabler answered that our bus routes will be adjusted.
President Strickland asked if this is doable. Ken answered absolutely doable.
Superintendent Gabler stated the recommendations brought by Ken keeps MLK at
its capacity and range. Monroe has historically always been the largest school, over
time Monroe corrects itself as well as Lee Richmond. If we don't change boundaries
MLK will be at 742. Vice-President Garcia asked if this would come for approval.
Superintendent Gabler stated if the Board decided to move forward it will be
brought back for approval at the January meeting.

a) David Endo, Chief Business Official, presented for information the monthly
financial reports for the period of 07/01/2023-10/30/2023. He stated
everything is going according got plan.

Budget Calendar b) David Endo, Chief Business Official, presented for information the Budget

Federal
Equipment
Inventory

BP 0420.41

BP 1113

Calendar for the 2024-2025 Budget. He mentioned there is a few changes
coming in the future with the release of the State Budget in January.

c) Robert Heugly, Director of Program Development, Assessment &
Accountability, presented for information the Federal Equipment Inventory that
has been completed by the Fiscal department.

d) Joy Gabler, Superintendent, presented for information the revised Board Policy
& Exhibit:
e 0420.41 — Charter School Oversight

e) Joy Gabler, Superintendent, presented for the information revised Board Policy
& new Exhibit:
e 1113 — District and School Websites
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BP 5145.6 f) Joy Gabler, Superintendent, presented for information the revised Board Policy
& Exhibit:
e 5145.6 — Parent/Guardian Notifications
BP/E 9322 g) Joy Gabler, Superintendent, presented for information the revised Board Policy
& Exhibit:

e 9322 — Agenda/Meeting Materials

BP 4151/4251/ h) Joy Gabler, Superintendent, presented for information the revised Board Policy:
4351 e 4151/4251/4351 — Employee Compensation

AR 4161.1/ i) Joy Gabler, Superintendent, presented for information the revised
4261.1/ 4361.1 Administrative Regulation:
e 4161.1/4261.1/4361.1 — Personal Iliness/Injury Leave

AR 4361.25 j) Joy Gabler, Superintendent, presented for information the deleted
Administrative Regulation:
e 4361.25 — Family Iliness Leave

BOARD POLICIES AND ADMINISTRATION

HESD Arts, a) Trustee Garcia made a motion to approve the updated HESD Arts, Music,
Music, Discretionary Block Grant Expenditure Plan. Trustee Revious seconded; motion
Discretionary carried 5-0:

Block Grant Garcia — Yes

Expenditure Plan Garner — Yes

Hernandez — Yes
Revious — Yes
Strickland — Yes

2023-24 Prop 28b) Trustee Revious made a motion to approve the 2023-2024 Prop 28 School
School Plans Plans (Arts & Music). Trustee Garcia seconded; motion carried 5-0:

Garcia — Yes

Garner — Yes

Hernandez — Yes

Revious — Yes

Strickland — Yes

Out-of-State c) Trustee Garcia made a motion to approve the Out-of-State travel for Edupoint
Travel Synergy SIS Admin Training. Trustee Revious seconded; motion carried 5-0:
Garcia — Yes
Garner — Yes
Hernandez — Yes
Revious — Yes
Strickland — Yes

Lane Engineers d) Trustee Garner made a motion to ratify agreement with Lane Engineers for
land surveying for new TK/Kinder wing at Monroe. Trustee Garcia seconded;
motion carried 5-0:
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Garcia — Yes
Garner — Yes
Hernandez — Yes
Revious — Yes
Strickland — Yes

RMA Geoscience e) Trustee Garcia made a motion to ratify agreement with RMA Geoscience for

Bid — WW Adminf)
Building

WW - HVAC
Project

)

Forensic
Analytical
Consulting
Service

h)

Surplus Propertyi)

geotechnical investigation and geohazards study for the new TK/Kinder wing at
Monroe. Trustee Revious seconded; motion carried 5-0:

Garcia — Yes

Garner — Yes

Hernandez — Yes

Revious — Yes

Strickland — Yes

Trustee Garcia made a motion to approve going to bid for construction of
Administration Building at Woodrow Wilson Jr High. Trustee Garner seconded;
motion carried 5-0:

Garcia — Yes

Garner — Yes

Hernandez — Yes

Revious — Yes

Strickland — Yes

Trustee Garcia made a motion to ratify change order 1 for the Wilson
Classroom HVAC Project. Trustee Revious seconded; motion carried 5-0:
Garcia — Yes
Garner — Yes
Hernandez — Yes
Revious — Yes
Strickland — Yes

Trustee Garcia made a motion to approve an agreement with Forensic
Analytical Consulting Service for new Woodrow Wilson Administration Building.
Trustee Revious seconded; motion carried 5-0:

Garcia — Yes

Garner — Yes

Hernandez — Yes

Revious — Yes

Strickland — Yes

Trustee Garcia made a motion to approve the declaration of surplus property.
Trustee Hernandez seconded; motion carried 5-0:

Garcia — Yes

Garner — Yes

Hernandez — Yes

Revious — Yes

Strickland — Yes
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PERSONNEL

Trustee Garcia made a motion to take Personnel items “a” through “d” together.
Trustee Revious seconded; the motion carried 5-0:

Garcia — Yes
Garner — Yes
Hernandez — Yes
Revious — Yes
Strickland — Yes

Trustee Garcia then made a motion to approve Personnel items “a” through “d".
Trustee Revious seconded; the motion carried 5-0:

The fol

Garcia — Yes
Garner — Yes
Hernandez — Yes
Revious — Yes
Strickland — Yes

lowing items were approved:

Classified

Jessica Brooke, Food Service Worker I — 3.0 hrs., King, effective 11/27/23
Cristina Castorena, Yard Supervisor — 1.5 hr., Roosevelt, effective 10/30/23
Kadence Latham, READY Program Tutor — 4.5 hrs., Lincoln, effective
11/27/23

LeAnna Mattos, Yard Supervisor — 3.0 hrs., Wilson, effective 10/30/23
Amber McRoberts, Yard Supervisor — 1.75 hrs., Monroe, effective 10/30/23
Aracelia Mendez, Yard Supervisor — 3.25 hrs., Simas, effective 10/30/23
Maya Mendez, READY Program Tutor — 4.5 hrs., Washington, effective
11/13/23

Izumi Nakazawa, Food Service Worker II — 2.5 hrs., Kennedy, effective
11/28/23

Cristina Nuno, Yard Supervisor — 3.5 hrs., King, effective 10/30/23
Francisca Perez, Yard Supervisor — 1.5 hrs., King, effective 10/30/23
Grace Servadio, READY Program Tutor — 4.5 hrs., Richmond, effective
11/27/23

Erica Tijero, Yard Supervisor — 2.5 hrs., King, effective 10/30/23

Jewel Zamora, Yard Supervisor — 2.5 hrs., Richmond, effective 11/27/23

Certific

ated
Virginia Tamez, Temporary SDC Teacher, Roosevelt, effective 12/4/23

Classified Temps/Sub

Desiree Alfaro, Substitute READY Program Tutor, effective 11/2/23
Juan Botello, Athletic Coach, effective 11/3/23

Albert Chavez, Substitute Custodian I, effective 11/14/23

Vanessa Corona, Substitute Yard Supervisor, effective 11/27/23

Jadon Guillen, Athletic Coach, effective 11/15/23

Cruz Lopez Dias, Substitute Bilingual Clerk Typist I and Yard Supervisor,
effective 11/15/23

Israel Luna, Substitute Yard Supervisor, effective 12/1/23

Isabelle Madera, Athletic Coach, effective 11/3/23
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o Leticia Martinez, Substitute Clerk Typist I and Yard Supervisor, effective
11/27/23
Roberto Martinez Mosqueda, Substitute Custodian I, effective 11/29/23
Mayra Prieto Verduzco, Substitute Yard Supervisor, effective 11/14/23
Elizabeth Stengel, Substitute Yard Supervisor, effective 11/27/23
Kayla Trujillo, Athletic Coach, effective 11/16/23
Maria Villasefor, Substitute READY Program Tutor, effective 12/4/23
Gina Wibeto, Substitute Food Service Worker I, Food Service Worker II, and
Substitute Food Service Utility Worker, effective 11/27/23
e Shawna Zsido, Substitute Custodian I and Yard Supervisor, effective 11/3/23
Promotions
e Nancy Gonzales, from Account Technician III, 8.0 hrs., Fiscal Services, to
Account Technician 1V, 8.0 hrs., Fiscal Services, effective 11/27/23
More Hours/Days
e Rosarita Alvarez, from Yard Supervisor — 2.0 hrs., King, to Yard Supervisor —
2.5 hrs., King, effective 10/30/23
e Aracelia Mendez, from Yard Supervisor — 3.25 hrs., Simas, to Yard
Supervisor — 3.5 hrs., Simas, effective 11/27/23
Short Term Classified
e Guadalupe Gonzalez, Short-Term Yard Supervisor — 1.0 hr., Jefferson,
effective 10/30/23-12/15/23
e Adilene Ochoa, Short-Term Yard Supervisor — 3.5 hrs., Lincoln, effective
10/30/23-12/15/23
Employment and Certification of Temporary Athletic Team Coaches pursuant to
Title 5 CCR 5594
« Mariah Benitez, Girls 4-6th Basketball, Hamilton, effective 11/6/23-2/3/24
Juan Botello, Boys 4-6th Basketball, Roosevelt, effective 11/13/23-2/3/24
Luis Botello, Boys 7th Basketball, Kennedy, effective 11/6/23-2/14/24
Jesus Cantu, Boys 7-8th Wrestling, Wilson, effective 11/6/23-2/14/24
Jadon Guillen, Boys 4-6th Basketball, Monroe, effective 11/27/23-2/3/24
James Joyce, Boys 4-6th Basketball, Richmond, effective 11/1/23-2/3/24
Ada Lopez, 7th Boys Soccer, Kennedy, effective 11/15/23-2/14/24
Isabelle Madera, Girls 4-6th Basketball, Washington, effective 11/13/23-
2/3/24
e Michael Mendoza, Girls 4-6th Basketball, Roosevelt, effective 11/13/23-
2/3/24
« Michael Quifiones, Boys 4-6th Basketball, Washington, effective 11/13/23-
2/3/24
e Raymond Ruiz, Girls 7-8th Wrestling, Kennedy, effective 11/6/23-2/14/24
e Kelvin Shepherd, Boys 8th Basketball, Wilson, effective 11/6/23-2/14/24
o Kayla Trujillo, Girls 8th Soccer, Kennedy, effective 11/16/23-2/14/24

Item "b” - Classified
Resignations o Arlet Alatorre, Special Circumstances Aide — 5.75 hrs., Richmond, effective
12/15/23

e Amy Cole, Special Education Aide — 5.0 hrs., Jefferson, effective 11/10/23
e Melissa Luna, Substitute Yard Supervisor, effective 6/2/23
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Item "c” - Name School

Volunteers Juan Hernandez-Cruz Jefferson
Sherman Royal (HESD Employee) Jefferson
Karla Russell Jefferson
Sarina Sayama Jefferson
Vicki Torrez Jefferson
Tara Warmerdam Jefferson
Valerie Ceja King
Name School
Kristina Mincher King
Cayetana Moz-Diaz King
Luz Najar King
Ashley Ramirez King
Mayra Almeida Lincoln
Courtney Abbott Monroe
Joshua Johnson Monroe
Barbara Longoria Monroe
Joseph Lopez Monroe
Delaney Garivay Richmond
Denis Rubio Roosevelt
Amy Cifuentez Simas
Leslie Griffith (HESD Employee)  Simas
Brianna Mclntyre Simas
Liza Robertson Simas
Mariah Lopez Washington

Item "d”— MOU Memorandum of Understanding between Central State University’s College of

1st Interim
Report

Education and Hanford Elementary School District
o Authorize agreement to enter into a Memorandum of Understanding
between Hanford Elementary School District and Central State University’s
College of Education regarding the placement of student teachers for 2023-
24 school year.

FINANCIAL

David Endo, Chief Business Official, presented a PowerPoint presentation on the
2023-2024 1%t Interim Report. He reviewed the 2023-24 budget reporting timeline.
Local Control Funding Formula has two major components: funding on ADA and
funding on ADA for free and reduced students, foster student, and English learner
students. David reviewed charts showing our enrollment numbers and 2022-2023
versus 2023-2024 enrollment. It shows a drop for Monroe, Lee Richmond,
Roosevelt and JFK Jr High. We are currently getting funded on more than we are
projecting. The 10-yar enrollment history and 6-year enrollment projections was
reviewed. The general fund budget comparison doesn’t have a lot of changes. The
biggest change is our interest rate has more than doubled. David also reviewed the
other HESD district funds and the multi-year projections assumptions. He stated we
can look forward to, enrollment has gone up by 42, daily attendance is getting
better, 3-year average ADA is operable, TK enrollment expanding by two months,
step/column is going up, and over twelve million in one-time grant revenues for
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2023-24 are going away. We want to keep in mind that KCOE is proposing
additional Special Education staffing costing HESD $609 thousand for 2024-25, the
State Franchise Tax Board has collected $18.1 billion of the $44.8 billion for the
month of October and COLA is closer to 1% for 2024-2025. There should be more
information on the 2" interim report after the Governor’s budget has been
released.

a) Trustee Garcia made a motion to approve the 1t Interim Report. Trustee Garner
seconded; motion carried 5-0:
Garcia — Yes
Garner — Yes
Hernandez — Yes
Revious — Yes
Strickland — Yes

Resolution #12- b) Trustee Revious made a motion to approve Resolution #12-24: 2023-2024
24 Budget Revisions — 1%t Interim. Trustee Garcia seconded; motion carried 5-0:
Garcia — Yes
Garner — Yes
Hernandez — Yes
Revious — Yes
Strickland — Yes

c) Trustee Garcia made a motion to approve the District to issue a request for
qualification (rfq) to select the District’s Architects. Trustee Revious seconded;
motion carried 5-0:

Garcia — Yes
Garner — Yes
Hernandez — Yes
Revious — Yes
Strickland — Yes

d) Trustee Garcia made a motion to approve the District to issue a request for
proposals (rfp) for Executive Chef Services. Trustee Revious seconded; motion
carried 5-0:

Garcia — Yes
Garner — Yes
Hernandez — Yes
Revious — Yes
Strickland — Yes

San Joaquin e) Trustee Garcia made a motion to approve the renewal of membership with San
Valley Joaquin Valley Purchasing Co-op. Trustee Revious seconded; motion carried 5-
Purchasing Co- 0:
op Garcia — Yes

Garner — Yes

Hernandez — Yes
Revious — Yes
Strickland — Yes
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Super Co-op f) Trustee Revious made a motion to approve renewal of services and
Joint Powers memorandum of understanding with Super Co-op Joint Powers Authority.
Authority Trustee Garcia seconded; motion carried 5-0:

Garcia — Yes

Garner — Yes

Hernandez — Yes
Revious — Yes
Strickland — Yes

Certification of g) Trustee Garcia made a motion to approve the Certification of Signatures.
Signatures Trustee Garner seconded; motion carried 5-0:

Garcia — Yes

Garner — Yes

Hernandez — Yes

Revious — Yes

Strickland — Yes

Adjournment There being no further business, President Revious adjourned the meeting at 7:30
p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Joy C. Gabler,
Secretary to the Board of Trustees

Approved:

Greg Strickland, President Lupe Hernandez, Clerk



INTER IN/OUT TRANSFER REQUESTS

No | A/D | schReq'd | HomesSch | Date |
[-273 A Simas Lemoore 1/12/2024
-274 A Wilson Lemoore 1/12/2024
[-275 A Monroe Pioneer 1/12/2024
1-276 A Jefferson Armona 1/12/2024
1-277 A Jefferson Armona 1/12/2024
1-278 A Jefferson Armona 1/12/2024
1-279 A Jefferson Pioneer 1/12/2024

No | A/D | SchReq'd | HomesSch | Date |
0-201 A Kerman Wilson 1/12/2024

0-202 A Lemoore Kennedy 1/12/2024
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HANFORD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Agenda Request Form

TO: Joy Gabler
FROM: Amy Fochetti
DATE: 01/12/2024
FOR: (X) Board Meeting
( ) Superintendent’s Cabinet
FOR: ( ) Information
(X) Action

Date you wish to have your item considered: January 24, 2024
ITEM: Consider approval of donation to General Fund from:

e Simas PTC in the amount of $274.56 for Student Jog-A-Thon
PURPOSE: General Fund

FISCAL IMPACT: $274.56

RECOMMENDATION:  Approve donation.




TO:

FROM:

DATE:

FOR:

FOR:
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HANFORD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

AGENDA REQUEST FORM

Board of Trustees
Joy C. Gabler

January 16, 2024

X] Board Meeting
[] Superintendent's Cabinet

X] Information
[] Action

Date you wish to have your item considered: January 24, 2024

ITEM:

PURPOSE:

Quarterly report (10/01/23 - 12/31/23) regarding Williams Uniform Complaints.
The types of complaints covered in the Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures
are:
1. Instructional Materials - Sufficient textbooks and instructional
materials
2. Facilities — conditions that pose an emergency or urgent threat to
the health or safety of students or staff
3. Teacher vacancy or misassignment

To comply with the requirements Education Code 35186, the Superintendent shall
report summarized data on the nature and resolution of all Williams Uniform
Complaints to the Board and the County Superintendent of Schools on a quarterly
basis.

For the second quarter of 2023-2024 school year there were no Williams Uniform
Complaints filed.

FISCAL IMPACT: None

RECOMMENDATIONS: None
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Quarterly Report on Williams Uniform Complaints
[Education Code § 35186(d)]

Hanford Elementary School District

Person completing this form:

(check one)

Jessica Valencia Tile. Administrative Assistant

Quarterly Report Submission Month/Quarter: O October 1* Quarter (7/1-9/30)
January 2" Quarter (10/1-12/31)
a April 3" Quarter (1/1-3/31)
Q July 4™ Quarter (4/1-6/30)

Quarterly Report Submission Year:

2023-2024

Date for information to be reported publicly at governing board meeting: January 24, 2024

Please check the box that applies:

v

No complaints were filed with any school in the district during the quarter indicated
above.

Complaints were filed with schools in the district during the quarter indicated above. The
following chart summarizes the nature and resolution of these complaints.

General Subject Area Total # of Complaints # Resolved # Unresolved

Textbooks and
Instructional Materials O 0 O

Teacher Vacancy or
Misassignment

Facilities Conditions

TOTALS

o O | O
o O O
o O O

Joy C. Gabler

Print Name of District Superintendent

Signature of District Superintendent Date

Please submit to:

Genevieve Almanzar, Coordinator

Kings County Office of Education
Williams Compliance

(559) 589-7035
info.foundationalservices@kingscoe.org




TO:

FROM:

DATE:

For:

For:
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HANFORD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
AGENDA REQUEST FORM

Joy Gabler

Robert Heugly
February 12, 2024

Xl Board Meeting
Superintendent’s Cabinet

[]
Xl Information
[]

Action

Date you wish to have your item considered: January 24, 2024

ITEM: Receive for information a report from the District Parent Advisory Committee for the meeting held on
December 12, 2023 (For PAC Meeting #1)

PURPOSE: The PAC advises the board on the educational programs and services included in the
Local Control Accountability Plan.

FISCAL IMPACT: PAC is a requirement of the Local Control Funding Formula.
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Hanford Elementary School District

Hanford Elementary School District (HESD)
Parent Advisory Committee
Report to the Board

Date of Meeting: December 12, 2023
Starting Time:  9:00 a.m.

Location: Board Room

Purpose of the Meeting: To consult, review, and comment on the Hanford Elementary Local Control Accountability Plan.

The Parent Advisor Committee received information on the following topics:
e BP6020: Parent Involvement
e  The Local Control Accountability Plan
o Introduction to the Local Control Accountability Plan
o Introduction to the California School Dashboard including State and Local Indicators
= Sufficiency of Instructional Materials
= Facilities meeting the “Good Repair” standard
o Teacher Credentialing/Misassignments
o Teacher Experience

The Parent Advisory Committee Made the Following Recommendations:
1. The PAC recommends that the board approve BP6020 Parent Involvement
2. The PAC recommends that the district continue to ensure that all students have the required instructional materials.

The Superintendent Responds:
1. The Superintendent supports the recommendation that the board approve BP6020 Parent Involvement.
2. The Superintendent supports the recommendation that the district continues to ensure that all students have the
required instructional materials.



TO:

FROM:

DATE:

For:

For:
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HANFORD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
AGENDA REQUEST FORM

Joy Gabler

Lucy Gomez
January 12, 2024

X] Board Meeting
Superintendent’s Cabinet

]
X Information
]

Action

Date you wish to have your item considered: January 24, 2024

ITEM: Receive for information a report from the District English Learner Advisory Committee for the
meeting held on December 14, 2023 (For DELAC Meeting #1)

PURPOSE: The DELAC advises the board on the educational programs and services for English
Learners including services that are part of the Local Control Accountability Plan.

FISCAL IMPACT: DELAC is arequirement of the Local Control Funding Formula and several
Federally funded programs.
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Hanford Elementary School District

Hanford Elementary School District (HESD)
District English Learner Advisory Committee
Report to the Board

Date of Meeting: December 14, 2023
Starting Time: 9:00a.m. to 10:30a.m.
Location: Board Room

Purpose of the Meeting: To advise the board on:

Development of an LEA master plan, including policies, per the State Board of Education (SBE)
EL Roadmap Policy, guiding consistent implementation of EL educational programs and
services that takes into consideration the SPSAs.

Conducting of an LEA-wide needs assessment on a school-by-school basis.

Establishment of LEA program, goals, and objectives for programs and services for English
Learners per the SBE-adopted English Learner Roadmap Policy.

Development of a plan to ensure compliance with any applicable teacher and instructional aide
requirements.

Review and comment on the LEA’s reclassification procedures.

Review and comment on the written notifications required to be sent to parents and guardians. (5
CCR Section 11308)

The DELAC received information on the following topics:

The HESD Parent Involvement Policy (BP/AR 6020)

Local Control Accountability Plan and the California English Learner Roadmap Policy
The district’s programs and services for English learners

Mandatory Annual Parent Notifications

Teacher Credentialing and Instructional Aide requirements

District’s English learner Reclassification Procedures

The DELAC made the following recommendations:

Approve the HESD Parent Involvement Policy BP/AR 6020.
Continue to provide teacher training and support site administration to ensure students receive
both designated and integrated ELD instruction.

Continue to provide parents with engagement opportunities such as Kinder Counts/Kinder
Cuenta, and First and Forward/Primero y Adelante parent academies.

Continue to monitor the progress of English learners and provide interventions that support
English learners to be reclassified to Fluent English Proficient within six years of enrollment.
Continue to provide leadership support to school site teams to monitor progress and applicable
reclassification criteria of English learners with an Individual Education Plan.

The Superintendent Responds:
e The Superintendent supports the recommendation that the board approve BP/AR 6020 Parent

Involvement.

e The Superintendent supports the recommendations to continue to provide teacher training and

support site administration to ensure students receive both designated and integrated ELD
instruction.

e The Superintendent supports the recommendation to continue to provide parents with engagement

opportunities such as Kinder Counts/Kinder Cuenta, and First and Forward/Primero y Adelante
parent academies.


https://hanfordesd.zoom.us/j/83463135148
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e The Superintendent supports the recommendation to continue to monitor the progress of English

learners and provide interventions that support English learners to be reclassified to Fluent
English Proficient within six years of enrollment.
e The Superintendent supports the recommendation to continue to support school site teams to

monitor progress and applicable reclassification criteria of English learners with an Individual
Education Plan.
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HANFORD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

AGENDA REQUEST FORM

TO: Joy C. Gabler
FROM: David Endo

DATE: 01/13/2024

FOR: [X] Board Meeting
[] Superintendent's Cabinet

FOR: [X] Information
[] Action

Date you wish to have your item considered: 01/24/2024

ITEM:
Receive for information monthly financial reports for the period of 07/01/2023-11/30/2023.

PURPOSE:
Attached are financial summaries for all of the District’s funds for the period of 07/01/2023-
11/30/2023.

FISCAL IMPACT:
The financial reports are informational only.

RECOMMENDATIONS:
Receive the monthly financial reports.
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13 Hanford Elementary School District Page 1 of 12

Fiscal Position Report
Fiscal Year: 2024

November 2023 12/18/2023 12:17:15PM
Requested by dendo
Fund: 0100 General Fund
Revised % of
November Amount YTD Amount Budget Budget % Remain

BEGINNING BALANCE

Net Beginning Balance 9791-9795 $49,376,768.98 $49,376,768.98
REVENUES
1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 $6,057,876.00 $27,157,179.24 $77,461,581.00 35.06 64.94
2) Federal Revenues 8100-8299 ($1,606,983.59) $3,359,499.71 $15,420,734.77 21.79 78.21
3) Other State Revenues 8300-8599 $2,385,835.58 $5,383,654.54 $6,486,233.21 83.00 17.00
4) Other Local Revenues 8600-8799 $257,117.14 $1,584,547.72 $6,481,302.24 24.45 75.55
5) Total, Revenues $7,093,845.13 $37,484,881.21 $105,849,851.22 3541 64.59
EXPENDITURES
1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 $3,600,020.46 $14,724,987.68 $40,427,364.39 36.42 63.58
2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 $1,390,088.92 $6,415,900.99 $16,965,375.20 37.82 62.18
3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 $2,097,005.37 $8,124,033.43 $26,889,330.11 30.21 69.79
4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 $169,941.75 $2,581,822.44 $9,426,190.45 27.39 72.61
5) Services, Oth Oper Exp 5000-5999 $225,126.38 $2,721,118.43 $6,930,154.96 39.26 60.74
6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 $1,707,977.13 $3,214,156.88 $9,660,550.43 33.27 66.73
7) Other Outgo (excl. 7300°s) 7100-7499 $68,568.00 $296,333.90 $2,588,962.28 11.45 88.55
8) Direct/Indirect Support 7300-7399 $0.00 $0.00 ($65,000.00) 0.00 100.00
9) Total Expenditures $9,258,728.01 $38,078,353.75 $112,822,927.82 33.75 66.25
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
1) Transfers

B) Transfers Out 7610-7629 $194,096.00 $294,096.00 $273,524.00 107.52 (7.52)
2) Other Sources/Uses

A) Sources 8930-8979 $0.00 $0.00 $1,431,679.60 0.00 100.00
3) Contributions 8980-8999 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00 100.00
4) Total, Other Financing Sources/Uses ($194,096.00) ($294,096.00) $1,158,155.60 17.25 82.75
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE ($2,358,978.88) ($887,568.54) ($5,814,921.00)

ENDING FUND BALANCE

$48,489,200.44

$43,561,847.98
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November 2023 12/18/2023 12:17:15PM
Requested by dendo
Fund: 0800 Student Activity Special Revenue Fund
Revised % of
November Amount YTD Amount Budget Budget % Remain
BEGINNING BALANCE
Net Beginning Balance 9791-9795 $19,771.20 $19,771.20

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

ENDING FUND BALANCE

$19,771.20 $19,771.20
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November 2023 12/18/2023 12:17:15PM
Requested by dendo
Fund: 0900 Charter Schools Fund
Revised % of
November Amount YTD Amount Budget Budget % Remain
BEGINNING BALANCE
Net Beginning Balance 9791-9795 $62.13 $62.13

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

ENDING FUND BALANCE

$62.13 $62.13
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November 2023 12/18/2023 12:17:15PM
Requested by dendo
Fund: 1300 Cafeteria Fund
Revised % of

November Amount YTD Amount Budget Budget % Remain

BEGINNING BALANCE
Net Beginning Balance 9791-9795 $3,342,451.80 $3,342,451.80

REVENUES
2) Federal Revenues 8100-8299 $403,871.20 $655,308.44 $3,443,451.54 19.03 80.97
3) Other State Revenues 8300-8599 $128,788.60 $208,701.53 $1,303,883.00 16.01 83.99
4) Other Local Revenues 8600-8799 $3,348.25 $34,524.10 $119,480.00 28.90 71.10
5) Total, Revenues $536,008.05 $898,534.07 $4,866,814.54 18.46 81.54
EXPENDITURES
2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 $122,250.62 $552,643.44 $1,540,735.00 35.87 64.13
3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 $50,478.62 $210,328.77 $701,518.00 29.98 70.02
4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 $203,528.89 $694,181.02 $2,355,927.54 29.47 70.53
5) Services, Oth Oper Exp 5000-5999 $4,206.47 $2,961.17 (842,624.12) (6.95) 106.95
8) Direct/Indirect Support 7300-7399 $0.00 $0.00 $65,000.00 0.00 100.00
9) Total Expenditures $380,464.60 $1,460,114.40 $4,620,556.42 31.60 68.40
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE $155,543.45 ($561,580.33) $246,258.12

ENDING FUND BALANCE

$2,780,871.47

$3,588,709.92
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November 2023 12/18/2023 12:17:15PM
Requested by dendo
Fund: 1400 Deferred Maintenance Fund
Revised % of
November Amount YTD Amount Budget Budget % Remain
BEGINNING BALANCE
Net Beginning Balance 9791-9795 $676,515.56 $676,515.56
REVENUES
1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 $0.00 $300,000.00 $300,000.00 100.00 0.00
4) Other Local Revenues 8600-8799 $0.00 $3,950.84 $15,000.00 26.34 73.66
5) Total, Revenues $0.00 $303,950.84 $315,000.00 96.49 3.51
EXPENDITURES
5) Services, Oth Oper Exp 5000-5999 $0.00 $24,700.00 $300,000.00 8.23 91.77
6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 $0.00 $511,568.50 $511,568.50 100.00 0.00
9) Total Expenditures $0.00 $536,268.50 $811,568.50 66.08 33.92
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE $0.00 ($232,317.66) ($496,568.50)
ENDING FUND BALANCE $444,197.90 $179,947.06
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Fiscal Year: 2024
1scal Year November 2023 12/18/2023 12:17:15PM
Requested by dendo
Fund: 1500 Pupil Transportation Equip
Revised % of
November Amount YTD Amount Budget Budget % Remain
BEGINNING BALANCE
Net Beginning Balance 9791-9795 $357,499.63 $357,499.63
REVENUES
4) Other Local Revenues 8600-8799 $0.00 $2,476.80 $10,000.00 24.77 75.23
5) Total, Revenues $0.00 $2,476.80 $10,000.00 24.77 75.23
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
1) Transfers
A) Transfers In 8910-8929 $0.00 $100,000.00 $100,000.00 100.00 0.00
4) Total, Other Financing Sources/Uses $0.00 $100,000.00 $100,000.00 100.00 0.00
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE $0.00 $102,476.80 $110,000.00

ENDING FUND BALANCE $459,976.43 $467,499.63
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13 Hanford Elementary School District Fiscal Position Report Page 7 of 12
Fiscal Year: 2024 November 2023 12/18/2023 12:17:15PM
Requested by dendo
Fund: 2000 SPECTIAL RESERVE FUND FOR OTHER POSTE
Revised % of
November Amount YTD Amount Budget Budget % Remain
BEGINNING BALANCE
Net Beginning Balance 9791-9795 $13,194,603.50 $13,194,603.50
REVENUES
4) Other Local Revenues 8600-8799 $0.00 $78,915.01 $330,000.00 23.91 76.09
5) Total, Revenues $0.00 $78,915.01 $330,000.00 23.91 76.09
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
1) Transfers
2A) Transfers In 8910-8929 $194,096.00 $194,096.00 $173,524.00 111.86 (11.86)
4) Total, Other Financing Sources/Uses $194,096.00 $194,096.00 $173,524.00 111.86 (11.86)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE $194,096.00 $273,011.01 $503,524.00

ENDING FUND BALANCE $13,467,614.51 $13,698,127.50
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Fiscal Year: 2024 November 2023 12/18/2023 12:17:15PM
Requested by dendo
Fund: 2120 Building Funds - Local 2
Revised % of
November Amount YTD Amount Budget Budget % Remain
BEGINNING BALANCE
Net Beginning Balance 9791-9795 $0.00 $0.00
EXPENDITURES
6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00 100.00
9) Total Expenditures $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00 100.00
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

ENDING FUND BALANCE $0.00 $0.00
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November 2023 12/18/2023 12:17:15PM
Requested by dendo
Fund: 2500 CapitalFacilities Fund
Revised % of
November Amount YTD Amount Budget Budget % Remain
BEGINNING BALANCE
Net Beginning Balance 9791-9795 $1,601,029.58 $1,601,029.58
REVENUES
4) Other Local Revenues 8600-8799 $57,426.34 $227,165.07 $340,000.00 66.81 33.19
5) Total, Revenues $57,426.34 $227,165.07 $340,000.00 66.81 33.19
EXPENDITURES
5) Services, Oth Oper Exp 5000-5999 $0.00 $51,240.00 $95,000.00 53.94 46.06
9) Total Expenditures $0.00 $51,240.00 $95,000.00 53.94 46.06
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
1) Transfers
B) Transfers Out 7610-7629 $0.00 $0.00 $1,240,667.68 0.00 100.00
4) Total, Other Financing Sources/Uses $0.00 $0.00 ($1,240,667.68) 0.00 100.00
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE $57,426.34 $175,925.07 ($995,667.68)
ENDING FUND BALANCE $1,776,954.65 $605,361.90
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13 Hanford Elementary School District Page 10 of 12

Fiscal Position Report
Fiscal Year: 2024

November 2023 12/18/2023 12:17:15PM
Requested by dendo
Fund: 3500 SCHOOL FACILITY PROGRAM
Revised % of
November Amount YTD Amount Budget Budget % Remain

BEGINNING BALANCE

Net Beginning Balance 9791-9795 $1,486,484.41 $1,486,484.41
REVENUES
3) Other State Revenues 8300-8599 $5,144,988.00 $11,257,073.00 $14,617,304.00 77.01 22.99
4) Other Local Revenues 8600-8799 $0.00 $20,129.86 $80,000.00 25.16 74.84
5) Total, Revenues $5,144,988.00 $11,277,202.86 $14,697,304.00 76.73 23.27
EXPENDITURES
5) Services, Oth Oper Exp 5000-5999 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00 100.00
6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 $43,357.60 $44,231.61 $3,679,167.00 1.20 98.80
9) Total Expenditures $43,357.60 $44,231.61 $3,679,167.00 1.20 98.80
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
1) Transfers

A) Transfers In 8910-8929 $0.00 $0.00 $2,740,667.68 0.00 100.00

B) Transfers Out 7610-7629 $3,834,366.17 $7,480,047.17 $7,411,400.00 100.93 (0.93)
3) Contributions 8980-8999 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00 100.00
4) Total, Other Financing Sources/Uses ($3,834,366.17) ($7,480,047.17) ($4,670,732.32) 73.68 26.32
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE $1,267,264.23 $3,752,924.08 $6,347,404.68
ENDING FUND BALANCE $5,239,408.49 $7,833,889.09
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13 Hanford Elementary School District Page 11 of 12

Fiscal Position Report
Fiscal Year: 2024

November 2023 12/18/2023 12:17:15PM
Requested by dendo
Fund: 4000 Special Reserve - Capital Outlay
Revised % of
November Amount YTD Amount Budget Budget % Remain

BEGINNING BALANCE

Net Beginning Balance 9791-9795 $3,285,082.44 $3,285,082.44
REVENUES
4) Other Local Revenues 8600-8799 $0.00 $24,115.37 $100,000.00 24.12 75.88
5) Total, Revenues $0.00 $24,115.37 $100,000.00 24.12 75.88
EXPENDITURES
6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 $963.46 $5,982.30 $100,000.00 5.98 94.02
9) Total Expenditures $963.46 $5,982.30 $100,000.00 5.98 94.02
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
1) Transfers

2A) Transfers In 8910-8929 $3,834,366.17 $7,480,047.17 $7,411,400.00 100.93 (0.93)

B) Transfers Out 7610-7629 $0.00 $0.00 $1,500,000.00 0.00 100.00
4) Total, Other Financing Sources/Uses $3,834,366.17 $7,480,047.17 $5,911,400.00 83.94 16.06
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE $3,833,402.71 $7,498,180.24 $5,911,400.00
ENDING FUND BALANCE $10,783,262.68 $9,196,482.44
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Fiscal Year: 2024 November 2023 12/18/2023 12:17:15PM
Requested by dendo
Fund: 6720 Self-Insurance/Other
Revised % of
November Amount YTD Amount Budget Budget % Remain
BEGINNING BALANCE
Net Beginning Balance 9791-9795 $772,011.51 $772,011.51
REVENUES
4) Other Local Revenues 8600-8799 $76,502.75 $265,174.27 $842,000.00 31.49 68.51
5) Total, Revenues $76,502.75 $265,174.27 $842,000.00 31.49 68.51
EXPENDITURES
5) Services, Oth Oper Exp 5000-5999 ($35,378.27) $217,876.55 $820,000.00 26.57 73.43
9) Total Expenditures ($35,378.27) $217,876.55 $820,000.00 26.57 73.43
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE $111,881.02 $47,297.72 $22,000.00

ENDING FUND BALANCE $819,309.23 $794,011.51
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HANFORD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

AGENDA REQUEST FORM

TO: Joy Gabler
FROM: IJill Rubalcava

DATE: January 12,2024

FOR: [X] Board Meeting
[] Superintendent's Cabinet

FOR: [X] Information
[] Action

Date you wish to have your item considered: January 24, 2024

ITEM: Administrative Regulation 5125.2 Withholding Grades, Diploma, or Transcripts

PURPOSE: AR 5125.2 This update includes a few minor language changes. In addtion to the
minor language updates, it is noted that this AR shall not apply to homeless or
foster youth.

FISCAL IMPACT: none

RECOMMENDATIONS: no action, information item

ADM -018
11/2019



Board Policy Ma5r?ual
Hanford Elementary School District

Regulation 5125.2: Withholding Grades, Diploma Or Transcripts Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date: 05/19/1998 | Last Revised Date: 01/09/2019 | Last Reviewed Date:
01/09/2019

When a minor student willfully cuts, defaces, or otherwise injures real or personal property
of the district or willfully does not return district property that has been loaned to the
studenthim/her upon-demand-of a-districtempleyee, the student's parents/guardians may be
required to pay the costs of all damages within the limits established pursuant to Education
Code 48904. Until the student's parents/guardians have paid for the damages or the
student has completed voluntary work or other nonmonetary alternative offered by the
district in lieu of monetary damages, the Superintendent or designee may withhold the
student's grades, diploma, and/or transcripts. (Education Code 48904, 49014)

This administrative regulation shall not apply to a student who is a current or former
homeless or foster youth. (Education Code 49014)

)

Before withholding athe student's grades, diploma, and/or transcripts, the Superintendent
or designee shall inform the student's parents/guardians in writing of the student's alleged
misconduct. (Education Code 48904)

The student shall be afforded due process consistent with procedures established for the
expulsion of students. (Education Code 48904)

When a student who is transferring into the district has had his/her-grades, a diploma,
and/or transcripts withheld by the previous district, the Superintendent or designee shall
may continue to withhold the student's grades, diploma, and/or transcripts until notified by
the previous district that the decision to withhold has been rescinded. (Education Code
48904.3)

Upon receiving notice that a student whose grades, diploma, and/or transcripts have been
withheld by this district has transferred to another district in California, the Superintendent
or designee shall provide the student's records to the new district and notify the new
district that the student's grades, diploma, and/or transcripts are being withheld from the
student and parents/guardians pursuant to Education Code 48904.
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The Superintendent or designee shall also notify the student's parents/guardians in writing that the
decision to withhold the student's grades, diploma, and/or transcripts will be enforced by the new

district. (Education Code 48904.3)

Policy Reference Disclaimer:

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in

the subject matter of the policy.

State
Ed. Code 48904

Ed. Code 48904.3

Ed. Code 48911

Ed. Code 49014

Ed. Code 49069.7
Management Resources

Website

Cross References

Code
35154

35154

4158
4158
4258
4258
4358
4358
5121

5121

5125

Description
Liability of parent

Withholding grades, diplomas or transcripts causing prop.
damage or injury; transfer to new school districts; notice to

rescind decision to withhold

Suspension by principal, designee or superintendent

Public School Fair Debt Collection Act

Absolute right to access

Description

CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Description
Recovery For Property Loss Or DamageRecevery-For
Property-Loss OrDamage

Recovery For Property Loss Or DamageRecevery-For
Property-Loss OrDamage

Employee SecurityEmployee Seeurity
Employee SecurityEmployee Seeurity
Employee SecurityEmployee Seeurity
Employee SecurityEmployee Seeurity
Employee SecurityEmployee-Seeurity
Employee SecurityEmployee-Seeurity

Grades/Evaluation Of Student
AchievementGrades/Evaluation- Of Student-Achievement

Grades/Evaluation Of Student
AchievementGrades/Evaluation Of Student-Achievement

Student RecordsStudentRecords



https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48904.#
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48904.3.#
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48904.3.#
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48904.3.#
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=48911.#
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49014.#
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=49069.7.#
https://legalservices.csba.org/#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=fTpluslcL5iFuLLjmC2l4HbEg==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=4VNpeeLdGX8wrSubvpm0yw==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=0UXmVKLPOYmTSulHWNdcNw==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=TnNkoiA5syVuslshIFXs6et4g==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=acQRSlGi37sCSTPvJvsgxA==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=HVqDSxHgzzwX6slshVnW3OpmQ==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=plusLbplus4dB6inUekkaKx7eFJw==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=IuUA7IVh84ZrMovHLtn8kw==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=8uSrrmfzuPYOLH6fdRslshCIA==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=8uSrrmfzuPYOLH6fdRslshCIA==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=dfqSopq8B9jy5hkP64NyGA==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=dfqSopq8B9jy5hkP64NyGA==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=R2sOzhydv7S3yougeNFlag==#

5125
5131.5
5144.1

5144.1

5145.6
5145.6-E-PBF(1)
6161.2

6163.1

6163.4
6163.4-E-PDF(1)
6173

6173

6173-E(1)
6173-E(2)
6173.1
6173.1
6173.3

6175
6175

Student RecordsStudentRecords €0

Vandalism And Graffiti

Suspension And Expulsion/Due ProcessSuspensionAnd
Expulsion/DueProcess

Suspension And Expulsion/Due ProcessSuspension-And
Expulsion/DueProcess

Parent/Guardian NotificationsParent/Guardian-Netifications
Parent/Guardian NotificationsParent/Guardian-Netifications

Damaged Or Lost Instructional MaterialsDamaged-Or-Lost
| onal- M N

Library Media Centerskibrary-Media-Centers
Student Use Of TechnologyStudentUse Of Technology
Student Use Of TechnologyStudentUse Of Technology

Education For Homeless ChildrenEducationForHomeless
Children

Education For Homeless ChildrenEducationForHomeless
Children

Education For Homeless Children

Education For Homeless Children

Education For Foster YouthEducationForFoster Youth

Education For Foster YouthEducation ForFosterYouth

Education For Juvenile Court School StudentsEducationFor
Juvenile Court School Students

Migrant Education ProgramMigrant EducationProgram
Migrant Education ProgramMigrant EducationProgram



https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=DILuIUSJFtLZbplusslshm4QQhPg==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=Mih0xslshjzplusLSBXYslshYNSIXslshA==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=VIGH8Qs2E0RDTzWcW2Om7Q==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=A9goehZhlQkyJXnPNmRNgg==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=LSLhtH06GShZj2RFFmUcAQ==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=Pi39FeRPGKvcJ55gaOy6Cg==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=PJ7Wnvyum70rslshvzrwplusJwDw==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=teIf5SxPslshX8qmRCEeJgplusEw==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=m1IcVECiaSay5E3XjYNMwA==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=mWlOUAyoafuenwIslshbpf26w==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=Eoq9srSNMJT1KqFUAH5bHA==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=o0NFtGSg0QSgvyJPSRlahA==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=eaPDzQmvMS30TQN5z6lM9w==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=j5LGCGjBsNWPz2OXPZIslshxA==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=mFslshKdFzLJa8BuxRGhl6TtA==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=tMrHixoU4BK6frRC0zEtslshg==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=R9iUElvplusZ05cpQLuYShOHg==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=0dYNLgYnQ1aPLo92m8emBg==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=MGbOuTQBpluskqyM863Mf2hkA==#

61

HANFORD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
AGENDA REQUEST FORM

TO: Joy Gabler
FROM: Robert Heugly
DATE: January 12, 2024
For: Xl Board Meeting
[] Superintendent’s Cabinet
For: [ ] Information
Xl Action

Date you wish to have your item considered: January 24, 2024

ITEM:
Receive for action: The California School Accountability Report Cards (SARCs)
Hamilton Elementary Roosevelt Elementary
Jefferson Academy Simas Elementary
Martin Luther King Elementary Washington Elementary
Lincoln Elementary John F. Kennedy Jr. High
Monroe Elementary Woodrow Wilson Jr. High
Lee Richmond Elementary Community Day School
PURPOSE:

California schools annually provide information to the community to allow public comparison of schools for
student achievement, environment, resources & demographics. Additionally, the SARCs contain information
that is reported on the California School Dashboard’s Local Indicators.

SARCS are available to the public online at the district’'s website, each individual school’s website, and
at the California Department of Education website. Paper copies of SARCS are available in the school
office or at the district office upon request.

https://www.hanfordesd.org/departments/categorical-programs/school-accountability-report-card

FISCAL IMPACT:
Providing information to the community in the form of SARCS is a requirement of receiving funding
under the Local Control Funding Formula

RECOMMENDATION: Approve the SARCs


https://www.hanfordesd.org/departments/categorical-programs/school-accountability-report-card
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HANFORD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

AGENDA REQUEST FORM

TO: Joy Gabler
FROM: Leslie Marai
DATE: 1/10/2024

FOR: [X| Board Meeting
[]  Superintendent's Cabinet

FOR: [] Information
X] Action

Date you wish to have your item considered: 1/24/2024

ITEM: Agreement between WPS Western Psychological Services and Hanford
Elementary School District - ADOS-2 Clinical Training - March 4-5, 2024

PURPOSE: WPS will provide in person training on the Autism Diagnositc Observation
Schedul, Second Edition (ADOS-2) for our school psychologists. We have
opened the training to our neighboring county schools for their psycholgists to
participate in the training at $550 per psychologist which will offset the costs to
the district.

FISCAL IMPACT: $17,500

RECOMMENDATIONS: Approve

ADM - 018
11/2019
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HANFORD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

CONSULTANT CONTRACT

This contract is entered into on  January 9 20 24 , between the Hanford Elementary

School Districtand  VWPS - Western Psychological Services (Consultant),

Consultant agrees to perform the following services for the Hanford Elementary School District:
ADOS-2 Clinical Workshop on March 4 & 5, 2024

The Cbnsultant, and the agents and employees of the Consultant, in the performance of this agreement shall act
in an independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the Hanford Elementary School
District.

Consultant agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless the Hanford Elementary School District, its officers,
agents and employees from any and all claims and losses accruing or resulting in connection with the
performance of this agreement, and from any and all claims and losses accruing or resulting to any person, firm
or corporation who may be injured or damaged by the Consultant in the performance of this agreement.

The Hanford Elementary School District agrees to pay WPS - Western Psychological Services

thesumof  Seventeen thousand, five hundred Dollars ($ 17,500.00 ) for such services.
MLUSSA' P Vbjwlfv Melissa PreJean
Consultant Signature Consultant Name
625 Alaska Avenue ' Torrence CA 90503
Consultant’s Address City State Zip Code
Jesliz Marain

Principal/Department Head Signature

Other Authorizing Signature

Budget Account Number: 0100-9064-0-0000-3120-580009-062-0000
Board Approved:
Original Copy: Fiscal Services DISTRICT USE:
One Copy: Consultant SUBJECT TO MONTOYA SCHOOL SAFETY ACT?
One Copy: School/Department

YES / NO

(CIRCLE ONE)

ADM-009 (Rev. 10/18)



TO:
FROM:

DATE:

FOR:

FOR:

Date you wish

ITEM:

PURPOSE:
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HANFORD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

AGENDA REQUEST FORM

Joy Gabler

Jay Strickland 45“‘""' T

1/11/2024
X Board Meeting
[] Superintendent's Cabinet
[] Information

BJ  Action
to have your item considered: 1/24/2024

Accept Grant from the ROX - Ruling our Experiences Program

ROX - Ruling Our Experiences is an evidenced based program than empowers
girls to communicate effectively, develoop healthy relationships, support other
girls, form healthy body image, navigate social media, manage stress & pressure,
stay safe and defend themselves, plan for college, their career and become
leaders. The program will provide a grant of $1,000 for both MLK and Roosevelt
Schools ($2,000 total) to sponsor 10 girls at each site to participate in the
program. We have two counselors who have gone through the training to become
facilitators at each of these two sites to implement the program.

FISCAL IMPACT: None

RECOMMENDATIONS: Approve grants of $1,000 each for MLK and Roosevelt ROX

Program

ADM - 018
11/2019
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v Ruling Our eXperiences, Inc. {(ROX}
* 1335 Dublin Road, Suite 184

Columbus, OH 43215

RIENGES 1.614-488-8080

www.iulingourexperiences.org

RULING OUR EXPE

Congratulations! We are happy to announce that your ROX Program(s) is being awarded funding support for the 2023-2024
school year! This funding is made possible through the parinership of generous funders and philanthropy provided to ROX.

Funding Recipient Roxanna Hernandez

Schoof Name Roosevelt Elementary School

Investor/Donor Name AmberStrong Memorial Fund
Facilitator Training Fee $
Implementation Fee (rate of $100/girl)* $ 1000.0
Total Funding Provided $ 1000.0

As a recipient of this funding, we ask you to complete the following requirements:
1. Submit your ROX Program cohort registration no later than March 1, 2024.
2. Collect pre and post program data for each cohort.
3. Report your progress to ROX HQ. Throughout the school year, ROX will request specific (and brief) reporting
information. Please puf the following dates on your calendar and look for emails from
laurenhancock@rulingourexperiences.com with the specifics for each deadline.

Update #1: Nov. 20, 2023 Update #2: Feh. 5, 2024 Final update: May 1, 2024
1, Attend a Zoom meeting with Lauren Hancock to ensure your advocacy plans are on track. You will be provided a
link to sign up.

By signing below, you indicate that you acknowledge and support the objectives and requirements associated with this
funding offer for the 2023-2024 school year at your school,

We appreciate your commitment and support of the ROX Program af your school — together we are creating confident girls
who can control their own relationships, experiences, decisions and futures!

DocuSigned by:
Roxanna Hernandez me tnandis 111212024
Facilitator Name Signalure Date
Facilitator Name Signature Date

Administrator Name Signature Date
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- Ruling Our eXperiences, Inc. (ROX)
* 1335 Dublin Road, Suite 18A

Columbus, OH 43215

RULING OUR EXPERIENCES T.614-488-8080

www.rulingourexperiences.or

Congratulations! We are happy to announce that your ROX Program(s) is being awarded funding support for the 2023-2024
school year! This funding Is made possible through the partnership of generous funders and philanthropy provided to ROX.

Funding Recipient Maria Calvillo
School Name Martin Luther King Jr. Elementary
Investor/Donor Name AmberStrong Memorial Fund
Facilitator Training Fee $
Implementation Fee (rate of $100/giri)* $ 10000
Total Funding Provided $ 10000

As a recipient of this funding, we ask you to complete the following requirements:
1. Submit your ROX Program cohort registration no later than March 1, 2024,
2. Collect pre and post program data for each cohoit.
3. Report your progress to ROX HQ. Throughout the schoo! year, ROX will request specific {and brief) reporiing
information. Please put the following dates on your calendar and look for emails from
laurenhancock@rulingourexperiences.com with the specifics for each deadline.

Update #1: Nov. 20, 2023 Update #2: Feb. 5, 2024 Final update: May 1, 2024
1. Attend a Zoom meeting with Lauren Hancock to ensure your advocacy plans are on track. You will be provided a
link to sign up.

By signing below, you indicate that you acknowledge and support the objectives and requirements assoclated with this
funding offer for the 2023-2024 school year at your school.

We appreciate your commitment and support of the ROX Program at your schoo! — together we are creating confident girls
who can controi their own relationships, experlences, decisions and futures!

Maria Calvillo
Facilitator Name Signature Date
Facilitator Name Signature Date

Administrator Name Signature Date




Establish expertise in gids Meet girls' needs

Gain more insight into gils’ realilies, Equip girls to succeed in refationships,
rspectives and needs from our nationa 5 academics and life with evidence-based

research with 17,000 gigls. ‘ cusricetum, validated with over 40,000 girl
!

Build their confidence

Help girls cope with stressfanxiety and
ddress perfeclionism, white coaching

families on how to best support her.
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1112124, 10:04 AM Fund Directory Listing | The Columbus Foundation

LCGIN (/LOGIN) GIVE NOW

FUND DIRECYORY LISTING (/THE-GIVING-STORE/FUND-DIRECTORY-LISTING)
THE BIG GIVE {/THE-GIVING-S5TORE/THE-BIG-GIVE) DETTER TOGETHER {/THE-GIVING-STORE/BETTER-TOGETHER} CRITICAL NEED ALERT ({THE-GIVING-STORE/CRITICAL-
HEED-ALERYS) GIFTS OF KINDHNESS (/THE.GIVING.STORE/GIFTS-OF-KiNDRESS) HONPROFITS {/THE-GIVING-5TORE/NCONPROFITS) FURDS {/THE-GIVING-STORE/FUNDS)

THE GIVING STORE {/THE.GIVING-STORE} / FUNDS (/THE-GIVING-5TORE/FUNDS} / AmberStrong Memoral Fund

FUND
. $26 $EO 4100 |-

AmberStrong Memorial Fung creoiearo sisr E
I -
MINISSUM €

Empowsring young people io help thern avoid or overcome roadblecks that Jecpardize thelr

potential to be happy, healthy, and In control of their lives,

SHARE - i 7 |

The fund's misslon is to support organizations fecused on helping young people, espaclaily girls, develop seif-confldence, self-esteam, and life skilis that may preempt the
development of mental health challenges and addictlon issues. In honor of Amber Marie (Acheson) Anderson, the AmbarStrong Memorlal Fund Is dedicated o promoting the
power of love, hope, insplration, end tenacity.

CONTACT INFORMATION

Lisa J. Lynch, CAP®

Assoclate Direclor for Donor Services
614/251-4000 {tel:6142514000)

Emall (maito:lynch@columbusfoundation.erg}

MAILING ADPRESS

The Columbus Foundation

1234 East Broad Strest

Columbus, Chlo 43206-1453 (fgocgle.comimaps/place/1234+E+Broad+5t, 1 Columbus,+OH+43205)

FHONE

614/261-4000 [tel:614/251-4000)
FAX

61412614003 jtel:614/251-4009)

EMAIL

contaclus@columbusfoundation.org {malltoicentacius@columbusfoundation.org)
HOURS

8 a.m, t6 5 pam. ET, Mon-Fri

OUR MISSION To assisi doners and others In strengthening and lmproving our cemmunity for the banef®t of all its resldents.

QUR PROMISE To heip you help others through the mosi effective philanthropy possible,

Accreditations  Privacy Policy Whistieblower Pollcy

rved.

1320322 The Colmbus Fotngdal'on, Al fhahts

hitps:/icolumbusfoundation.orgfthe-giving-store/fund-directory-listing/AmberStrongMemorlal Fund/4635 1/2
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HANFORD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

AGENDA REQUEST FORM

TO: Board of Trustees

FROM: Joy C. Gabler

DATE: 01/11/24

FOR: [X] Board Meeting
[] Superintendent's Cabinet

FOR: [ ] Information
X]  Action

Date you wish to have your item considered: 01/24/24

ITEM:

PURPOSE:

FISCAL IMPACT:

Consider for approval adjusted student attendance boundaries for
MLK Elementary, Lincoln Elementary, Richmond Elementary &
Roosevelt Elementary effective for the 2024-2025 school year.

Approve the recommended plan to adjust the MLK Elementary,
Lincoln Elementary, Richmond Elementary & Roosevelt
Elementary attendance boundaries as presented by Ken Reynolds of
SchoolWorks during the December 13, 2023 Board Meeting. The
four adjusted residential areas are shown on the attached map.
Students that live in these areas and are currently in grades 3 — 5 this
school year will be given the option to be grandfathered in and
remain at their current school site.

None

RECOMMENDATIONS: Approve
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TO:

FROM:

DATE:

FOR:

FOR:
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HANFORD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

AGENDA REQUEST FORM

Board of Trustees
Joy C. Gabler

12/14/23

X] Board Meeting
[] Superintendent's Cabinet

[ ] Information
X] Action

Date you wish to have your item considered: 01/24/24

ITEM:

PURPOSE:

Consider for approval revisions to Board Policy & Exhibit
* 0420.41 Charter School Oversight

The Board Policy is updated to reflect that the Governing Board may deny a request for an expansion
that constitutes a material revision to a charter if the request to expand operations is demonstrably
unlikely to serve the interests of the entire community in which the school is proposing to locate or the
district is not in a position to absorb the fiscal impact of the proposed charter school, and to include a
general reference to exemptions from the geographic boundary requirement that charter schools be
located within the geographic boundaries of the authorizing district. Policy also updated to include that
the district may charge the charter school for the actual costs of supervisorial oversight up to one percent
of the charter school's revenue it the district provides the charter school with facilities and charges the
charter school a pro-rata share of the facilities costs. Additionally, policy updated to reference additional
components that must be included in the procedures specified in the charter for when a charter school
ceases operation.

The Exhibit is updated to include that admission preferences may not result in limited enrollment access
for specified students and that mandatory parental volunteer hours may not be the basis of a preference or
criterion for admission or continued enrollment, reflect NEW LAW (AB 181, 2022) which requires
identified schools to complete and adopt an Individuals with Disabilities Act Addendum as part of the
local control and accountability adoption and annual update, delete the requirement, based on changed
guidance from the California Department of Education, to offer transitional kindergarten if the charter
school offers a kindergarten program, add material regarding exemption for eligible students with
disabilities from coursework and other requirements adopted by the charter school board that are in
addition to the statewide course requirements, reflect NEW LAW (AB 748, 2022) which requires each
school serving students in any of grade 6-12 to create and prominently display, as specified, a student
mental health poster, and clarify that the charter school's policy on bullying and harassment be posted on
the charter school's website.

FISCAL IMPACT: None

RECOMMENDATIONS: Approve.
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Board Policy Manual
Hanford Elementary School District

Policy 0420.41: Charter School Oversight Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date: 04/09/2014 | Last Revised Date: 10/25/2017 | Last Reviewed Date:
10/25/2017

The Governing Board recognizes its ongoing responsibility to oversee that any charter
school the Beard-has-authorized by the Board is successfully fulfilling the terms of its
charter and is providing a high-quality educational program for students enrolled in the
charter school.

The Superintendent or designee shall identify at least one staff member to serve as a
contact person for each charter school authorized by the Board. (Education Code
47604.32)

The Superintendent or designee shall visit each charter school at least annually- and may
inspect or observe any part of a charter school at any time. (Education Code 47604.32,
47607)

The Superintendent or designeedesignated charter school contact shall attend meetings of
the charter school beardgoverning body whenever possible and shall periodically meet with
a representative of the charter school.

Waivers

If the charter school wishes to request a general waiver of any state law or regulation
applicable to it, it shall request that the district submit a general waiver request to the State
Board of Education (SBE) on its behalf. Upon approval of the Board, the Superintendent or
designee shall submit such a waiver request to the SBE on behalf of the charter school.

Provision of District Services
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The charter school may purchase administrative or other services from the district or any
other source. (Education Code 47613)

Whenever the district agrees to provide administrative or support services to a charter
school, the district and the charter school shall develop a memorandum of understanding

(MOU) which clarifies the financial and operational agreements between the district-and
chortersshosh

them.

At the request of a charter school, the Superintendent or designee shall create and submit
any reports required by the State Teachers' Retirement System or Public Employees'
Retirement System on behalf of the charter school. The district may charge the charter
school for the actual costs of the reporting services, but shall not require the charter school
to purchase payroll processing services from the district as a condition for creating and
submitting these reports. (Education Code 47611.3)

Material Revisions to Charter

Material revisions to a charter may only be made with Board approval. Material revisions
shall be governed by the same standards and criteria that apply to newpetitions for the
authorization of charter petitionsschools as set forth in Education Code 47605 and shall
include, but not be limited to, a reasonably comprehensive description of any new
requirement for charter schools enacted into law after the charter was originally granted or
last renewed. (Education Code 47607)

The Board shall determine whether a proposed change in charter school operations would
constitute a material revision of the approved charter.

If an approved charter school proposes to establish-er-meveexpand operations to one or more
additional sites or grade levels, whether concurrently with or unrelated to a renewal, the charter
school shall request a material revision to its charter and shall notify the Board of those additional
locations: or grade levels. The Board shall consider approval of the additional locations or grade
levels at an open, public meeting. (Education Code 47605), 47607)

Pursuant to Education Code 47605, the Board may deny a request to expand operations if it finds
that the proposed expansion would render the charter school demonstrably unlikely to serve the
interests of the entire community in which the school is located or proposes to locate. In making
this finding, the Board shall consider all of the following:

1. The Beard-shallhavefiscal impact of the authority-to-determine-whethera-proposed change

ir-expansion on the district
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2. The extent to which the expansion would substantially undermine existing services,

academic offerings, or programmatic offerings

3. Whether the expansion would duplicate a program currently offered within the district that
has sufficient capacity for the students proposed to be served

Additionally, pursuant to Education Code 47605, the Board may deny a request to expand
charter school operations censtitutes-a-material revision-of the approved charter:

if it finds that the district is not positioned to absorb the fiscal impact of the proposed
charter school expansion. The Board shall make this finding if the district has a qualified
interim certification pursuant to Education Code 42131 and the County Superintendent of
Schools, in consultation with the County Office Fiscal Crisis and Management Assistance
Team, certifies that approving the charter school would result in the district having a
negative interim certification pursuant to Education Code 42131, or if the district has a
negative interim certification pursuant to Education Code 42131, or is under state

receivership.

Location of Charter Schools

Except when permitted to operate outside district boundaries pursuant to Education Code
47605 and 47605.1, a charter school shall be located within district
boundaries. (Education Code 47605.1)

Monitoring Charter School Performance

Fhe

Any charter school authorized by the Board shall be monitored by the Superintendent or
designee shallmenitor the charter school-to determine whether it the charter school complies
with all legal requirements applicable to charter schools, including makingall reports
required of charter schools by law, as specified in accerdance-with-Education Code
47604.32. Any violations of law shall be reported to the Board.

The Board shall monitor each charter school to determine whether it is achieving; beth

W z the measurable student
outcomes set forth in the charter:, both schooIW|de and for each numerically significant
student subgroup served by the school as defined in Education Code 52052. This
determination shall be based on the measures specified in the approved charter and any
applicable MOU, and on the charter school's annual review and assessment of its progress
toward the goals and actions identified in its local control and accountability plan (LCAP).

), as reported in the California School Dashboard.

The Board shall monitor the fiscal condition of the charter school based on any financial report or
information obtained from the charter school, including, but not limited to, the charter school's
preliminary budget, LCAP and annual update of the charter school's LCAP, first and second interim
financial reports, and final unaudited report for the full prior year. (Education Code 47604.32,
47604.33, 47606.5)
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Fees/Charges for Supervisorial Oversight

The district may charge for district supervisorial oversight as follows: (Education Code 47613; 5

CCR 11969.7)

Iheudrstﬁet—ma%ehalﬂgeActual costs up to one percent of athe charter school s revenueﬂfeic

2. Actual costs up to three percent of the charter school's revenue feractual-costsof
supervisoerial-oversight-or-if the facility-isprovided-if the district provides the charter school

substantially rent-free facilities

If the district provides the charter school with facilities under Education Code 47614, and
charges the charter school a pro-rata share of the facilities costs calculated pursuant to 5

CCR 11969.7-H, the district eharges-thepro-rata-share,it-may alseonly charge the charter
school for the actual costs of supervisorial oversight up to one percent of the charter

school's revenue-in-oversight fees{Education Code 47613).

Technical-Assist At 4

3. MHActual costs if the district is assigned supervisorial oversight responsibility for the charter
school by SBE when authorized on appeal

Technical Assistance/Intervention

Whenever a charter school is identified for technical assistance based on the performance of one
or more numerically significant student subgroups on SBE-established criteria, the charter school
shall receive technical assistance from the County Superintendent. Such technical assistance shall
be focused on building the charter school's capacity to develop and implement actions and services
responsive to student and community needs, including, but not limited to, any of the

following: (Education Code 47607.3)

1. Assisting the charter school to identify its strengths and weaknesses in regard to the state
priorities applicable to the charter school pursuant to Education Code 47605(c). This shall
include working collaboratively with the charter school to review performance data on the
state and local indicators included in the California School Dashboard and other relevant
local data and to identify effective, evidence-based programs or practices that address any
areas of weakness.

2. Working collaboratively with the charter school to secure assistance from an academic,
programmatic, or fiscal expert or team of experts to identify and implement effective
programs and practices that are designed to improve performance in any areas of weakness
identified by the charter school. Another service provider, including, but not limited to, a
school district, county office of education, or charter school, may be solicited to act as a
partner to the charter school in need of technical assistance.

3. Obtaining from the charter school timely documentation demonstrating that it has
completed the activities described in Items #1 and 2 or substantially similar activities, or has
selected another service provider to work with the charter school to complete the activities
described in Items #1 and 2 or substantially similar activities, and ongoing communication
with the Board to assess the charter school's progress in improving student outcomes.




In addition, if, in three out of four consecutive school years, a charter school fails to
improve outcomes for three or more numerically significant student subgroups-identified-in

EducationCode 52052, or for all of the student subgroups if the school has fewer than three
subgroups, in regard to one or more state or school priorities identified in the charter, the

2—MayCounty Superintendent may request that the Superintendent of Public Instruction (SPI),
with SBE approval, assign the California Collaborative for Educational Excellence to provide
advice and assistance to the charter school pursuant to Education Code 52074

. (Education Code 47607.3; 52072)

In accordance with law, the Board may deny a charter school's renewal petition or may
revoke a charter based on the charter school's poor performance, especially with regard to
theinadequate academic achievement of all numerically significant subgroups of students
served by the charter school.

(Education Code 47607, 47607.2)

Complaints

Each charter school shall establish and maintain policies and procedures to-enable-any
person-to-file-a-complaint-in accordance with the uniform complaint procedures as specified
in 5 CCR 4600-4687,-4670 to enable any person alleging the school's noncompliance with
Education Code 47606.5 or 47607.3- to file a complaint with the charter

school. (Education Code 52075)

A complaint may be filed anonymously if the complaint provides evidence or information
leading to evidence to support an allegation of noncompliance. A complainant who is not
satisfied with the decision may appeal the decision to the SPI. (Education Code 52075)

If the charter school finds merit in the complaint or the SPI finds merit in an appeal, a
remedy shall be provided to all affected students and parents/guardians. (Education Code
52075)

School Closure

In the event that the Board revokes or denies renewal of a charter or the charter school
ceases operation for any reason, the Superintendent or designee shall, when applicable in




accordance with the charter and/or a-memerandum-ef understandingan MOU, provide

assistance to facilitate the transfer of the charter school's former students and to finalize
financial reporting and close-out:

of the charter school.

The Superintendent or designee shall provide notification to the California Department of
Education, within 10 calendar days of the Board's action, if renewal of thea charter is
denied, thea charter is revoked, or thea charter school will cease operation for any reason.

Such notification shall include, but not be limited to, a description of the circumstances of the
closure, the effective date of the closure, and the location of student and personnel
records. (Education Code 47604.32; 5 CCR 11962.1)

Policy Reference Disclaimer:

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in
the subject matter of the policy.

State
5CCR 11700-11705

Description
Independent study

5CCR 11960-11969.10 Charter schools

5 CCR 4600-4670 Uniform complaint procedures

Bus. And Prof. Code 7583.45 Training for security officers

CA Constitution Article 16, Section 8.5 Public finance; school accountability report card

CA Constitution Article 9, Section 5 Common school system

Corp. Code 5110-6910 Nonprofit public benefit corporations

Ed. Code 1006 Prohibition against school district employees serving on

county board of education

Ed. Code 17070.10-17079.30 Leroy F. Greene School Facilities Act

Ed. Code 17280-17317 Field Act; approval of plans and supervision of construction
Ed. Code 17365-17374 Field Act; fitness for occupancy; liability of board members
Ed. Code 215 Suicide prevention policies

Ed. Code 215.5 Student identification cards; inclusion of safety hotlines
Ed. Code 220 Prohibition of discrimination

Ed. Code 221.61 Posting of Title IX information on website

Ed. Code 221.9 Sex equity in competitive athletics

Ed. Code 222 Reasonable accommodations; lactating students

Ed. Code 222.5 Pregnant and parenting students; notification of rights

Ed. Code 231.5 Sexual harassment policy


http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=CONS&sectionNum=SEC.%208.5.&article=XVI#
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=CONS&sectionNum=SEC.%205.&article=IX#
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=CORP&division=2.&title=1.&part=2.&chapter=1.&article=&goUp=Y#
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=1006.&lawCode=EDC#
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=1006.&lawCode=EDC#
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?division=1.&chapter=12.5.&part=10.&lawCode=EDC&title=1.&article=1.#

Ed.
Ed.
Ed.

Ed.
Ed.
Ed.
Ed.

Ed.

Ed.
Ed.
Ed.
Ed.
Ed.
Ed.

Ed.
Ed.
Ed.

Ed.
Ed.
Ed.
Ed.

Ed.
Ed.
Ed.

Ed.
Ed.
Ed.
Ed.

Code 234.4
Code 234.6
Code 234.7

Code 32280-32289.5
Code 32283.5

Code 33479-33479.9
Code 35179.4-35179.6

Code 35183.1

Code 35292.6
Code 35330

Code 38001.5
Code 38080-38086
Code 39831.3
Code 39843

Code 41024
Code 42100
Code 44030.5

Code 44237
Code 44258.9
Code 44691
Code 44830.1

Code 45122.1
Code 45125.1
Code 46015

Code 46390-46393
Code 47600-47616.7
Code 47634.2

Code 47640-47647
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Mandated policy on bullying prevention

Bullying and harassment prevention information

Student protections relating to immigration and citizenship
status

School safety plans
Bullying; online training
The Eric Parades Sudden Cardiac Arrest Prevention Act

Interscholastic athletic programs, safety; swimming pool
safety that is not part of interscholastic athletic program

Graduation ceremonies; tribal regalia or recognized object of
religious/cultural significance

Stocking of menstrual products

Field trips and excursions; student fees
Training for security officers

School meals

Transportation safety plan

Disciplinary action against bus driver; report to Department
of Motor Vehicles

Report of expenditure of state facility funds
Annual statement of receipts and expenditures

Reporting change in employment status due to alleged
misconduct

Criminal record summary
Monitoring of teacher assignments
Information on detection of child abuse; annual training

Certificated employees; conviction of a violent or serious
felony

Classified employees; conviction of a violent or serious felony
Criminal records summary; employees of contracting entity

Accommodations for pregnant and parenting students;
parental leave

Emergency average daily attendance
Charter Schools Act of 1992
Nonclassroom-based instruction

Special education funding for charter schools



Ed.
Ed.

Ed.
Ed.
Ed.
Ed.
Ed.

Ed.
Ed.
Ed.
Ed.
Ed.
Ed.
Ed.
Ed.
Ed.
Ed.
Ed.

Ed.
Ed.
Ed.
Ed.
Ed.
Ed.
Ed.
Ed.
Ed.
Ed.
Ed.
Ed.
Ed.

Code 47651
Code 48000

Code 48010

Code 48206.3-48208
Code 48850-48859
Code 48901.1

Code 48907

Code 48913.5
Code 48950
Code 48985
Code 49005-49006.4
Code 49010
Code 49011
Code 49014
Code 49061
Code 49062.5
Code 49070
Code 49073.2

Code 49076.7
Code 49110

Code 49381

Code 49414

Code 49414.3
Code 49428

Code 49428.5
Code 49430-49434
Code 49431.9
Code 49475

Code 49501.5
Code 49550-49564.5
Code 49557.5
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Apportionment of funds; charter schools

Minimum age of admission for kindergarten; transitional
kindergarten

Minimum age of admission (first grade)

Students with temporary disabilities; individual instruction
Education of foster youth and homeless students
Suspension and expulsion; willful defiance

Exercise of free expression; time, place and manner rules and
regulations

Suspended students; homework assignments
Speech and other communication

Notices to parents in language other than English
Seclusion and restraint

Pupil fees

Student fees

Public School Fair Debt Collection Act
Definitions; directory information

Student records; name or gender change
Challenging student records

Privacy of student and parent/guardian personal information;
minutes of board meeting

Student records; data privacy; social security numbers
Authority to issue work permits

Human trafficking prevention

Epinephrine auto-injectors

Administration of opioid antagonist

Notification of mental health services

Employment of medical personnel

The Pupil Nutrition, Health, and Achievement Act of 2001
Prohibition of advertisement of non-nutritious foods
Health and safety; concussions and head injuries

Free breakfast and lunch to all students

Meals for needy students

Child Hunger Prevention and Fair Treatment Act of 2017



Ed. Code 49564.3

Ed. Code 49700-49701

Ed. Code 51224.7

Ed. Code 51225.1-51225.2

Ed. Code 51225.3
Ed. Code 51225.6

Ed. Code 51225.7-51225.8

Ed. Code 51413

Ed. Code 51744-51749.6
Ed. Code 51925-51929
Ed. Code 51930-51939
Ed. Code 52052

Ed. Code 52060-52077
Ed. Code 52075

Ed. Code 56026

Ed. Code 56040.3

Ed. Code 56145-56146
Ed. Code 56365-56366.12
Ed. Code 56521.1-56521.2
Ed. Code 60600-60649
Ed. Code 64000

Ed. Code 64001

Ed. Code 65000-65001
Ed. Code 69432.9-69432.92

Gov. Code 1090-1099

Gov. Code 3540-3549.3

Gov. Code 3555-3559

Gov. Code 54950-54963

Gov. Code 7920.000-7930.170

.. . ) 80
Provision of federal universal meal service

Education of children of military families
Mathematics placement policy

Exemption from local graduation requirements; acceptance
of coursework

High school graduation requirements

Instruction in cardiopulmonary resuscitation; districts that
require health education for graduation

Completion and submission of the Free Application for
Federal Student Aid and California Dream Act Application

Diploma of graduation without passage of high school exit
examination

Independent study

Mandatory mental health education

California Healthy Youth Act

Accountability; numerically significant student subgroups
Local control and accountability plan

Uniform complaint procedures

Special education

Availability of assistive technology device

Special education services in charter schools

Nonpublic, nonsectarian schools

Emergency Interventions

Assessment of academic achievement

Categorical programs included in consolidated application

School plan for student achievement; consolidated
application programs

School site councils

Cal Grant program; notification of grade point average and
high school graduation

Prohibitions applicable to specified officers
Educational Employment Relations Act

Public employee communication, information and orientation
The Ralph M. Brown Act

California Public Records Act



Gov. Code 81000-91014
H&S Code 104420

H&S Code 104559

Lab. Code 1198.5

Lab. Code 3074.2

Pen. Code 1192.7

Pen. Code 667.5

Veh. Code 28160

Federal
20 USC 1681-1688

20USC 6311

20 USC 7221-7221j
34 CFR 200.1-200.78
42 USC 11431-11435

Management Resources
Attorney General Opinion

Attorney General Opinion
Attorney General Opinion
Attorney General Opinion

Attorney General Opinion

CA Department of Education Publication
CA Office of Administrative Hearings

Decisions

California Department of Education

Publication

California Dept. of Pesticide Reg.

Publication

California Interscholastic Federation

Publication
Court Decision

CSBA Publication
CSBA Publication
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Political Reform Act

Tobacco Use Prevention Education grant program
Tobacco-free schools

Personnel records related to performance and grievance
College and career fairs; notice to apprenticeship programs
Definition of serious felony

Definition of violent felony

Child safety alert system

Description
Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972;
discrimination based on sex

State plan

Charter schools

Accountability

McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act

Description
104 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 66 (2021)

101 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 92 (2018)

78 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 297 (1995)

89 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 166 (2006)

80 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 52 (1997)
California School Accounting Manual

Student v. Horizon Instructional Systems Charter School,
(2012) OAH Case No. 2011060763

Pupil Fees, Deposits, and Other Charges, Fiscal Management
Advisory 20-01, July 23, 2020

School District Integrated Pest Management Plan Template
Pursuing Victory with Honor, 1999

Ridgecrest Charter School v. Sierra Sands Unified School
District (2005) 130 Cal.App.4th 986

Charter Schools: A Guide for Governance Teams, rev. 2021

Charter Schools in Focus, Issue 2: Ensuring Effective
Oversight, Governance Brief, October 2017
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CSBA Publication Uncharted Waters: Recommendations for Prioritizing gtudent
Achievement and Effective Governance in California's
Charter Schools, September 2018

U.S. DOE Guidance Charter Schools Program: Title V, Part B of the ESEA,
Nonregulatory Guidance, January 2014

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website U.S. Department of Agriculture

Website National Suicide Prevention Lifeline

Website National Domestic Violence Hotline

Website California State Teachers Retirement System

Website California Public Employees Retirement System

Website California Department of General Services, Office of

Administrative Hearings

Website California Commission on Teacher Credentialing

Website California Commission on Peace Officer Standards and
Training

Website California Bureau of Security and Investigative Services

Website California Department of Pesticide Regulation

Website California State Controller

Website California Student Aid Commission

Website National Association of Charter School Authorizers

Website California Charter Schools Association

Website California Department of Education, Charter Schools

Website California Interscholastic Federation

Website California Office of the Attorney General

Website CSBA

Website U.S. Department of Education

Cross References

Code Description

0420.4 Charter Schoel-AuthorizationCharter School Authorization
0420.4 Charter School-AuthorizationCharter School Authorization
0420.42 Charter Scheol RenewalCharter School Renewal

0420.43 Charter Schoel RevoecationCharter School Revocation



http://www.cdpr.ca.gov/#
http://www.sco.ca.gov/#
http://www.csac.ca.gov/#
http://www.qualitycharters.org/#
http://www.ccsa.org/#
http://www.cifstate.org/#
http://oag.ca.gov/#
http://www.csba.org/#
http://www.ed.gov/#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=OqOnYF9qxogTDzsQOyqoig==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=Vv7B00SMyPrng9YXgyP6aQ==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=DNWrslshOPplusslshAJVCuKn68Yslsh0Q==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=sSXWjSFtuzlwT6TGeG9v8g==#

0460

0460

0500
1312.3

1312.3
1312.3-E(1)

1312.3-E(2)
1431

6162.51

6162.51

7160
7160

Local Control-And-Accountability PlanLocal Control A?an
Accountability Plan

Local Control-And-Accountability PlanLocal Control And
Accountability Plan

AccountabilityAccountability
Uniferm-ComplaintProceduresUniform Complaint

Procedures

Uniform Complaint Procedures

Uniform Complaint Procedures

Uniform Complaint Procedures

WaiversWaivers

State-Academic-Achievement TestsState Academic
Achievement Tests

State-Academic-Achievement TestsState Academic
Achievement Tests

Charter Schoel-FacilitiesCharter School Facilities

Charter Schoel-FacilitiesCharter School Facilities



https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=OXPZsjHvbL3oOYWkdsGdBA==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=OXPZsjHvbL3oOYWkdsGdBA==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=U4slshey4jZ7740ovjPXRdFpg==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=U4slshey4jZ7740ovjPXRdFpg==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=qec3Iw1WslshtHfJqvplusOlraHQ==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=RYxiOFK5nN2LUZW4a1mtoA==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=RYxiOFK5nN2LUZW4a1mtoA==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=Lt72smippwYQWgcj9Ykpluscw==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=dplJmkH8UXCJgPsxmvfLNw==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=7uOdhMplus7PbAqDslshYgslshdun2A==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=fOg6Crr4cawfTIdlEeZ7Qw==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=4tVagLqFnUH7UplusEXB5g44g==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=4tVagLqFnUH7UplusEXB5g44g==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=1CCoun1Bnvfcc9MJVDsj8g==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=1CCoun1Bnvfcc9MJVDsj8g==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=slshtcvg1S2WZEqM2ioA7nbAQ==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=mva6OqXRAdiOBfWtCzl1MQ==#
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Board Policy Manual
Hanford Elementary School District

Exhibit 0420.41-E(1): Charter School Oversight Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date: 07/01/2017 | Last Revised Date: 06/01/2023 | Last Reviewed Date: 06/01/2023

REQUIREMENTS FOR CHARTER SCHOOLS
Charterschools
A charter school shall be subject to the terms of its charter; any memorandum of understanding between the
school and the district Board of Trustees; the state and federal constitutions; applicable federal laws; state laws
that apply to governmental agencies in general; and other legal requirements that are expressly applicable to
charter schools, including, but not limited to, the following requirementsthateachcharterschool-ortheentity
managingthecharterschoolk,

Governance
Governance

1. Comply with the Ralph M. Brown Act (Government Code 54950-54963), California Public Records
Act (Government Code 6250-62707920.000- 7930.215), conflict of interest laws (Government Code

1090-1099), and Political Reform Act (Government Code 81000-91014), including the adoption of a
conflict of interest code pursuant to Government Code 87300 (Education Code 47604.1)

2. Except as otherwise authorized by Government Code 54954, hold the meetings of its governing body
within the physical boundaries of the county in which the charter school is located or, if a
nonclassroom-based charter school that does not have a facility or operates one or more resource
centers, hold governing body meetings within the physical boundaries of the county in which the
greatest number of students enrolled in the charter school reside. In addition, a two-way
teleconference location shall be established at the school site and/or resource center, as
applicable. (Education Code 47604.1)

3. The charter school's executive director or any of the charter school's employees shall not serve as a

member of the county board of education in the county where the charter school is
located (Education Code 1006; Government Code 1099)

Operations

3-4.Not be operated as, or be operated by, a for-profit corporation, a for-profit educational management
organization, or a for-profit charter management organization (Education Code 47604)
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4.5.Be nonsectarian in its programs, admission policies, employment practices, and all other
operations (Education Code 47605)

Admission/Enrollment

imissi I

5.6.Adhere to all laws establishing the minimum age for public school attendance (Education Code
47610)

6.7.Serve students who are California residents and who, if over 19 years of age, are continuously
enrolled in a public school and making "satisfactory progress" toward a high school diploma as defined
in 5 CCR 11965 (Education Code 47612)

1-8.Serve students with disabilities in the same manner as such students are served in other district
schools (Education Code 47646, 56145)

8:9.Admit all students who wish to attend the charter school, according to the following criteria and
procedures:

a—Admission to the charter school shall not be determined according to the student's or
parent/guardian's place of residence within the state, except that any existing public school
converting partially or entirely to a charter school shall adopt and maintain a policy giving admission
preference to students who reside within that school's former attendance area. (Education Code
47605)

If a charter school will be physically located in a public elementary school attendance area in
which 50 percent or more of the student enrollment is eligible for free or reduced-price meals,
it may also establish an admission preference for students who are currently enrolled in that
public elementary school and for students who reside in the public school attendance

area. (Education Code 47605.3)

b. If the number of students who wish to attend the charter school exceeds the school's capacity,
attendance shall be determined by a public random drawing, with preference extended to
students currently attending the charter school and students who reside in the district, except

as provided for in Education Code 47614.5~ (Education Code 47605)

c. Other admission preferences may be permitted by the Board of the district on an individual
school basis consistent with law. {Education-Code-47605}Preferences shall not result in limited
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enrollment access for students with disabilities, academically low-achieving students, English
learners, neglected or delinquent students, students experiencing homelessness, foster youth,
students who are economically disadvantaged, or on the basis of nationality, race, ethnicity, or
sexual orientation. Mandatory parental volunteer hours shall not be the basis of a preference
or a criterion for admission or continued enrollment. (Education Code 47605)

1—10. Not discourage a student from enrolling or seeking to enroll in the charter school, nor encourage a
current student from disenrolling, for any reason, including, but not limited to, the student's academic
performance, nationality, race, ethnicity, or sexual orientation or because the student is a student with
disabilities, academically low achieving, an English learner, neglected or delinquent, experiencing
homelessness, economically disadvantaged, or a foster youth. The charter school shall not request or
require a student's records to be submitted before enrollment. The charter school shall post on its
website the California Department of Education's (CDE) notice of these requirements and shall
provide the notice to parents/guardians or students age 18 and older when the parent/guardian or
student inquires about enrollment, before conducting an enrollment lottery, and before disenrollment

of a student. (Education Code 47605)

(I TN
= o

. Comply with the requirements of Education Code 48850-48859 regarding the-enrollment,

identification, and placement of festeryeuth-students experiencing homelessness and

unaccompanied youth (Education Code 48850, 48851, 48852.5, 48852.6; 42 USC 11431-11435)

-1&1_2. Comply with the requirements of Education Code 48850-48859 regarding the enrollment and
placement of foster youth (Education Code 48853.5, 48859)

1113. Allow a student who is enrolled in the charter school but receiving individual instruction at
home or a hospital due to a temporary disability to return to the charter school when well enough to
do so, provided the student returns during the school year in which the individual instruction was
initiated (Education Code 48207.3)

Nondiscrimination

liscriminati

12.14. Not discriminate against any student on the basis of the characteristics listed in Education
Code 220 (Education Code 47605)

13.15. Adopt policy that is consistent with the model policy developed by the California Attorney
General addressing the charter school's response to immigration enforcement, notify
parents/guardians of their children's right to a free public education regardless of immigration status
or religious beliefs, prohibit the collection of information or documents regarding the immigration
status of students or their family members, and fulfill other requirements of Education Code 234.7
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14.16. Post specified information related to the prohibition against discrimination under Title IX of
the Education Amendments of 1972 in a prominent and conspicuous location on the school web
sitewebsite or on the web-sitewebsite of the charter operator (Education Code 221.61)

15:17. If the charter school offers competitive athletics, annually post on the school's web

sitewebsite or on the web-sitewebsite of the charter operator the total enrollment of the school
classified by gender, the number of students who participate in competitive athletics classified by
gender, and the number of boys' and girls' teams classified by sport and by competition

level (Education Code 221.9)

16:18. Provide specified accommodations to pregnant and parenting students, including, but not
limited to, the provision of parental leave and reasonable accommodations on campus to a lactating
student to express breast milk, breastfeed an infant child, or address other needs related to
breastfeeding. The charter school shall notify pregnant and parenting students and parents/guardians
of the rights and options available to pregnant and parenting students. (Education Code 222, 222.5,

46015)
-

18.19. If a direct-funded charter school, adopt and implement uniform complaint procedures to
resolve complaints of unlawful discrimination or alleged violation of a state or federal law or
regulation governing educational programs, in accordance with 5 CCR 4600-4670 (5 CCR 4600)
Tuition and Fees

.

19.20. Not charge tuition (Education Code 47605)

20~ 21. Not charge student fees for any activity that is an integral component of the educational
program, except as authorized by those Education Code provisions that explicitly apply to charter
schools

21. (Education Code 49010, 49011)

Not bill, nor take any negative action against, a student or former student for a debt owed to the
charter school. The school shall provide an itemized invoice for any amount owed by the
parent/guardian on behalf of a student or former student before pursuing payment of the debt and
shall provide a receipt to the parent/guardian for each payment made to the school. (Education Code

49014)

School Plans

Sehool-Plans
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22. Adopt a local control and accountability plan (LCAP) and update the plan by July 1 each year, i
censultationafter holding a public hearing, consulting with specified stakeholders, and using the

template adopted by the State Board of Education (SBE).Fe-the-extentpracticabledata-shalibe

Dashbeard- As part of the LCAP adoption and annual update to the LCAP, the governing body of the
charter school shall separately adopt a local control funding formula budget overview for
parents/guardians and as appropriate, an Individuals with Disabilities Education Act Addendum, based

on the templatetemplates developed by the-SBE-which-includesspecifiedHinformationrelating to-the
schoolsbudget- (Education Code 47604.33, 47606.5, 52064, 52064.1}, 52064.3)

23. If the charter school applies for federal and/or state categorical program funding through the state's
consolidated application, establish a school site council to develop and annually review a school plan
for student achievement, unless the school chooses to use its LCAP for this purpose (Education Code
64000-64001, 65000-65001)

24. Develop a comprehensive safety plan in accordance with Education Code 32282 and review and
update the plan by March 1 each year (Education Code 47605)

25. Develop a transportation safety plan that includes procedures to ensure that a student is not left
unattended on a school bus, student activity bus, youth bus, or child care motor vehicle and
procedures for designating an adult chaperone, other than the driver, to accompany students on a
school activity bus. In addition, ensure that each school bus, student activity bus, youth bus, or child
care motor vehicle is equipped with a child safety alert system that requires the driver to either
manually contact or scan the device, thereby prompting the driver to inspect the entirety of the
interior of the vehicle before exiting, unless the student activity bus is exempted by law. (Education
Code 39831.3; Vehicle Code 28160)

Curriculum and Instruction

icul | .

26. Offer at least the number of instructional minutes required by law for the grade levels provided by the
charter school (Education Code 47612.5)

27-If the charter school @
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27. programtoserves students whesefifth-birthdayisfrom September2through December2in grade 9,

adopt a fair, objective, and transparent mathematics placement policy with specified
components (Education Code 48000}51224.7)

28. If the charter school serves students in any of grades 7-12, provide comprehensive sexual
health education and human immunodeficiency virus (HIV) prevention education at least

once in junior high or middle school and once in high school-begirnrirginthe2019-2020
seheolyear (Education Code 51931, 51934)

29. If the charter school serves students in any of grades 6-12, identify and implement methods
of informing parents/guardians of human trafficking prevention resources byJanuary-L;
2020- (Education Code 49381)

30. If the charter school serves students in middle or high school and offers one or more
courses in health education, include in those courses instruction in mental health, as
specified (Education Code 51925-51929)

31. If the charter school serves students in grade 12, comply with the requirements for student
completion and submission of the Free Application for Federal Student Aid and California
Dream Act Application (Education Code 51225.7, 51225.8)

32. If the charter school is planning to hold a college or career fair, the charter school shall
notify each apprenticeship program in the same county as the charter school with the
planned date, time, and location of the fair (Labor Code 3074.2)

30:33. If the charter school provides independent study, meet the requirements of
Education Code 51745-51749.6, except that the school may be-alewed-to-offer courses

required for graduation solely through independent study as an exception to Education
Code 51745(e) (Education Code 47612.5, 51747.3; 5 CCR 11705)

34. Develop a plan for offering independent study to affected students pursuant to Education
Code 46393 if the governing body of the charter school submits an affidavit pursuant to
Education Code 46392 necessitated by an emergency condition that resulted in a school
closure (Education Code 46392, 46393)

35. Accept and provide full or partial credit for coursework satisfactorily completed by a foster
youth, student experiencing homelessness, former juvenile court school student, child of a
military family, migrant student, or a student participating in a newcomer program while
attending another school (Education Code 51225.2)

31.36. Meet all statewide standards and conduct any statewide assessments applicable to
noncharter public schools (Education Code 47605, 47612.5, 60605)

Special Education
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Student Expression

37.

Provide assistive technology devices in a student's home or other settings if the

38.

individualized education program team determines that such access is necessary. The
charter school shall also provide an assistive technology device or comparable device to a
student who enrolls in another local educational agency, for two months after the student
leaves the charter school or until alternative arrangements can be made, whichever occurs
first (Education Code 56040.3)

if the charter school is an independent member of a special education local plan area and

39.

has a master contract with a nonpublic, nonsectarian school:

a. Pay the full amount of the tuition or fees for students with disabilities enrolled in
programs or services provided pursuant to that contract (Education Code 56365)

b. tonduct at least one onsite visit to the nonpublic, nonsectarian school prior to a
student's placement and at least once each school year (Education Code 56366.1)

High School Graduation

Exempt a foster youth, student experiencing homelessness, former juvenile court school

40.

student, child of a military family, or migrant student who transfers between schools after
the second year of high school, or a student participating in a newcomer program for newly
immigrant students in grades 11-12, from any of the charter school's graduation
requirements that exceed state requirements, unless the charter school determines that the
student is reasonably able to complete the requirements by the end of the fourth year of
high school (Education Code 51225.1, 51225.2)

in accordance with Education Code 51225.31, exempt an eligible student with disabilities

41.

from all coursework and other requirements adopted by the charter school board that are in
addition to the statewide course requirements specified in Education Code 51225.3, and
award such student a high school diploma (Education Code 51225.31)

_Grant a high school diploma to any student who completed grade 12 in the 2003-04

42.

through 2014-15 school year and met all applicable graduation requirements other than the
passage of the high school exit examination (Education Code 51413)

hequire students to meet the state minimum course requirements for graduation as

43.

specified in Education Code 51225.3, as well as any additional graduation requirements
required by the governing body (Education Code 51225.3)

Student Expression

Allow a student to wear traditional tribal regalia or recognized objects of religious or cultural

significance as an adornment at school graduation ceremonies, unless the charter school
determines that an item is likely to cause a substantial disruption of, or material interference
with, the ceremony (Education Code 35183.1)

32:44. Provide students the right to exercise freedom of speech and of the press including,

but not limited to, the use of bulletin boards; the distribution of printed materials or
petitions; the wearing of buttons, badges, and other insignia; and the right of expression in
official publications (Education Code 48907, 48950)

Staffing
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Staffing

33:45. Require its teachers to hold a certificate, permit, or other document issued by the

46.

Commission on Teacher Credentialing (CTC) eguivalentto-thatwhich-ateacherinother
publicschools-would-bereguired-te-hold-as required for the teacher's certificated

assienment. Teachers employed by the charter school during the 2019-20 school year shall
have until July 1, 2025 to obtain the required certificate required. (Education Code 47605,
47605.4)

{Education-Code 47605)

If the charter school offers TK, require credentialed teachers first assigned to a TK class to

47.

meet one of three specified criteria establishing qualification for the position by August 1,
2023, and to maintain adult to student ratios as specified in Education Code
48000 (Education Code 48000)

Review potential misassignments and vacant positions in the charter school, including data

from CTC, respond to the County Superintendent of Schools when necessary to show that
an employee is legally authorized for an assignment, and correct any misassignments if
notified by the County Superintendent that an assignment is not legally authorized
(Education Code 44258.9)

34:48. Not hire any person who has been convicted of a violent or serious felony except as

otherwise provided by law, and, if the charter school contracts with an entity for specified
services, verify that any employee of that entity who wit-have-centactinteracts with
students outside of the immediate supervision and control of the student's parent/guardian
or a school employee has had-a valid criminal background-check-records summary, unless
an exception applies (Education Code 44830.1, 45122.1, 45125.1)

35:49. Report to-the CTC any change in a certificated employee's employment status

(dismissal, nonreelection, resignation, suspension, unpaid administrative leave for more than
10 days, retirement, or other decision not to employ or reemploy) as a result of an allegation
of misconduct or while an allegation of misconduct is pending (Education Code 44030.5)

36.50. Meetlf the charter school chooses to make the state teachers' retirement plan

and/or the public employees retirement system available to its employees, meet the

requirements of Education Code 47611 regarding-the State TeachersRetirement
System- (Education Code 47610)

3751, Meet the requirements of Government Code 3540-3549.3 related to collective

bargaining in public education employment (Education Code 47611.5)

Parent/Guardian-nvolvement



52. If the charter school employs security officers and/or security officers work on the char?ezr
school campus, provide the latest course of training developed by the Bureau of Security
and Investigative Services of the Department of Consumer Affairs in consultation with the
Commission on Peace Officer Standards and Training, as specified (Education Code
38001.5; Business and Professions Code 7583.45)

Parent/Guardian Involvement

38.53. On a regular basis, consult with parents/guardians and teachers regarding the
charter school's educational programs (Education Code 47605)

39:54. Notify parents/guardians of applicant students and currently enrolled students that
parental involvement is not a requirement for acceptance to, or continued enrollment at,
the charter school (Education Code 47605)

.

55. Beginning-withlf 15 percent or more of the 2049-2020-seheolyearstudents at the charter
school speak a single primary language other than English, provide each-eligible-student

with-one-nutritionally-adegquateall notices, reports, statements, or records sent to

parents/guardians in English and in the primary language (Education Code 48985)

Nutrition

40--Provide breakfast and/or lunch free of charge during each school day to students
requesting a meal regardless of the student s free or reduced -price meal dunng—eaeh

56. eligibility. If the charter school participates in the National School Lunch Program (NSLP)
andfer School Breakfast programProgram (SBP) and is a high poverty school, as defined,

the charter school shall apply to operate a federal universal meal service provision, and
upon approval, apply such service. (Education Code 49501.5, 49564.3)

41.57. If the charter school participates in the NSLP or SBP, not promote any food or
beverage during the school day that does not comply with state nutritional standards
pursuant to Education Code 49430-49434, and not participate in a corporate incentive
program that offers free or discounted non-nutritious foods or beverages as rewards for
students who reach certain academic goals (Education Code 49431.9)

Student Health
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58. Hthecharterschoolservesstudentsirgrades7-12-adeptAdopt a policy on suicide
prevention, intervention, and postvention with-specified-components;for grades 7-12, and

an age-appropriate policy for grades K-6, and review the policy at least every five years;

and-iftheschoo! (Education Code 215)

59. Each charter school that serves students in any of grades 6-12 shall create and prominently
display an age appropriate and culturally relevant poster that identifies approaches and
resources about student mental health. (Education Code 49428.5)

44.60. If the charter school serves grades 7-12 and issues student identification cards, print
the telephone aumbernumbers of the National Suicide Prevention Lifeline ea-theseand the
National Domestic Violence Hotline on the identification cards (Education Code 215;
215.5)

45.61. Notify students and parents/guardians at least twice during the school year on how
to initiate access to available student mental health services on campus or in the
community (Education Code 49428)

46.62. Provide annual training on child abuse and neglect reporting requirements to
employees and persons working on the charter school's behalf who are mandated reporters,
within the first six weeks of each school year or within six weeks of
employment (Education Code 44691)

47.63. If the charter school offers an athletic program, annually provide information sheets
about concussions/head injuries and sudden cardiac arrest to athletes and their
parents/guardians, which must be signed and returned to the school before the athlete
initiates practice or competition. In the event that an athlete is suspected of sustaining a
concussion or head injury, passes out, or faints during or immediately after participation in
an athletic activity, the student shall be immediately removed from the activity for the
remainder of the day and shall not be permitted to return to the activity until the student is
evaluated by a licensed health care provider and receives written clearance to do
so. (Education Code 33479-33479.5, 49475)
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48.64. If the charter school offers an interscholastic athletic program, develop and post a

written emergency action plan that describes procedures to be followed in the event of
sudden cardiac arrest and other medical emergencies, acquire at least one automated
external defibrillator (AED) for the school, and make the AED available at on-campus
athletic activities or events (Education Code 35179.4, 35179.6)

65. If the charter school sponsors or hosts an on-campus event in or around a swimming pool
that is not part of an interscholastic athletic program, provide for the presence of at least
one adult with a valid certification of cardiopulmonary resuscitation training throughout the
duration of the event (Education Code 35179.6)

49.66. Provide school nurses or other voluntary, trained personnel with emergency
epinephrine auto--injectors of the type required pursuant to Education Code
49414 (Education Code 49414)

50.67. If the charter school chooses to make an opioid antagonist available to persons
suffering, or reasonably believed to be suffering, from an opioid overdose, comply with the
requirements of Education Code 49414.3, including, but not limited to, providing training to
personnel who volunteer to administer the opioid antagonist

Student Conduct/Discipline

I ct/Discinl

51.68. Adopt a policy on bullying and cyberbullying prevention-by-Becember34-2019, post
specified information on bullying and harassment prevention on the charter school's
website, and annually make CDE's online training module on bullying prevention available to
school site certificated employees and other employees who have regular interaction with
students (Education Code 234.4, 234.6, 32283.5)

69. Adopt and display a written policy on sexual harassment, include the policy as part of any
orientation for new and continuing students, and post a poster notifying students of the
policy (Education Code 231.5,231.6)

52.70. Prohibit seclusion and behavioral restraint of students as a means of discipline, and
only use such methods to control student behavior that poses a clear and present danger of
serious physical harm to a student or others that cannot be immediately prevented by a less
restrictive response (Education Code 49005-49006.4)

71. Neither recommend for expulsion a student in grades K-12 nor suspend a student in grades
K-8 for disrupting school activities or otherwise willfully defying the authority of school
personnel in the performance of their duties (Education Code 48901.1)

72. Upon request, provide a student who is suspended for two or more days with the
homework assigned during the period of suspension (Education Code 47606.2, 48913.5)

Student and Parent/Guardian Records
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2—Not collect or solicit social security numbers or the last four digits of social security

numbers from students or their parents/guardians unless otherwise required to do so by
state or federal law (Education Code 49076.7)

53.73. Upon written request, not include the directory information of a student or the
personal information of a parent/guardian, as defined, in the minutes of a meeting of the
governing body (Education Code 49073.2)

54.74. If a student subject to compulsory full-time education is expelled or leaves the
charter school without graduating or completing the school year for any reason, notify the
Superintendent of the school district of the student's last known address within 30 days
and, upon request, provide that district with a copy of the student's cumulative record,
including a transcript of grades or report card, and health information (Education Code
47605)

it

75. If the charter school serves high school students, submit to the Student Aid Commission
(CSAQ), for use in the Cal Grant program, the grade point average (GPA) of all students in
grade 12 and verification of high school graduation or its equivalent for students who
graduated in the prior academic year. However, such information shall not be submitted
when students opt out or are permitted by the rules of CSAC to provide test scores in lieu
of the GPA. (Education Code 69432.9, 69432.92)

76. Upon receipt of government-issued documentation of a change of name or gender or, if
such documentation is not available, upon request in accordance with the procedure in
Education Code 49070, update, and reissue if requested, a former student's records to
include the student's updated legal name or gender. (Education Code 49062.5, 49070)

Facilities

55.77. Comply with the California Building Standards Code as adopted and enforced by the
local building enforcement agency with jurisdiction over the area in which the charter
school is located, unless the charter school facility meets either of the following
conditions: (Education Code 47610, 47610.5)

a. The facility complies with the Field Act pursuant to Education Code 17280-17317
and 17365-17374-

b. The facility is exclusively owned or controlled by an entity that is not subject to the
California Building Standards Code, including, but not limited to, the federal

government:

Finanece

78. If the charter school serves students in any of grades 6-12, stock the school's restrooms at
all times with an adequate supply of menstrual products available and accessible free of cost
in all women's restrooms, all-gender restrooms, and in at least one men's
restroom (Education Code 35292.6)
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Finance

56.79. Promptly respond to all reasonable inquiries from the district, the county office of
education, or the Superintendent of Public Instruction (SPI), including, but not limited to,
inquiries regarding the charter school's financial records (Education Code 47604.3)

5%.80. Maintain written contemporaneous records that document all student attendance
and make these records available for audit and inspection (Education Code 47612.5)

58.81. Identify and report to the SPI any portion of the charter school's average daily
attendance that is generated through nonclassroom-based instruction, including, but not
limited to, independent study, home study, work study, and distance and computer-based
education (Education Code 47612.5,47634.2; 5 CCR 11963.2)

59.82. Annually prepare and submit financial reports to the district-Board and the County
Superintendent ef-Seheels-in accordance with the following reporting cycle:

a. By July 1, a preliminary budget for the current fiscal year. For a charter school in its
first year of operation, financial statements submitted with the charter petition

pursuant to Education Code 47605(g) will satisfy this requirement-_(Education
Code 47604.33)

b. By December 15, an interim financial report for the current fiscal year reflecting
changes through October 31~ (Education Code 47604.33)

c. By March 15, a second interim financial report for the current fiscal year reflecting
changes through January 31~ (Education Code 47604.33)

d. By September 15, a final unaudited report for the full prior year. The report
submitted to the Board shall include an annual statement of all the charter school's
receipts and expenditures for the preceding fiscal year. (Education Code 42100,
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e. By December 15, a copy of the charter school's annual, independent financial audit
report for the preceding fiscal year, unless the charter school's audit is encompassed
in the district's audit. The audit report shall also be submitted to the State Controller
and CDE. (Education Code 47605)

60.83. If the charter school receives state facilities funding pursuant to the Leroy F. Greene
School Facilities Act (Education Code 17070.10-17079.30), annually report a detailed list of
all expenditures of state funds, and of the school's matching funds for completed projects,
and submit an audit of completed facilities projects within one year of project
completion (Education Code 41024)

Accountability

bil

84. Annually adopt a school accountability report card (Education Code 33126, 47612;
California Constitution, Article 16, Section 8.5)

Policy Reference Disclaimer:

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority

for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in

the subject matter of the policy.

State
5CCR 11700-11705

5 CCR 11960-11969.10

5 CCR 4600-4670

Bus. And Prof. Code 7583.45

CA Constitution Article 16, Section 8.5

Description
Independent study

Charter schools

Uniform complaint procedures

Training for security officers

Public finance; school accountability report card

CA Constitution Article 9, Section 5

Corp. Code 5110-6910

Ed. Code 1006

Ed. Code 17070.10-17079.30

Ed. Code 17280-17317

Ed. Code 17365-17374

Ed. Code 215

Common school system

Nonprofit public benefit corporations

Prohibition against school district employees serving on
county board of education

Leroy F. Greene School Facilities Act

Field Act; approval of plans and supervision of construction

Field Act; fithess for occupancy; liability of board members

Suicide prevention policies
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Code 44030.5

Ed.

Code 44237

Ed.

Code 44258.9

Ed.

Code 44691

Ed.

Code 44830.1

Ed.

Code 45122.1
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Student identification cards; inclusion of safety hotlines

Prohibition of discrimination

Posting of Title IX information on website

Sex equity in competitive athletics

Reasonable accommodations; lactating students

Pregnant and parenting students; notification of rights

Sexual harassment policy

Mandated policy on bullying prevention

Bullying and harassment prevention information

Student protections relating to immigration and citizenship
status

School safety plans

Bullying; online training

The Eric Parades Sudden Cardiac Arrest Prevention Act

Interscholastic athletic programs, safety; swimming pool
safety that is not part of interscholastic athletic program

Graduation ceremonies; tribal regalia or recognized object of
religious/cultural significance

Stocking of menstrual products

Field trips and excursions; student fees

Training for security officers

School meals

Transportation safety plan

Disciplinary action against bus driver; report to Department
of Motor Vehicles

Report of expenditure of state facility funds

Annual statement of receipts and expenditures

Reporting change in employment status due to alleged
misconduct

Criminal record summary

Monitoring of teacher assignments

Information on detection of child abuse; annual training

Certificated employees; conviction of a violent or serious
felony

Classified employees; conviction of a violent or serious felony




Ed.

Code 45125.1

Ed.

Code 46015

Ed.

Code 46390-46393

Ed.

Code 47600-47616.7

Ed.

Code 47634.2

Ed.

Code 47640-47647

Ed.

Code 47651

Ed.

Code 48000

Ed.

Code 48010

Ed.

Code 48206.3-48208

Ed.

Code 48850-48859

Ed.

Code 48901.1

Ed.

Code 48907

Ed.

Code 48913.5

Ed.

Code 48950

Ed.

Code 48985

Ed.

Code 49005-49006.4

Ed.

Code 49010

Ed.

Code 49011

Ed.

Code 49014

Ed.

Code 49061

Ed.

Code 49062.5

Ed.

Code 49070

Ed.

Code 49073.2

Ed.

Code 49076.7

Ed.

Code 49110

Ed.

Code 49381

Ed.

Code 49414

Ed.

Code 49414.3

Ed.

Code 49428
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Criminal records summary; employees of contracting entity

Accommodations for pregnant and parenting students;
parental leave

Emergency average daily attendance

Charter Schools Act of 1992

Nonclassroom-based instruction

Special education funding for charter schools

Apportionment of funds; charter schools

Minimum age of admission for kindergarten; transitional
kindergarten

Minimum age of admission (first grade)

Students with temporary disabilities; individual instruction

Education of foster youth and homeless students

Suspension and expulsion; willful defiance

Exercise of free expression; time, place and manner rules and
regulations

Suspended students; homework assignments

Speech and other communication

Notices to parents in language other than English

Seclusion and restraint

Pupil fees
Student fees

Public School Fair Debt Collection Act

Definitions; directory information

Student records; name or gender change

Challenging student records

Privacy of student and parent/guardian personal information;

minutes of board meeting

Student records; data privacy; social security numbers

Authority to issue work permits

Human trafficking prevention

Epinephrine auto-injectors

Administration of opioid antagonist

Notification of mental health services




Ed.

Code 49428.5

Ed.

Code 49430-49434

Ed.

Code 49431.9

Ed.

Code 49475

Ed.

Code 49501.5

Ed.

Code 49550-49564.5

Ed.

Code 49557.5

Ed.

Code 49564.3

Ed.

Code 49700-49701

Ed.

Code 51224.7

Ed.

Code 51225.1-51225.2

Ed.

Code 51225.3

Ed.

Code 51225.6

Ed.

Code 51225.7-51225.8

Ed.

Code 51413

Ed.

Code 51744-51749.6

Ed.

Code 51925-51929

Ed.

Code 51930-51939

Ed.

Code 52052

Ed.

Code 52060-52077

Ed.

Code 52075

Ed.

Code 56026

Ed.

Code 56040.3

Ed.

Code 56145-56146

Ed.

Code 56365-56366.12

Ed.

Code 56521.1-56521.2

Ed.

Code 60600-60649

Ed.

Code 64000

Ed.

Code 64001

Ed.

Code 65000-65001
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Employment of medical personnel

The Pupil Nutrition, Health, and Achievement Act of 2001

Prohibition of advertisement of non-nutritious foods

Health and safety; concussions and head injuries

Free breakfast and lunch to all students

Meals for needy students

Child Hunger Prevention and Fair Treatment Act of 2017

Provision of federal universal meal service

Education of children of military families

Mathematics placement policy

Exemption from local graduation requirements; acceptance
of coursework

High school graduation requirements

Instruction in cardiopulmonary resuscitation; districts that
require health education for graduation

Completion and submission of the Free Application for
Federal Student Aid and California Dream Act Application

Diploma of graduation without passage of high school exit
examination

Independent study

Mandatory mental health education

California Healthy Youth Act

Accountability; numerically significant student subgroups

Local control and accountability plan

Uniform complaint procedures

Special education

Availability of assistive technology device

Special education services in charter schools

Nonpublic, nonsectarian schools

Emergency Interventions

Assessment of academic achievement

Categorical programs included in consolidated application

School plan for student achievement; consolidated
application programs

School site councils




Ed. Code 69432.9-69432.92

Gov. Code 1090-1099

Gov. Code 3540-3549.3

Gov. Code 3555-3559

Gov. Code 54950-54963

Gov. Code 7920.000-7930.170

Gov. Code 81000-91014

H&S Code 104420

H&S Code 104559

Lab. Code 1198.5

Lab. Code 3074.2

Pen. Code 1192.7

Pen. Code 667.5

Veh. Code 28160

Federal
20 USC 1681-1688

20 USC 6311
20 USC 7221-7221j

34 CFR 200.1-200.78

42 USC 11431-11435

Management Resources
Attorney General Opinion

Attorney General Opinion

Attorney General Opinion

Attorney General Opinion

Attorney General Opinion

CA Department of Education Publication
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Cal Grant program; notification of grade point average and
high school graduation

Prohibitions applicable to specified officers

Educational Employment Relations Act

Public employee communication, information and orientation

The Ralph M. Brown Act

California Public Records Act

Political Reform Act

Tobacco Use Prevention Education grant program

Tobacco-free schools

Personnel records related to performance and grievance

College and career fairs; notice to apprenticeship programs

Definition of serious felony

Definition of violent felony

Child safety alert system

Description
Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972;

discrimination based on sex

State plan

Charter schools

Accountability

McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act

Description
104 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 66 (2021)

101 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 92 (2018)

78 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 297 (1995)

89 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 166 (2006)

80 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 52 (1997)

California School Accounting Manual

CA Office of Administrative Hearings

Student v. Horizon Instructional Systems Charter School,

Decisions

California Department of Education

(2012) OAH Case No. 2011060763

Pupil Fees, Deposits, and Other Charges, Fiscal Management

Publication

California Dept. of Pesticide Reg.

Publication

Advisory 20-01, July 23, 2020

School District Integrated Pest Management Plan Template




California Interscholastic Federation
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Pursuing Victory with Honor, 1999

Publication
Court Decision

CSBA Publication

CSBA Publication

CSBA Publication

U.S. DOE Guidance

Website
Website
Website
Website
Website
Website
Website

Website
Website

Website
Website
Website
Website
Website
Website
Website
Website
Website
Website
Website

Cross References

Code

Ridgecrest Charter School v. Sierra Sands Unified School
District (2005) 130 Cal.App.4th 986

Charter Schools: A Guide for Governance Teams, rev. 2021

Charter Schools in Focus, Issue 2: Ensuring Effective
Oversight, Governance Brief, October 2017

Uncharted Waters: Recommendations for Prioritizing Student
Achievement and Effective Governance in California's
Charter Schools, September 2018

Charter Schools Program: Title V, Part B of the ESEA,
Nonregulatory Guidance, January 2014

CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

U.S. Department of Agriculture

National Suicide Prevention Lifeline

National Domestic Violence Hotline

California State Teachers Retirement System

California Public Employees Retirement System

California Department of General Services, Office of
Administrative Hearings

California Commission on Teacher Credentialing

California Commission on Peace Officer Standards and
Training

California Bureau of Security and Investigative Services

California Department of Pesticide Regulation

California State Controller

California Student Aid Commission

National Association of Charter School Authorizers

California Charter Schools Association

California Department of Education, Charter Schools

California Interscholastic Federation

California Office of the Attorney General

CSBA

U.S. Department of Education

Description


http://www.cdpr.ca.gov/#
http://www.sco.ca.gov/#
http://www.csac.ca.gov/#
http://www.qualitycharters.org/#
http://www.ccsa.org/#
http://www.cifstate.org/#
http://oag.ca.gov/#
http://www.csba.org/#
http://www.ed.gov/#

0420.4
04204
0420.42
0420.43
0460

0460

0500
13123
1312.3
1312.3-E(1)

1312.3-E(2)
1431

6162.51
6162.51
7160
7160

61.

Charter School Authorization

Charter School Authorization

Charter School Renewal

Charter School Revocation

Local Control And Accountability Plan

Local Control And Accountability Plan

Accountability

Uniform Complaint Procedures

Uniform Complaint Procedures

Uniform Complaint Procedures

Uniform Complaint Procedures

Waivers

State Academic Achievement Tests

State Academic Achievement Tests

Charter School Facilities

Charter School Facilities
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https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=OqOnYF9qxogTDzsQOyqoig==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=Vv7B00SMyPrng9YXgyP6aQ==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=DNWrslshOPplusslshAJVCuKn68Yslsh0Q==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=sSXWjSFtuzlwT6TGeG9v8g==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=OXPZsjHvbL3oOYWkdsGdBA==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=U4slshey4jZ7740ovjPXRdFpg==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=qec3Iw1WslshtHfJqvplusOlraHQ==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=RYxiOFK5nN2LUZW4a1mtoA==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=Lt72smippwYQWgcj9Ykpluscw==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=dplJmkH8UXCJgPsxmvfLNw==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=7uOdhMplus7PbAqDslshYgslshdun2A==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=fOg6Crr4cawfTIdlEeZ7Qw==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=4tVagLqFnUH7UplusEXB5g44g==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=1CCoun1Bnvfcc9MJVDsj8g==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=slshtcvg1S2WZEqM2ioA7nbAQ==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=mva6OqXRAdiOBfWtCzl1MQ==#

TO:

FROM:

DATE:

FOR:

FOR:
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HANFORD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

AGENDA REQUEST FORM

Board of Trustees
Joy C. Gabler

12/14/23

X] Board Meeting
[] Superintendent's Cabinet

[ ] Information
X] Action

Date you wish to have your item considered: 01/24/24

ITEM:

PURPOSE:

Consider for approval the revisions to Board Policy & the approval of NEW Exhibit
= 1113 District and School Websites

The Board Policy is updated to incorporate concepts from NEW LAW (AB 2273, 2022) which,
although not necessarily applicable to districts, requires a business that provides an online
service, product, or feature likely to be accessed by children to comply with specified
requirements and provides good guidance for districts seeking to create a safe online space for
students

New Exhibit reflects NEW LAW (SB 1479, 2022) which requires the district to post on its website its
COVID-19 testing plan, NEW LAW (AB 185, 2022) which requires the district to post on its website
interim expenditure reports on the use of Learning Recovery Emergency Funds and NEW LAW (AB 748,
2022) which requires each school site serving students in any of grades 6-12 to have a digitized mental
health poster that is distributed online to students through social media, web sites, portals, and learning
platforms at the beginning of each school year.

FISCAL IMPACT: None

RECOMMENDATIONS: Approve.



1
Board Policy Ma?'n5ual
Hanford Elementary School District

Policy 1113: District And School Websites Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date: 05/16/2001 | Last Revised Date: 01/09/2019 | Last Reviewed Date:
01/09/2019

To enhance communication with students, parents/guardians, staff, and community
members, the Governing Board-ef Trustees encourages the Superintendent or designee to
develop and maintain district and school web-siteswebsites. The use of district and school
web-siteswebsites shall support the district's vision and goals and shall be coordinated with
other district communications strategies.

Design Standards

The Superintendent or designee shall establish design standards for district and school web
siteswebsites in order to maintain a consistent identity, professional appearance, and ease
of use.

District design standards shall require an evaluation of products, features, and content accessible to
students on district and school websites to prevent access to harmful or potentially harmful
material.

The district's design standards shall address the accessibility of district and school web
siteswebsites to individuals with disabilities, including compatibility with commonly used
assistive technologies.

Web-Site

Website Content

The Superintendent or designee shall develop content guidelines for district and school
web-siteswebsites and assign staff to review and approve content prior to posting.

Board policy pertaining to advertising in district and school publications, as specified in BP
1325 - Advertising and Promotion, shall also apply to advertising on district and school web
Sies

websites.

Privacy Rights
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The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the privacy rights of students,
parents/guardians, staff, Board members, and other individuals are protected on district
and school web-sites.

websites.

Telephone numbers and home and email addresses of students and/or their
parents/guardians shall not be published on district or school web-sites.

iteswebsites.

Photographs of individual students shall not be published on district or school websites
accompanied by the student's name or other personally identifiable information without
the prior written consent of the student's parent/guardian.

END OF OPTION 2

If students' names are not included, photographs of individual students or groups of
students, such as at a school event, may be published on school or district web-sites.

websites.

Employees' home addresses, personal telephone numbers, and personal email addresses
shall not be posted on district or school web-sites:

websites.

The home address or telephone number of any elected or appointed official including, but
not limited to, a Board member or public safety official, shall not be posted on district or
school web-siteswebsites without the prior written permission of that

individual. (Government Code 3307.5, 6254.214.6254.24)

7928.205, 7920.535)

No public safety official shall be required to consent to the posting on the Internet of histherthe
public safety official's photograph or identity as a public safety officer for any purpose if that
officer reasonably believes that the disclosure may result in a threat, harassment, intimidation, or
harm to the officer or his/herthe officer's family. (Government Code 3307.5)

Policy Reference Disclaimer:

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in
the subject matter of the policy.

State Description
Bus. and Prof. Code 22580-22582 Privacy rights for California minors in the digital world

Bus. and Prof. Code 22584-22585 Student Online Personal Information Protection Act



http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=22580.&lawCode=BPC#
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=22584.&lawCode=BPC#

Bus. and Prof. Code 22586-22587
Ed. Code 35182.5

Ed. Code 35258

Ed. Code 48852.6

Ed. Code 48907

Ed. Code 48950

Ed. Code 49061

Ed. Code 49073

Ed. Code 60048

Gov. Code 11135

Gov. Code 12950

Gov. Code 3307.5

Gov. Code 7920.000-7930.170
Pen. Code 14029.5

Pub. Res. Code 21082.1

Federal
16 CFR 312.1-312.13

17 USC 101-122

17 USC 504

20 USC 1232g

29 USC 705

29 USC 794

34 CFR 104.1-104.61
34 CFR 99.1-99.67
42 USC 12101-12213

Management Resources
CA Civil Rights Department Publication

CA Civil Rights Department Publication

CA Civil Rights Department Publication
CA Civil Rights Department Publication
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Early Learning Personal Information Protection Act

Contracts for advertising
Internet access to school accountability report cards
Information regarding homelessness

Exercise of free expression; time, place and manner rules and
regulations

Speech and other communication
Definitions; directory information

Release of directory information
Commercial brand names, contracts or logos
Prohibition of discrimination

California Civil Rights Department posters
Publishing identity of public safety officers
California Public Records Act

Prohibition against publishing personal information of person
in witness protection program

California Environmental Quality Act environmental review
documents

Description
Children's Online Privacy Protection Act

Subject matter and scope of copyright

Penalties for copyright infringement

Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) of 1974
Definitions; Vocational Rehabilitation Act

Rehabilitation Act of 1973; Section 504

Nondiscrimination on the basis of disability

Family Educational Rights and Privacy

Americans with Disabilities Act

Description
Family Care and Medical Leave and Pregnancy Disability
Leave

California Law Prohibits Workplace Discrimination and
Harassment

Transgender Rights in the Workplace
Your Rights and Obligations as a Pregnant Employee


http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=22586.&lawCode=BPC#

Court Decision

Court Decision

U.S. Department of Agriculture
Publication

U.S. Department of Justice Publication

U.S. DOE Office for Civil Rights
Publication

U.S. DOE, Office for Civil Rights
Publication
Website

Website

Website

Website
Website

Website
Website
Website
Website

World Wide Web Consortium
Publication

Cross References

Code
0000

0000
0410

0440
0440
0450
0450

108
Aaris v. Las Virgenes Unified School District, (1998) 64
Cal.App.4th 1112
City of San Jose v. Superior Court, (2017) 2 Cal.5th 608

Unpaid Meal Charges: Local Meal Charge Policies, SP 46-
2016, July 2016

Accessibility of State and Local Government Websites to
People with Disabilities, June 2003

Joint Dear Colleague Letter: Electronic Book Readers, June
29,2010

Dear Colleague Letter, May 26, 2011

CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Governor's Office of Planning and Research, The California
Environmental Quality Act

California Department of Education, Web Accessibility
Standards

California School Public Relations Association

U.S. Department of Justice, Civil Rights Division, Disability
Rights Section

World Wide Web Consortium, Web Accessibility Initiative

CSBA
U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights

California Civil Rights Department
Web Content Accessibility Guidelines, December 2008

Description
VisionVision
i

Nondiscrimination tn District P And
ActivitiesNondiscrimination In District Programs And
Activities

District TechnologyPlanDistrict Technology Plan
District FechnologyPlanDistrict Technology Plan
Comprehensive-Safety PlanComprehensive Safety Plan
Comprehensive-Safety PlanComprehensive Safety Plan



http://www.cde.ca.gov/re/di/ws/webaccessstds.asp#
http://www.cde.ca.gov/re/di/ws/webaccessstds.asp#
http://www.calspra.org/#
http://www.ada.gov/#
http://www.ada.gov/#
http://www.csba.org/#
http://www2.ed.gov/ocr#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=cWaywHDwcaKWWxqthI4V4A==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=Ru5tLg3spaFulEshzkgvuA==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=Ru5tLg3spaFulEshzkgvuA==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=TGB3d9RZOEFIslshac4O9Iibw==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=D3mslshhxiWA66PiLzVQnYPbg==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=cUDRpPGq33oE7TVGVbs7UQ==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=VT1THkIzJRxMabQA5MDekg==#

0460

0460

0500
0510

1100

1112
1114
1114
1312.3

43251312.3

1312.3-E(1)

1312.3-E(2)
1325

1340
1340
3290
3311
3311
3513.3

3513.3
3515
3515
35153
3515.3

3515.7

3516

3516

1
Local Control-And-AccountabilityPlanLocal Control A?r?d
Accountability Plan

Local Control-And-AccountabilityPlanLocal Control And
Accountability Plan

AccountabilityAccountability

School-AccountabilityRepert CardSchool Accountability
Report Card

School bility R Card

Communication- With- The PublicCommunication With The
Public

MediaRelationsMedia Relations

District-Sponsored Social Media

District-Sponsored Social Media

Uniferm-ComplaintProceduresUniform Complaint

Procedures

Advertising-And-PremetionUniform Complaint Procedures

Uniform Complaint Procedures

Uniform Complaint Procedures

Advertising-And-PrometionAdvertising And Promotion
Access ToDistrict RecordsAccess To District Records

Aceess ToDistrict RecordsAccess To District Records
Gifts Grants- And-BeguestsGifts, Grants And Bequests
BidsBids

BidsBids

Fobacco-Free-SchoolsTobacco-Free Schools

TFobacco-Free SchoolsTobacco-Free Schools
Campus-SeeurityCampus Security
Campus-SecurityCampus Security

District Police/Security Department

District Police/Security Department

Firearms On School Grounds

Emergencies And DisasterPreparednessPlanEmergencies

And Disaster Preparedness Plan

Emergencies And DisasterPreparednessPlanEmergencies

And Disaster Preparedness Plan



https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=OXPZsjHvbL3oOYWkdsGdBA==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=OXPZsjHvbL3oOYWkdsGdBA==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=U4slshey4jZ7740ovjPXRdFpg==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=U4slshey4jZ7740ovjPXRdFpg==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=qec3Iw1WslshtHfJqvplusOlraHQ==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=U1kVVSNC96EEOSfrIYIyTg==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=U1kVVSNC96EEOSfrIYIyTg==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=trIGGjpAqsrxnMjOSOpzDg==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=trIGGjpAqsrxnMjOSOpzDg==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=qyLb39HMb7KqmN6OhvKffQ==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=Dvrn70ffLJnlKoEAIbwslshgQ==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=BrVpuDQ1vR9wQ2k98mWEfw==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=RYxiOFK5nN2LUZW4a1mtoA==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=RYxiOFK5nN2LUZW4a1mtoA==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=Lt72smippwYQWgcj9Ykpluscw==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=dplJmkH8UXCJgPsxmvfLNw==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=7uOdhMplus7PbAqDslshYgslshdun2A==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=nURFR7VKPBYci0nafeUugg==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=2qpIHEqzslsh1132kAGO7WVPQ==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=bGGhOHB0N1FnZj9bItmpFw==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=5hnVAXwa15TnxkbM688oqw==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=naJASG3QN23bLSgplusGApeSQ==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=AakKOV5OZ1qckOa7VpwXSA==#
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Board Policy Ma1n10°’al
Hanford Elementary School District

Exhibit 1113-E(1): District And School Websites Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date: Pending

MATERIALS REQUIRED TO BE POSTED ON DISTRICT WEBSITE

Materials to Prominently Display

The following must be posted in a prominent location on the district's website, such as on the home page when
required by law:

1.

10.

The district's local control and accountability plan (LCAP), any updates or revisions to the LCAP, and the local
control funding formula budget overview (Education Code 52064.1, 52065). See AR 0460 - Local Control and
Accountability Plan.

A direct link to the current board agenda containing the time and location of the meeting and a brief general
description of each item of business to be transacted or discussed at the meeting, including items to be
discussed in closed session, or a link to the district's agenda management platform where the current agenda
shall be the first available (Government Code 54954.2, 54956). Post at least 72 hours before a regular board
meeting or 24 hours before a special meeting. See BB 9320 - Meetings and Notices and BB 9322 -
Agenda/Meeting Materials.

The district's policy on student suicide prevention including, for grades K-6, the age appropriateness of the
policy (Education Code 234.6). See BP 5141.52 - Suicide Prevention.

. The district's policies and procedures prohibiting discrimination, harassment, student sexual harassment,

intimidation, bullying, and cyberbullying, including a section on social media bullying that includes all of the
references described in Education Code 234.6 as possible forums for social media (Education Code 234.6).
See AR 5131.2 - Bullying and AR 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment.

. The district's policy on preventing and responding to hate violence, if the district has adopted such a policy

(Education Code 234.6). See BP 5145.9 - Hate-Motivated Behavior.

. The definition of discrimination and harassment based on sex as described in Education Code 230, including

the rights set forth in Education Code 221.8 (Education Code 234.6). See AR 5145.3 -
Nondiscrimination/Harassment.

. Information regarding Title IX prohibitions against discrimination based on a student's sex, gender, gender

identity, pregnancy, and parental status, including the name and contact information of the Title IX
Coordinator, the rights of students and the public as specified in Education Code 221.8, the responsibilities of
the district under Title IX, web links to information about those rights and responsibilities on the websites of
the Office for Equal Opportunity and the U.S. Department of Education's Office for Civil Rights, a description
of how to file a complaint of noncompliance under Title IX with specified components, and a link to Title IX
information posted on the California Department of Education's (CDE) website (Education Code 221.6,
221.61, 234.6; 34 CFR 106.8). See AR 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment and AR 5145.7 - Sexual
Harassment.

A link to statewide CDE-compiled resources, including community-based organizations, that provide support
to youth who have been subjected to school-based discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying and to
their families (Education Code 234.5, 234.6). See AR 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment.

. Posters published by the California Civil Rights Department (CRD) including, "California Law Prohibits

Workplace Discrimination and Harassment," and for districts with five or more employees, "The Rights of
Employees Who Are Transgender or Gender Nonconforming," "Your Rights and Obligations as a Pregnant
Employee," and "Family Care and Medical Leave and Pregnancy Disability Leave" (Government Code 12950).
See AR 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment and AR 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8 - Family Care and Medical
Leave.

If the district has formed a community facilities district (Mello-Roos district) for the acquisition or improvement
of school facilities, a copy of the annual report for the fiscal year if requested pursuant to Government Code
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53343.1, the report provided to the California Debt and Investment Advisory Commission pursuant to
Government Code 53359.5, and the report provided to the State Controller's office pursuant to Government
Code 12463.2 (Government Code 53343.2). Post within seven months after the last day of the fiscal year.
See BP 7212 - Mello-Roos Districts.

Other Postings

The following materials are also required to be posted on the district website. However, there are no specific
requirements related to where they are posted on the website.

1.

10.

11.

12.

The Special Education Local Plan Area's approved comprehensive local plan for special education, annual
budget plan, annual service plan, and annual assurances support plan and any updates or revisions to the plans
(Education Code 56205.5). See AR 0430 - Comprehensive Local Plan for Special Education.

. The district's nondiscrimination policy and regulation, including the complaint procedure and the compliance

coordinator's contact information (34 CFR 100.6, 106.8). See BP 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District
Programs and Activities and AR 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment.

. Training materials used to train the Title IX Coordinator, investigator(s), decisionmaker(s), and any person(s)

who facilitates an informal resolution process in response to a Title IX sexual harassment complaint (34 CFR
106.45). See AR 4119.12/4219.12/4319.12 - Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures and AR
5145.71 - Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures.

. Contact information for the district's liaison(s) for homeless students and other persons as required by

Education Code 48852.6, and information regarding the educational rights and resources available to persons
experiencing homelessness (Education Code 48852.6). See AR 6173 - Education for Homeless Children.

. For all schools offering competitive athletics, the total enrollment of the school classified by gender, the

number of students enrolled at the school who participate in competitive athletics classified by gender, and the
number of boys' and girls' teams classified by sport and by competition level (Education Code 221.9). The
information shall be posted at the end of the school year on the school's website or, if the school does not
have a website, on the district's website. See AR 6145.2 - Athletic Competition.

If the district has interdistrict attendance agreement(s), the procedures and timelines for requesting an
interdistrict transfer permit, including, but not limited to, a link to the board's policy on interdistrict attendance,
the date that the district will begin accepting applications, reasons that the district may approve/deny the
request, the process for appeal, that failure to meet timelines will be deemed an abandonment of the request,
and the condition under which an existing interdistrict transfer permit may be revoked or rescinded (Education
Code 46600.2). See AR 5117 - Interdistrict Transfer.

If the district has elected to be a school district of choice, application information including, at a minimum, any
applicable form, the timeline for a transfer, and an explanation of the selection process (Education Code
48301). See AR 5117 - Interdistrict Transfer.

For districts that offer grade 9, the district's policy and protocols related to student placement in mathematics
courses (Education Code 51224.7). See AR 6152.1 - Placement in Mathematics Courses.

. The section(s) of the district's employee code of conduct addressing interactions with students. These

section(s) or a link to them shall be posted on each school's website or, if a school does not have its own
website, on the district's website in a manner that is accessible to the public without a password. (Education
Code 44050) See BP 4119.21/4219.21/4319.21 - Professional Standards and BP 4119.24/4219.24/4319.24
- Maintaining Appropriate Adult-Student Interactions.

The district's meal payment collection policy and procedures (U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA)
Memorandum SP 46-2016). See BP/AR 3551 - Food Services Operations/Cafeteria Fund.

If the district includes information about the free and reduced-priced meal program on its website, a
nondiscrimination statement about the district's status as an equal opportunity provider and the address of the
agency with responsibility to handle complaints made against the district (USDA FNS Instruction 113-1). For
the required wording of the statement, see E(1) 3555 - Nutrition Program Compliance.

The school's or district's integrated pest management plan, whenever a school chooses to use a pesticide not
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exempted pursuant to Education Code 17610.5 The plan shall be posted on the school's website or, if the
school does not have a website, then on the district's website. (Education Code 17611.5) See AR 3514.2
Integrated Pest Management.

When the California Environmental Quality Act requires an environmental impact report, negative declaration,
or mitigated negative declaration, those environmental review documents, public notice of the preparation and
availability of such documents within a reasonable period of time prior to certification of the environmental
impact report, adoption of a negative declaration, or determination that a proposed subsequent project will
have no additional significant effect on the environment, and specified notices when written requests for
notices have been filed (Public Resources Code 21082.1, 21092, 21092.2).

When a citizens' oversight committee is formed after the approval of a bond under the 55 percent majority
threshold, the committee's minutes, documents received, and reports issued (Education Code 15280). See AR
7214 - General Obligation Bonds.

Copy of each school's school accountability report card, on or before February 1 of each year (Education Code
35258). See BP 0510 - School Accountability Report Card.

Results of the Western Association of Schools and Colleges (WASC) or other accrediting agency's inspection of
a school, within 60 days of receiving the results. (This notification could be made in writing to
parents/guardians instead of or in addition to posting the results on the district's website.) In addition, if a
school loses its WASC or other agency's accreditation, the district and school shall post on their websites a
notice of the loss of accreditation and potential consequences (Education Code 35178.4). See BP 6190 -
Evaluation of the Instructional Program.

The district's COVID-19 testing plan (Education Code 32096).

Using the template developed by CDE, the use of Learning Recovery Emergency Funds, with interim reports
posted by December 1, 2024 and December 1, 2027, and a final report by December 1, 2029. (Education
Code 32526)

An age appropriate and culturally relevant digitized poster that identifies approaches and shares resources
about student mental health, distributed to students online at the beginning of each school year. (Education
Code 49428.5)
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HANFORD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

AGENDA REQUEST FORM

Board of Trustees
Joy C. Gabler

12/14/23

X Board Meeting
[] Superintendent's Cabinet

[ ] Information
X] Action

Date you wish to have your item considered: 01/24/24

ITEM:

PURPOSE:

Consider for approval the revisions to Board Policy & Exhibit
= 5145.6 Parent/Guardian Notifications
The Board Policy has a minor revison.

The Exhibit is updated to add parent/guardian notifications related to California's child access
prevention laws and laws related to the safe storage of firearms, how to access mental health
services at school and/or in the community, the online distribution of a digitized mental health
poster, type 1 diabetes information, the opportunity to submit written comments on the local
control and accountability plan, student's participation in state assessments and option to request
an exemption from testing, information related to the district's food service programs, upcoming
eye examinations at school site and option to opt-out of eye examinations, potential eligibility for
services or accommodations pursuant to Section 504 or an individualized education program, the
provision of a suspension and expulsion notice, manifestation determination notice, involuntary
transfer notice, and related information to a foster youth's educational rights holder, attorney, and
county social worker, and an Indian child's tribal social worker and, if applicable, county social
worker, findings from an evaluation of participating in an independent study course when
satisfactory education progress is not being met, requirement to stock and make available an
adequate supply of menstrual products free of cost.

FISCAL IMPACT: None

RECOMMENDATIONS: Approve.



Board Policy Ma1n1u7al
Hanford Elementary School District

Policy 5145.6: Parent/Guardian Notifications Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date: 05/16/2001 | Last Revised Date: 09/25/2019 | Last Reviewed Date: 09/25/2019

The Beard-of Trustees—Governing Board desires to promote effective communication between the school and the
home and to keep parents/guardians informed regarding educational programs, school operations, and the legal
rights of students and their parents/guardians. The Superintendent or designee shall send parents/guardians all
notifications required by law and any other notifications the Superintendent or designee believes will promote
parental understanding and involvement.

Notice of the rights and responsibilities of parents/guardians as specified in Education Code 48980 shall be sent at
the beginning of each academic year and may be provided by regular mail, in electronic form when so requested by
the parent/guardian, or by any other method normally used by the district for written communication with
parents/guardians. (Education Code 48981)

No activity specified in Education Code 48980 shall be undertaken with respect to any particular student unless the
student's parent/guardian has been informed of such action through the annual notification or other separate special
notification. Such notice shall state the activity that will be undertaken and the approximate date on which the
activity will occur. (Education Code 48983-48984)

The annual notification shall include a request that the parent/guardian sign the notice and return it to the school or,
if the notice is provided in electronic format, that the parent/guardian submit a signed acknowledgment of receipt of
the notice to the school. The parent/guardian's signature is an acknowledgment of receipt of the information but
does not indicate that consent to participate in any particular program has been given or withheld. (Education Code
48982)

Whenever a student enrolls in a district school during the school year, the student's parents/guardians shall be given
all required parental notifications at that time.

Notifications shall be presented in an understandable and uniform format and, to the extent practicable, in a
language that parents/guardians can understand.

When necessary, the district shall provide notifications to qualified individuals with disabilities in alternative formats,
such as braille, large front, or audio recordings, to enable such individuals to effectively participate in any program,
service, or activity, as required by law.

Whenever 15 percent or more of the students enrolled in a district school speak a single primary language other than
English, as determined from the California Department of Education census data collected pursuant to Education
Code 52164, all notices sent to the parent/guardian of any such student shall, in addition to being written in English,
be written in the primary language, and may be responded to either in English or the primary language. (Education
Code 48981, 48985)

Whenever an employee learns that a student's parent/guardian is unable to understand the district's printed
notifications for any reason, the employee shall inform the principal or designee, who shall work with the
parent/guardian to establish other appropriate means of communication.

Policy Reference Disclaimer:These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the

policy.

State References Description

Hearing tests -

17 CCR 2950-2951 https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/MedMEQQOCedro066RKeINDw==

School attendance immunization requirements -

17 CCR 6000-6075 https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/YzfyALHtH25cYebUH5ax1Q==
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Child care licensing; parent/guardian rights -

22CCrR101218.1 https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/VEQ6dXCJt3negQoWI3HplusEA==

5 CCR 11303 Reclassification of English learners

5CCR 115115 English language proficiency assessment; test results

5CCR 11523 Notice of proficiency examinations

5CCR 17782 Notice of Action; application for services

5CCR 17783 Notice of Action; recipient of services

5 CCR 18066 Child care policies regarding excused and unexcused absences
5 CCR 18094-18095 Notice of Action; child care services

5CCR 18114 Notice of delinquent fees; child care services

5CCR 18118-18119 Notice of Action; child care services

5 CCR 3052 Behavioral intervention

5 CCR 4622 Uniform complaint procedures

5 CCR 4631 Uniform complaint procedures; notification of decision and right to appeal
5 CCR 4917 Notification of sexual harassment policy

5CCR 852 Exemptions from state assessments

5 CCR 863 Reports of state assessment results

Civ. Code 1798.29

Building standards for university campuses -

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/gbcuOrA3fPPuYXdHu415LQ==

Ed. Code 17288

Notification of pesticide use -

Ed. Code 17612 https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/H5tr2slixUTvYokVNC15GA==

Equal opportunity -
I ./ /simbli.el | . SU/Lu2WCOL 1Zi8CtREOBZWA==
Sexual harassment policy -

httos: board SU/xcANSiZBILAIHeKel 3dg==

Student protections relating to discrimination, harassment, intimidation, and
Ed. Code 234.1 bullying -

. ) JSKEXITOISIZ kA==

Student protections relating to immigration and citizenship status -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/tYFg7Zw8Ckhuee1bkSS3cQ==

Ed. Code 221.5

Ed. Code 231.5

Ed. Code 234.7

Appeals for discrimination complaints; information regarding availability of civil
Ed. Code 262.3 remedies -

httos: Leboardsoluti SU/pSBfAotE7mOLVnenK CM vz

Language acquisition programs -

Ed. Code 310 https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com dblZSwocKmh3e 9VbOH

Reclassification of English learners; parental consultation -

https{ (s mb ebgatdsg utions.com/SU/o0oK pl sHE yr Zkf Zgégﬁ ZbE A==

Long-term English learner; notification -

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/yUm1umUicA7ZFQNDs6iq22g==

Insurance for athletic team members -
h ://simbli.e rdsolutions.com f2slshovMTd92Y50vZ00xaoWgg==

Ed. Code 313
Ed. Code 313.2

Ed. Code 32221.5

Student's right to refrain from harmful or destructive use of animals -

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/IQawFgMXDozYGjGrWeYélw==

Voluntary program for fingerprinting students -

Ed. Code 32255-32255.6

Ed. Code 32390
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Code 33479-33479.9

Code 33479.3

Code 35160.5

Code 35178.4

Code 35182.5

Code 35183

Code 35186

Code 35211

Code 35256

Code 35258

Code 35291

Code 35292.6

Code 37616

Code 39831.5

Code 440

Code 44050

Code 44808.5

Code 46010.1

Code 46014

Code 46162

Code 46600-46611

Code 48000

Code 48070.5

Code 48204

Code 48205

The Eric Parades Sudden Cardiac Arrest Prevention Act -

httos: board SU/ALIOSIERGX1Naiicm)Dna0==

The Eric Paredes Sudden Cardiac Arrest Prevention Act -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com 2SVBFhvw5zRpJAgFDIIFGA==

Extracurricular and cocurricular activities -

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/T5wvD8YODaGaQmMjFQ7XplusQ==

Advertising in the classroom -
https://simbli rdsolutions.com 1Cx80TDY AWpl Ik

School dress code; uniforms -

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/xIbtfDOKOoWPrKé4mIWYlw==

Complaints concerning deficiencies in instructional materials and facilities -

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/MDiv2vFgYgd1u6vWMYFnhA==

Driver training; district insurance, parent/guardian liability -
h ://simbli rdsolution m iXYNkKYEdzGRmkSh

School Accountability Report Card -

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/ckslsh7sIshLSGFmf4TUplusHcm1yiw==

School Accountability Report Card -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/XpBEzfkV16CA5mkOf4jdmw==

Rules for student discipline -
h ://simbli rdsolution m 9APACQz6J0xxobjAYbTYaQ==

School maintenance

Consultation regarding year-round schedule -

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/b8srVmtxJ9IL spkF1JrplusGQ==

School bus rider rules and information -

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/QnyslshL GAJplusWLFXwvWILN683A==

English language proficiency assessment; instruction in English language
development -

Employee code of conduct; interaction with students -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/PNtpd4THa36YECTORI1Zplusg==

Permission to leave school grounds -

https{{s mb Qan[dSQ utions.com/S ”k'ﬁ ZKgE1 21GVuUN bp usnl Sp sldg !::

Notice regarding excuse to obtain confidential medical services -

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/27EFMP4mEcC1185LfClfng==

Regulations regarding absences for religious purposes -

h ://simbli.e rdsolutions.com lusHk97c4wXskPLblzHR ==

Alternative schedule for junior high and high school; public hearing with notice

Interdistrict attendance agreements

Minimum age of admission -

https //s mb ﬁan[dSQ utions.com/S l{dHQ Js ShkSZBQiYX! lpl 1S ZHéslshg==

Promotion and retention of students -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/j

Residency requirements -

httos:/ boardsoluti SU/Hai3DBOIZITRBAsIsh7hY Fe==

Absence for personal reasons -

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/q54m51wGgW5HWX0taUIDKQ==
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Code 48207-48208

Code 48213

Code 48216

Code 48260.5
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Code 48263
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Code 48412
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Code 48432.5

Code 48850-48859

Code 48900.1

Code 48904
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Code 48912

Code 48915.1

Code 48916

Code 48918

Code 48929

Code 48980

Code 48980.3
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Students with temporary disabilities; individual instruction; definitions -

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/1YYUZQCk5PABplusZ0438yZog==

Students with temporary disabilities in hospitals -
h ://simbli.eboardsolutions.com ijHokUwlld1pl

Prior notice of exclusion from attendance -

Immunization and exclusion from attendance -

httos: board SU/SUBMaabBvAYiKislshiro6Hiw==

Notice regarding truancy -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/iAkpl8x3fk4LYslshY4Jr5ylA==

Need for parent conference regarding truancy -

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/Nb6IcINESTRMpluscJplusnRh4JQ==

Referral to school attendance review board or probation department -

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/slshilfOmiArPhnlnsish25cF5TA==

Interdistrict transfers -

h ://simbli.e

Certificate of proficiency -

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/FIxNsP3ltxen50COtj2cpQ==

Voluntary enrollment in continuation education -

Involuntary transfers of students -
h ://simbli rdsolution m 40yhsW73WA4SUwhAXLr2wKg==

Education of foster youth and homeless students -

Parental attendance required after suspension -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/ppXZZ79dBxgZDozIrSBvwA==

Liability of parent/guardian for willful student misconduct -
h ://simbli rdsolution m H hfesnOelY8nP1JfrA==

Withholding grades, diplomas, or transcripts -
| ./ /simbliel | . SU/dt5KNURSLEROQ C20bRIQ==

Notification of release of student to peace officer -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/3el5NLF75M895DZVS385Gw==

Notification in case of suspension -

h ://simbli rdsolution m BfnOloBt4MQ1HQDZpluskpw==

Assignment to supervised suspension classroom -

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/slshmgxQGX5IPc2péslshhvZOWL w==

Closed sessions; consideration of suspension -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/IOLpMiSqgCXkhplus1ZCWJDmQOw==

Expelled students; enrollment in another district -

Readmission procedures -

https //s mb ean[dsQ utions.com/S l{yiﬁléz!Q{Sm{ !Hlxkg ¥k| islsh VA==

Rules governing expulsion procedures -

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com 9M9d5hNMEOALE3008bQMw==

Transfer of student convicted of violent felony or misdemeanor -

Parent/Guardian notifications -

https:/ boardsoluti /SU/cpMSBKX LtOWUIWeEWSKp5e==

Notificat

ion of pesticide use -
h L .

imbli.e rdsolutions.
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Code 48981

Code 48982

Code 48983

Code 48984

Code 48985

Code 48986
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Code 49063

Code 49067

Code 49068

Code 49069.7

Code 49070

Code 49073

Code 49073.6

Code 49076

Code 49077

Code 49392

Code 49403

Code 49423

Code 49451

Code 49452.5

Code 49452.6

Code 49452.7

Code 49452.8

Code 49455.5

Code 49456
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Time and means of notification -

//simbli.eboardsolufi /SU/iPy510h0PesGlwUlaY zhEw==

Parent signature acknowledging receipt of notice -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com FkeUZjRYaldAgHU9ZrkM

Contents of notice -

https://simbli.eboardsoluti /SU/5LMeDn4zaOdaNxEDreyWRA==

Act|V|t|es prohlblted unless notice given -

Notices to parents in language other than English -

I ./ /simbli.el | - SU/LHS9veOURYaZ6W 1, InA==
Safe storage of firearms

Child abuse information -

https: //simbli.eboardsoluti /SU/5UmcAhnfEiwGplusil2ym3vxQ==

Use of uniform complaint procedures for complaints regarding student fees -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/b2wadA023IL35ATIsIshnzé6plusQ==

Notification of parental rights -
https://simbli rdsolution m 14tGB6C2EColTJhoGHAg==

Student evaluation; student in danger of failing course -

httos://simbli.eboardsoluti SU/4iKobWEUxdplusOXolusVINDMY Ug==

Transfer of permanent enrollment and scholarship record -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/kByPIsIshWIM7HSt5TC9PwgEA==

Absolute right to access -

Challenging content of student record -

httos://<imbli.eboardsolui SU/7EoEeG7fDCRO4AKIXGAK A=z

Release of directory information -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com YMNtgKuflpsO3LRpEQNTr

Student records; social media -

https//simbli.choardsoluti SU/36EGABA4SNA5YQ X68g==

Access to student records -

httos/ /simbli.eboardsoluti /SU/E2f6VEvemORmMoUCENICslsh3w==

Access to information concerning a student in compliance with court order -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com WfuS7dcrexWBJegSxON

Threats of homicide at school

Cooperation in control of communicable disease and immunizations -

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/OExPQ4Liy9FdPsXolLevxCw==

Administration of prescribed medication for student -

httos://<imbli.eboardsoluti U/ 12CAZACK abOLWIZoX A==

Phy5|cal examlnatlons parent s refusal to consent -

Screening for scoliosis -

I ./ /simbli.el | . SU/sLRI2VWyeTUiVnOf4 _
Type 1 diabetes informational materials

Information on type 2 diabetes -

httos://simbli.eboardsoluti SU/CavtladG3ImUJhefOimbA==

Oral health assessment -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/3hPVTIPI3EnUgy244aqYrw==

Eye examination for purpose of eyeglasses

Results of vision or hearing test -
https://simbli rdsolution m Ygq6DuPcWONMaXryOIHgsg==
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Code 51749.5
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Code 54444.2

Code 56301

Code 56321

Code 56321.5-56321.6

Code 56329

Code 56341.1
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Insurance -

) Jsimbli.eboardsoluti /SU/ATMOVXHUGQMPhM761WS6hw==

Student athletes; concussions and head injuries -
h ://simbli.eboardsolutions.com vGoX K29rTTmRJ2IPUn

Student athletes; opioid fact sheet -
I ./ /simbli.el | . SU/N2L3SRWHW14 Mo5Sg==

Continuing medication regimen for nonepisodic conditions -

I ./ /simbli.el | > /SU/leJlhkM7ZInFbQS1Eb6UI7A==
Duffy-Moscone Family Nutrition Education and Services Act of 1970 -

h ://simbli rdsolutions.com nO2tPwhV6R7VrwAO1CNnvw==

Child Hunger Prevention and Fair Treatment Act of 2017; notice of negative
balance in meal account -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/66T7et3SyxZVSBKJkpbTcQ==

Exemption from district graduation requirements -

httos://simbli.ehoardsoluti SU/xvK ThDAZpaPeZnsB3lA==

Course credits -

httos://simbli.eboardsoluti /SU/MKGQ9ikA3dpQO2NplusoDChaQ==

High school graduation requirements -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/WNFAVVgiWviwBeCknCeQnw==

Graduation from high school; exemption for eligible students with special needs

Completion and submission of FAFSA and CADAA -
h ://simbli rdsolution m YZ8MGTHbpluszliInHL3bDmA==

Course of study for grades 7-12 -

Personal beliefs; privacy -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/yeslshfEeHWG9yYR9UyifdDIQ==

Independent study
HIV/AIDS and sexual health instruction -
h ://simbli rdsolution m vb9KeAJgKrniAgHciuQ==

Local control and accountability plans and the statewide system of support

Language census -

httpe:/ /simbli.eboardsoluti SU/m7vpR7RmWiSnzSBPSOAPbw==

Census-taking methods; determination of primary language; assessment of
language skills -

https://simbli rdsolutions.com hpl fUD1bITZNgslsh

Child-find system; policies regarding written notification rights -

https://simblL.eboardsoluti SU/bUNLV1i7TDIuUAL OVepxle==

Special education: proposed assessment plan -

httos://simbli.eboardsoluti SU/ ML fRATwIVhdNI LfolusifSew=-=

Notice of parent rights pertaining to special education -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/b3IvTthblekYwZQ2Jul9rw==

Written notice of right to findings; independent assessment -

https://simbli.eboardsoluti SU/plusY GChokEUSOGnZ fhORK Hew==

Development of individualized education program; right to audio record
meeting -

https://simbli




Ed. Code 56341.5

Ed. Code 56343.5

Ed. Code 56521.1

Ed. Code 58501

Ed. Code 60615

Ed. Code 60641

Ed. Code 69432.9

Ed. Code 8212

Ed. Code 8483

Ed. Code 8489

Ed. Code 8489.1

H&S Code 104420

H&S Code 104855

H&S Code 116277
H&S Code 120365-120375

H&S Code 120440

H&S Code 124100-124105
H&S Code 1596.8555

H&S Code 1596.857

H&S Code 1597.16

Pen. Code 626.81

Pen. Code 627.5

W&l Code 10228

Federal References
20 USC 1232g

20 USC 1232h

20 USC 1415

20 USC 6311
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Individualized education program team meetings -

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/Iwj4HhPnHzrDbyenrwOgUg==

Individualized education program meetings -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com WIR4anhxOslshMsxd924hRnBCA==

Behavioral intervention -
Alternative schools; notice required prior to establishment -
I //simbliel | . SU MNL2AY1fASDOWePk2lw==

Exemption from state assessment -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/RslshV8slshaOozHgijgAH1KmRt5g==

California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress -

Submission of grade point average to Cal Grant program -

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/qt4qMG6UHjyKJg8nnwmRLQ==

Complaints related to preschool health and safety issues -
h ://simbli.eboardsolutions.com MLLdtFmslshd1Vgy4GjOAchlg==

Before/after school program; enrollment priorities -

https:/ board SU/mKOPEbpluseV TdEIHaiPIR3IO==

Expulsion and suspension procedures in childcare and development services
programs

Expulsion and suspension procedures in childcare and development services
programs

Tobacco use prevention -

Availability of topical fluoride treatment -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/7DGsz1ZPslshd1RFOPwrKb1fQ==

Lead testing of potable water at schools and requirements to remedy
Immunizations

Sharing immunization information -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/Ip3fbcUW5yWRImpq770Ucg==

Health screening and immunizations -

Administration of child day care licensing; posting license

Right to enter child care facility -
I ./ /simbli.el | . SU/nB FimID3uzJuHslshWPPK5Lw==

Licensed child care centers; lead testing -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/slshtBCplus4OuK8efzNWIkFhn5g==

Notice of permission granted to sex offender to volunteer on campus -
h ://simbli rdsolution m WFIN8fmmYdismT92slshzZOWHgA==

Hearing request following denial or revocation of registration -

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/14nZL z180icC9GRC8xJ5AA==

Child care providers; posting of rates, discounts, and scholarships

Description

Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) of 1974
Privacy rights

Procedural safeguards

State plan



20 USC 6312
20 USC 6318

20 USC 7704

20 USC 7908
34 CFR 104.32
34 CFR 104.36
34 CFR 104.8
34 CFR 106.9
34 CFR 200.48
34 CFR 222.94
34 CFR 300.300
34 CFR 300.322
34 CFR 300.502

34 CFR 300.503

34 CFR 300.504
34 CFR 300.508
34 CFR 300.530
34 CFR 99.30
34 CFR 99.34
34 CFR 99.37
34 CFR 99.7

40 CFR 763.84
40 CFR 763.93

42 USC 11431-11435

42 USC 1758
7 CFR 245.5
7 CFR 245.6a

Management Resources References

U.S. Department of Agriculture Publication

Website

Website

Cross References

0410

0450

0450
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Local educational agency plan
Parent and family engagement

Impact Aid; policies and procedures related to children residing on Indian
lands

Armed forces recruiter access to students

District responsibility to provide free appropriate public education
Procedural safeguards

Nondiscrimination

Severability

Teacher qualifications

Impact Aid; district responsibilities

Parent consent for special education evaluation

Parent participation in IEP team meetings

Independent educational evaluation of student with disability

Prior written notice regarding identification, evaluation, or placement of
student with disability

Procedural safeguards notice for students with disabilities
Due process complaint

Discipline procedures

Disclosure of personally identifiable information

Student records; disclosure to other educational agencies
Disclosure of directory information

Student records; annual notification

Asbestos inspections, response actions and post-response actions
Asbestos management plans

McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act

Child nutrition programs

Eligibility criteria for free and reduced-price meals

Verification of eligibility for free and reduced-price meals

Description

Civil Rights Compliance and Enforcement -- Nutrition Programs and
Services, FNS Instruction 113-1, 2005

CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services -

h ://simbli rdsolution m kszdmPETuDsIshXké6R5akQ==

U.S. Department of Agriculture, Food and Nutrition Service -

h ://simbli rdsolution m Wry6HD6BSTBkfn7BaplusR7BQ==
Description

Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/3VSrIVykcPzZYgHRBOP47hQ=

Comprehensive Safety Plan -
h ://simbli rdsolution m zGxfGZImYxZ2plus|TKItYg==

Comprehensive Safety Plan -

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/bYIEbbqRGFNpClvg3eplusHkA==



0460

0460

0510

0510

1240

1240

1312.3

3260

3260

3312

3513.3

3513.3

3514

3514

3514.2

3515.5

3515.5

3517

3517

3543

3550

3550

3551

3551

3553
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Local Control And Accountability Plan -
//simbli luti SU/EIAIVOX IShNUCBK6IS20==

Local Control And Accountability Plan -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/V0sTeCEom38Kd7THRyKOaA==

School Accountability Report Card -

-/ /simbli luti SU/M1xz0HofLyefuBnTIZDAMw==
School Accountability Report Card -

-/ /simbli luti SU/TdsL8KYdiriOaVacir8 .

Volunteer Assistance -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com T01z8GOXX5MJ697mbéfoxw==

Volunteer Assistance -

./ /simbli luti St . EOZi OKVE 5me==
Uniform Complaint Procedures -

./ /simbli luti SU/hS571L2uZ Haslst M5GOWoXQ==

Fees And Charges -
h ://simbli. rdsolutions.com 7ZPab4GEsJVwtslshdfpluscvrTw==

Fees And Charges -

Contracts - https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/RNHr2Q500ZTnhndl0zLI0Q==

Tobacco-Free Schools -

//simbli luti SU/ilaZtn3TOHALI9OVU WxZA==
Tobacco-Free Schools -
h ://simbli.eboardsolutions.com 92td55plusyogcDUgDMsé6pHrQ==
Environmental Safety -

//simbli luti SU/SJYXK5Z Sk7wCslshros O==
Environmental Safety -

//simbli luti SU/Erz] OIYWXVZEON7Enw==
Integrated Pest Management -
h ://simbli. rdsolutions.com mYQTyrzHgZ5QL wuXQHQ2UA==
Sex Offender Notification -

./ /simbli luti SU/JKyxiZIEUgVYobE 1UoUyg==
Sex Offender Notification -
Facilities Inspection -
h ://simbli rdsolution m lzwzSgc9293s9svhzwckjFQ==
Facilities Inspection -

//simbli luti SU/tVKAYZeJiGraxXZluplusigUg==
Transportation Safety And Emergencies -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/A5FYFedXtDkdPXoNJ1TDKw==

Food Service/Child Nutrition Program -
h ://simbli rdsolution m XTEé6geZlolihplusLrIR4om5g==

Food Service/Child Nutrition Program -

./ /simbli luti SU/OCNsoXEapPlYfsetiGzz0A==
Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/8EdMsXeX8Mny0OPgxRDsIshRZg==

Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund -
https://simbli rdsolution m | LjaRLYplusk3DbM41yfqg==

Free And Reduced Price Meals -

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/1tCH1AgqKOnvA6k8YplvXg==



3553

3553-E PDF(2)

3555

3555-E(1)

3580

3580

4112.2
4112.2

4219.21

4219.21-E PDF(1)

4222

4222

4319.21

4319.21-E PDF(1)

5000

5020

5020

5022

5022

5030

5111

5111

51111

51111

5112.2

5112.5
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Free And Reduced Price Meals -

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/MslshBalyxXGwshJKJPSplusa2cw==

Free And Reduced Price Meals -
h ://simbli.eboardsolutions.com VplusoZ1FEPcO9%fl1abpbAEw==

Nutrition Program Compliance -

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/3b5SBgFgslshFhjtelKslshmWIWQ==
Nutrition Program Compliance -

District Records -

https://simbli.

District Records -

7 /simbli luti SU/UEN2L92HsaF 5Ixslq9s0Qg==

Certification -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/gCHALFkChhLXAAaplusl gwg5A==

Certification - https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/IXEDeuQYqHTyCX7zjlLL 2g==

Professional Standards -
h ://simbli.eboardsolutions.com kth2IHycrnm4XtRvkOA ==

Professional Standards -

- /simbli luti SU/wuCO9ebS4cy7WOE9 lusléw==

Teacher Aides/Paraprofessionals -

-/ /simbl | SU/ca82the2PUii0c7HA806nw==

Teacher Aides/Paraprofessionals -
h ://simbli. rdsolution m 7rVSayzOfVWBRYyIplusVsi6WQ==

Professional Standards -

Professional Standards -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/wXeptAWJCFdOrhBslIAPA4g==

Concepts And Roles -
h ://simbli rdsolution m R E3ivMplusrbVI ==

Parent Rights And Responsibilities -
-/ /simbli lut] SU/i40XLJfncBoh3vil DhPtRQ==

Parent Rights And Responsibilities -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/Bevvp5klbFxUK7MhS3JIVQ==

Student And Family Privacy Rights -
h ://simbli rdsolution m R4sZx [shw6MK7TYKSZw==

Student And Family Privacy Rights -

Student Wellness -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/5TmJ3aKnkplusbicdl1zZWhN2g==

Admission -

>/ /simbli luti S MkUWiTSETenl ESADw==

Admission -

District Residency -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com r2fetpluso8QiaPVQpvnswbslsh

District Residency -

Exclusions From Attendance -
-/ /simbli luti SU/Ax4ein8OArhIPU20ZHDGFA==

Open/Closed Campus -
h ://simbli. rd




5113

5113

5113.1

51131

5116.1

5116.1

5116.2

5117

5117

5119

5123

5123

5123-E PDF(1)

5125

5125

5125.1

5125.1

5125.1-E PDF(1)

5125.2

5125.3

5132

5132

5141.21

5141.21

5141.3

Absences And Excuses -

-/ Jeimbli uti SU/wUud9plus8Hpk3cClv5rflS —

Absences And Excuses -
h ://simbli.eboardsolutions.com MVxVvQOKY3en WW5slsh ==

Chronic Absence And Truancy -

-/ /simbli luti SU /Uil OKnmVISHUSXhndérulw==

Chronic Absence And Truancy -

-/ /simbli luti SU/khZ2EQ3eSnil8xVd8uwUiw==

Intradistrict Open Enrollment -
h ://simbli. rdsolution m T xW7MGK 7cXQ==

Intradistrict Open Enrollment -

-/ Jsimbli luti SU/2L fmkulX2Y]BGyD5plusgh3AQ==

Involuntary Student Transfers -

Interdistrict Attendance -
h ://simbli rdsolution m lusvS1gmoCzBndXxk3uR87jA==

Interdistrict Attendance -

-/ /simbli luti S Pp3ZbvOHLCZOméu7 Q==

Students Expelled From Other Districts -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/L1ep8rAOmJplusR3fiDNmIVUA==

Promotion/Acceleration/Retention -

https://simbli rdsolutions.com xVplusslshfewR0O4kfWplusli52TGVA==

Promotion/Acceleration/Retention -

-/ /simbli luti SU/TKevTRExL Gkslsh7 ThEzw==

Promotion/Acceleration/Retention - Promotion Acceleration Retention -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/j2GdzEué6TsIshA78hbXrHU7DQ==

Student Records -
./ /simbli luti SU/OES5IhBIYdYoxVZQUIKAZQ==

Student Records -

Release Of D|rectory Informatlon -

Release Of Directory Information -
./ /simbli luti SU/OEYx72307 30XMiJxuT9b50 ==
Release Of Directory Information -

- Jsimbli luti SU/5DslshUpgO0IUdjerg0zt2xuQ==

Withholding Grades, Diploma Or Transcripts -
h ://simbli. rdsolutions.com WHUSsE2MS8i rAKtylslshgDw==

Challenging Student Records -
//eimbli luti SU/TIMzzBhn3 S hDxGxkeg==
Dress And Grooming -

-/ /simbli luti /SU/JcQplusMJpLy4bEN4nHSRY zmA==

Dress And Grooming -

h ://simbli rdsolution m IshHmr3BL6VMxtsbViw==

Administering Medication And Monitoring Health Conditions -

Administering Medication And Monitoring Health Conditions -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/viehXFbnYxtUolafuJSW.

Health Examinations -
h ://simbli rdsolution m xIKcFplusws4TSLwslshUAFy4g==
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5141.3

5141.31

5141.31

5141.32

5141.6

5141.6

5142.1

5143
5143

5144

5144

5144.1

51441

5144.2

5144.4

5144.4

5145.12

5145.12

5145.3

5145.3

5145.7

5145.7

5145.8

5145.8

5146

5148
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Health Examinations -

-/ Jsimbli luti SU/EfmYbEsObinBSHIE0OXzO==

Immunlzatlons -

Health Screening For School Entry -
h ://simbli rdsolution m Vm Yp4uvolEHyuVM

School Health Services -

-/ /simbli luti SU/CHAM3 Ishplus1pdGuhlEIMEYMO==
School Health Services -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/74pgmzgub4INzOH7Yrmkig==

Identification And Reporting Of Missing Children -
./ /simbli uti SU/cGU27plus] 1GiZr6UeyA==

Insurance - h ://simbli rdsolution m 9slkCaTIF8z
Insurance - h
Discipline -
-/ /simbli luti SU/ZAwcOvWy377EKA2 C86fQ==
Discipline -

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/Xb8plusAlsNC8hf6fz2vG9E4w==

Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process -
h ://simbli rdsolution m DFWKslIshRfaYM7mk14wYslshw==

Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process -

-/ Jsimbli luti SU/faT2mPgqZ7hNQifa2l QNvw==

Suspen5|on And ExpuI5|on/Due Process (Students With Dlsabllltles)

Required Parental Attendance -
h ://simbli rdsolution m DGpEZKvzzOYkMjsD7Q==

Required Parental Attendance -

./ /simbli luti SU/iaKilimRHWCUNGIolusO hOA==
Search And Seizure -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/EcFwwKD9MjSQl 7aaXyklL 8g==

Search And Seizure -

-/ /simbli luti SU/slshe6D8UUP6xyWTwav8at2ag==

Nond|scr|m|nat|on/Harassment -

Nondiscrimination/Harassment -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/NBGtMyWIL 8EzVpluszUKP6isVg==

Sexual Harassment -

Sexual Harassment -

-/ /simbli luti SU/IE29C 4 ALbEEELyxKRCA==

Refusal To Harm Or Destroy Animals -

Refusal To Harm Or Destroy Animals -

- /simbli uti SU/4CKcAsyZWKGWCTKoYOwWY Pe==

Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students -

Child Care And Development -
h ://simbli rdsolution m IShELIZI?DPhpoNNdW w==



5148

5148.2

5148.2

6020

6020

6111

6111

6112

6112

6142.1

6142.1

6142.8

6143

6143

6145.2

6145.2

6154

6158

6158

6159

6159

6159.1

6159.1

6159.4

6162.51
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Child Care And Development -
//simbli luti SU/75l2eTslshOha0Xax1wNi .

Before/After School Programs -
h ://simbli.eboardsolutions.com vQKFJLKNIY6MOdwuslshxj2pg==

Before/After School Programs -

https{(s mbl ﬁan[dSQI itions.com [S[ /DW 648( itnqaCMEh J7( 2 ékh{ g==

Parent Involvement -

./ /simbl luti SU/WEmGImDZBASSWUESh8nVzQ==

Parent Involvement -
h ://simbli. rdsolution m L40n5c2BdhXNcOX NHow==

School Calendar -

-/ /eimbli luti SU/JQswQZncOiLXNIVScld)ZQ==

School Calendar -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/9KOXcHhPDZLYbn2MI6tQwA==

School Day -
h ://simbli rdsolution m v EJ3bFvnPOW5WXTA==

School Day -

Sexual Health And HIV/AIDS Prevention Instruction -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/N3Jr06F9pmsU5xKplusF7CcWg==

Sexual Health And HIV/AIDS Prevention Instruction -
h ://simbli rdsolution m 9gZwHh lusk APnwWMWux8tw==

Comprehensive Health Education -

Courses Of Study -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/T2kktOaVIQx4plusrHgfK7plus8g==

Courses Of Study -
./ /simbli luti SU/YIEKSIW 1wVyluAeiaf8Cww==

Athletic Competition -

Athletic Competition -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com e9QuVkBCflcPOLhyjKO4sIshw==

Homework/Makeup Work -
//simbli luti SU/slshKeYsl EHPmM50GVXT?2 HdO==
Independent Study -
./ /simbli luti SU/OAIIHOL I7RAKKVGO 7Y Qfya==
Independent Study -
h ://simbli. rdsolutions.com mJMEt3wFI6Nx6hb1KkZ ==

Individualized Education Program -

Individualized Education Program -

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/MKBKsrF1rpqOgkzI21wbWA==

Procedural Safeguards And Complaints For Special Education -
h ://simbli rdsolution m 1SvYmGXjPOn0O82ylLaswdWA==

Procedural Safeguards And Complaints For Special Education -

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/D8TYoHklzbOE5hmslshhe3RAg==

Behavioral Interventions For Special Education Students -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/plusmeXLGInSSiWNwvsIsh3WeE2A==

State Academic Achievement Tests -
h ://simbli rdsolution m HwlisFeYmNa9PsDAzslshBQ==
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State Academic Achievement Tests -

6162.51 /) | | SU/OXhX2dQQIRMBAWUD MuGeA==
Guidance/Counseling Services -

6164.2 https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/xkEoB39 fudLvcéslshjiRw==

6164.4 Identification And Evaluation Of Individuals For Special Education -

’ h ://simbli rdsolution m 16vvslshY BvaSWWJGXRfzdRplusA==
6164.4 Ident!flce?tlon' And Evaluat!on Of Individuals For"SpeuaI Education -==
6164.6 Identification And Education Under Section 504 -

’ https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/TblmOngslshIZO4nN50KplusOYsA==
6164.6 Identification And Education Under Section 504 -

’ h ://simbli rdsolution m VYTbGhFoDoz MX ==
6170.1 Transtltlo.nal I_(lndergarten_- _ _

6173 Education For Homeless Children -
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/D31zrTImbBMXbJ3n1IPFkg==
6173 Education For Homeless Children -
h ://simbli rdsolution m Nn6kXPtRTHDNn7V2QWoPOQ==
6173.1 Educ:';\tlop Fo.r Foster Yout_h - _ .
6173.1 Education For Foster Youth -

’ https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/mgol AxnADihaNWTg3a5 ==
6173.3 Educ?tlo'n Fo.r Juvenile Co.urt School Students - _

6175 Mlgra?nt !Educ.atlon Program - _ _
6175 Migrant Education Program -

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com XslshfkiS12plus0t3cG48n%0ovIQ==
6183 Hom.e Ar.ld HF)spltaI InstruFtlon - _
6190 Evalu.atlc?n Of The Instruct.lonal Program - _
9310 Board Policies -

https://simbli.




Board Policy Ma1n31}al
Hanford Elementary School District

Exhibit 5145.6-E(1): Parent/Guardian Notifications Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date: Pending | Last Reviewed Date: 12/18/2019

Cautionary Notice: Government Code 17581.5 releases districts from the obligation to perform specified
mandated activities when the Budget Act does not provide reimbursement during that fiscal year. The Budget Act
of 2022 (AB 178, Ch. 45, Statutes of 2022) extends the suspension of these requirements through the 2022-23
fiscal year. As a result, certain provisions of the following Exhibit related to scoliosis screening and bus safety
instruction may be suspended.

I. Annually

When to Notify: Beginning of each school year
E . C | Code: Ed ion C 2905
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: BP 514
ject: Rights an ions for pregnant an rentin n

When to Notify: Beginning of each school year
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 234.7

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See BP 0410
Subject: Right to a free public education regardless of immigration status or religious beliefs

When to Notify: Beginning of each school year

Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 310

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See BP 6142.2, AR 6174
Subject: Information on the district's language acquisition program

When to Notify: Beginning of each school year

Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 17611.5, 17612, 48980.3

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 3514.2

Subject: Use of pesticide , active ingredients, internet address to access information, and, if district uses
certain pesticides, integrated pest management plan

When to Notify: Annually by February 1

Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 35256, 35258
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See BP 0510
Subject: School Accountability Report Card provided

When to Notify: Beginning of each school year

Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 35291, 48980
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5144, AR 5144.1
Subject: District and site discipline rules

When to Notify: Beginning of each school year

Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 44050

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See BP 4119.21, BP 4219.21, BP 4319.21
Subject: Code of conduct addressing employee interactions with students

When to Notify: Beginning of each school year
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 46010.1
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5113
Subject: Absence for confidential medical services

When to Notify: Beginning of each school year, if district has adopted policy on involuntary transfer of students
convicted of certain crimes when victim is enrolled at same school

Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 48929, 48980

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See BP 5116.2

Subject: District policy authorizing transfer

When to Notify: Beginning of each school year
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Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 48980
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See BP 6111
Subject: Schedule of minimum days and student-free staff development days

When to Notify: Beginning of each school year

Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 48980, 231.5; 5 CCR4917; 34 CFR 106.8

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5145.7

Subject: Copy of sexual harassment policy as related to students; contact information for Title IX coordinator

When to Notify: Beginning of each school year

Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 48980, 32255-32255.6
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5145.8

Subject: Right to refrain from harmful or destructive use of animals

When to Notify: Beginning of each school year

Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 48980, 35160.5, 46600-46611, 48204, 48301

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See BP 5111.1, AR5116.1, AR 5117

Subject: All statutory attendance options, available local attendance options, options for meeting residency, form for
changing attendance, appeals process

When to Notify: Beginning of each school year, if Board allows such absence
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 48980, 46014

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5113

Subject: Absence for religious exercise or purposes

When to Notify: Beginning of each school year

Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 48980, 48205

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5113, BP 6154

Subject: Excused absences; grade/credit cannot be reduced due to excused absence if work or test has been
completed; full text of Education Code 48205

When to Notify: Beginning of each school year

Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 48980, 48206.3, 48207, 48208

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 6183

Subject: Availability of home/hospital instruction for students with temporary disabilities

When to Notify: Beginning of each school year

Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 48980, 49403
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See BP 5141.31
Subject: School immunization program

Subject: Administration of prescribed medication

When to Notify: Beginning of each school year

Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 48980, 49451; 20 USC 1232h
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5141.3

Subject: Right to refuse consent to physical examination

When to Notify: Beginning of each school year

Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 48980, 49471, 49472
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See BP 5143

Subject: Availability of insurance

When to Notify: Annually
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 48986, 49392
B | Poli Admini ive R . . See AR 0450
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When to Notify: Annually

Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 49013; 5 CCR 4622

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 1312.3, BP 0460, BP 3260

Subject: Uniform complaint procedures, available appeals, civil law remedies, coordinator, complaints about student
‘ | | bili

When to Notify: Beginning of each school year

Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 49063

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5125, AR 5125.3
Subject: Challenge, review and expunging of records

When to Notify: Beginning of each school year

Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 49063, 49069; 20 USC 1232g; 34 CFR 99.7

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5125

Subject: Student records: inspect and review, access, types, location, persons responsible, location of log, access
criteria, cost of copies, amendment requests, criteria for defining school officials and to determine legitimate

educational interest, categories defined as directory information, disclosures, right to file complaint with U.S.
Department of Education, course prospectus availability

When to Notify: Beginning of each school year

Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 49063, 49073; 20 USC 1232g; 34 CFR 99.37
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5125.1

Subject: Release of directory information

When to Notify: Two or more tim ring th hool r

Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 4942

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See BP 5141.5

Subject: How to access mental health services at school and/or in the community

When to Notify: Beginning of each school year in schools serving students in grades 6-12
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 49428.5
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See BP 5141.5
Subiect: Distributi f digiti i

When to Notify: Beginning of each school year

Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 49520, 48980, 42 USC 1758, 7 CFR 245.5
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 3553

Subject: Eligibility and application process for free and reduced price meals

When to Notify: Beginning of each school year

Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 51513, 20 USC 1232h

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5022, BP 6162.8

Subject: Notice of privacy policy and dates of activities re: survey, health examination, or collection of personal
information for marketing; process to opt out of such activities; inspection rights and procedures

When to Notify: When developing the local control and accountability plan and during the annual update of the
-
B ’. { . )
B | Policy// "g'E . . See BP 0460
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When to Notify: Beginning of each school year

Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 56301

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See BP 6164.4

Subject: Parental rights re: special education identification, referral, assessment, instructional planning,
implementation and review, and procedures for initiating a referral for assessment

When to Notify: Beginning of each school year

Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 58501, 48980
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 6181
Subject: Alternative schools

When/Whom to Notify: Annually

Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 60615, 5 CCR 852

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 6162.51

Subject: Student's participation in state assessments; option to request exemption from testing

When to Notify: Beginning of each school year

Education or Other Legal Code: Health and Safety Code 104855

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5141.6

Subject: Availability of dental fluoride treatment; opportunity to accept or deny treatment

When to Notify: Beginning of each school year, if district receives Title | funds

Education or Other Legal Code: 20 USC 6312; 34 CFR 200.48

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See BP 4112.2, AR 4222

Subject: Right to request information re: professional qualifications of child's teacher and paraprofessional

When to Notify: Beginning of each school year

Education or Other Legal Code: 34 CFR 104.8, 106.9

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See BP 0410, BP 6178
Subject: Nondiscrimination

When to Notify: Beginning of each school year to parent, teacher, and employee organizations or, in their absence,
individuals

Education or Other Legal Code: 40 CFR 763.84, 40 CFR 763.93

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 3514

Subject: Availability of asbestos management plan; any inspections, response actions or post-response actions
planned or in progress

When to Notify: Beginning of each school year
Education or Other Legal Code: USDA ENS Instructions 113-1
; | Policy/Admini ive B . . See BP 3555

ject: Information rel he distri f rvi rogram

When to Notify: Beginning of each school year
Education or Other Legal Code: USDA SP-46-2016
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 3551
Subject: District policy on meal payments

Il. At Specific Times During the Student's Academic Career

When to Notify: Beginning in grade 7, at least once prior to course selection and career counseling
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 221.5, 48980

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See BP 6164.2

Subject: Course selection and career counseling

When to Notify: Upon a student's enrollment
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 310
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See BP 6142.2, AR 6174
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Subject: Information on the district's language acquisition programs

When to Notify: When child first enrolls in a public school, if the school offers a fingerprinting program
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 32390, 48980

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5142.1

Subject: Fingerprinting program

When to Notify: Upon registration in K-6, if students have not previously been transported

Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 39831.5

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 3543

Subject: School bus safety rules and information, list of stops, rules of conduct, red light crossing instructions, bus
danger zones, walking to and from stops

When to Notify: Prior roviding an xamination
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 49455.5
oard PollcyzAdmlnlstratlve Regulatlon #: See AR 5141 3

consent

When to Notify: When a parent[guardlan request for dlstrlct de5|gnat|on of volunteers is received for training on

When to Notify: Upon a student's enrollment

Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 49063

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5125, AR 5125.3
Subject: Specified rights related to student records

When to Notify: When students enter grade 7

Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 49452.7
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5141.3
Subject: Specified information on type 2 diabetes

When to Notify: When in kindergarten, or first grade if not previously enrolled in public school

Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 49452.8

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5141.32

Subject: Requirement for oral health assessment, explanation of law, importance of oral health, agency contact,
privacy rights

When to Notify: Beginning of each school year for students in grades 7-12, or at time of enrollment if after
beginning of year

Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 51938, 48980

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 6142.1

Subject: Sexual health and HIV prevention education; right to view A/V materials, whether taught by district staff or
outside consultants, right to request specific Education Code sections, right to excuse

When to Notify: Within 20 working days of receiving results of standardized achievement tests or, if results not
available in school year, within 20 working days of start of next school year

Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 60641, 5 CCR 863

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 6162.51

Subject: Results of tests; test purpose, individual score and intended use

When to Notify: When child is enrolled in kindergarten

Education or Other Legal Code: Health and Safety Code 124100, 124105
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5141.32

Subject: Health screening examination
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When to Notify: To secondary students, if district receives Title | funds

Education or Other Legal Code: 20 USC 7908

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5125.1

Subject: Request that district not release student's name, address, and phone number to military recruiters without
prior written consent

Ill. When Special Circumstances Occur

When to Notify: In the event of a breach of security of district records

Education or Other Legal Code: Civil Code 1798.29

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See BP 3580

Subject: Types of records affected, date of breach, description of incident, contact information for credit reporting
agencies

When to Notify: Upon receipt of a complaint alleging discrimination
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 262.3

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 1312.3

Subject: Civil law remedies available to complainants

When to Notify: When determining whether an English learner should be reclassified as fluent English proficient
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 313, 5 CCR 11303

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 6174

Subject: Description of reclassification process, opportunity for parent/guardian to participate

When to Notify: When Student is identified as English learner and district receives Title | or Title Il funds for English
learner programs, not later than 30 days after beginning of school year or within two weeks of placement if
identified during school year

Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 313.2, 440, 20 USC 6312

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 6174

Subject: Reason for classification, level of English proficiency, identification as long-term English learner, description
of program(s), option to decline program or choose alternate, option to remove student from program at any time,
exit requirements of program

When to Notify: Prior to implementing alternativ h |
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 46162

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See BP 6112

Subject: Public hearing on alternative schedule in secondary grades

When to Notify: When homeless or foster youth applies for enrollment in before/after school program
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 8483

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5178.2

Subject: Right to priority enroliment how to request priority enrollment

When to Notify: At least 72 hours before use of pesticide product not included in annual list
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 17612

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 3514.2

Subject: Intended use of pesticide product

When to Notify: To members of athletic teams

Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 32221.5

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5143

Subject: Offer of insurance; no-cost and low-cost program options

When to Notify: Annually to parents/guardians of student athletes before participation in competition
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 33479.3

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 6145.2

Subject: Information on sudden cardiac arrest

When/Whom to Notify: When district has contracted for electronic products or services that disseminate advertising
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 35182.5
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See BP 3312
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Subject: Advertising will be used in the classroom or learning center

When to Notify: At least six months before implementing a schoolwide uniform policy
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 35183
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5132
Subject: Dress code policy requiring schoolwide uniform

When to Notify: Before implementing a year-round schedule
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 37616
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See BP 6117
Subject: Public hearing on year-round schedule

When to Notify: When interdistrict transfer is requested and not approved or denied within 30 days
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 46601

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5117

Subject: Appeal process

When to Notify: Before early entry to transitional kindergarten or kindergarten, if early entry offered
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 48000

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5111, AR 6170.1

Subject: Effects, advantages and disadvantages of early entry

When to Notify: When student identified as being at risk of retention
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 48070.5

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5123

Subject: Student at risk of retention

When to Notify: When student excluded due to quarantine, contagious or infectious disease, danger to safety or
health

Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 48213

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5112.2

Subject: Student has been excluded from school

When to Notify: Before already admitted student is excluded for lack of immunization

Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 48216, 17 CCR 6040

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5141.31

Subject: Need to submit evidence of immunization or exemption within 10 school days; referral to medical care

When to Notify: When a student is classified as truant

Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 48260.5, 48262

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5113.1

Subject: Truancy, parental obligation, availability of alternative programs, student consequences, need for
conference

When to Notify: When a truant is referred to a SARB or probation department
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 48263

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5113.1

Subject: Name and address of SARB or probation department and reason for referral

When/Whom to Notify: When student requests to voluntarily transfer to continuation school
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 48432.3

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 6184

Subject: Copy of district policy and regulation on continuation education

When to Notify: Prior to involuntary transfer to continuation school

Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 48432.5

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 6184

Subject: Right to require meeting prior to involuntary transfer to continuation school

When/Whom to Notify: To person holding educational rights, prior to recommending placement of foster youth
outside school of origin



Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 48853.5
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 6173.1
Subject: Basis for the placement recommendation

E ion or Other Legal - E ion 4
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 6173.1, AR 6173.4
. nsion nofi . 3 . . L
her ments and rel information f r h' ional rights holder rn n n ial

worker and an Indian child's tribal ial worker and, if licable, the child' n ial worker

When to Notify: When student is removed from class and teacher requires parental attendance at school
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 48900.1

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5144.1

Subject: Parental attendance required; timeline for attendance

When to Notify: Prior to withholding grades, diplomas, or transcripts
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 48904

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5125.2

Subject: Damaged school property

When to Notify: When withholding grades, diplomas or transcripts from transferring student
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 48904.3

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5125.2

Subject: Next school will continue withholding grades, diplomas or transcripts

When to Notify: When student is released to peace officer

Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 48906

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See BP 5145.11

Subject: Release of student to peace officer for the purpose of removing minor from school, unless taken into
custody as victim of suspected child abuse

When to Notify: At time of suspension

Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 48911

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See BP 5144.1, AR 5144.1
Subject: Notice of suspension

When to Notify: When original period of suspension is extended
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 48911

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5144.1
Subject: Extension of suspension

When to Notify: At the time a student is assigned to a supervised suspension classroom
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 48911.1

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5144.1

Subject: The student's assignment to a supervised suspension classroom

When to Notify: Before holding a closed session re: suspension
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 48912

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5144.1
Subject: Intent to hold a closed session re: suspension

When to Notify: When a student expelled from another district for certain acts seeks admission
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 48915.1, 48918

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See BP 5119

Subject: Hearing re: possible danger presented by expelled student

When to Notify: When readmission is denied
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 48916
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5144.1
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Subject: Reasons for denial; determination of assigned program

When to Notify: When expulsion occurs

Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 48916
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5144.1
Subject: Readmission procedures

When to Notify: At least 10 calendar days before expulsion hearing
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 48918

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5144.1

Subject: Notice of expulsion hearing

When to Notify: When expulsion or suspension of expulsion occurs

Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 48918

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5144.1

Subject: Decision to expel; right to appeal to county board; obligation to inform new district of status

When to Notify: Before involuntary transfer of student convicted of certain crime when victim is enrolled at same
school

Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 48929, 48980

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See BP 5116.2

Subject: Right to request a meeting with principal or designee

When to Notify: One month before the scheduled minimum day

Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 48980

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See BP 6111

Subject: When minimum days are scheduled after the beginning of the school year

When to Notify: When parents/guardians request guidelines for filing complaint of child abuse at a school site
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 48987

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5141.4

Subject: Guidelines for filing complaint of child abuse at a school site with local child protective agencies

When to Notify: When student in danger of failing a course
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 49067
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5121
Subject: Student in danger of failing a course

When to Notify: When student transfers from another district or private school into the district
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 49068

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5125

Subject: Right to receive copy of student's record and a hearing to challenge content of student's records

When/Whom to Notify: When parent/guardian's challenge of student record is denied and parent/guardian appeals
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 49070

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5125.3

Subject: If board sustains allegations, the correction of destruction of record; if denied, right to submit written
objection

When/Whom to Notify: When district is considering program to gather safety-related information from students'
social media activity

Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 49073.6

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See BP 5125

Subject: Opportunity for input on proposed program

When/Whom to Notify: When district adopts program to gather information from students' social media activity,
and annually thereafter

Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 49073.6

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: AR 5125

Subject: Information is being gathered, access to records, process for removal or corrections, destruction of records
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When to Notify: Within 24 hours of release of information to a judge or probation officer

Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 49076

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5125

Subject: Release of student record to a judge or probation officer for conducting truancy mediation program or for
presenting evidence at a truancy petition

When to Notify: Before release of information pursuant to court order or subpoena
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 49077

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5125

Subject: Release of information pursuant to court order or subpoena

When to Notify: When screening results in suspicion that student has scoliosis
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 49452.5

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5141.3

Subject: Scoliosis screening

When to Notify: When test results in discovery of visual or hearing defects
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 49456; 17 CCR 2951
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5141.3

Subject: Vision or hearing test results

When to Notify: Within 10 days of negative balance in meal account

Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 49557.5

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 3551

Subject: Negative balance in meal account; encouragement to apply for free or reduced price meals

W Notify: 2 . E |
E ion or Other Legal : E ion 4947
Board Policy/Administrative R lation #: AR 6145.2

ject: Information on con ions and h injuri

When to Notify: Annually to parents/guardians of student athletes before their first practice or competition
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 49476

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 6145.2

Subject: Opioid fact sheet

When to Notify: When satisfactory educational progress in one or more independent study courses is not being
made by student under 18

Education or Other Legal Code: Educational Code 51749.5

B | Poli Admini ive R . - See BP 6158

When to Notify: Before any test/survey questioning personal beliefs
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 51513

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5022

Subject: Permission for test, survey questioning personal beliefs

When to Notify: At least 14 days before HIV prevention or sexual health instruction, if arrangement made for guest
speaker after beginning of school year

Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 51938

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 6142.1

Subject: Instruction in HIV prevention or sexual health by guest speaker or outside consultant

When to Notify: Prior to administering survey regarding health risks and behaviors to students in 7-12
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 51938

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5022

Subject: Notice that the survey will be administered

When to Notify: Within 30 calendar days of receipt of results of assessment or reassessment of English proficiency
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 52164.1, 52164.3,5 CCR 11511.5
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Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 6174
Subject: Results of state test of English proficiency

When to Notify: When migrant education program is established
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 54444.2
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See BP 6175, AR 6175
Subject: Parent advisory council membership composition

When/Whom to Notify: When district receives Tobacco-Use Prevention Education Funds
Education or Other Legal Code: Health and Safety Code 104420

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 3513.3

Subject: The district's tobacco-free schools policy and enforcement procedures

When to Notify: When sharing student immunization information with an immunization system

Education or Other Legal Code: Health and Safety Code 120440

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5125

Subject: Types of information to be shared, name and address of agency, acceptable use of the information, right to
examine, right to refuse to share

When/Whom to Notify: At least 14 days prior to sex offender coming on campus as volunteer
Education or Other Legal Code: Penal Code 626.81

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 1240, BP 1250

Subject: Dates and times permission granted; obtaining information from law enforcement

When to Notify: When hearing is requested by person asked to leave school premises
Education or Other Legal Code: Penal Code 627.5

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 3515.2

Subject: Notice of hearing

When/Whom to Notify: When responding to complaint re: discrimination, special education, or noncompliance with
law

Education or Other Legal Code: 5 CCR 4631

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 1312.3

Subject: Findings, disposition of complaint, any corrective actions, appeal rights and procedures

When to Notify: When child participates in licensed child care and development program
Education or Other Legal Code: 5 CCR 18066

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5148

Subject: Policies regarding excused and unexcused absences

When to Notify: ) ys L ang
of application for child care or preschool services

Education or Other Legal Code: 5 CCR 17783, 18095, 18119
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5148, AR 5148.3
Subject: Policies re: Any change in service, such as in fees, amount of service, termination of service

1pon recertification or update

When to Notify: Upon child's enrollment in child care program
Education or Other Legal Code: 5 CCR 18114

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5148
Subject: Policies re: Policy on fee collection

When to Notify: When payment of child care fees is seven days late
Education or Other Legal Code: 5 CCR 18114

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5148

Subject: Policies re: Notice of delinquent fees

When to Notify: When district substantively changes policy on student privacy rights
Education or Other Legal Code: 20 USC 1232h

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5022

Subject: Notice of any substantive change in policy or regulation
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When to Notify: For districts receiving Title | funds, when a child has been assigned or taught for four or more
consecutive weeks by a teacher who does not meet state certification requirements for the grade level/subject
taught

Education or Other Legal Code: 20 USC 6312

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See BP 4112.2

Subject: Timely notice to parent/guardian of child's assignment

When to Notify: For districts receiving Title | funds, not later than 30 days after beginning of school year, to
parents/guardians of English learners

Education or Other Legal Code: 20 USC 6312

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 6174

Subject: Reasons for placement, level of proficiency, instructional methods, how program meets child's strengths
and teaches English, exit requirements, right to choose another program

When to Notify: For schools receiving Title | funds, upon development of parent involvement policy
Education or Other Legal Code: 20 USC 6318

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 6020

Subject: Notice of policy

When to Notify: When district receives Impact Aid funds for students residing on Indian lands, to parents/guardians
f Indi .

When to Notify: When household is selected for verification of eligibility for free or reduced-price meals
Education or Other Legal Code: 42 USC 1758, 7 CFR 245.6a

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 3553

Subject: Need to submit verification information; any subsequent change in benefits; appeals

When/Whom to Notify: When student is homeless or unaccompanied minor

Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 48852.5,42 USC 11432

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 6173

Subject: Educational and related opportunities; transportation services; placement decision and right to appeal;
duties of district liaison; public notice

When to Notify: When student transfers out of state and records are disclosed without consent pursuant to 34 CFR
99.30

Education or Other Legal Code: 34 CFR 99.34

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5125

Subject: Right to receive records and an opportunity for hearing upon request

When to Notify: When district receives federal funding assistance for nutrition program
Education or Other Legal Code: USDA FNS Instruction 113-1

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See BP 3555

Subject: Rights and responsibilities, nondiscrimination policy, complaint procedures

IV. Special Education Notices

When to Notify: Prior to conducting initial evaluation

Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 56301, 56321, 56321.5, 56321.6, 56329, 20 USC 1415 (d), 34 CFR
300.502, 300.503

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See BP 6159.1, AR 6159.1, AR 6164.4

Subject: Proposed evaluation plan, related parental rights, prior written notice, procedural safeguards
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When/Whom to Notify: Before functional behavioral assessment begins
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 56321

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 6159

Subject: Notification and consent

When to Notify: 24 hours before IEP when district intending to record
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 56341.1

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 6159

Subject: Intention to audio-record IEP meeting

When to Notify: Early enough to ensure opportunity for parent to attend IEP meeting

Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 56341.5, 34 CFR 300.322

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 6159

Subject: Time, purpose, location, who will attend, participation of others with special knowledge, transition
statements if appropriate

When to Notify: When parent/guardian orally requests review of IEP
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 56343.5

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 6159

Subject: Need for written request

When to Notify: Within one school day of emergency intervention or serious property damage
Education or Other Legal Code: Education Code 56521.1

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 6159.4

Subject: Emergency intervention

When to Notify: Whenever there is a proposal or refusal to initiate or change the identification, evaluation,
placement, or FAPE, including when parent/guardian revokes consent for services

Education or Other Legal Code: 20 USC 1415(c), 34 CFR 300.300, 300.503

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 6159, AR 6159.1

Subject: Prior written notice

When/Whom to Notify: Upon filing of state complaint

Education or Other Legal Code: 20 USC 1415(d), 34 CFR 300.504
Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 6159.1
Subject: Procedural safeguards notice

When/Whom to Notify: When disciplinary measures are taken or a change in placement
Education or Other Legal Code: 20 USC 1415(k), 34 CFR 300.530

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 5144.2

Subject: Decision and procedural safeguards notice

When to Notify: Upon requesting a due process hearing

Education or Other Legal Code: 20 USC 1415(k), 34 CFR 300.508

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 6159.1

Subject: Child's name, address, school, description of problem, proposed resolution

When to Notify: Eligibility for services under Section 504

Education or Other Legal Code: 34 CFR 104.32, 104.36

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation #: See AR 6164.6

Subject: District responsibilities, district actions, procedural safeguards

V. Classroom Notices
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FROM:

DATE:

FOR:

FOR:

145
HANFORD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

AGENDA REQUEST FORM

Board of Trustees
Joy C. Gabler

12/14/23

X Board Meeting
[] Superintendent's Cabinet

[ ] Information
X] Action

Date you wish to have your item considered: 01/24/24

ITEM:

PURPOSE:

Consider for approval the revisions to Board Bylaw
= 9322 — Agenda/Meeting Materials

Bylaw updated to move material regarding public comments to be with content related language, amend
language to be more closely aligned with code language, add material regarding the means for in-person
and remote public comments, and reflect NEW LAW (AB 2449, 2022), which requires boards to maintain
and implement a procedure for receiving and swiftly resolving requests for reasonable accommodation to
board meetings for individuals with disabilities. Bylaw also updated to provide that each agenda for a
regular meeting is required to list the address designated by the Superintendent or designee for public
inspection of documents related to records of a statement threatening litigation against the district to be
discussed in closed session, in addition to documents related to open session, when such documents have
been distributed to the Governing Board less than 72 hours before a Board meeting, clarify that the Board
president and Superintendent decide when an item is placed on the agenda, include that public records
under the Public Records Act and which relate to an agenda item which contain a claim or written threat
of litigation which will be discussed in closed session are required to be made available to the public, in
addition to documents which relate to an agenda item scheduled for the open session of a regular meeting,
and NEW LAW (AB 2647, 2022) which clarifies how districts can, without opening their offices after
normal business hours, comply with the portion of the Brown Act that requires writings or documents
distributed to a majority of a local legislative body less than 72 hours before a meeting to also be
distributed to the public.

FISCAL IMPACT: None

RECOMMENDATIONS: Approve.



Board Policy Mam?al
Hanford Elementary School District

Bylaw 9322: Agenda/Meeting Materials Status: DRAFT

Original Adopted Date: 10/21/1998 | Last Revised Date: 03/13/2019 | Last Reviewed Date: 03/13/2019

Agenda Content
Governing Board Beard of Trustees meeting agendas shall reflect the district's vision and goals and the Board's focus on student learning and well-being.

Each agenda shall state the meeting time and location plaee and shall briefly describe each buisiness item to be transacted or discussed, including items to be
discussed in closed session. (Government Code 54954.2)

The agenda shall provide members of the public the opportunity to address the Board on any agenda item before or during the Board's consideration of the item.
Hewever; The agenda for a regular meeting shall also provide members of the public an opportunity to address the Board regarding matters within the subject
matter jurisdiction of the Board which are not on the agenda. (Education Code 35145.5: Government Code 54954.3)

The agenda does not need to fiet provide an opportunity for public comment on an when the agenda item that has previously been considered at an open meeting
by ef-a committee comprised exclusively of Board members, provided that members of the public were afforded an opportunity to comment on the item , before
or during the committe's consideration of the item, and at that meeting and that the item has not been substantially changed since the committee considered it.
(Government Code 54954.3)

The notice and agenda fora regular Board meeting shall alse previde members of describe the means available for the public an-eppertunity to access the meeting
and prowde publlc comment in-| person and |f a Board member is appearlng remotely due to an emergency circumstance or for just cause pursuant to en-matters
5 .5; Government Code 54954.3, through an

|nternet based service or call-in optlon (Government Code 54953))

The agenda shall include information regarding how, when, and to whom a request for disability-related accomondations or modifications, including auxiliary aids
and services, may be made by an individual who requires accommodations or modifications in order to participate in the Board meeting, as well as the procdeure
for receiving and resolving such requests as required by law. (Government Code 54954.2, 54953)

Each agenda for a regular meeting shall list the address designated by the Superintendent or designee for public inspection of documents related to an open
session item that, or for records of a statement threatening litigation against the district to be discussed in closed session, when such documents have been
distributed to the Board less than 72 hours before the meeting. (Government Code 54956.954957.5)

3Fhe Eachagenda shaII mcludeﬁfermatteﬁ a statement regardlng hew—wheﬁ the optlon for students and parent/guardlans to whem-a requestshould-be-made-ifan

pate that directiory information or
personal information of the student or parent/guardlan as deﬁnedln Educatlon Code 49061 and/or 49073 2, be excluded from the minutes. The agenda shall also
state that the request must be made in writing to the secretary or clerk of the Board meeting. (Government Code 54954.2)

Agenda Preparation

The Board president and the Superintendent, as secretary to the Board, shall work together to develop the agenda for each regular and special meeting.

Any Board member or member of the public may request that a matter within the jurisdiction of the Board be placed on the agenda of a regular meeting. The
request shall be submitted in writing to the Superintendent or designee with supporting documents and information, if any, at least ten working days before the
scheduled meeting date. Items submitted less than ten working days before the scheduled meeting date may be postponed to a later meeting in order to allow
sufficient time for consideration and research of the issue.

The Board president and Superintendent shall decide whether a request from a member of the public is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board. Items
not within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board may not be placed on the agenda. In addition, before placing the item on the agenda, the Board president
and Superintendent shall determine if the item is merely a request for information or whether the issue is covered by an existing policy or administrative regulation,
and if so, respond accordingly.

If the Board president and Superintendent deny a request from a Board member to place an item on the agenda, the Board member may request the Board te take
action during a Board meeting to determine whether the item shall be placed on the agenda.

The Board president and Superintendent shall also decide whether an agenda item is appropriate for discussion in open or closed session,-ane-whether the item

should be an action item subject to Board vote or an information item. that dees not require immediate action:

In order to promote efficient meetings, the Board may bundle a number of items and act upon them together by a single vote through the use of a consent agenda.
Consent items shall be items of a routine nature and items for which Board discussion is not anticipated and for which the Superintendent recommends approval.
When any Board member requests the removal of an item from the consent agenda, the item shall be removed and given individual consideration for action as a
regular separate agenda item.

The agenda shall provide an opportunity for members of the public to comment on any consent agenda item that unless such item has ret been previously
considered at an open meeting of a committee comprised exclusively of Board Members. (Government Code 54954.3)

Any Board action that involves borrowing $100,000 or more shall be discussed, considered, and deliberated upon as a separate item of business on the meeting
agenda. (Government Code 53635.7)

All public communications with the Board are subject to requirements of relevant Board policies and administrative regulations.

Agenda Dissemination to Board Members

At least 72 hours before each regular meeting, each Board member shall be provided a copy of the agenda and agenda packet, including the Superintendent or
designee's report; minutes to be approved; copies of communications; reports from committees, staff, and others; and other available supporting documents

pertinent to the meeting.

When special meetings are called, Board members shall receive, at least 24 hours prior to the meeting, notice of the business to be transacted. (Government Code
54956)

Board members shall review agenda materials before each meeting. Individual members may confer directly with the Superintendent or designee to ask questions
and/or request additional information on agenda items. However, a majority of Board members shall not, outside of a noticed meeting, directly or through
intermediaries or electronic means discuss, deliberate, or take action on any matter within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board.

Agenda Dissemination to Members of the Public
Any Aagenda and related materials distributed to the Board shall be made available to the public upon request without delay. ©naly However, only those documents

which are disclosable public records under the Public Records Act (PRA) and which relate to an agenda item scheduled for the open session portion of a regular
meeting or which contain a claim or written threat of litigation which will be discussed in closed session shall be made available to the public. (Government
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Code 54956.9, 54957.5)

At least 72 hours prior to a regular meeting, the agenda shall be posted at one or more locations freely accessible to members of the public. (Government Code
54954.2)

In addition, the Superintendent or designee shall post the agenda on the homepage of the district web site website. The posted agenda shall be accessible through
a prominent direct link to the current agenda or to the district's agenda management platform in accordance with Government Code 54954.2. When the district
utilizes an integrated agenda management platform, the link to that platform shall take the user directly to the web site website with the district's agendas, and the
current agenda shall be the first available. (Government Code 54954.2)

If a deeument writing which relates to an open session agenda item ef or which contains a claim or written threat of litigation which will be discussed in closed
session during a regular Board meeting is distributed to the Board less than 72 hours prior to a meeting, the Superintendent or designee shall make the

deeument writing available for public inspection at a designated location at the same time the document is distributed to all or a majority of the Board.
(Government Code 54957.5) However, if the writing is distributed to at least a majority of the Board at a time when the designated location is closed to the public,
this requirement may be satisfied by posting the writing on the district website if the following conditions are met: (Government Code 54957.5)

1. An initial staff report or similar document containing an executive summary and any staff recommendations related to the agenda item is made available for
public inspection at the designated location at least 72 hours before the meeting

2. The writing is immediately posted on the district's website in a position and manner that makes it clear that the writing relates to an agenda item for the
upcoming meeting

3. The district lists the website address where such writings may be accessed on all Board meeting agendas

4. A physical copy of the document is made available for public inspection at the designated location at the beginning of the next regular business hours, but
not less than 24 hours before the relevant Board meeting

The Superintendent or designee shall mail email a copy of, or a website link to, the agenda or a copy of all the documents constituting the agenda packet to any
person who requests the such items to be delivered by email. If the Superintendent or designee determines that it is technologically infeasible to do so, a copy of
the agenda or a website link to the agenda and a copy of all other documents constituting the agenda packet shall be sent to the person who has made the request
in accordance with mailing requirements specified in law. The materials shall be mailed sent at the time the agenda is posted or upon distribution of the agenda to a
majority of the Board, whichever occurs first. (Government Code 54954.1)

Any request for mailed copies of agendas or agenda packets shall be in writing and shall be valid for the calendar year in which it is filed. Written requests must be
renewed following January 1 of each year. (Government Code 54954.1)

Persons requesting mailing of the agenda or agenda packet shall pay an annual fee, as determined by the Superintendent or designee, not to exceed the cost of
providing the service.

Any document prepared by the district or Board and distributed during a public meeting shall be made available for public inspection at the meeting. Any document
prepared by another person shall be made available for public inspection after the meeting. These requirements shall not apply to a document that is exempt from
public disclosure under the Public Records Act PRA. (Government Code 54957.5)

Upon request, the Superintendent or designee shall make the agenda, agenda packet, and/or any writings distributed at the meeting available in appropriate
alternative formats to persons with a disability, as required by the Americans with Disabilities Act. (Government Code 54954.1)

Policy Reference Disclaimer:These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are
provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the policy.

State References Description
Ed. Code 35144 Special meeting - https://simbli. rdsolutions.com IshF1gJh5uvQZLI Ishl9pluscw==
Ed. Code 35145 Public meetings - https://simbli. rdsolutions.com 2zbplusTYPngJITCLZ5nGLIuA==

Agenda; public participation and regulations -

Ed. Code 35145.5 https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/FsPALBrAtQInP93DNC8ixQ==

Definitions; directory information -

Ed. Code 49061 https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/LPocR56LXBUBhFSFEV34Mw==

Privacy of student and parent/guardian personal information; minutes of board meeting -

Ed. Code 49073.2 https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/9iplPezeEfX6eKIwZZ6PhA==

Separate item of business for borrowing of $100,000 or more -

Gov. Code 53635.7 https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com lusUCWDVtGcslshvRM2JnMOCAQ==

Gov. Code 54953 Meetings; Americans with Disabilities Act accessibility

Request for copy of agenda or agenda packet by member of public -

Gov. Code 54954.1 https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com LkqRCdaxdjfJue924zsg==

Gov. Code 54954.2 ﬁgen‘da posting reqwreme_nts; board actlon_s -

imbli rdsolutions.com VAIMRCpWiUrVYZv97gXY:

Opportunity for public to address legislative body -

Gov. Code 54954.3 https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/9tmO3fD85XtolL Zj5dg6MyA==

Gov. Code 54954.5 Closed session item descriptions -

https://simbli rdsolutions.com 7VS42ErXCB3wCCMNBEAPcw==
Gov. Code 54956.5 Emergency meetings - https://simbli
Gov. Code 54956.9 Meetings
Gov. Code 54957.5 Public records - https://simbli. rdsolutions.com 7vEZRhIGDWCGTK6d07W9pQ==

Challenging board actions; cease and desist -

Gov. Code 54960.2 https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/73kFAVOOrhSriL9vMkal.cg==



Gov. Code 7920.000-7930.170

Gov. Code 95000-95004

Federal References
28 CFR 35.160

28 CFR 36.303

42 USC 12101-12213

Management Resources References
Attorney General Opinion

Attorney General Opinion

Attorney General Publication

Court Decision

Court Decision

Court Decision

Court Decision

CSBA Publication

CSBA Publication

Website

Website
Website
Cross References

0000
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California Public Records Act - h

California Early Intervention Services Act -
https://simbli rdsolutions.com k4EUDfAAVQTOJWikSXBC1Q==

Description
Effective communications for individuals with disabilities
Nondiscrimination on the basis of disability, public accommodations, auxiliary aids, and services

Americans with Disabilities Act

Description

99 Ops. Cal. Atty. Gen. 11 (2016)

78 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 327 (1995)

The Brown Act: Open Meetings for Legislative Bodies, rev. 2003
Sierra Watch v. County of Placer (2022) 69 Cal.App.5th 86

Fowler v. City of Lafayette (2020) 45 Cal.App.5th 68

Caldwell v. Roseville Joint Union High School District (2007) U.S. Dist. LEXIS 66318
Mooney v. Garcia (2012) 207 Cal.App.4th 229

The Brown Act: School Boards and Open Meeting Laws, rev. 2019
Call to Order: A Blueprint for Great Board Meetings, 2018

CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services -

h ://simbli rdsolutions.com kszdmPETuDslshXké6R ==
California Attorney General's Office -

https://simbli rdsolutions.com Nslsh5DoK YcvokhGiA==
CSBA - https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/W3QxkK2FPsDsQBnMIENxGg==
Description

Goals For The School District -
h ://simbli rdsolutions.com z2XuvMZ5vCMVplus3jwHofllw==

Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities -
https://simbli rdsolutions.com VSrIVykcPzYgHRBOP47hQ==

Communication With The Public -
https://simbli rdsolutions.com iNru4klaHOW4DHNDHNv46A==

Media Relations - h

District And School Websites -
h ://simbli rdsolutions.

District And School Websites - https://simbli. rdsolutions.com W PrHaH1gQX12w==

Complaints Concerning District Employees -
h ://simbli rdsolutions.com rch1mUUK: DhubFBE790A==

Complaints Concerning District Employees -
h ://simbli rdsolutions.com DP7MJwvAZacaXwm9jxRslshpA==

Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials -
h ://simbli rdsolutions.com jwcl

Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials -
https://simbli rdsolutions.com ZzPBQSIQNK4huslshoDCkQ1w==

Uniform Complaint Procedures -
h ://simbli rdsolutions.com hS5zL 2uZHaslshpxbM WoXQ==

Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures -
https://simbli rdsolutions.com ZgAmYlslsh5Y156alYSNL5SNNw==

Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures - Classroom Notice -
h ://simbli rdsolutions.com h1B: W fB68k3ReVvmA==

Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures - Complaint Form -
h ://simbli rdsolutions.com lusL AowwAIliGLGWefpl

Access To District Records - https://simbli rdsolutions.com MKIbNYHTwD476xyBI5hw==
Relations Between Other Governmental Agencies And The Schools -

h ://simbli rdsolutions.com BxpTKEAPz9Isrmh8aHMNJg==

Administrative Discretion Regarding Board Policy -

h ://simbli rdsolutions.com zAAywg72JoYRUgmXdFIMVA==

Budget - h ://simbli.. rdsolution: m, lusPMu4vppBRslshz8IDRtEWQPg==

Budget - h

Contracts - h ://simbli.. rdsolution: m, RNHr2! ZTnhndl0zLI0Q==
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3320 Claims And Actions Against The District -

https://simbli rdsolutions.com YslshAqLdg6VgdMTiHOYxMYuw==
3320 Claims And Actions Against The District -
h ://simbli rdsolutions.com lusARPfivUvPJvfedoLslshClyw==
3460 Financial Reports And Accountability -
h ://simbli rdsolutions.com mrxJtRUPj IsheOH715X8g==
3460 Financial Reports And Accountability -
h ://simbli rdsolutions.com 7460r: rFPF712A==
4312.1 Contracts - https://simbli. rdsolutions.com wzfPJff5MpCXKplusizW
4312.1 Contracts - https://simbli. rdsolutions.com YdClpfHx8zosWxz Bg==
5144.1 Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process -
. https://simbli rdsolutions.com DFWKslshRfaYM7mk14wYslshw==
5144.1 Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process -
. https://simbli rdsolutions.com faT2mPgqZ7hNQifa2L QNvw==
6161.1 Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials -
. https://simbli rdsolutions.com jtBtVkzCslshHFG45cjhQwxg==
6161.1 Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials -
) h ://simbli rdsolutions.com xwP60ONdDYXWNctpzS7I0nw==
9012 Board Member Electronic Communications -
https://simbli rdsolutions.com n7uGS2n KslshVjXFZ ==
9121 President - https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/SU/jbBgJ9oFvfwrknhx6QCLVQ==
9122 Secretary - h ://simbli.. rdsolution: m, Wplus70WQZiz jbZOj
9130 Board Committees - https://simbli rdsolutions.com hPx3Nmcdslsh1Kf9MHGVM ==
9200 Limits Of Board Member Authority -
https://simbli rdsolutions.com DA4TId9n69FGHNDs3g7VKZw==
9310 Board Policies - h
9320 Meetings And Notices - https://simbli rdsolutions.com EHXXT5NJwWGXJIHplusyv6DBw==
9321 Closed Session - https://simbli rdsolutions.com YTOB941uSKO2 2BPrtXA==
9323 Meeting Conduct - https://simbli rdsolutions.com 1dL87hXyé6qfE HVfE6Q==
9323.2 Actions By The Board - h
9323.2-E PDF(1) Actions By The Board - h ://simbli rdsolutions.com vMG3A2 zI5fim

9324 Minutes And Recordings - https://simbli. rdsolutions.com 48)7En2bwNHOWOASD6YhYQ==
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HANFORD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

AGENDA REQUEST FORM

TO: Joy C. Gabler
FROM: Jaime Martinez

DATE: 1/12/24

FOR: [X] Board Meeting
[] Superintendent's Cabinet

FOR: [ ] Information
X] Action

Date you wish to have your item considered: 1/24/24
ITEM: Consider for approval Revised Board Policy:
4151/4251/4351 - Employee Compensation

PURPOSE: Policy updated to add that for districts participating in the Classified School
Employee Summer Assistance Program, eligible classified employees may elect to have up to 10
percent of the employee's monthly salary withheld and paid out during the summer recess in
either one or two payments, and reflect NEW LAW (AB 185, 2022) which adds specific
repayment procedures when a district has made a wage overpayment to a district employee.

FISCAL IMPACT: None

RECOMMENDATIONS: Approve.

ADM -018
11/2019
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Board Policy Manual
Hanford Elementary School District

Policy 4151/4251/4351: Employee Compensation Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date: 11/07/2001 | Last Revised Date: 03/25/2020 | Last Reviewed Date:
03/25/2020

In order to recruit and retain employees committed to the district's goals for student
learning, the Governing Board-ef Trustees recognizes the importance of offering a
competitive compensation package which includes salaries and health and welfare
benefits.

In accordance with law, all salaries, wages, and other compensation shall be set by the
Board of Trustees. Salaries and wages for members of bargaining units shall be based on
negotiated agreements approved by the Board.

The Superintendent or designee shall conduct salary and wage surveys as needed for
collective bargaining purposes and to ensure that district compensation is competitive
with other area districts and employers.

The Board shall adopt separate salary schedules for certificated, classified, and supervisory
and administrative personnel. These schedules shall comply with law and collective
bargaining agreements and shall be printed and made available for review at the district
office. (Education Code 45022, 45023, 45160, 45162, 4268)

Salary schedules for employees in bargaining units shall be presented for Board adoption
when tentative agreement has been reached with the respective bargaining unit.

Recommended or interim salary schedules for all other employees, and for bargaining
units who have not yet settled negotiations on salaries for the following year, shall be
presented in June of each year to be effective July 1 of the ensuing fiscal year.

Each certificated employee, except an employee in an administrative or supervisory
position, shall be classified on the salary schedule on the basis of uniform allowance for
education level and years of experience, unless the Board and employee organization
negotiate and mutually agree to a salary schedule based on different criteria. Certificated
employees shall not be placed in different classifications on the schedule, nor paid
different salaries, solely on the basis of the grade levels at which they teach.— (Education
Code 45028)

Salary schedules for staff who are not a part of a bargaining unit shall be determined by
the Board at the recommendation of the Superintendent or designee.

The Board shall determine the frequency and schedule of salary payments, including
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whether payments for employees who work less than 12 months per year will be made

over the course of the school year or in equal installments over the calendar
year.—{(Education-Code-45038,-45039,45048-45165)_However, if the district participates in the
Classified School Employee Summer Assistance Program, eligible classified employees may elect to
have up to 10 percent of the employee's monthly salary withheld and paid out during the summer
recess in either one or two payments. (Education Code 45038, 45039, 45048, 45165, 45500)

The Superintendent or designee shall post a notice explaining the Fair Labor Standards
Act's wage and hour provisions in a conspicuous place at each work site.— (29 CFR 516.4)

Overtime Compensation

District employees shall be paid an overtime rate of not less than one and one-half times
their regular rate of pay for any hours worked in excess of eight hours in one day and/or
40 hours in one work week, or twice their regular rate of pay for any hours worked in
excess of 12 hours in one day or eight hours on the seventh consecutive day of work.
However, employee as-teachers-or,

school admlnlstratorseprf—they—qua#y—as—be{%@ﬂ%pieyed— and other emplovees in anpositions
established by the Board as executlve admlnlstratlve or profe55|ona| capacity-and-are paid-a

be exempt from overtime rules. (Education Code 5—1@,%—1545128 45130; 29 USC 213; 29 CFR

541.0-541.710, 553.27, 553.32)

When authorized in a collective bargaining agreement or other agreement between the
district and employees, an employee may take compensatory time off in lieu of overtime
compensation, provided the employee has not accrued compensatory time in excess of
the limits specified in 29 USC 207. An employee who has requested the use of
compensatory time shall be allowed to use such time within a reasonable period after
making the request if the use of the compensatory time does not unduly disrupt district
operations.— (Education Code 45129; 29 USC 207; 29 CFR 553.20-553.25)

For each nonexempt employee, the Superintendent or designee shall maintain records on
the employee's wages, hours, and other information specified in 29 CFR 516.5-516.6.

Wage Overpayment

If the district determines an employee has been overpaid, the district shall notify the employee in
writing of the overpayment, afford the employee an opportunity to respond before commencing
any recoupment actions, and inform the employee of the employee's rights to dispute the
existence or amount of the claimed overpayment. If the employee agrees there was an
overpayment in the claimed amount, reimbursement shall be made to the district through one of
the methods described in Education Code 44042.5 as mutually agreed upon by the employee and
the district. (Education Code 44042.5)

If a mutual agreement on a method of reimbursement is not reached, within 30 days of the
employee verifying the overpayment amount, the district shall recoup the overpayment through
payroll deductions in accordance with Education Code 44042.5.
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If the employee does not respond or disputes the existence or amount of the district's claimed
overpayment, the district shall, with board approval, initiate a legal action to recover the
overpayment. (Education Code 44042.5)

If the employee separates from the district before the overpayment is fully repaid, the district shall
withhold the remaining balance due from any money owed to the employee upon separation,
provided that the state minimum wage is still paid to the employee as required by Education Code
44042.5. The Superintendent or designee may consult with legal counsel to calculate the amount
to withhold.

If an outstanding overpayment balance still remains, the district shall, with Board approval, exercise
any legal means to recover the remaining amount owed by the employee. (Education Code

44042.5)

Legal action to recover any overpayment under this policy shall be initiated within three years from
the date of the overpayment, which for leave credits is the date that the employee receives
compensation in exchange for leave erroneously credited to the employee. (Education Code

44042.5)

Policy Reference Disclaimer:

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in
the subject matter of the policy.

State Description
8 CCR 11040 Wages and hours; definitions of administrative, executive,
and professional employees

Ed. Code 44042.5 Wage overpayment

Ed. Code 45022-45061.5 Salaries

Ed. Code 45023 Availability of salary schedule

Ed. Code 45028 Salary schedule and exceptions

Ed. Code 45127-45133.5 Classified employees; work week; overtime provisions
Ed. Code 45160-45169 Salaries for classified employees

Ed. Code 45268 Salary schedule for classified service in merit system districts
Ed. Code 45500 Classified School Employee Summer Assistance Program
Gov. Code 3540-3549 Meeting and negotiating

Gov. Code 3543.2 Scope of representation

Gov. Code 3543.7 Duty to meet and negotiate in good faith

Lab. Code 226 Employee access to payroll records



https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/IE6B65E20D47F11DE8879F88E8B0DAAAE?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)#
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/IE6B65E20D47F11DE8879F88E8B0DAAAE?viewType=FullText&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=CategoryPageItem&contextData=(sc.Default)#
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=44042.5.#
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=4.&article=5.#
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45023.#
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45028.#
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=5.&article=1.#
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=5.&article=2.#
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45268.#
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&division=3.&title=2.&part=25.&chapter=5.&article=14.#
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=GOV&division=4.&title=1.&part=&chapter=10.7.&article=#
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=3543.2.#
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=3543.7.#
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=226.#
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Lab. Code 232 Disclosure of wages

Federal Description

26 CFR 1.409A-1 Definitions and covered plans

26 USC 409A Deferred compensation plans

29 CFR516.4 Notice of minimum wage and overtime provisions

29 CFR 516.5-516.6 Records

29 CFR 541.0-541.710 Exemptions for executive, administrative, and professional
employees

29 CFR 553.1-553.51 Fair Labor Standards Act; applicability to public agencies

29 USC 201-219 Fair Labor Standards Act

29 USC 203 Definitions

29 USC 207 Fair Labor Standards Act

29 USC 213 Exemptions from minimum wage and overtime requirements

Management Resources Description

Court Decision Flores v. City of San Gabriel (9th Cir., 2016) 824 F.3d 890

Office of Management and Budget Administrative Relief for Recipients and Applicants of Federal

Publication Financial Assistance Directly Impacted by COVID-19 due to
Loss of Operations, Memo M-20-17, March 19, 2020

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Website U.S. Department of Labor, Wage and Hour Division

Website Internal Revenue Service

Website School Services of California, Inc.

Website CSBA

Cross References

Code Description

0470 COVID-19-MitigationPlanrCOVID-19 Mitigation Plan

3100 BudgetBudget

3100 BudgetBudget

3400 Management-Of District-AssetsfAccountsManagement Of
District Assets/Accounts

3400 Management Of District-Assets/AccountsManagement Of

District Assets/Accounts



https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=232.#
https://legalservices.csba.org/#
https://www.dol.gov/whd#
http://www.irs.gov/#
http://www.sscal.com/#
http://www.csba.org/#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=D4uOm9WPslsh0HwKjuRwh5qslshw==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=uUslsh3GplusdkFV3JQ4gsdaQVvA==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=plusqbNfnXnpWElcGBEwkM0Jg==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=nBqYe39juHyFOD3Q4yCcOg==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=nBqYe39juHyFOD3Q4yCcOg==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=k4hbSSfQxiXWadplusOlkBjmQ==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=k4hbSSfQxiXWadplusOlkBjmQ==#

155

3580 DistrictRecordsDistrict Records

3580 DistrictRecordsDistrict Records
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4154 Health-And-Welfare BenefitsHealth And Welfare Benefits
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HANFORD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

AGENDA REQUEST FORM

TO: Joy C. Gabler
FROM: Jaime Martinez

DATE: 1/12/24

FOR: [X] Board Meeting
[] Superintendent's Cabinet

FOR: [ ] Information
X] Action

Date you wish to have your item considered: 1/24/24

ITEM: Consider for approval Revised Administrative Regulation:
4161.1/4261.1/4361.1 - Personl Illness/Injury Leave

PURPOSE: Regulation updated to delete outdated material and to reflect NEW LAW (AB
1041, 2022) which includes a "designated person" in the definition of family member for whom
an employee may take leave to care for.

FISCAL IMPACT: None

RECOMMENDATIONS: Approve.

ADM -018
11/2019
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Board Policy Manual
Hanford Elementary School District

Regulation 4161.1: Personal lllness/Injury Leave Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date: 11/07/2001 | Last Revised Date: 01/09/2019 | Last Reviewed Date:
01/09/2019

Certificated employees employed full-timefive school days per week are entitled to 10 days'
leave of absence with full pay for personal illness or injury (sick leave) per school year of
service. Employees who work less than five school days per week (part-time employees)
shall be granted sick leave in proportion to the time they work. However, any part-time
employeeemployees who isare entitled to less than three days of paid sick leave per year
due to the amount of time worked shall be granted sick leave pursuant to Labor Code 246,
if he/she-isthey are eligible. (Education Code 44978; Labor Code 245-249)

B. Use of Sick Leave
Notification of Absence

An employee shall notify the district of his/her need to be absent as soon as such need is known,
so that substitute services may be secured. This notification shall include an estimate of the
expected duration of absence. If the absence becomes longer than estimated, the employee shall
so notify the district.

Certificated employees may use sick leave for absences due to:

1. Accident or illness, whether or not the absence arises out of erand in the course of
employment; quarantine which results from contact in the course of employment with
other persons having a contagious disease-during-the-employee'sperformance-of-his/her
duties; or temporary inability to perform assigned duties because of illness, accident, or
quarantine (Education Code 44964)

2. Pregnancy, miscarriage, childbirth, and related recovery (Education Code 44965, 44978)

3. Personal necessity (Education Code 44981)

4. Medical and dental appointments

5. Industrial accidents or illnesses when leave granted specifically for that purpose has been
exhausted (Education Code 44984)
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6. Need of the employee to bond with a child within one year of the child's birth, adoption, or
foster care placement (parental leave) (Education Code 44977.5; Government Code
12945.2-12945.6; 29 USC 2612; 29 CFR 825.112)

7. Need of the employee or histheremployee's family member, including a designated person,
as defined in Labor Code 245.5, for the diagnosis, care, or treatment of an existing health
condition or for preventive care { (Government Code 12945.2; Labor Code 233, 246.5)

8. Need of the employee to seek or obtain any relief or medical attention specified in Labor
Code 230(c) and/er 230.1(a) for the health, safety, or welfare of the employee or histherthe
employee's child, when the employee has been a victim of domestic violence, sexual
assault, or stalking (Labor Code 233, 246.5)

9—For the purposes specified in itemsltems #7-8, an employee may use, in any calendar year,
the amount of sick leave he/shethat would aeerdebe accrued during six months at
hisfherthe employee's then current rate of entitlement. (Labor Code 233)

10:1.
An employee may take sick leave at any time during the school year, even if credit for sick
leave has not yet been accrued. (Education Code 44978)

‘+For bargaining unit members, any other reason specified in the collective bargaining
agreement.

12—
An employee shall reimburse the district for any unearned sick leave used as of the date of

hisfhertermination.

13-
Unused days of sick leave shall be accumulated from year to year without
limitation. (Education Code 44978)

-
At the beginning of each school year, employees shall be notified of the amount of sick
leave they have accumulated.

C-Transferof Sick Leave

The district shall not require new employees to waive leave accumulated in a previous
district. (Education Code 44979, 44980)

The Superintendent or designee shall notify any certificated employee who leaves the
district after at least one school year of employment that if the employee accepts a
certificated position in another district, county office of education, or community college
district within one year, he/shethe employee may request that the district transfer his/herany
accumulated sick leave to the new employer. (Education Code 44979, 44980)
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b-

Additional Leave for Disabled Military Veterans
1

In addition to any other entitlement for sick leave with pay, a certificated employee who is a
former active duty member of the U.S. Armed Forces or a former or current member of the
California National Guard or a federal reserve component shall be entitled to sick leave with
pay of up to 10 days for the purpose of undergoing medical treatment, including mental
health treatment, for a military service-connected disability rated at 30 percent or more by
the U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs-. An eligible employee who works less than five
days per week shall be entitled to such leave in proportion to the time he/she-weorks:
worked. (Education Code 44978.2)

2—
The amount of leave shall be credited to the employee either on the date the employee
receives confirmation of the submission of his/herthe disability application to the U.S.
Department of Veterans Affairs or on the first day the employee begins or returns to
employment after active duty, whichever is later. When the employee receives his/herthe
disability rating decision, he/shethe employee shall report that information to the
Superintendent or designee. If the disability rating decision makes the employee eligible for
the leave, the time used before the decision shall be counted toward the 10-day maximum
leave. If the disability rating decision makes the employee ineligible for the leave, the
district may change the sick leave time used before the disability rating decision to an
alternative leave balance. (Education Code 44978.2)

3—
The Superintendent or designee may require verification, in accordance with the section
"Verification Requirements" below, that the employee used the leave to obtain treatment of
a military service-connected disability.

Leave for military-service connected disability shall be available for 12 months following
the first date that the leave was credited. Leave not used during the 12-month period shall
not be carried over and shall be forfeited. (Education Code 44978.2)

Notification of Absence

An employee shall notify the Superintendent or designee of the need to be absent as soon as such

need is known, so that substitute services may be secured. {Education-Code 44978.2)
E_Conti ' Al After Available Siek Is Exl LD ialP

1— If the duration of absence becomes shorter than estimated, the employee shall notify the
district not later than three o'clock in the afternoon of the day preceding the day on which
the employee intends to return to work. If the employee fails to notify the district and the
failure results in a substitute being secured, the cost of the substitute shall be deducted
from the employee's pay.
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Continued Absence After Available Sick Leave Is Exhausted/Differential Pay

During each school year, when a certificated employee has exhausted all available sick
leave, including all accumulated sick leave, and, due to illness or accident, continues to be
absent frem-histher-duties-for an additional period of up to five school months, the
employeedistrict shall receive-his/herdeduct from the employee's regular salary minusfor
that period the actual cost of a substitute to fill the position. If the district has made every
reasonable effort to secure the services of a substitute and has been unable to do so, the
amount that would have been paid to a substitute shall be deducted from the employee's
salary. (Education Code 44977)

2—
An employee shall not be provided more than one five-month period per illness or
accident. However, if the school year ends before the five-month period is exhausted, the
employee may take the balance of the five-month ARF--period in a subsequent school
year. (Education Code 44977)

Absence Beyond Five-Month Period/Reemployment List

If a certificated employee is not medically able to resume-histherdutiesreturn to work after
the five-month period provided pursuant to Education Code 44977, the employee shall be
placed either in another position or on a reemployment list. Placement on the
reemployment list shall be for 24 months for probationary employees or 39 months for
permanent employees and shall begin at the expiration of the five-month period. If during
this time the employee becomes medically able, he/shethe employee shall be returned to
employment in a position for which he/shethe employee is credentialed and

qualified. (Education Code 44978.1)

G-

Parental Leave

During-each-schoolyeara A certificated employee may use all available sick leave, including
accumulated sick leave, for the purpose of gqualifying parental leave for a period of up to 12

work weeks. The 12-week period shall be reduced by any period of sick leave, including
accumulated sick leave, taken during a period of such parental leave. (Education Code
44977.5)

Eligibility for such leave shall require employment by the district for at least 12 months but not
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require 1,250 hours of service with the district during the previous 12 months. (Education
Code 44977.5)

An employee who has exhausted all available sick leave, including accumulated sick leave,
and continues to be absent on account of parental leave shall receive differential pay of at
least 50 percent of the employee's regular salary for the remainder of the 12 work

weeks. (Education Code 44977.5)

Parental leave taken pursuant to Education Code 44977.5 shall run concurrently with the
parental leave taken pursuant to Government Code 12945.2 or 12945.6, and the aggregate
amount of parental leave shall not exceed 12 work weeks in a 12-month

period. (Education Code 44977.5; Government Code 12945.2, 12945.6)

H.
Verification Requirements
1
After any absence due to illness or injury, the employee shall verify the absence by

submitting a completed and signed district absence form to histherthe employee's
immediate supervisor.

2—The district may require written verification by the employee's physician for any absence
due to illness or injury in excess of five consecutive work days.
3—
The Superintendent or designee may require verification whenever an employee's absence
record shows chronic absenteeism or a pattern of absences immediately before or after
weekends and/or holidays or whenever available evidence clearly indicates that an absence
is not related to illness or injury.
4
In addition, the Superintendent or designee may require an employee to visit a physician
selected by the district, at district expense, in order to receive a report on the medical
. he-employee's need
for further leave of absence and a prognosis as to when the employee will be able to return
to work. If the report concludes that the employee's condition does not warrant continued
absence, the Superintendent or designee may, after giving notice to the employee, deny
further leave.

L
Any district request for additional verification by an employee's physician or a district-
selected physician shall be in writing and shall specify that the report to be submitted to
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the district should not contain the employee's genetic information.

6— Any genetic information received by the district on behalf of an employee shall be treated
as a confidential medical record, maintained in a file separate from the employee's
personnel file, and shat-not be disclosed except in accordance with 29 CFR 1635.9.

+—

Before returning to work, an employee who has been absent for surgery, hospitalization, or
extended medical treatment may be asked to submit a letter from his/hera physician
stating that he/shethe employee is able to return to duty and stipulating any necessary
restrictions or limitations.

I-Short-Term and Substitute Employees

, v Any short-term
or substitute employee upon commencement of employment shall be entitled to one hour of paid
sick leave for every 30 hours worked. Accrued paid sick days shall carry over to the following year
of employment. (Labor Code 246)

A short-term or substitute employee may use accrued sick leave for absences due to: (Labor Code
246.5)

1. His/her own need or the need of a family member, as defined in Labor Code 245.5, for the
diagnosis, care, or treatment of an existing health condition or for preventive care

2. Need of the employee to obtain or seek any relief or medical attention specified in Labor
Code 230(c) and 230.1(a) for the health, safety, or welfare of the employee, or his/her child,

when the employee has been a victim of domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking

¥

Healthy Workplaces, Healthy Families Act Requirements

No employee shall be denied the right to use accrued sick days, and the district shall not
in any manner discriminate or retaliate against an employee for using or attempting to use
sick leave, filing a complaint with the Labor Commissioner, or alleging district violation of
Labor Code 245-249.

To ensure the district's compliance with Labor Code 245-249, the Superintendent or designee shall:

1. At a conspicuous location in each workplace, display a poster on paid sick leave that
includes the following information:

a. That an employee is entitled to accrue, request, and use paid sick days

b. The ameuntnumber of sick days provided by Labor Code 245-249



164

c. The terms of use of paid sick days

d. That discrimination or retaliation against an employee for requesting and/or using
sick leave is prohibited by law and that an employee has the right to file a complaint
with the Labor Commissioner if the district discriminates or retaliates against

himtherthe employee

2.1.Provide at least 24 hours or three days of paid sick leave (accrued based on time worked)
to each eligible employee to use per year and allow eligible employees to use accrued sick

leave upon reasonable request

3.2.Provide eligible employees written notice, on their pay stub or other document issued with
their pay check, of the amount of paid sick leave they have available

4.3.Keep a record documenting the hours worked and paid sick days accrued and used by each

eligible employee for three years

Policy Reference Disclaimer:

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in

the subject matter of the policy.
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quarantine
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Board Policy Manual
Hanford Elementary School District

Regulation 4261.1: Personal lliness/Injury Leave Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date: 11/07/2001 | Last Revised Date: 01/09/2019 | Last Reviewed Date:
01/09/2019

Classified employees employed five days a week are entitled to 12 daysdays' leave of
absence with full pay perfiscalyearfor personal illness or injury (sick leave).) per fiscal year.
Employees who work less than a full fiscal year or fewer than five days a week (part-time
employees) shall be granted sick leave in proportion to the time they work. However, any
part-time employee-whose-work-hoursemployees who are se-few-to-entitle-him/herentitled to
less than 24 hours of paid sick leave per fiscal year due to the amount of time worked shall be
granted sick leave pursuant to Labor Code 246, if he/she-isthey are eligible. (Education
Code 45191; Labor Code 245-249)

Use of Sick Leave
A classified employee may use sick leave for absences due to:

1. Accident or illness, whether or not the absence arises out of or in the course of
employment, or by quarantine which results from contact in the course of employment

with other persons having a contagious disease during-the-employee'sperformanceof
hisfher-duties— (Education Code 45199)

2. Pregnancy, miscarriage, childbirth, and related recovery (Education Code 45193)

3. Personal necessity (Education Code 45207)

4. Medical erand dental appointments, in increments of not less than .25 of one hour

5. Industrial accident or illness when leave granted specifically for that purpose has been
exhausted erisnotavailable- (Education Code 45192)

6. Need of an employee to bond with a child within one year of the child's birth, adoption, or
foster care placement (parental leave) (Education Code 45196.1; Government Code
12945.2,12945.6; 29 USC 2612; 29 CFR 825.112)

7. Need of the employee or histherthe employee's family member, including a designated
person, as defined in Labor Code 245.5, for the diagnosis, care, or treatment of an existing
health condition or for preventive care (Government Code 12945.2; Labor Code 233, 246.5)




8. Need of the employee to seek or obtain any relief or medical attention specified in Lal;gg
Code 230(c) and 230.1(a) for the health, safety, or welfare of the employee; or his/herthe
employee's child, when the employee has been a victim of domestic violence, sexual
assault, or stalking (Labor Code 233, 246.5)

For the purposes specified in itemsltems #7-8, an employee may use, in any calendar year,
the amount of sick leave he/shethat would aeeruebe accrued during six months at his/herthe
employee's then current rate of entitlement. (Labor Code 233)

An employee may take leave for personal illness or injury at any time during the year, even
if credit for such leave has not yet been accrued. However, a new full-time classified
employee shall not be entitled to more than six days of sick leave, or the proportionate
amount to which the employee may be entitled, until he/shethe first day of the month after the
employee has completed six months of active service with the district. (Education Code
45191)

Unused days of sick leave shall be accumulated from year to year without
limitation. (Education Code 45191)

An employee shall reimburse the district for any unearned sick leave used as of the date of
histhertermination.

The district shall not require newly employed classified employees to waive leave
accumulated in a previous district. However, if the employee's previous employment was
terminated for cause, the transfer of the accumulated leave shall be made only if approved
by the Governing Board. (Education Code 45202)

The Superintendent or designee shall notify any classified employee whose employment
with the district is terminated after at least one calendar year for reasons other than for
cause that, if he/shethe employee accepts employment in another district, county office of
education, or community college district within one year of the termination of
employment, he/she-shall-be-entitled-tethe employee may request that the district transfer
histherany accumulated sick leave to histherthe new employer. (Education Code 45202)

Additional Leave for Disabled Military Veterans
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In addition to any other entitlement for sick leave with pay, a classified employee who is a
former active duty member of the U.S. Armed Forces or a former or current member of the
California National Guard or a federal reserve component shall be entitled to sick leave
with pay of up to 12 days for the purpose of undergoing medical treatment, including
mental health treatment, for a military service-connected disability rated at 30 percent or
higher by the U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs. An eligible employee empleyedwho
works less than five days per week shall be entitled to such leave in proportion to the time
he/she-weorks-worked. (Education Code 45191.5)

The amount of leave shall be credited to the employee either on the date the employee
receives confirmation of the submission of his/herthe disability application to the U.S.
Department of Veterans Affairs or on the first day the employee begins or returns to
employment after active duty, whichever is later. When the employee receives his/herthe
disability rating decision, he/shethe employee shall report that information to the
Superintendent or designee. If the disability rating decision makes the employee eligible
for the leave, the time used before the decision shall be counted toward the 12-day
maximum leave. If the disability rating decision makes the employee ineligible for the
leave, the district may change the sick leave time used before the disability rating decision
to an alternative leave balance. (Education Code 45191.5)

The Superintendent or designee may require verification, in accordance with the section
"Verification Requirements" below, that the employee used the leave to obtain treatment
of a military service-connected disability.

Leave for military-service connected disability shall be available for 12 months following
the first date that the leave was credited. Leave not used during the 12-month period shall
not be carried over and shall be forfeited. (Education Code 45191.5)

Notification of Absence

An employee shall notify the Superintendent or the designated manager or supervisor of
histherthe need to be absent as soon as such need is known so that the services of a
substitute may be secured as necessary. This notification shall include an estimate of the
expected duration of absence. If the absence becomes longer than estimated, the
employee shall so notify the district. If the duration of absence becomes shorter than
estimated, the employee shall notify the district not later than three o'clock in the
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afternoon of the day preceding the day on which he/shethe employee intends to return to

work. If the employee fails to notify the district and the failure results in a substitute being
secured, the cost of the substitute shall be deducted from the employee's pay.

Continued Absence afterAfter Available Sick Leave Is Exhausted/Differential Pay

Each year, each regular classified employee shall be credited with no fewer than 100
working days of paid leave for personal illness or injury, including current year and
accumulated days of leave. When the current year and accumulated days at full pay are
exhausted, the ﬂembe#remamder of eay&ef—abseﬂee—t-hat—repteseﬂt—the d#ereﬂee—leetweeemO

eeHeenvebatganﬂqgeweemaqpshall be compensated at least 50 percent of the employee s

regular salary. Any of the 100 days of leave not used during the year in which they are
credited shall be forfeited and shall not accumulate from year to year. This paid leave shall
be exclusive of any other paid leave, holidays, vacation, or compensatory time to which the
employee may be entitled. (Education Code 45196)

Parental Leave

During each school year, a classified employee may use all available sick leave, including
accumulated sick leave, for the purpose of parental leave for a period of up to 12 work
weeks. The 12-week period shall be reduced by any period of sick leave, including
accumulated sick leave, taken during a period of such parental leave. (Education Code
45196.1)

Eligibility for such leave shall not require 1,250 hours of service with the district during the
previous 12 months. (Education Code 45196.1)

An employee who has exhausted all available sick leave, including accumulated sick leave,
and continues to be absent on account of parental leave shall receive differential pay of at
least 50 percent of the employee's regular salary for the remainder of the 12 work weeks

compensated-at-50%-of the-employee'sregularsalary-. (Education Code 45196.1)
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Parental leave taken pursuant to Education Code 45196.1 shall run concurrently with the
parental leave taken pursuant to Government Code 12945.2 or 12945.6, and the aggregate
amount of parental leave shall not exceed 12 work weeks in a 12-month

period. (Education Code 45196.1; Government Code 12945.2, 12945.6)

Extension of Leave

A permanent employee who is absent because of a personal illness or injury and who has
exhausted all available sick leave, vacation, compensatory overtime, and any other paid
leave shall be so notified, in writing, and offered an opportunity to request additional
leave. The Board may grant the employee additional leave, paid or unpaid, for a period not
to exceed six months and may renew this leave for two additional six-month periods or for
lesser periods. The total additional leave granted shall not exceed 18 months. (Education
Code 45195)

If the employee is still unable to resume-hisfherdutiesreturn to work after all available paid
and unpaid leaves have been exhausted, the employee shall be placed on a reemployment
list for a period of 39 months. If during this time the employee becomes medically able-te
resume, the duties-ef-histherpesition-he/sheemployee shall be offered reemployment in the
first vacancy in the classification of his/herthe employee's previous assignment. During the
39 months, the employee's reemployment shall take preference over all other applicants
except those laid off for lack of work or lack of funds, in which case the employee shall be
ranked according to histherseniority. (Education Code 45195)

Verification Requirements

After any absence due to illness or injury, the employee shall submit a completed and
signed district absence form to his/herthe employee's immediate supervisor.

The Superlntendent or desrgnee may—aieany—trme requrre aéd%reHaJ—WFr%’Eeﬂ—VGrlflcatlon—by

; , ired whenever an
employee's absence record shows chronlc absenteelsm ora pattern of absences
immediately before or after weekends and/or holidays or whenever available evidence




174
clearly indicates that an absence is not related to illness or injury-erwhen-an-employeeis

absent five consecutive work days or more.

In addition, the Superintendent or designee may require an employee to visit a physician
selected by the district, at district expense, in order to receive a report on the medical
condition of the employee. The report shall include a statement as to the employee's need
for additional leave of absence and a prognosis as to when the employee will be able to
return to work. If the report concludes that the employee's condition does not warrant
continued absence, the Superintendent or designee may, after giving notice to the
employee, deny the request for additional leave.

Any district request for additional verification by an employee's physician or a district-
selected physician shall be in writing and shall specify that the report to be submitted to
the district should not contain the employee's genetic information

. Any genetic information received by the district on behalf of an employee shall be treated
as a confidential medical record, maintained in a file separate from the employee's
personnel file, and shall not be disclosed except in accordance with 29 CFR 1635.9.

Before returning to work, an employee who has been absent for surgery, hospitalization,
or extended medical treatment may be asked to submit a letter from his/hera physician
stating that he/shethe employee is able to return to work and stipulating any
recommendednecessary restrictions or limitations.

A determination as to whether work restrictions can be reasonably accommodated shall be made
by the district in accordance with Board policy and administrative regulations.

Short-Term and Substitute Employees

Except for a retired annuitant who is not reinstated to the retirement system, any short-term or
substitute employee upon commencement of employment shall be entitled to one hour of paid
sick leave for every 30 hours worked. Accrued paid sick days shall carry over to the following year
of employment. (Labor Code 246)

A short-term or substitute employee may use accrued sick leave for absences due to: (Labor Code
246.5)

1. His/her own need or the need of a family member, as defined in Labor Code 245.5, for the
diagnosis, care, or treatment of an existing health condition or for preventive care

2. Need of the employee to obtain or seek any relief or medical attention specified in Labor
Code 230(c) and 230.1(a) for the health, safety, or welfare of the employee, or his/her child,
when the employee has been a victim of domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking
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Healthy Workplaces, Healthy Families Act Requirements

No employee, including a short-term or substitute employee, shall be denied the right to
use accrued sick days and the district shall not in any manner discriminate or retaliate
against an employee for using or attempting to use sick leave, filing a complaint with the
Labor Commissioner, or alleging district violation of Labor Code 245-249.

To ensure the district's compliance with Labor Code 245-249, the Superintendent or designee shall:

1. At a conspicuous location in each workplace, display a poster on paid sick leave that
includes the following information:

a. That an employee is entitled to accrue, request, and use paid sick days
b. The ameuntnumber of sick days provided by Labor Code 245-249
c. The terms of use of paid sick days

d. That discrimination or retaliation against an employee for requesting and/or using
sick leave is prohibited by law and that an employee has the right to file a complaint
with the Labor Commissioner if the district discriminates or retaliates against

himtherthe employee

2. Provide at least 24 hours or three days of paid sick leave-{acerued-based-on-time-worked)

to each eligible employee to use per year and allow eligible employees to use accrued sick
leave upon reasonable request

3. Provide eligible employees written notice, on their pay stub or other document issued with
their pay check, of the amount of paid sick leave they have available

4. Keep a record documenting the hours worked and paid sick days accrued and used by each
eligible employee for three years

Policy Reference Disclaimer:

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in
the subject matter of the policy.

State Description

Ed. Code 45103 Classified service in districts not incorporating the merit
system

Ed. Code 45190 Leaves of absence and vacations; classified

Ed. Code 45191 Personal illness and injury leave; classified employees



https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45103.#
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45103.#
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45190.#
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45191.#

Ed. Code 45191.5
Ed. Code 45193

Ed. Code 45195
Ed. Code 45196
Ed. Code 45196.1

Ed. Code 45202

Gov. Code 12945.1-12945.2

Gov. Code 12945.6
Lab. Code 230
Lab. Code 230.1

Lab. Code 233
Lab. Code 245-249

Federal
29 CFR 1635.1-1635.12

29 CFR 825.100-825.702
29 USC 2601-2654
42 USC 2000ff-2000ff-11

Management Resources
Court Decision

Court Decision

Website

Cross References

Code
0470

4032

411242

411242
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Leave for military service-connected disability

Leave of absence for pregnancy; use of sick leave under

certain circumstance

Additional leave

Salary deductions during sick leave; classified employees

Differential pay during parental leave up to 12 weeks after
sick leave is exhausted

Transfer of accumulated sick leave and other benefits

California Family Rights Act

Parental leave

Accommodations and leave for victims of domestic violence

Employers with 25 or more employees; domestic violence,
sexual assault, and stalking victims; right to time off

Leave to attend to family illness

Healthy Workplaces, Healthy Families Act of 2014

Description
Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act of 2008

Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993
Family Care and Medical Leave Act
Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act of 2008

Description
California School Employees Association v. Colton Joint
Unified School District, (2009) 170 Cal.App.4th 957

California School Employees Association v. Tustin Unified
School District, (2007) 148 Cal.App.4th 510

CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services

Description
COVID-19-MitigationPlanCOVID-19 Mitigation Plan

Reasonable-AccommodationReasonable Accommodation
Prug-And-Alcohol FestingForSchool BusBPriversDrug And

Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

Prug-And-Alcohol FestingForSchool BusBriversDrug And



https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45191.5.#
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45193.#
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45193.#
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45195.#
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45196.#
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45196.1.#
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45196.1.#
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=45202.#
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=3.&title=2.&part=2.8.&chapter=6.&article=1.#
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=230.#
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=230.1.#
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=230.1.#
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=233.#
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&division=2.&title=&part=1.&chapter=1.&article=1.5.#
https://legalservices.csba.org/#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=D4uOm9WPslsh0HwKjuRwh5qslshw==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=MDNttgA2FUTLFKgyslshwEs6w==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=BrQb5ktqhIwseyTswm1oAA==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=BrQb5ktqhIwseyTswm1oAA==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=Wy7YEw5O2replusvbaZh1GhsQ==#

41129
4112.9-E(1)
41134

4154
41614159
4161
416111

4161.11

4161.2
4161.5

4161.8

41618
4161 8-EPBHY
41619
41619

421242

421242

42129
4212.9-E(1)
42134
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Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

Employee NetificationsEmployee Notifications
Employee NotificationsEmployee Notifications

Temporary-Meodified/Light-Duty-AssignmentTemporary
Modified/Light-Duty Assignment

Working Remotely

Employees With-Infectious DiseaseEmployees With Infectious

Disease

Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

Health-And-Welfare BenefitsHealth And Welfare Benefits

Health-And-Welfare BenefitsHealth And Welfare Benefits

LeavesEmployee Assistance Programs

Leavesl eaves
Industrial-Accident/HinessLeavel eaves
Industrial-Accident/HiressLeavelndustrial Accident/IlIness

Leave

Personal-LeavesPersonal Leaves

Military-LeaveMilitary Leave
Family-Care- And-MedicalLeaveFamily Care And Medical

Leave

Earmilv C And Medical

Earmilv C And Medical

CatastrophicLeave ProgramCatastrophic Leave Program
CatastrophicLeave ProgramCatastrophic Leave Program
Prug-And-Alcohol FestingForSchool BusBriversDrug And

Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

Prug-And-Alcohol FestingForSchool BusBriversDrug And

Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers
Employee NotificationsEmployee Notifications
Employee NotificationsEmployee Notifications

Temporary-Medified/Light-Duty-AssigamentTemporary
Modified/Light-Duty Assignment
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https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=USuW034TqDrfkZmfhulNHA==#
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https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=TWhib797WqJWt0plusPInM9tA==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=ZPJVEpQJnH8n06eTWFtuTg==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=fbRga5VfOWJoZGO89LouWg==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=gTOuXYL3UXWWE7SthJzYEg==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=ZbdK3YQCM4uAxOtIctVwlQ==#
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https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030779&revid=doLplusKB4kMTSYH7ecilSslsh8w==#
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Working Remotely

Probationary/Permanent-StatusProbationary/Permanent

Status

Layeoff/RehirelLayoff/Rehire

Employees With-trfectious DiseaseEmployees With Infectious

Disease

Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

Health-And-Welfare BenefitsHealth And Welfare Benefits

Health-And-Welfare BenefitsHealth And Welfare Benefits

LeavesEmployee Assistance Programs

Leavesleaves
Industrial-Accident/HinessLeavel eaves
Industrial-Accident/HiressLeavelndustrial Accident/IlIness

Leave

Personal-LeavesPersonal Leaves

Military-LeaveMilitary Leave
Family-Care And-Medical LeaveFamily Care And Medical

Leave

EarmilyC And Medical

EarmilyC And Medical

CatastrophicLeave ProgramCatastrophic Leave Program
CatastrophicLeave ProgramCatastrophic Leave Program
Prug-And-Alcohol FestingForSchool BusBPriversDrug And

Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers

Prug-And-Alcohol FestingForSchool Bus BPriversDrug And

Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers
Employee NotificationsEmployee Notifications
Employee NotificationsEmployee Notifications

Temporary-Meodified/Light-Duty-AssignmentTemporary
Modified/Light-Duty Assignment

Working Remotely

Employees With-Infectious DiseaseEmployees With Infectious
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Disease

4354 Health-And-Welfare BenefitsHealth And Welfare Benefits

4354 Health-And-Welfare BenefitsHealth And Welfare Benefits

43614359 LeavesEmployee Assistance Programs

4361 Leavesleaves

43614+ trelustriat-AccidentAlness Leaveleaves

4361.11 rdustrial-AceidentAHnessteavelndustrial Accident/IlIness
Leave

4361.2 Personal-LeavesPersonal Leaves

4361.5 Military LeaveMilitary Leave

4361.8 EFamily-Care-And-Medical- LeaveFamily Care And Medical
Leave

4361.9 Catastrophic Leave ProgramCatastrophic Leave Program

43619 CatastrophicteaveProgramCatastrophic Leave Program
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Board Policy Manual
Hanford Elementary School District

Regulation 4361.1: Personal lliness/Injury Leave Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date: 03/04/1992 | Last Revised Date: 01/09/2019 | Last Reviewed Date:
01/09/2019

1+ Twelve-month management, supervisory, and confidential employees are entitled to 12
days ef-paid leave of absence with full pay per fiscal year for personal illness or injury (Sick
Leave). Employees working fewer than 12 months or fewer than five days per week shall be
granted comparable sick leave in proportion to the time they work.

2. Management and supervisory employees and permanent classified management,
supervisory, and confidential personnel may take sick leave at any time during the school
year, even if credit for sick leave has not yet been accrued. Probationary classified
management and confidential personnel are limited to six days of sick leave use until the
completion of six months of service.

Use of Sick Leave

B- Notification of Absence

An employee shall notify the district of his/her need to be absent as soon as such need is known,
so that substitute services may be secured. This notification shall include an estimate of the
expected duration of absence. If the absence becomes longer than estimated, the employee shall
so notify the district.

e
Certificated and Classified employees may use sick leave for absences due to:

1. Accident or illness, whether or not the absence arises out of or in the course of
employment; quarantine which results from contact in the course of employment with
other persons having a contagious disease during-the-employee's-performance-of-histher
duties; or temporary inability to perform assigned duties because of illness, accident, or
quarantine. (Education Code 44964, 45199)

2. Pregnancy, miscarriage, childbirth, and related recovery. (Education Code 44965, 44978,
45193)

3. Personal necessity. (Education Code 44981, 45207)

4. Medical and Dental appointments (ferconfidential-classified-staff in not less than
increments of .25% of one hour for confidential classified staff).
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5. Industrial accidents or illnesses when leave granted specifically for that purpose has been

exhausted ornetavailable: (Education Code 44984, 45192)

6. Need of the employee to bond with a child within one year of the child's birth, adoption, or
foster care placement (parental leave). (Education Code 44977.5, 45196.1; Government
Code 12945.2142945.6; 29 USC 2612; 29 CFR 825.112)

7. Need of the employee or his/her the employee’s family member, including a designated
person, as defined in Labor Code 245.5, for the diagnosis, care, or treatment of an existing
health condition or for preventive care. (Government Code 12945.2, Labor Code 233, 246.5)

8. Need of the employee to seek or obtain any relief or medical attention specified in Labor
Code 230(c) and/er 230.1(a) for the health, safety, or welfare of the employee or histher the
employee’s child, when the employee has been a victim of domestic violence, sexual
assault, or stalking. (Labor Code 233, 246.5)

9. Accumulated sick leave may also be used, within the limits established by Board of Trustees
policy and administrative regulations, for donations to a catastrophic sick leave bank.

10: For the purposes specified in items #7-8, an employee may use, in any calendar year, the
amount of sick leave he/she that would aeerue be accured during six months at histher the
employee’s then current rate of entitlement. (Labor Code 233).

- A certificated or classified employee may take sick leave at any time during the school year,
even if credit for sick leave has not yet been accrued. (Education Code 44978). However, a
new full-time classified employee shall not be entitled to more than six days of sick leave or
the proportionate amount to which the employee may be entitled, until he/she the first
day of the month after the employee has completed six months of active service with the
district. (Education Code 45191)

142 An employee shall reimburse the district for any unearned sick leave used as of the date of

his/her termination.

13- Unused days of sick leave shall be accumulated from year to year without limitation.
(Education Code 44978)

At the beginning of each school year, employees shall be notified of the amount of sick
leave they have accumulated.

D- Transfer of Sick Leave

1+ New employees may transfer in the amount of unused sick leave earned at another
California school district, county office of education, or community college district, if the
employee left that employment within a year prior to employment by the district.

2. The district shall not require newly classified employees to waive leave accumulated in a
previous district (Education Code 44979, 44980). However, if the employee's previous
employment was terminated for cause, the transfer of the accumulated leave shall be made
only if approved by the Governing Board. (Education Code 45202)
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3. A certificated employee who leaves the district after at least one year of employment and

accepts an employment in another district, county office of education, or community
college district may request that the district transfer his/her accumulated sick leave to the
new employer (Education Code 44979, 44980).

4. The Superintendent or designee shall notify any classified employee whose employment
with the district is terminated after at least one calendar year for reasons other than cause
that, if he/she the employee accepts employment in another district, county office of
education or community college district within one year of the termination of employment,
he/she the employee shall be entitled to request that the district within one year of the
termination of employment, transfer histher the employee’s accumulated sick leave to
his/her the employee’s new employer. (Education Code 45202)

E. Additional Leave for Disabled Military Veterans

4+ In addition to any other entitlement for sick leave with pay, an employee who is a former
active duty member of the U.S. Armed Forces or a former or current member of the
California National Guard or a federal reserve component shall be entitled to sick leave with
pay of up to 10 days for certificated employees and 12 days for classified employees for the
purpose of undergoing medical treatment, including mental health treatment, for a military
service-connected disability rated at 30 percent or more (higher) by the U.S. Department of
Veterans Affairs . An eligible employee who works or is employed less than five days per
week shall be entitled to such leave in proportion to the time he/she-werks-worked.
(Education Code 44978.2, 45191.5)

2. The amount of leave shall be credited to the employee either on the date the employee
receives confirmation of the submission of his/her the disability application to the U.S.
Department of Veterans Affairs or on the first day the employee begins or returns to
employment after active duty, whichever is later. When the employee receives his/her the
disability rating decision, he/she the employee shall report that information to the
Superintendent or designee. If the disability rating decision makes the employee eligible for
the leave, the time used before the decision shall be counted toward the 10-day maximum
leave for certificated employees and 12-day for classified employees. If the disability rating
decision makes the employee ineligible for the leave, the district may change the sick leave
time used before the disability rating decision to an alternative leave balance. (Education
Code 44978.2, 45191.5)

3. The Superintendent or designee may require verification, in accordance with the section
"Verification Requirements” below, that the employee used the leave to obtain treatment of
a military service-connected disability.

4. Leave for military-service connected disability shall be available for 12 months following the
first date that the leave was credited. Leave not used during the 12-month period shall not
be carried over and shall be forfeited. (Education Code 44978.2, 45191.5)

F- Continued Absence After Available Sick Leave Is Exhausted/Differential Pay
4+  When an employee has exhausted all current-year and accumulated sick leave and

continues to be absent from histher-duties work due to illness or accident, the employee
shall receive 50% of histher the employee’s regular salary for an additional period of up to
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five calendar months.

2. An certificated employee is entitled to only one five-month period per illness or accident. If
the school/fiscal year ends before the five-month period is exhausted, the employee may
take only the unused balance of the five-month period in the subsequent school/fiscal year.

A classified or confidential employee shall be credited with no fewer than 100 working days
of paid leave for personal illness or injury, including current year and accumulated days of
leave. When the current year and accumulated days at full pay are exhausted, the
remainder of the 100 days shall be compensated at least 50 percent of the employee's
regular salary. Any of the 100 days of leave not used during the year in which they are
credited shall be forfeited and shall not accumulate from year to year. This paid leave shall
be exclusive of any other paid leave, holidays, vacation, or compensatory time to which the
employee may be entitled. (Education Code 45196)

G. Parental Leave

Buring-each-schoolyear—a A certificated employee may use all available sick leave, including
accumulated sick leave, for the purpose of qualifying parental leave for a period of up to 12 work

weeks. The 12-week period shall be reduced by any period of sick leave, including accumulated
sick leave, taken during a period of such parental leave. (Education Code 44977.5, 45196.1)

Eligibility for such leave shall not require 1,250 hours of service with the district during the previous
12 months. (Education Code 44977.5)

An employee who has exhausted all available sick leave, including accumulated sick leave, and
continues to be absent on account of parental leave shall receive differential pay for the remainder
of the 12 work weeks. (Education Code 44977.5)

Parental leave taken pursuant to Education Code 44977.5 shall run concurrently with the parental
leave taken pursuant to Government Code 12945.2 or 12945.6, and the aggregate amount of
parental leave shall not exceed 12 work weeks in a 12-month period. (Education Code 44977.5;
Government Code 12945.2, 12945.6)

During each school year, a classified employee may use all available sick leave, including
accumulated sick leave, for the purpose of parental leave for a period of up to 12 work weeks. The
12-week period shall be reduced by any period of sick leave, including accumulated sick leave,
taken during a period of such parental leave. (Education Code 45196.1)

Eligibility for such leave shall not require 1,250 hours of service with the district during the previous
12 months. (Education Code 45196.1)

An employee who has exhausted all available sick leave, including accumulated sick leave, and
continues to be absent on account of parental leave shall receive differential pay of at least 50
percent of the employee’s regular salary for the remainder of the 12 work weeks cempensated-at

50%-of-the-employee'sregularsalary. (Education Code 45196.1)

Parental leave taken pursuant to Education Code 45196.1 shall run concurrently with the parental
leave taken pursuant to Government Code 12945.2 or 12945.6, and the aggregate amount of
parental leave shall not exceed 12 work weeks in a 12-month period. (Education Code 45196.1;
Government Code 12945.2, 12945.6)
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H- Absence Beyond Five-Month Period or 100 Day Extended Sick Leave/Reemployment List

1+ When a management, supervisory, or confidential employee has exhausted all paid leaves,
vacation, and compensatory time credits and is still unable to return to work, he/she the
employee may request additional, unpaid leave. Additional leave is subject to consideration
of the needs of the district and requires approval by the Superintendent or designee and
the Board.

2. After an employee has exhausted all available paid and unpaid leave and is not medically
able to resume-his/her-duties return to work and cannot be placed in another position,
he/she the employee shall be placed on a reemployment list.

a. If the employee is a certificated employee in probationary status, he/she the
employee shall be placed on the reemployment list for 24 months beginning at the
expiration of the five-month period;

b. If the employee is a permanent certificated employee or a probationary or
permanent classified employee, the employee shall be placed on the reemployment
list for 39 months.

c. If during this time the employee becomes medically able to resume work, he/she
the employee shall be re-employed in a vacant position in the classification of
histher the employee’s previous employment. The employee's reemployment shall
take preference over any other person except former employees who were laid off
for lack of work or funds, if any, in which case the employee shall be offered
reemployment in accordance with-histher to seniority ranking. (Education Code

45195)

kL Verification Requirements

1+ After any absence due to illness or injury, the employee shall verify the absence by
submitting a completed and signed district absence report form to histher the employee’s
immediate supervisor.

2. The district may require written verification by the employee's physician or practitioner for
any absence due to illness or injury of five consecutive work days or more.

3. Before returning to work, an employee who has been absent for surgery, hospitalization or
extended medical treatment shall submit a letter from his/her the employee’s physician
stating that he/she the employee is able to return to work and stipulating any work
restrictions or limitations. The determination whether work restrictions or limitations can be
accommodated shall be made by the district in accordance with Board policy and
administrative regulations.

4. Any district request for additional verification by an employee's physician or a district-
selected physician shall be in writing and shall specify that the report to be submitted to
the district should not contain the employee's genetic information.
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5. Any genetic information received by the district on behalf of an employee shall be treated
as a confidential medical record, maintained in a file separate from the employee's
personnel file, and shat-not be disclosed except in accordance with 29 CFR 1635.9.

L. Healthy Workplaces, Healthy Families Act Requirements

No employee shall be denied the right to use accrued sick days, and the district shall not in any
manner discriminate or retaliate against an employee for using or attempting to use sick leave,
filing a complaint with the Labor Commissioner, or alleging district violation of Labor Code 245-
249.

To ensure the district's compliance with Labor Code 245-249, the Superintendent or designee shall:

1. At a conspicuous location in each workplace, display a poster on paid sick leave that
includes the following information:

a. That an employee is entitled to accrue, request, and use paid sick days
b. The ameunt number of sick days provided by Labor Code 245-249
c. The terms of use of paid sick days

d. That discrimination or retaliation against an employee for requesting and/or using
sick leave is prohibited by law and that an employee has the right to file a complaint
with the Labor Commissioner if the district discriminates or retaliates against
him/her the employee.

2. Provide at least 24 hours or three days of paid sick leave {acerued-based-on-time-worked)

to each eligible employee to use per year and allow eligible employees to use accrued sick
leave upon reasonable request

3. Provide eligible employees written notice, on their pay stub or other document issued with
their pay check, of the amount of paid sick leave they have available

4. Keep a record documenting the hours worked and paid sick days accrued and used by each
eligible employee for three years
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HANFORD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

AGENDA REQUEST FORM

TO: Joy C. Gabler
FROM: Jaime Martinez

DATE: 1/12/24

FOR: [X] Board Meeting
[] Superintendent's Cabinet

FOR: [ ] Information
X] Action

Date you wish to have your item considered: 1/24/24

ITEM: Consider for approval Administrative Regulation recommended for Deletion:
4361.25 - Family Illness Leave

PURPOSE: Regulation recommended for deletion. Family Care and Medical Leave
information is contained in AR 4361.8. Remainder of regulation related to Paid Family Illness
Leave is obsolete.

FISCAL IMPACT: None

RECOMMENDATIONS: Approve.

ADM -018
11/2019
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Administrative Regulation
Family IlIness Leave

AR 4361.25

Personnel

A. Paid Family Illness Leave

1. Management, Supervisory and Confidential Employees of the district are entitled to a one

day leave of absence in the event of illness of any member of the employee's family for the
remainder of the 2013-14 school year. The employee's family in this instance shall include
husband, wife, children, parent, grandparent, grandchild, domestic partner and children (as
defined in Labor Code 233), or any relative living in the immediate household of the family.

No deduction from the salary of the employee shall be made for such absence. This leave
is non-cumulative. This leave will no longer be available after the 2013-14 school year.

(cf. 4361.1 Personal Iliness/Injury Leave)
B. Unpaid Family Care Leave:

1. Management, Supervisory and Confidential employees may take unpaid leave(s) for a
total of 12 weeks in any 12 month period to care for a seriously ill family member (Family
Medical Leave Act and California Family Rights Act). FMLA and CFRA leave shall run
concurrently. The employee's family in this instance shall include husband, wife, children,
parent, grandparent, grandchild, domestic partner and children (as defined in Labor Code 233),
or any relative living in the immediate household of the family.

The following provisions apply:
a. The employee must have completed one year of continuous service with the district.

b. The employee must submit, a statement from the treating physician or health care
provider which includes the date the condition commenced or will commence, the probably
duration of the condition, the need for the employee's care for the individual, and the estimated
length of time the employee's care is needed.

C. The condition of the family member must involve an illness, injury, impairment, or other
physical or mental condition which requires either inpatient care or continuing treatment or
supervision by a health care provider, and warrants the participation of a family member in the
care of the patient during the treatment period.

d. A management, supervisory or confident employee may request an extension of unpaid
family care leave beyond 12 weeks and or for the care of relative not living in the household of
the employee. Such requests are subject to verification and must be approved by the
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Superintendent.

e. By mutual consent between the employee and the district, subject to the Superintendent's
approval, the employee may use accrued sick leave in lieu of Unpaid Family Care Leave. Any
accrued vacation or compensatory time off must be exhausted prior to a request for use of
personal sick leave.

Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

44036-44037 Leaves of absence for judicial and official appearances
44963 Power to grant leaves of absence (certificated)

44981 Leave of absence for personal necessity (certificated)

44985 Leave of absence due to death in immediate family (certificated)
44987 Service as officer of employee organization (certificated)
44987.3 Leave of absence to serve on certain boards, commissions, etc.
45190 Leaves of absence and vacations (classified)

45194 Bereavement leave of absence (classified)

45198 Effect of provisions authorizing leaves of absence

45207 Personal necessity (classified)

45210 Service as officer of employee organization (classified)
FAMILY CODE

297.5 Domestic partner rights

GOVERNMENT CODE

3543.1 Release time for representatives of employee organizations
LABOR CODE

230-230.2 Leave for victims of domestic violence, sexual assault or specified felonies
230.3 Leave for emergency personnel

230.4 Leave for volunteer firefighters

230.8 Leave to visit child's school

233 llIness of child, parent, spouse, domestic partner or domestic partner's child
234 Absence control policy

PENAL CODE

667.5 Violent felony, defined

1192.7 Serious felony, defined

CALIFORNIA CONSTITUTION

Article 1, Section 8 Religious discrimination

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42

2000d-2000d-7 Title VII, Civil Rights Act of 1964

COURT DECISIONS

Rankin v. Commission on Professional Competence (1988) 24 Cal.3d 167

Management Resources:
WEB SITES
California Teachers Association: http://www.cta.org
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California Federation of Teachers: http://www.cft.org
California School Employees Association: http://www.csea.com

Regulation HANFORD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
approved: November 1, 2005Hanford, California
revised: December 11, 2013
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HANFORD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Human Resources Depariment
AGENDA REQUEST FORM

TO: Joy C. Gabler

FROM: Jaime Martinez

DATE: January 12, 2024

RE: (X) Board Meeting
( ) Superintendent’s Cabinet
() Information
(X) Action

DATE YOU WISH TO HAVE YOUR ITEM CONSIDERED: January 24, 2024

ITEM: Consider approval of personnel fransactions and related matters.

PURPOSE:
a. Employment

Classified

e Loren Braga, READY Program Tutor — 4.5 hrs., Monroe, effective 12/14/23

e Verenise Bravo, Account Technician Il - 8.0 hrs., Fiscal Services, effective
1/8/24

e Myra Guzman, Special Circumstance Aide - 5.75 hrs., Lincoln, effective
1/8/24

e Elizabeth Steen, READY Program Tutor — 4.5 hrs., Jefferson, effective 1/8/24

e Alijah Turner, READY Program Tutor — 4.5 hrs., Roosevelt, effective 12/5/23

e Milagros Valdenegro, READY Program Tutor — 4.5 hrs., Jefferson, effective
12/15/23

Classified Temps/Subs

Bryana Aguilar-Oliva, Substitute Yard Supervisor, effective 12/14/23
Dulce Ambrocio, Substitute Yard Supervisor, effective 12/5/23
Cecilia Ayala, Substitute Yard Supervisor, effective 1/8/24

Juan Botello, Substitute Yard Supervisor, effective 1/8/24

Clayton Crewse, Substitute Custodian |, effective 1/8/24

Juanita Cruz, Substitute Bilingual Clerk Typist II, effective 1/8/24
Cynthia Gonzalez, Substitute Yard Supervisor, effective 1/8/24
Dominic Izquierdo, Substitute Custodian |, effective 12/12/23
Mirandah Maciel, Substitute Yard Supervisor, effective 1/8/24
Aubreyanna Teague-Reeves, Substitute Yard Supervisor, effective 1/8/24
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e Esmeralda Torres-Gonzalez, Substitute Special Education Aide and Yard
Supervisor, effective 12/15/23

Lateral Change

¢ Michelle Banuelos, from Educational Tutor, K-8 — 4.5 hrs., Simas, to Special
Education Aide - 5.0 hrs., Jefferson, effective 1/8/24

e Lilly Goins, from Educational Tutor, K-8 — 4.5 hrs., Wilson, to Special
Education Aide — 5.0 hrs., Wilson, effective 1/8/24

e Carrie-Anne Rumpak, from Educational Tutor, K-8 — 4.5 hrs., Wilson, to
Special Education Aide — 5.0 hrs., Roosevelt, effective 1/8/24

Short Term Classified

e Melissa Arroyo, Short-Term Yard Supervisor — 3.25 hrs., Lincoln, effective
1/8/24-3/1/24

e Fatima Perico, Short-Term Yard Supervisor — 3.0 hrs., Lincoln, effective
1/8/24-3/1/24

Employment and Certification of Temporary Athletic Team Coaches pursuant
to Title 5 CCR 5594
e Weston Hardin, 7th Boys Soccer, Kennedy, effective 1/8/24-2/14/24

. Resignations

Classified

e Nesreen Almuntaser, READY Program Tutor — 4.5 hrs., Jefferson, effective
12/15/23

Rosalie Chavez, Yard Supervisor — 3.5 hrs., Richmond, effective 12/15/23
Samantha Coons, Educational Tutor, K-8 — 4.5 hrs., King, effective 12/15/23
William Davis, Substitute Paraprofessional (TK/K), effective 10/10/23
Betsabe Figueroa, Alternative Education Program Aide — 5.5 hrs.,
Community Day School, effective 1/19/24

Alexis Gasak, READY Program Tutor — 4.5 hrs., Richmond, effective 1/19/24
Lizette Gutierrez, Substitute Bilingual Clerk Typist ll, effective 8/2/23

Ashley Ruby, READY Program Tutor — 4.5 hrs., Monroe, effective 1/1/24
Elizabeth Steen, Yard Supervisor — 2.5 hrs., Washington, effective 1/5/24

Termination due to Failure to Complete Mandatory Training
e Jonathan Gutierrez, Substitute Custodian |, effective 6/9/23
e Kevin Ramirez, Substitute READY Program Tutor, effective 3/21/23

Termination Due to Lack of Availability

e James Allen, Substitute Custodian | and Yard Supervisor, effective 10/6/23

e Jose Castorena, Substitute Maintenance Worker |, effective 1/6/23

e Albert Chavez, Substitute Custodian |, effective 11/15/23

e Maritza Chiang Mesa, Substitute Bilingual Clerk Typist |, Translators: Orall
Interpreters, Translators: Written Translators and Yard Supervisor, effective
11/6/23
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Juliana Evans, Substitute READY Program Tutor, effective 9/19/23

Xavier Garcia, Substitute Special Education Aide, effective 5/2/23
Claire Hurtado, Substitute Educational Tutor, K-8, effective 1/18/23
Antonia Maldonado Arciga, Substitute Educational Tutor, K-8, Translators:
Oral Interpreters and Translators: Written Translators, effective 11/20/23
Daisy Maya-Gaona, Substitute Paraprofessional (TK/K), effective 12/5/23
Stephanie Medrano, Substitute Special Education Aide and
Paraprofessional (TK/K), effective 10/3/23

Margarita Meraz-Quintero, Special Education Aide, effective 10/20/23
lleanna Molina, Substitute Food Service Worker I/1l, effective 5/19/23
Jenna Nesbit, Substitute Library/Media Technician, effective 8/10/22
Zoraida Rivera-Manrique, Substitute Yard Supervisor, effective 11/9/23
Rosa Rodriguez, Substitute Clerk Typist |, effective 4/28/23

John Stafford, Substitute Bus Driver, effective 7/15/22

Nathan Tsutsui, Substitute READY Program Tutor, effective 10/13/23
Gabiriela Perez-Vigil, Substitute READY Program Tutor, effective 5/15/23

Retirement

e Deborah Ann Bray, Teacher, Monroe, effective 6/7/24
e Rhonda leronimo, Teacher, Monroe, effective 6/7/24
e Susan Schneider, Teacher, Monroe, effective 6/7/24

c. Volunteers

Name School
Porsche Espindola Jefferson
Gloria Vega Jefferson
Celeste Zaragoza Jefferson
Norma Zuniga Jefferson
Amanda Garza Corral Monroe
Christina M. Newman Monroe
Patrita Norton Washington

RECOMMENDATION: Approve.
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HANFORD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

AGENDA REQUEST FORM

TO: Joy C. Gabler
FROM: David Endo

DATE: 01/12/2024

FOR: [X] Board Meeting
[] Superintendent's Cabinet

FOR: [ ] Information
X]  Action

Date you wish to have your item considered: 01/24/2024

ITEM:
Consider acceptance of the audit report.

PURPOSE:
Education code 41020.3 requires the governing board of each local educational agency (LEA) to
review, at a public meeting, the annual audit of the LEA for the prior year by January 31.

There was one finding related to the instructional material Public Hearing being scheduled after

the first eight weeks of the beginning of the school year.

FISCAL IMPACT:
None.

RECOMMENDATIONS:
Accept the audit report.
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EideBailly.

CPAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS

December 14, 2023

To the Governing Board
Hanford Elementary School District
Hanford, California

We have audited the financial statements of Hanford Elementary School District (the District) as of and for
the year ended June 30, 2023, and have issued our report thereon dated December 14, 2023. Professional
standards require that we advise you of the following matters relating to our audit.

Our Responsibility in Relation to the Financial Statement Audit under Generally Accepted Auditing
Standards and Government Auditing Standards and our Compliance Audit under the Uniform Guidance

As communicated in our letter dated August 1, 2023, our responsibility, as described by professional
standards, is to form and express an opinion about whether the financial statements that have been prepared
by management with your oversight are presented fairly, in all material respects, in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and to express an opinion on
whether the District complied with the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance
Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the District’s major federal programs. Our
audit of the financial statements and major program compliance does not relieve you or management of its
respective responsibilities.

Our responsibility, as prescribed by professional standards, is to plan and perform our audit to obtain
reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit of financial statements includes consideration of internal control over financial
reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, as part of our audit, we considered the internal control of the District solely for the purpose of
determining our audit procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such internal control.

Our responsibility, as prescribed by professional standards as it relates to the audit of the District’s major
federal program compliance, is to express an opinion on the compliance for each of the District’s major
federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. An audit of
major program compliance includes consideration of internal control over compliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform
Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, as a part of our major program compliance audit, we considered internal control
over compliance for these purposes and not to provide any assurance on the effectiveness of the District’s
internal control over compliance.

What inspires you, inspires us. | eidebailly.com
6051 N. Fresno St., Ste. 101 | Fresno, CA 93710-5280 | T559.248.0871 | F 559.248.0875 | EOE
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We are also responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that are, in our
professional judgment, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting process.
However, we are not required to design procedures for the purpose of identifying other matters to
communicate to you.

We have provided our comments regarding internal controls during our audit in our Independent Auditor’s
Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit
of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards dated December 14,
2023. We have also provided our comments regarding compliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above and internal controls over compliance during our audit in our Independent Auditor’s Report
on Compliance with Each Major Federal Program and Report on Internal Control Over Compliance Required
by the Uniform Guidance dated December 14, 2023.

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit
We conducted our audit consistent with the planned scope and timing we previously communicated to you.
Compliance with All Ethics Requirements Regarding Independence

The engagement team, others in our firm, as appropriate, our firm, and other firms utilized in the
engagement, if applicable, have complied with all relevant ethical requirements regarding independence.

Qualitative Aspects of the Entity’s Significant Accounting Practices
Significant Accounting Policies

Management has the responsibility to select and use appropriate accounting policies. A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the District is included in Note 1 and 16 to the financial statements. As
described in Notes 1 to the financial statements, the District changed accounting policies related to accounting
for Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements (SBITA) activities to adopt the provisions of GASB
Statement No. 96, SBITAs. Accordingly, a restatement has been made to the governmental activities net position
as of July 1, 2022, to restate beginning net position. Our opinions are not modified with respect to this matter.

Significant Accounting Estimates

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based
on management’s current judgments. Those judgments are normally based on knowledge and experience
about past and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are
particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility
that future events affecting them may differ markedly from management’s current judgments.

The most sensitive accounting estimates affecting the financial statements were:

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) requires the District to calculate, recognize, and
report the costs and obligations associated with pensions in their financial statements. These amounts
were all based on the District’s proportionate share of the California State Teachers’ Retirement System
(CalSTRS) and the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) estimated net pension
liability, deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, and pension expense, which were
actuarially determined; utilizing projections of future contributions and future earnings, actuarial
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assumptions such as inflation, salary increases, mortality rates, and investment rate of return and
discount rates in the determination of the final balances reported in the CalSTRS and CalPERS audited
financial statements. The District’s proportionate share was determined by calculating the District’s share
of contributions to the pension plan relative to the contributions of all participating entities in the plan.

Management’s estimate of the Net OPEB liability, related deferred outflows of resources, deferred
inflows of resources, and OPEB expense are based on a calculation of actuarially determined
contributions for health insurance benefits.

Financial Statement Disclosures

Certain financial statement disclosures involve significant judgment and are particularly sensitive because of
their significance to financial statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting District’s financial
statements relate to Net Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) Liability and Plan (Note 10) and the Employee
Retirement Systems (Note 13).

Significant Difficulties Encountered during the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management relating to the performance of the
audit.

Uncorrected and Corrected Misstatements

For purposes of this communication, professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely
misstatements identified during the audit, other than those that we believe are trivial, and communicate
them to the appropriate level of management. Further, professional standards require us to also
communicate the effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods on the relevant classes of
transactions, account balances or disclosures, and the financial statements as a whole. Uncorrected
misstatements or matters underlying those uncorrected misstatements could potentially cause future-period
financial statements to be materially misstated, even though the uncorrected misstatements are immaterial
to the financial statements currently under audit.

The following summarizes uncorrected financial statement misstatements whose effects in the current and
prior periods, as determined by management, are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the
financial statements taken as a whole.

Governmental Activities:
General Fund
Decrease in State Lottery Revenue $136,228
Decrease in Accounts Receivable $136,228
To adjust the accrual for State Lottery Revenue

The effect of these uncorrected misstatements is an overstatement of net position of approximately $136,228.
Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a matter,
whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter,

which could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s report. No such disagreements arose
during the course of the audit.
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Circumstances that Affect the Form and Content of the Auditor’s Report

For purposes of this letter, professional standards require that we communicate any circumstances that affect
the form and content of our auditor’s report. We did not identify any circumstances that affect the form and
content of the auditor’s report

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Notes 1 to the financial statements, the District has adopted the provisions of Government
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology
Arrangements, for the year ended June 30, 2023. Accordingly, a restatement has been made to the
governmental activities and General Fund as of July 1, 2022. Our opinions are not modified with respect to
this matter.

Representations Requested from Management

We have requested certain written representations from management which are included in the management
representation letter dated December 14, 2023.

Management’s Consultations with Other Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters. Management informed us that, and to our knowledge, there were no consultations with other
accountants regarding auditing and accounting matters.

Other Significant Matters, Findings, or Issues

In the normal course of our professional association with the District, we generally discuss a variety of matters,

including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, significant events or transactions that
occurred during the year, operating conditions affecting the entity, and operating plans and strategies that may
affect the risks of material misstatement. None of the matters discussed resulted in a condition to our retention
as the District’s auditors.

Noncompliance with Laws and Regulations, Violations of Contract Provisions or Grant Agreements

We have identified the following matter involving noncompliance with laws and regulations that came to our
attention during the course of the audit.

As described in the audit finding 2023-001 in the audit report, the District was not in compliance with
the Instructional Materials.

Our responsibility also includes communicating to you any information which we believe is a material
misstatement of fact. Nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that such information, or its
manner of presentation, is materially inconsistent with the information, or manner of its presentation,
appearing in the financial statements.
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This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Governing Board and management of the
District and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

@,&% LL7

Fresno, California
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EideBailly.

CPAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Governing Board
Hanford Elementary School District
Hanford, California

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinions

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the Hanford Elementary School District (the District) as of and
for the year ended June 30, 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the Hanford Elementary School District, as of June 30, 2023,
and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing Standards).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the
District, and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical
requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Adoption of New Accounting Standard

As discussed in Notes 1 and 16 to the financial statements, the District has adopted the provisions of
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information
Technology Arrangements, for the year ended June 30, 2023. Accordingly, a restatement has been made
to the governmental activities beginning net position and to the General Funds beginning fund balance
as of July 1, 2022. Our opinions are not modified with respect to this matter.

What inspires you, inspires us. | eidebailly.com
6051 N. Fresno St., Ste. 101 | Fresno, CA 93710-5280 | T559.248.0871 | F 559.248.0875 | EOE
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Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the District’s ability to
continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any
currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and
Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on
the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

o |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.
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We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related
matters that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information, schedule of changes in the District’s total
OPEB liability and related ratios, schedule of the District’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability —
MPP program, schedule of the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability, and the
schedule of the District’s contributions, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with GAAS, which consisted of inquiries of management
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide
any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements. The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal
Awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, combining non-major
governmental fund financial statements, and other supplementary information listed in the table of
contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with GAAS. In our opinion, the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards, combining non-
major governmental fund financial statements, and other supplementary information listed in the table
of contents are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a
whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 14,
2023 on our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, and other
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
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effectiveness of the District’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering
the District’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

@M 245

Fresno, California
December 14, 2023
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

INTRODUCTION

The Hanford Elementary School District’s goal is to provide, in an atmosphere of care and
concern, an opportunity for every student to recognize and fully develop his/her
particular academic, technical, physical and social skills. Hanford Elementary School
District students graduate prepared to continue on to high school.

The Management Discussion and Analysis of Hanford Elementary School District’s
financial statements provide an overall review of the District’s financial activities for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, with comparative information for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2022. This analysis will look at the District’s financial performance as a whole.
The management discussion and analysis should be reviewed in conjunction with the
auditor’s transmittal letter, notes to the basic financial statements and the basic
governmental wide financial statements to enhance the understanding of the District’s
financial performance.

The Hanford Elementary School District is a medium-sized rural school district offering
instruction to students from kindergarten through eighth grade. During the 2022-2023
school year, the District operated eight elementary schools, one k-8 magnet school, two
junior high schools, and one community day school on the traditional August through
June schedule, for the instruction of approximately 5,521 students.

USING THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

e This annual financial report consists of a series of financial statements
and notes to those statements. The statements are organized so the
reader can understand the District as a whole, and then proceed to
provide an increasingly detailed look at specific financial activities.

e The Management Discussion and Analysis Statement is provided to
assist our citizens, taxpayers and investors in reviewing the District’s
finances and to show the District’s accountability for the money it
receives.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The Hanford Elementary School District’s Government-wide Statement of Net Position illustrates total net
position of $48,481,659, the result of assets and deferred outflows of $178,900,035 minus liabilities and
deferred inflows of $130,418,376.

General Revenues accounted for $88,166,700 or 71.37% of all revenues. Program specific revenues in the
form of charges for services and sales, grants and contributions accounted for $35,371,594 or 28.63% of
total revenues of $123,538,294.

The District had $88,730,274 in expenses related to governmental activities.

The General Fund reported a positive fund balance of $62,898,293.

STUDENT ENROLLMENT AND DEMOGRAPHIC TRENDS

The School District has an enrollment of approximately 5,521 students for the current 2022-2023 school
year, with enrollment projected to remain at 5,521 for the upcoming 2022-2023 school year.

In addition to tracking enrollment, the District also watches actual Average Daily Attendance (ADA). The ADA
is typically lower than a District’s enrollment, although the two terms are often (though incorrectly) used
interchangeably. The anticipated 2022-2023 ADA for the District is 5,157 excluding ADA from County run
programs. The ratio of actual attendance to enrollment summarizes the District’s changes and efforts to
increase attendance. Figure 1 summarizes a historical analysis of the District’s enrollment to actual positive
attendance ratios. Due to the pandemic, the District will be funded at 2019-2020 ADA level for the
2020-2021 and the 2021-2022 school years.

6,200
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5,400 H
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4,400 H
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@ Attendance

Figure 1. District Enrollment to Actual Attendance Data
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School districts have traditionally placed great importance on the accurate projection of student enroliment for
the ensuing budget year, due to the broad range of funding and programs impacted by this number. These
impacts range from the very basic funding for California school districts which calculates the number of days
attended by the enrolled students times a unique “revenue amount”, to how much a particular special program
will receive, to the amount of one-time monies a district may receive. Increased ADA is intended to generate
additional dollars to help offset normal inflationary costs of operating the business of education, and related
growth cost for the additional enrollment.

REPORTING THE DISTRICT AS A WHOLE

e THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION AND STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

One of the most important questions asked about the District’s finances is, “Is the District better off or
worse off as a result of the year’s activities?” “The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of
Activities” reports information about the District as a whole and about its activities in a manner that helps to
answer this question. These statements include all assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and
deferred inflows of resources using the accrual basis of accounting similar to the accounting used by private
sector corporations. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken into consideration regardless
of when cash is received or paid.

These two statements report the Hanford Elementary School District’s net position and changes in them.
The change in net position provides the reader a tool to assist in determining whether the District’s financial
health is improving or deteriorating. The reader will need to consider other non-financial factors, such as
property tax base, current property tax laws, student enrollment, and facility conditions in arriving at their
conclusion regarding the overall health of the District.

e FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The fund financial statements provide detailed information about the most significant funds, not the District
as a whole. Some funds are required to be established by State statute, while many other funds are
established by the District to help manage money for particular purposes and compliance with various
provisions. The District’s two types of funds, governmental and proprietary, use different accounting
approaches as further described in the notes to the financial statements.

e GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Most of the District’s activities are reported in governmental funds, which focus on how money flows into
and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end available for spending in future periods. These
funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting. Governmental fund
statements provide a detailed short-term view of the District’s general governmental operations and the
basic services it provides. Governmental fund information helps you determine whether there are more or
less financial resources available to spend in the near future to finance the District’s program. The
Relationship (or differences) between governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net Position
and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds is reconciled in the notes to the financial
statements.
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Governmental funds include most of the major funds of the District. A more detailed discussion of
Governmental funds follows.

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Proprietary funds use the same basis of accounting as business-type activities, therefore the statements will
essentially match. Our District has only one such Internal Service Fund — the Self-Insurance Employee
Benefits — Dental Fund.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The notes provided additional information that is essential for a full understanding of the data provided in
the government-wide and fund financial statements.

THE DISTRICT AS A WHOLE

The “Statement of Net Position” provides the perspective of the District as a whole. Table 1 provides a
summary of the District’s net position for fiscal years 2022-2023 and 2021-2022, respectively.

Table 1. Net Position

Governmental Activities

2022
2023 as Restated
Assets
Current and other assets S 86,311,134 S 56,773,538
Capital assets and right-to-use subscription IT assets 67,692,207 64,378,443
Total assets 154,003,341 121,151,981
Deferred Outflows of Resources 24,896,694 18,154,942
Liabilities
Current liabilities 10,705,736 9,359,280
Long-term liabilities 110,683,714 85,831,203
Total liabilities 121,389,450 95,190,483
Deferred Inflows of Resources 9,028,926 30,442,801
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 40,750,781 39,161,298
Restricted 35,547,713 14,532,280
Unrestricted (27,816,835) (40,019,939)
Total net position S 48,481,659 S 13,673,639
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Table 2 shows the changes in net position for fiscal years 2022-2023 and 2021-2022, respectively.

Table 2. Changes in Net Position

Governmental Activities

2023 2022*
Revenues
Program revenues
Charges for services 527,392 S 441,801
Operating grants and contributions 32,831,913 24,624,125
Capital grants and contributions 2,012,289 (42,462)
General revenues
Federal and State aid not restricted 72,108,901 64,195,221
Property taxes 5,639,608 4,985,113
Other general revenues 10,418,191 2,017,567
Total revenues 123,538,294 96,221,365
Expenses
Instruction-related 55,482,389 52,757,415
Pupil services 14,496,728 13,001,565
Administration 4,810,307 4,647,748
Plant services 9,070,025 7,989,854
All other services 4,870,825 4,079,835
Total expenses 88,730,274 82,476,417
Change in net position S 34,808,020 S 13,744,948

* The revenues and expenses for fiscal year 2022 were not restated to show the effects of GASB Statement

No. 96 for comparative purposes.
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

The District’s Governmental Funds include Special Revenue Funds for Deferred Maintenance and Cafeteria,
Debt Service Funds for repayments of general obligation bonds, Capital Projects Funds, and most importantly,
the General Fund. Figure 2 summarizes District Revenue by source of the District’'s Governmental Funds.
Figure 3 summarize the District’s Governmental Expenditures by function.

Federal Local
8% 3%

Other State
25%
LCFF
64%
Figure 2. Revenues by Source
Facility  Other Outgo
Acquisition 7%
Plant Services 1%
10%
General
Administration Instruction
5% \1{ : 49%
Ancillary _ [———=
Services
3%

Pupil Services
12%

Instruction
Related
Services

13%

Figure 3. Expenditures by Function

10



216

Hanford Elementary School District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2023

GENERAL FUND BUDGET INFORMATION

The District’s budget is prepared in accordance with California law and is based on the cash basis of accounting,
utilizing cash receipts, disbursements and encumbrances. The most significant budgeted fund is the General
Fund.

The District begins the budget process in January of each year, to be completed by June 30. After updating of the
forecast for changes in revenue and expenditure assumptions, the operating budget begins at the school level.
Each school in the District receives a per pupil allocation augmented with resources for special education
students. The schools and departments provide input to the superintendent and to Fiscal Services for their
budget needs. The site and department budgets are reviewed monthly to ensure management becomes aware
of any significant variations during the year.

GENERAL FUND BUDGET VARIATIONS

In June of each year, a Budget is adopted by the District’s Board of Trustees, effective July 1 through

June 30. The Budget is based on year-ending projections from the previous year’s budget. As the school year
progresses, the Budget is revised and updated, with numerous financial reports made public outlining the
revisions. Finally, in August of the following year, the books are closed for the July 1 —June 30 fiscal year,
and the results are audited, yielding actual final numbers.

There are several reasons for Budget revisions. Most notable are any salary increases granted by the Board
of Trustees for district employees for the original budget does not presume salary increases unless they
have already been agreed to in a multi-year contract. Also, any changes in the number of staff and/or staff
utilization of health and welfare benefits that vary from the original projections would also yield budget
revisions.

The implementation of new instructional or categorical programs can also affect budget projections. For the
Hanford Elementary School District, the increased emphasis on closing the achievement gap for all of our
students continue to push forward several academic-focused programs that impact expenditures in
personnel, instructional materials, outside services and supplies.

The State and Federal budget issues have an impact on the District’s General Fund budget. As revenues from
these two sources change, so do District revenues, since 96% of District revenues come from State and
Federal revenue streams.

The final actual numbers of the General Fund that will be certified by February of the next year will be the
reflection of the culmination of these several factors.

The net difference in fund balance between the adopted budget and the final budget was an increase of
$19,950,948 and may be summarized as follows:
$12,592,881 increase in total revenue and other sources mainly due to increases in state and federal
revenue.
$(7,358,067) decrease in total expenditures and other uses due primarily to decreased expenditures
across multiple functions of the district.

11
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CAPITAL ASSETS, RIGHT-TO-USE SUBSCRIPTION IT ASSETS, AND LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

e CAPITAL ASSETS AND RIGHT-TO-USE SUBSCRIPTION IT ASSETS

At June 30, 2022, the District had $64,378,443 in a broad range of capital assets and right-to-use
subscription IT assets (net of depreciation and amortization), including land, buildings, and furniture and
equipment, and right-to-use subscription IT assets, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization. At
June 30, 2023, the District’s net capital assets were $67,692,207. This amount represents a net increase
(including additions and deductions) of $3,313,764, or 5.15%, from last year. Table 3 presents capital asset
balances for each year and the net change. The year’s major additions included the completion of various
modernization projects throughout the District.

Table 3. Changes in Capital Assets
(Net of Depreciation)

Governmental Activities

2022
2023 as Restated
Land and construction in progress S 5,760,184 S 6,008,266
Buildings and improvements 57,549,585 53,917,079
Equipment 4,313,569 4,361,266
Right-to-use subscription IT assets 68,869 91,832
Total S 67,692,207 S 64,378,443

e LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

At the end of this year, the District had $110,683,714 in long-term liabilities outstanding versus $85,831,203
last year, an increase of $24,852,511. Table 4 summarizes these obligations.

Table 4. Outstanding Obligations

Governmental Activities

2022
2023 as Restated
Long-Term Liabilities

General obligation bonds S 22,300,000 S 23,165,000
Unamortized premiums 1,511,406 1,589,268
Compensated absences 479,222 475,257
Financed purchases 3,106,658 2,473,151
Subscription-based IT arrangements 23,362 45,962
Claims liability 78,400 74,531
Net OPEB liability 14,542,956 16,696,441
Aggregate net pension liability 68,641,710 41,311,593

Total $ 110,683,714 $ 85,831,203

12
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The District’s general obligation bond insured S&P bond rating at the time of their last issuance was “AA”.

At year-end, the District had a net pension liability of $68,641,710 versus $41,311,593 last year, an increase
of $27,330,117, or 66.16%. The District also reported deferred outflows of resources from pension activities
of $22,154,447, and deferred inflows of resources from pension activities of $6,504,780.

We present more detailed information regarding our long-term liabilities in the Notes to Financial
Statements.
FOR THE FUTURE
The District’s system of budgeting and internal controls is well regarded and it will take all of the District’s
financial abilities to meet the challenges of the future.
CONTACTING THE SCHOOL DISTRICT’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, and investors and creditors with a general
overview of the Hanford Elementary School District’s finances and to show the District’s accountability for the
money it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact

David Endo, Chief Business Officer, Hanford Elementary School District, P. O. Box 1067, Hanford, California
93232.

13
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Assets
Deposits and investments
Receivables
Prepaid expense
Stores inventories
Capital assets not depreciated
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation
Right-to-use subscription IT assets, net of accumulated amortization

Total assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions

Total deferred outflows of resources
Liabilities

Accounts payable

Unearned revenue

Long-term liabilities
Claims liabilities
Long-term liabilities other than OPEB and pensions due within one year
Long-term liabilities other than OPEB and pensions due in more than one year

Net other postemployment benefits liability (OPEB)
Aggregate net pension liabilities

Total liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions

Total deferred inflows of resources

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for
Debt service
Capital projects
Educational programs
Child nutrition program
Student activities
Unrestricted (deficit)

Total net position

See Notes to Financial Statements

Governmental
Activities

$ 80,264,253
5,726,748
36,460

283,673
5,760,184
61,863,154
68,869

154,003,341

2,742,247
22,154,447

24,896,694

6,689,199
4,016,537

78,400
840,759
26,579,889
14,542,956
68,641,710

121,389,450

2,524,146
6,504,780

9,028,926

40,750,781

1,445,298
3,087,513
27,701,523
3,293,608
19,771
(27,816,835)

$ 48,481,659

14
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Net (Expenses)
Revenues and

Program Revenues Changes in
Charges for Operating Capital Net Position
Services and Grants and Grants and Governmental
Functions/Programs Expenses Sales Contributions Contributions Activities
Governmental Activities
Instruction S 43,852,696 S - $13,034,351 $2,012,289 S (28,806,056)
Instruction-related activities
Supervision of instruction 3,683,170 - 2,570,067 - (1,113,103)
Instructional library, media,
and technology 1,827,545 - 12,650 - (1,814,895)
School site administration 6,118,978 11,631 449,717 - (5,657,630)
Pupil services
Home-to-school transportation 1,868,374 - 396,893 - (1,471,481)
Food services 4,074,193 54,998 4,767,970 - 748,775
All other pupil services 8,554,161 2,710 3,130,407 - (5,421,044)
Administration
Data processing 943,684 - 10,234 - (933,450)
All other administration 3,866,623 2,068 1,197,056 - (2,667,499)
Plant services 9,070,025 32,079 926,027 - (8,111,919)
Ancillary services 2,551,282 30,958 5,507,863 - 2,987,539
Interest on long-term liabilities 908,514 - - - (908,514)
Other outgo 1,411,029 392,948 828,678 - (189,403)
Total governmental activities S 88,730,274 S 527,392 $32,831,913 S 2,012,289 (53,358,680)
General Revenues and Subventions
Property taxes, levied for general purposes 4,019,572
Property taxes, levied for debt service 1,576,283
Taxes levied for other specific purposes 43,753
Federal and State aid not restricted to specific purposes 72,108,901
Interest and investment earnings (101,633)
Interagency revenues 5,108
Miscellaneous and unspent State entitlement revenues 10,514,716
Subtotal, general revenues and subventions 88,166,700
Change in Net Position 34,808,020
Net Position - Beginning, as Restated 13,673,639
Net Position - Ending S 48,481,659
See Notes to Financial Statements 15
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Assets
Deposits and investments
Receivables
Due from other funds
Prepaid expenditures
Stores inventories

Total assets
Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabilities

Accounts payable

Due to other funds
Unearned revenue

Total liabilities

Fund Balances
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

See Notes to Financial Statements

Special Reserve Non-Major Total
General Building Fund for Capital Governmental Governmental

Fund Fund Outlay Projects Funds Funds
68,549,397 S 4,725,203 S 6,131,833 S 79,406,433
4,721,732 - 1,004,746 5,726,478
- - 1,444,660 1,444,660
36,460 - - 36,460
235,239 - 48,434 283,673
73,542,828 S 4,725,203 S 8,629,673 S 86,897,704
6,623,459 S - S 58,061 S 6,681,520
4,539 1,440,121 - 1,444,660
4,016,537 - - 4,016,537
10,644,535 1,440,121 58,061 12,142,717
276,749 - 48,844 325,593
27,701,461 - 7,846,252 35,547,713
16,534,268 - 676,516 17,210,784
13,194,604 3,285,082 - 16,479,686
5,191,211 - - 5,191,211
62,898,293 3,285,082 8,571,612 74,754,987
73,542,828 S 4,725,203 S 8,629,673 S 86,897,704
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Hanford Elementary School District
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2023

Total Fund Balance - Governmental Funds

Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the
Statement of Net Position are Different Because

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported as assets in
governmental funds.

The cost of capital assets is

Accumulated depreciation is

Net capital assets

Right-to-use subscription IT assets used in governmental activities are
not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as assets in
governmental funds.

The cost of right-to-use subscription IT assets is

Accumulated amortization is

Net right-to-use subscription IT assets

An internal service fund is used by management to charge the costs
of the workers’ compensation insurance program to the individual
funds. The assets and liabilities (excluding claims liability) of the
internal service fund are included with governmental activities

in the statement of net position.

Deferred outflows of resources represent a consumption of net
position in a future period and is not reported in the governmental
funds. Deferred outflows of resources amounted to and related to
Other postemployment benefits (OPEB)
Net pension liability

Total deferred outflows of resources
Deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net position
that applies to a future period and is not reported in the governmental
funds. Deferred inflows of resources amount to and related to
Other postemployment benefits (OPEB)
Net pension liability

Total deferred inflows of resources

Net pension liability is not due and payable in the current period,
and is not reported as a liability in the funds.

See Notes to Financial Statements

S 74,754,987

$ 105,448,950

(37,825,612)
67,623,338
106,557
(37,688)
68,869
772,011
2,742,247
22,154,447
24,896,694
(2,524,146)
(6,504,780)
(9,028,926)
(68,641,710)
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Hanford Elementary School District
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2023

The District’s OPEB liability is not due and payable in the current period,
and is not reported as a liability in the funds. (14,542,956)

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period
and, therefore, are not reported as liabilities in the funds.
Long-term liabilities, including unamortized premiums/(discounts),
at year-end consist of

General obligation bonds including unamortized premiums (23,811,406)

Financed purchase agreement (3,106,658)

Subscription-based IT arrangements (23,362)

Compensated absences (vacations) (479,222)
Total long-term liabilities (27,420,648)
Total net position - governmental activities S 48,481,659

See Notes to Financial Statements 18
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Hanford Elementary School District
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances — Governmental Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2023

Revenues
Local Control Funding Formula
Federal sources
Other State sources
Other local sources

Total revenues

Expenditures
Current
Instruction
Instruction-related activities
Supervision of instruction
Instructional library, media, and technology
School site administration
Pupil services
Home-to-school transportation
Food services
All other pupil services
Administration
Data processing
All other administration
Plant services
Ancillary services
Other outgo
Facility acquisition and construction

See Notes to Financial Statements

Special Reserve Non-Major Total
General Building Fund for Capital Governmental Governmental

Fund Fund Outlay Projects Funds Funds
S 73,858,478 - S - S 300,000 S 74,158,478
9,199,120 - - 3,854,416 13,053,536
28,852,394 - - 2,969,325 31,821,719
3,684,843 94,844 (126,161) 2,538,179 6,191,705
115,594,835 94,844 (126,161) 9,661,920 125,225,438
45,796,124 - - - 45,796,124
3,844,338 - - - 3,844,338
1,884,601 - - - 1,884,601
6,344,295 - - - 6,344,295
1,809,455 - - - 1,809,455
232,442 - - 3,824,671 4,057,113
9,036,922 - - - 9,036,922
1,067,299 - - - 1,067,299
3,692,148 - - 105,363 3,797,511
9,610,207 - - 366,875 9,977,082
2,607,536 - - 44,191 2,651,727
1,411,029 - - - 1,411,029
1,314,356 1,590,357 182,371 1,219,934 4,307,018
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Hanford Elementary School District
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances — Governmental Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2023

Special Reserve Non-Major Total
General Building Fund for Capital Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Outlay Projects Funds Funds
Expenditures
Debt service
Principal 174,722 - - 865,000 1,039,722
Interest and other 1,154 - - 907,360 908,514
Total expenditures 88,826,628 1,590,357 182,371 7,333,394 97,932,750
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures 26,768,207 (1,495,513) (308,532) 2,328,526 27,292,688
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in 1,699 55,254 3,515,556 661,847 4,234,356
Sources from financed purchases 770,904 - - - 770,904
Sources from subscription-based IT arrangements 14,725 - - - 14,725
Transfers out (3,000,000) (661,847) - (572,509) (4,234,356)
Net Financing Sources (Uses) (2,212,672) (606,593) 3,515,556 89,338 785,629
Net Change in Fund Balances 24,555,535 (2,102,106) 3,207,024 2,417,864 28,078,317
Fund Balance - Beginning, as Restated 38,342,758 2,102,106 78,058 6,153,748 46,676,670
Fund Balance - Ending 62,898,293 S - 3,285,082 8,571,612 74,754,987
See Notes to Financial Statements 20
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Hanford Elementary School District

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental
Funds to the Statement of Activities

June 30, 2023

Total Net Change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds S 28,078,317

Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of
Activities are Different Because

Capital outlays to purchase or build capital assets are reported in
governmental funds as expenditures; however, for governmental
activities, those costs are shown in the Statement of Net Position and
allocated over their estimated useful lives as annual depreciation

and amortization expenses in the Statement of Activities.

This is the amount by which capital outlays exceed depreciation
and amortization expenses in the period.

Capital outlays S 6,121,559
Depreciation and amortization expenses (2,804,579)
Net expense adjustment 3,316,980

Gain(Loss) on disposal of capital assets is reported in the government-wide
Statement of Net Position, but is not recorded in the governmental
funds. (3,216)

Some of the capital assets acquired this year were financed.

The amount financed is reported in the governmental funds as

a source of financing. On the other hand, the proceeds are not

revenues in the Statement of Activities, but rather constitute

long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Position. (770,904)

Right-to-use subscription IT assets acquired this year were financed with

Subscription-Based IT Arrangements (SBITAs). The amount financed by

the SBITAs is reported in the governmental funds as a source of financing.

On the other hand, the SBITAs are not revenues in the Statement of

Activities, but rather constitute long-term liabilities in the Statement of

Net Position. (14,725)

In the Statement of Activities, certain operating expenses, such as

compensated absences (vacations) are measured by the amounts

earned during the year. In the governmental funds, however,

expenditures for these items are measured by the amount of

financial resources used (essentially, the amounts actually paid).

This amount is the difference between vacation earned and used. (3,965)

In the governmental funds, pension costs are based on employer

contributions made to pension plans during the year. However,

in the Statement of Activities, pension expense is the net effect of

all changes in the deferred outflows, deferred inflows and net

pension liability during the year. 3,532,270

See Notes to Financial Statements 21
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Hanford Elementary School District

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental
Funds to the Statement of Activities

Year Ended June 30, 2023

In the governmental funds, OPEB costs are based on employer

contributions made to OPEB plans during the year. However, in the

Statement of Activities, OPEB expense is the net effect of all changes

in the deferred outflows, deferred inflows, and net OPEB liability

during the year. (553,275)

Governmental funds report the effect of premiums, discounts, and
the deferred charge on refunding when the debt is first issued,
whereas the amounts are deferred and amortized in the
Statement of Activities.
Premium amortization 77,862

Payment of principal on long-term liabilities is an expenditure in
the governmental funds, but it reduces long-term liabilities in the
Statement of Net Position and does not affect the Statement

of Activities.
General obligation bonds 865,000
Financed Purchases 137,397
Subscription-based IT arrangements 37,325

An internal service fund is used by management to charge the costs

of the self insurance program to the individual funds. The net

revenue of the Internal Service Fund is reported with governmental

activities. 108,954

Change in net position of governmental activities S 34,808,020

See Notes to Financial Statements 22
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Hanford Elementary School District
Statement of Net Position — Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2023

Assets
Current assets
Deposits and investments
Receivables

Total current assets
Liabilities
Current liabilities

Accounts payable

Noncurrent liabilities
Claims liabilities

Total liabilities

Net Position

Restricted for claims payments

See Notes to Financial Statements

Governmental
Activities -
Internal
Service Fund

S 857,820
270

858,090

7,679

78,400

86,079

S 772,011
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Hanford Elementary School District
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position — Proprietary Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2023

Operating Revenues
Charges for services

Operating Expenses
Services and Other Operating Expenses

Operating Income
Nonoperating Revenues
Fair market value adjustments
Interest income
Total nonoperating revenues
Change in Net Position

Total Net Position - Beginning

Total Net Position - Ending

See Notes to Financial Statements

Governmental

Activities -
Internal

Service Fund

s

812,760

708,945

103,815

(5,854)
10,993

5,139

108,954

663,057

772,011
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Hanford Elementary School District
Statement of Cash Flows — Proprietary Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2023

Operating Activities
Cash receipts from operating funds
Cash payments for claims

Net Cash From Operating Activities
Investing Activities
Fair market value adjustments
Interest on investments
Net Cash From Investing Activities
Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Ending
Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net
Cash from operating activities
Operating income
Changes in assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable
Accounts payable
Claims liability

Due from other fund

Net Cash From Operating Activities

See Notes to Financial Statements

Governmental
Activities -
Internal
Service Fund

S 910,365
(706,397)

203,968

(5,854)
10,993

5,139

209,107

648,713

S 857,820

S 103,815

45
(1,321)
3,869
97,560

S 203,968
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Hanford Elementary School District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2023

Note 1- Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Financial Reporting Entity

The Hanford Elementary School District (the District) was organized under the laws of the State of California. The
District operates under a locally-elected five-member Board form of government and provides educational
services to grades K - 8 as mandated by the State and/or Federal agencies. The District operates eight
elementary schools, one K - 8 magnet school, two junior high schools, and one community day school.

A reporting entity is comprised of the primary government and other organizations that are included to ensure
the financial statements are not misleading. The primary government of the District consists of all funds,
departments, boards, and agencies that are not legally separate from the District. For Hanford Elementary
School District, this includes general operations, food service, and student related activities of the District.

Basis of Presentation - Fund Accounting

The accounting system is organized and operated on a fund basis. A fund is defined as a fiscal and accounting
entity with a self-balancing set of accounts, which are segregated for the purpose of carrying on specific
activities or attaining certain objectives in accordance with special regulations, restrictions, or limitations. The
District’s funds are grouped into two broad fund categories: governmental and proprietary.

Governmental Funds Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions typically are
financed. Governmental fund reporting focuses on the sources, uses, and balances of current financial
resources. Expendable assets are assigned to the various governmental funds according to the purposes for
which they may or must be used. Current liabilities are assigned to the fund from which they will be paid. The
difference between governmental fund assets and liabilities is reported as fund balance. The following are the
District’s major and non-major governmental funds:

Major Governmental Funds

General Fund The General Fund is the chief operating fund for all districts. It is used to account for the ordinary
operations of the District. All transactions except those accounted for in another fund are accounted for in this
fund.

Two funds currently defined as special revenue funds in the California State Accounting Manual (CSAM) do not
meet the GASB Statement No. 54 special revenue fund definition. Specifically, Fund 15, Pupil Transportation
Equipment Fund, and Fund 20, Special Reserve Fund for Postemployment Benefits, are not substantially
composed of restricted or committed revenue sources. While these funds are authorized by statute and will
remain open for internal reporting purposes, these funds function effectively as an extension of the General
Fund, and accordingly have been combined with the General Fund for presentation in these audited financial
statements.

As a result, the General Fund reflects an increase in fund balance of $13,552,103.
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Hanford Elementary School District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2023

Building Fund The Building Fund exists primarily to account separately for proceeds from the sale of bonds
(Education Code Section 15146) and may not be used for any purposes other than those for which the bonds
were issued.

Special Reserve Fund for Capital Outlay Projects The Special Reserve Fund for Capital Outlay Projects exists
primarily to provide for the accumulation of General Fund monies for capital outlay purposes (Education Code
Section 42840).

Non-Major Governmental Funds

Special Revenue Funds The Special Revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds from specific revenue
sources (other than trusts, major capital projects, or debt service) that are restricted or committed to the
financing of particular activities, that compose a substantial portion of the inflows of the fund, and that are
reasonably expected to continue. Additional resources that are restricted, committed, or assigned to the
purpose of the fund may also be reported in the fund.

e Student Activities Fund The Student Activities Fund is used to account separately for the operating
activities of the associated student body accounts that are not fiduciary in nature, including student clubs,
general operations, athletics, and other student body activities.

o Charter School Fund The Charter School Fund may be used by authorizing districts to account separately
for the operating activities of district-operated charter school that would otherwise be reported in the
authorizing District’s General Fund.

e Cafeteria Fund The Cafeteria Fund is used to account separately for Federal, State, and local resources to
operate the food service program (Education Code Sections 38090-38093) and is used only for those
expenditures authorized by the governing board as necessary for the operation of the District’s food
service program (Education Code Sections 38091 and 38100).

o Deferred Maintenance Fund The Deferred Maintenance Fund is used to account separately for revenues
that are restricted or committed for deferred maintenance purposes (Education Code Section 17582).

Capital Project Funds The Capital Project funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for the
acquisition or construction of major capital facilities and other capital assets (other than those financed by
proprietary funds and trust funds).

o Capital Facilities Fund The Capital Facilities Fund is used primarily to account separately for monies
received from fees levied on developers or other agencies as a condition of approval (Education Code
Sections 17620-17626 and Government Code Section 65995 et seq.). Expenditures are restricted to the
purposes specified in Government Code Sections 65970-65981 or to the items specified in agreements
with the developer (Government Code Section 66006).

e County School Facilities Fund The County School Facilities Fund is established pursuant to Education Code
Section 17070.43 to receive apportionments from the 1998 State School Facilities Fund (Proposition 1A),
the 2002 State School Facilities Fund (Proposition 47), the 2004 State School Facilities Fund
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Hanford Elementary School District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2023

(Proposition 55), the 2006 State School Facilities Fund (Proposition 1D), or the 2016 State School Facilities
Fund (Proposition 51) authorized by the State Allocation Board for new school facility construction,
modernization projects, and facility hardship grants, as provided in the Leroy F. Greene School Facilities
Act of 1998 (Education Code Section 17070 et seq.).

Debt Service Funds The Debt Service funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the
payment of, principal and interest on general long-term liabilities.

¢ Bond Interest and Redemption Fund The Bond Interest and Redemption Fund is used for the repayment
of bonds issued for a District (Education Code Sections 15125-15262).

Proprietary Funds Proprietary funds are used to account for activities that are more business-like than
government-like in nature. Business-type activities include those for which a fee is charged to external users or
to other organizational units of the local education agency, normally on a full cost-recovery basis. Proprietary
funds are generally intended to be self-supporting and are classified as enterprise or internal service. The District
has the following internal service fund:

e Internal Service Fund Internal service funds may be used to account for goods or services provided to
other funds of the District on a cost-reimbursement basis. The District operates a Self-Insurance Fund for
dental coverage that is accounted for in an internal service fund.

Basis of Accounting - Measurement Focus

Government-Wide Financial Statements The government-wide financial statements are prepared using the
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. This is the same approach used in
the preparation of the proprietary fund financial statements, but differs from the manner in which
governmental fund financial statements are prepared.

The government-wide Statement of Activities presents a comparison between expenses, both direct and
indirect, and program revenues for each governmental function. Direct expenses are those that are specifically
associated with a service, program, or department and are therefore, clearly identifiable to a particular function.
The District does not allocate indirect expenses to functions in the Statement of Activities, except for
depreciation and amortization of leased assets and subscription IT assets. Program revenues include charges
paid by the recipients of the goods or services offered by the programs and grants and contributions that are
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not
classified as program revenues are presented as general revenues. The comparison of program revenues and
expenses identifies the extent to which each program or business segment is self-financing or draws from the
general revenues of the District. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double counting of internal
activities.

Net position should be reported as restricted when constraints placed on net position are either externally
imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other
governments or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. The net position
restricted for other activities result from special revenue funds and the restrictions on their use.
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Hanford Elementary School District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2023

Fund Financial Statements Fund financial statements report detailed information about the District. The focus
of governmental and proprietary fund financial statements is on major funds rather than reporting funds by
type. Each major fund is presented in a separate column. Non-major governmental funds are aggregated and
presented in a single column. The internal service fund is presented in a single column on the face of the
proprietary fund statements.

e Governmental Funds All governmental funds are accounted for using the flow of current financial
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. With this measurement focus,
only current assets and current liabilities generally are included on the balance sheet. The statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances reports on the sources (revenues and other
financing sources) and uses (expenditures and other financing uses) of current financial resources. This
approach differs from the manner in which the governmental activities of the government-wide financial
statements are prepared. Governmental fund financial statements, therefore, include reconciliations with
brief explanations to better identify the relationship between the government-wide financial statements,
prepared using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, and the
governmental fund financial statements, prepared using the flow of current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.

o Proprietary Funds Proprietary funds are accounted for using a flow of economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting. All assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of this
fund are included in the statement of net position. The statement of changes in fund net position presents
increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in net total position. The statement of cash flows provides
information about how the District finances and meets the cash flow needs of its proprietary fund.

Revenues — Exchange and Non-Exchange Transactions Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which
each party gives and receives essentially equal value, is recorded on the accrual basis when the exchange takes
place. On a modified accrual basis, revenue is recorded in the fiscal year in which the resources are measurable
and become available. Available means that the resources will be collected within the current fiscal year or are
expected to be collected soon enough thereafter, to be used to pay liabilities of the current fiscal year. The
District considers revenues to be available if they are collected within one year after year-end, except for
property taxes, which are considered available if collected within 60 days. The following revenue sources are
considered to be both measurable and available at fiscal year-end: State apportionments, interest, certain
grants, and other local sources.

Non-exchange transactions, in which the District receives value without directly giving equal value in return,
include property taxes, certain grants, entitlements, and donations. Revenue from property taxes is recognized
in the fiscal year in which the taxes are received. Revenue from certain grants, entitlements, and donations is
recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility requirements
include time and purpose requirements. On a modified accrual basis, revenue from non-exchange transactions
must also be available before it can be recognized.

Unearned Revenue Unearned revenues arise when resources are received by the District before it has a legal
claim to them, such as when certain grants are received prior to the occurrence of qualifying expenditures. In
the subsequent periods, when the District has a legal claim to the resources, the liability for unearned revenue is
removed from the balance sheet and the revenue is recognized.
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Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2023

Expenses/Expenditures On the accrual basis of accounting, expenses are recognized at the time they are
incurred. The measurement focus of governmental fund accounting is on decreases in net financial resources
(expenditures) rather than expenses. Expenditures are generally recognized in the accounting period in which
the related fund liability is incurred. Principal and interest on long-term liabilities, which has not matured, are
recognized when paid in the governmental funds as expenditures. Allocations of costs, such as depreciation and
amortization expenses, are not recognized in the governmental funds but are recognized in the
government-wide statements.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The District’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term
investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition. Cash equivalents also
include cash with county treasury balances for purposes of the statement of cash flows.

Investments

Investments with original maturities greater than one year are stated at fair value. Fair value is estimated based
on quoted market prices at year-end. All investments not required to be reported at fair value are stated at cost
or amortized cost. Fair values of investments in county pools are determined by the program sponsor.

Prepaid Expenditures (Expenses)

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid
items in both the government-wide and fund financial statements. The cost of prepaid items is recorded as
expenditures/expenses when consumed rather than when purchased.

Stores Inventories

Inventories consist of expendable food and supplies held for consumption. Inventories are stated at cost, on the
first-in, first-out basis. The costs of inventory items are recorded as expenditures in the governmental type
funds.

Capital Assets, Depreciation, and Amortization

The accounting and reporting treatment applied to the capital assets associated with a fund are determined by
its measurement focus. General capital assets are long-lived assets of the District. The District maintains a
capitalization threshold of $5,000. The District does not possess any infrastructure. Improvements are
capitalized; the costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend an asset’s life are not capitalized but are expensed as incurred.

When purchased, such assets are recorded as expenditures in the governmental funds and capitalized in the
government-wide statement of net position. The valuation basis for capital assets is historical cost, or where
historical cost is not available, estimated historical cost based on replacement cost. Donated capital assets are
capitalized at acquisition value on the date donated.
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Depreciation of capital assets is computed and recorded by the straight-line method. Estimated useful lives of
the various classes of depreciable capital assets are as follows: buildings, 20 to 50 years;
improvements/infrastructure, 5 to 50 years; equipment, 2 to 15 years.

The District records impairments of capital assets when it becomes probable that the carrying value of the assets
will not be fully recovered over their estimated useful life. Impairments are recorded to reduce the carrying
value of the assets to their net realizable value based on facts and circumstances in existence at the time of the
determination. No impairments were recorded during the year ended June 30, 2023.

The District records the value of right-to-use subscription IT assets based on the underlying subscription asset in
accordance with GASB Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements. The right-
to-use subscription IT asset is amortized each year for the term of the contract or useful life of the underlying
asset.

Interfund Balances

On fund financial statements, receivables and payables resulting from short-term interfund loans are classified
as “interfund receivables/payables”. These amounts are eliminated in the governmental activities column of the
statement of net position.

Compensated Absences

Compensated absences are accrued as a liability as the benefits are earned. The entire compensated absence
liability is reported on the government-wide statement of net position as long-term liabilities.

Sick leave is accumulated without limit for each employee at the rate of one day for each month worked. Leave
with pay is provided when employees are absent for health reasons; however, the employees do not gain a
vested right to accumulated sick leave. Employees are never paid for any sick leave balance at termination of
employment or any other time. Therefore, the value of accumulated sick leave is not recognized as a liability in
the District’s financial statements. However, credit for unused sick leave is applicable to all classified school
members who retire after January 1, 1999. At retirement, each member will receive .004 year of service credit
for each day of unused sick leave. Credit for unused sick leave is applicable to all certificated employees and is
determined by dividing the number of unused sick days by the number of base service days required to
complete the last school year, if employed full-time.

Accrued Liabilities and Long-Term Liabilities
All payables, accrued liabilities, and long-term liabilities are reported in the government-wide and proprietary
fund financial statements. In general, governmental fund payables and accrued liabilities that, once incurred, are

paid in a timely manner and in full, from current financial resources are reported as liabilities of the
governmental funds.
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However, claims and judgments, compensated absences, special termination benefits, and contractually
required pension contributions that will be paid from governmental funds are reported as a liability in the
governmental fund financial statements only to the extent that they are due for payment during the current
year. Bonds, leases, and other long-term liabilities are recognized as liabilities in the governmental fund financial
statements when due.

Premiums

In the government-wide financial statements, long-term liabilities are reported as liabilities in the applicable
governmental activities statement of net position. Debt premiums are amortized over the life of the bonds using
the straight-line method.

In governmental fund financial statements, bond premiums and discounts, as well as debt issuance costs are
recognized in the period the bonds are issued. Premiums received on debt issuance are also reported as other
financing sources.

Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the Statement of Net Position also reports deferred outflows of resources. This separate
financial statement element represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period and so will
not be recognized as an expense or expenditure until then. The District reports deferred outflows of resources
for pension related items and for OPEB related items.

In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net Position reports a separate section for deferred inflows of
resources. This separate financial statement element represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a
future period and so will not be recognized as revenue until then. The District reports deferred inflows of
resources for pension related items, and for OPEB related items.

The deferred amounts related to pension and OPEB relate to differences between expected and actual
experience, changes of assumptions, and other pension and OPEB related changes.

Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources related to
pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the California State Teachers’
Retirement System (CalSTRS) and the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) plan for schools
(Plans) and additions to/deductions from the Plans’ fiduciary net position have been determined on the same
basis as they are reported by CalSTRS and CalPERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of
employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Member
contributions are recognized in the period in which they are earned. Investments are reported at fair value. The
net pension liability attributable to the governmental activities will be paid primarily by the General Fund.
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Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB)

For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the District Plan
and the CalSTRS Medicare Premium Payment (MPP) Program and additions to/deductions from the District Plan
and the MPP’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the
District Plan and the MPP. For this purpose, the District Plan and the MPP recognizes benefit payments when
due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value, except for money
market investments and participating interest-earning investment contracts that have a maturity at the time of
purchase of one year or less, which are reported at cost. The total OPEB liability attributable to the
governmental activities will be paid primarily by the General Fund.

Subscriptions

The District recognizes a subscription liability and an intangible right-to-use subscription IT asset (subscription IT
asset) in the government-wide financial statements. At the commencement of the subscription term, the District
measures the subscription liability at the present value of payments expected to be made during the
subscription term. Subsequently, the subscription liability is reduced by the principal portion of subscription
payments made. The subscription IT asset is initially measured as the initial amount of the subscription liability,
plus certain initial direct costs. Subsequently, the subscription IT asset is amortized on a straight-line basis over
shorter of the subscription term or useful life of the underlying asset. The amortization period varies from 29 to
60 months.

Fund Balances - Governmental Funds
As of June 30, 2023, fund balances of the governmental funds are classified as follows:

Nonspendable - amounts that cannot be spent either because they are in nonspendable form or because they
are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

Restricted - amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of constitutional provisions or
enabling legislation or because of constraints that are externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or
the laws or regulations of other governments.

Committed - amounts that can be used only for specific purposes determined by a formal action of the
governing board. The governing board is the highest level of decision-making authority for the District.
Commitments may be established, modified, or rescinded only through resolutions or other action as approved
by the governing board.

Assigned - amounts that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed but that are
intended to be used for specific purposes. Under the District’s adopted policy, only the Superintendent or

Assistant Superintendent, Fiscal Services may assign amounts for specific purposes.

Unassigned - all other spendable amounts.
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Spending Order Policy

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is
available, the District considers restricted funds to have been spent first. When an expenditure is incurred for
which committed, assigned, or unassigned fund balances are available, the District considers amounts to have
been spent first out of committed funds, then assigned funds, and finally unassigned funds, as needed, unless
the governing board has provided otherwise in its commitment or assignment actions.

Minimum Fund Balance Policy

The governing board adopted a minimum fund balance policy for the General Fund in order to protect the
district against revenue shortfalls or unpredicted one-time expenditures. The policy requires a Reserve for
Economic Uncertainties consisting of unassigned amounts equal to no less than three percent of General Fund
expenditures and other financing uses.

Net Position

Net position represents the difference between assets and deferred outflows of resources, and liabilities and
deferred inflows of resources. Net position net of investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowings used for the acquisition,
construction, or improvement of those assets. Net position is reported as restricted when there are limitations
imposed on their use either through the enabling legislation adopted by the District or through external
restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws or regulations of other governments. The District first applies
restricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net
position is available. The government-wide financial statements report $35,547,713 of restricted net position.

Operating Revenues and Expenses

Operating revenues are those revenues that are generated directly from the primary activity of the proprietary
funds. For the District, these revenues are dental premiums. Operating expenses are necessary costs incurred to
provide the good or service that is the primary activity of the fund. All revenues and expenses not meeting this
definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Interfund Activity

Exchange transactions between funds are reported as revenues in the seller funds and as
expenditures/expenses in the purchaser funds. Flows of cash or goods from one fund to another without a
requirement for repayment are reported as interfund transfers. Interfund transfers are reported as other
financing sources/uses in governmental funds and after non-operating revenues/expenses in proprietary funds.
Repayments from funds responsible for particular expenditures/expenses to the funds that initially paid for
them are not presented on the financial statements. Interfund transfers are eliminated in the governmental
activities column of the Statement of Activities.
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Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts
reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

Property Tax

Secured property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1. Taxes are payable in two
installments on November 1 and February 1 and become delinquent on December 10 and April 10, respectively.
Unsecured property taxes are payable in one installment on or before August 31. The County of Kings bills and
collects the taxes on behalf of the District. Local property tax revenues are recorded when received.

Change in Accounting Principles
Implementation of GASB Statement No. 96

As of July 1, 2022, the District adopted GASB Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology
Arrangements (SBITAs). The implementation of this standard establishes that a SBITA results in a right-to-use
subscription IT asset - an intangible asset - and a corresponding liability. The standard provides the capitalization
criteria for outlays other than subscription payments, including implementation costs of a SBITA. The Statement
requires recognition of certain SBITA assets and liabilities for SBITAs that previously were recognized as outflows
of resources based on the payment provisions of the contract. The effect of the implementation of this standard
on beginning net position is disclosed in Note 16 and the additional disclosures required by this standard are
included in Notes 4 and 9.

Note 2- Deposits and Investments
Summary of Deposits and Investments

Deposits and investments as of June 30, 2023, are classified in the accompanying financial statements as follows:

Governmental activities S 79,406,433
Proprietary fund 857,820
Total deposits and investments S 80,264,253

Deposits and investments as of June 30, 2023, consist of the following:

Cash on hand and in banks S 37,271
Cash in revolving 5,460
Investments 80,221,522

Total deposits and investments S 80,264,253
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Policies and Practices

The District is authorized under California Government Code to make direct investments in local agency bonds,
notes, or warrants within the State; U.S. Treasury instruments; registered State warrants or treasury notes;
securities of the U.S. Government, or its agencies; bankers acceptances; commercial paper; certificates of
deposit placed with commercial banks and/or savings and loan companies; repurchase or reverse repurchase
agreements; medium term corporate notes; shares of beneficial interest issued by diversified management
companies, certificates of participation, obligations with first priority security; and collateralized mortgage
obligations.

Investment in County Treasury - The District is considered to be an involuntary participant in an external
investment pool as the District is required to deposit all receipts and collections of monies with their County
Treasurer (Education Code Section 41001). The fair value of the District’s investment in the pool is reported in
the accounting financial statements at amounts based upon the District’s pro-rata share of the fair value
provided by the County Treasurer for the entire portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The
balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by the County Treasurer, which
is recorded on the amortized cost basis.

General Authorizations

Limitations as they relate to interest rate risk are indicated in the schedules below:

Maximum Maximum Maximum

Authorized Remaining Percentage Investment

Investment Type Maturity of Portfolio in One Issuer
Local Agency Bonds, Notes, Warrants 5 years None None
Registered State Bonds, Notes, Warrants 5 years None None
U.S. Treasury Obligations 5 years None None
U.S. Agency Securities 5 years None None
Banker's Acceptance 180 days 40% 30%
Commercial Paper 270 days 25% 10%
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 5 years 30% None
Repurchase Agreements 1year None None
Reverse Repurchase Agreements 92 days 20% of base None
Medium-Term Corporate Notes 5 years 30% None
Mutual Funds N/A 20% 10%
Money Market Mutual Funds N/A 20% 10%
Mortgage Pass-Through Securities 5 years 20% None
County Pooled Investment Funds N/A None None
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) N/A None None
Joint Powers Authority Pools N/A None None
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Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to
changes in market interest rates. The District has a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as
a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. The District manages
its exposure to interest rate risk by investing in the County Pool which purchases a combination of shorter term
and longer term investments and which also times cash flows from maturities so that a portion of the portfolio is
maturing or coming close to maturity evenly over time as necessary to provide the cash flow and liquidity
needed for operations. The District maintains an investment of $80,221,522 in the Kings County Treasury
Investment Pool that has an average weighted maturity of 580 days.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligations to the holder of the investment.
The is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. The
District’s investment with the Kings County Investment Pool is currently not rated, nor is it required to be rated.

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits

This is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the District’s deposits may not be returned to it. The District
does not have a policy for custodial credit risk for deposits. However, the California Government Code requires
that a financial institution secure deposits made by State or local governmental units by pledging securities in an
undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under state law (unless so waived by the governmental
unit). The market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total
amount deposited by the public agency. California law also allows financial institutions to secure public deposits
by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the secured public deposits and letters of
credit issued by the Federal Home Loan Bank of San Francisco having a value of 105% of the secured deposits. As
of June 30, 2023, none of the District’s bank balance was exposed to custodial credit risk because it was insured
and collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution’s trust department or agent.

37



243

Hanford Elementary School District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2023

Note 3 - Receivables

Receivables at June 30, 2023, consist of intergovernmental grants, entitlements, and local sources. All
receivables are considered collectible in full.

Non-Major Total Governmental
General Governmental Governmental Proprietary Activities
Fund Funds Funds Funds Total

Federal Government

Categoricalaid § 2,086,644 S 666,772 S 2,753,416 S - S 2,753,416
State Government

Other State 1,764,377 139,633 1,904,010 - 1,904,010
Local Sources 870,711 198,341 1,069,052 270 1,069,322
Total S 4,721,732 S 1,004,746 $ 5,726,478 S 270 S 5,726,748
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Note 4 - Capital Assets and Right-to-Use Subscription IT Assets

Capital assets and right-to-use subscription IT assets activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, are as
follows:

July 1, 2022 Balance
as Restated Additions Deductions June 30, 2023
Governmental Activities
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land S 3,016,579 S - S - § 3,016,579
Construction in progress 2,991,687 2,309,918 (2,558,000) 2,743,605
Total capital assets
not being depreciated 6,008,266 2,309,918 (2,558,000) 5,760,184
Capital assets being depreciated
Land improvements 12,229,000 476,379 - 12,705,379
Buildings and improvements 71,491,921 5,146,419 - 76,638,340
Furniture and equipment 9,634,990 732,118 (22,061) 10,345,047
Total capital assets being
depreciated 93,355,911 6,354,916 (22,061) 99,688,766
Total capital assets 99,364,177 8,664,834 (2,580,061) 105,448,950
Accumulated depreciation
Land improvements (5,860,511) (394,831) - (6,255,342)
Buildings and improvements (23,943,331) (1,595,461) - (25,538,792)
Furniture and equipment (5,273,724) (776,599) 18,845 (6,031,478)
Total accumulated
depreciation (35,077,566) (2,766,891) 18,845 (37,825,612)
Net depreciable capital assets 58,278,345 3,588,025 (3,216) 61,863,154
Right-to-use subscription IT assets
being amortized
Right-to-use subscription IT assets 91,832 14,725 - 106,557
Accumulated amortization - (37,688) - (37,688)
Net right-to-use subscription IT assets 91,832 (22,963) - 68,869

Governmental activities
capital assets and right-to-use

subscription IT assets, net § 64,378,443 § 5,874980 S (2,561,216) S 67,692,207
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Depreciation and amortization expenses were charged to the following functions as follows:

Governmental Activities

Instruction S 1,302,086
Supervision of instruction 96,881
School site administration 203,719
Home-to-school transportation 126,897
Food services 199,645
All other pupil services 79,920
Ancillary services 39,804
Data processing 19,698
All other administration 268,506
Plant services 467,423

Total depreciation and amortization expenses - governmental activities S 2,804,579

Note 5- Interfund Transactions
Interfund Receivables/Payables (Due To/Due From)
Interfund receivable and payable balances arise from interfund transactions and are recorded by all funds

affected in the period in which transactions are executed. Interfund receivable and payable balances at
June 30, 2023, between major and non-major governmental funds and internal service funds are as follows:

Due from Due to
Funds Other Funds Other Funds
Major Governmental Funds
General S - S 4,539
Special Reserve Fund for Capital
Outlay Projects - 1,440,121
Non-Major Governmental Funds
Cafeteria 4,539 -
County School Facilities 1,440,121 -
Total S 1,444,660 S 1,444,660
The Special Reserve Fund for Capital Outlay Projects owes the County School Facilities
Non-Major Governmental Fund for the Lincoln Classroom Project. S 1,440,121
The General Fund owes the Cafeteria Non-Major Governmental Fund for an overpayment. 4,539
Total Interfund Receivables/Payables S 1,444,660
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Operating Transfers

Interfund transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect them
to the fund that statute or budget requires to expend them, (2) move receipts restricted to debt service from
the funds collecting the receipts to the debt service fund as debt service payments become due, and (3) use
unrestricted revenues collected in the general fund to finance various programs accounted for in other funds in
accordance with budgetary authorizations. Interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2023, consist of the
following:

The Building Fund transferred to the County School Facilities Non-Major Governmental

Fund for the Roosevelt Modernization project. S 353,422
The County School Facilities Non-Major Governmental Fund transferred to the

Special Reserve Fund for Capital Outlay Projects for reimbursement of funding. 515,556
The Building Fund transferred to the Deferred Maintenance Non-Major Governmental

Fund for the roofing project. 308,425
The General Fund transferred to the Special Reserve Fund for Capital Outlay Projects for

future construction projects. 3,000,000
The County School Facilities Non-Major Governmental Fund transferred to the Building Fund

for the Richmond Modernization project residual. 55,254
The Charter School Non-Major Governmental Fund transferred to the General Fund

for the residual balance. 1,699

Total S 4,234,356

Note 6 - Prepaid Expenditures (Expenses)

Prepaid expenditures (expenses) at June 30, 2023, consist of the following:

General
Fund
Membership dues S 9,975
Technology 4,760
Subscriptions/licenses 21,725
Total S 36,460
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Note 7 - Accounts Payable

Accounts payable at June 30, 2023, consist of the following:

Non-Major Governmental Governmental
General Governmental Funds Proprietary Activities
Fund Funds Total Funds Total
Vendor payables S 368,973 S 58,061 S 427,034 S 2,182 S 429,216
LCFF apportionment 1,745,504 - 1,745,504 - 1,745,504
Salaries and benefits 4,508,982 - 4,508,982 5,497 4,514,479
Total S 6,623,459 S 58,061 S 6,681,520 S 7,679 S 6,689,199
Note 8 - Unearned Revenue
Unearned revenue at June 30, 2023, consists of the following:
General
Fund

Federal financial assistance

State categorical aid

Total

Note 9 -

Summary

Long-Term Liabilities Other than OPEB and Pensions

S 2,929,117
1,087,420

S 4,016,537

The changes in the District’s long-term liabilities other than OPEB and pensions during the year consisted of the

following:

Long-Term Liabilities
General obligation bonds
Unamortized debt premiums
Financed purchase agreements
Subscription-based IT arrangements
Compensated absences
Claims liability (Note 12)

Total

Balance
July 1, 2022 Balance Due in
as Restated Additions Deductions  June 30, 2023 One Year
$23,165,000 $ - S (865,000) $22,300,000 S 680,000
1,589,268 - (77,862) 1,511,406 -
2,473,151 770,904 (137,397) 3,106,658 137,397
45,962 14,725 (37,325) 23,362 23,362
475,257 3,965 - 479,222 -
74,531 3,869 - 78,400 -
$27,823,169 S 793,463 $(1,117,584) §$27,499,048 S 840,759
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Payments on the general obligation bonds are made by the Bond Interest and Redemption Fund. The premium
will be amortized over the life of the related debt. The financed purchase agreement will be paid by the General
Fund. The subscription-based IT arrangements are paid by the General Fund. The compensated absences will be
paid by the fund for which the employee worked. The claims liability will be paid by Self Insurance Fund.

General Obligation Bonds

The outstanding general obligation bonded debt is as follows:

Fiscal Final Bonds Bonds
Year Maturity Interest Original Outstanding Outstanding
Issued Date Rate Issue July 1, 2022 Redeemed June 30, 2023
2010 9/2024 2.0-5.0% $ 5,740,000 $ 1,090,000 S (535,000) $ 555,000
2017 8/2047 2.0-5.0% 8,800,000 8,085,000 - 8,085,000
2019 8/2049 1.875-5.250% 7,600,000 6,390,000 - 6,390,000
2020 8/2045 2.375-4.00% 7,600,000 7,600,000 (330,000) 7,270,000

Total S 23,165,000 S (865,000) S 22,300,000

Debt Service Requirements to Maturity

2010 General Obligation Bonds

On December 9, 2010, the District issued general obligation refunding bonds in the amount of $5,740,000 for
the purpose of refunding the outstanding 1998 General Obligation Bonds of the District originally issued to fund
improvements to real property for school purposes. The bond interest rates range from 2.0% to 5.0%. Interest
on the Bonds is payable semiannually each March 1 and September 1, commencing on March 1, 2011.

The bonds were sold at a premium of $210,148 which is being amortized over the life of the bonds at $15,010
per year. The unamortized premium as of June 30, 2023, amounted to $15,010.

2016A General Obligation Bonds

On May 24, 2017, the District issued $8,800,000 Election of 2016, Series A General Obligation Bonds. The bonds
were authorized at an election of the registered voters of the District held on November 8, 2016, which
authorized the issuance of $24,000,000 principal amount of general obligation bonds to finance the repair,
upgrading, acquisition, construction and equipping of certain District property and facilities, and to pay the costs
of issuing the bonds. The bonds were issued as current interest bonds. Interest on the bonds is payable
semiannually on February 1 and August 1 of each year commencing February 1, 2018.

The bonds were sold at a premium of $452,164 which is being amortized over the life of the bonds at $15,072
per year. The unamortized premium as of June 30, 2023, amounted to $361,732.
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2016B General Obligation Bonds

On March 27, 2019, the District issued $7,600,000 Election of 2016, Series B General Obligation Bonds. The
bonds were authorized at an election of the registered voters of the District held on November 8, 2016, which
authorized the issuance of $24,000,000 principal amount of general obligation bonds to finance the repair,
upgrading, acquisition, construction and equipping of certain District property and facilities, and to pay the costs
of issuing the bonds. The bonds were issued as current interest bonds. Interest on the bonds is payable
semiannually on February 1 and August 1 of each year commencing August 1, 2019.

The bonds were sold at a premium of $626,269 which is being amortized over the life of the bonds at $20,876
per year. The unamortized premium as of June 30, 2023, amounted to $542,765.

2016C General Obligation Bonds

On September 9, 2020, the District issued $7,600,000 Election of 2016, Series C General Obligation Bonds. The
bonds were authorized at an election of the registered voters of the District held on November 8, 2016, which
authorized the issuance of $24,000,000 principal amount of general obligation bonds to finance the repair,
upgrading, acquisition, construction and equipping of certain District property and facilities, and to pay the costs
of issuing the bonds. The bonds were issued as current interest bonds. Interest on the bonds is payable
semiannually on February 1 and August 1 of each year commencing February 1, 2021.

The bonds were sold at a premium of $672,611 which is being amortized over the life of the bonds at $26,904
per year. The unamortized premium as of June 30, 2023, amounted to $591,899.

The bonds have debt service payments as follows:

Interest to

Fiscal Year Principal Maturity Total
2024 S 680,000 S 868,050 S 1,548,050
2025 160,000 848,475 1,008,475
2026 200,000 841,275 1,041,275
2027 245,000 831,850 1,076,850
2028 290,000 819,999 1,109,999
2029-2033 2,250,000 3,849,547 6,099,547
2034-2038 3,870,000 3,277,966 7,147,966
2039-2043 5,950,000 2,417,011 8,367,011
2044-2048 7,255,000 1,178,062 8,433,062
2049-2050 1,400,000 36,755 1,436,755

Total S 22,300,000 S 14,968,990 S 37,268,990
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Financed Purchase Agreements

Loan 006-20-ECG

During the 2020-2021 fiscal year, the District entered into an arrangement with the California Energy
Commission for an energy efficiency project not to exceed $2,473,151. The District has received all
reimbursement requests up to the threshold amount and is no longer submitting for reimbursements.

Principal payments on the purchase agreement are payable semiannually on December 22 and June 22 of each
year commencing December 22, 2022. The project has been completed as of June 30, 2023. The remaining
principal payment requirements for the purchase agreement as of June 30, 2023, are as follows:

Fiscal Year Principal
2024 S 137,397
2025 137,397
2026 137,397
2027 137,397
2028 137,397
2029-2033 686,986
2034-2038 686,986
2039-2040 274,797

Total S 2,335,754

Loan 003-22-ECG

During the year, the District entered into a financed purchase agreement with the California Energy Commission
for an energy efficiency project not to exceed $2,202,584. As of June 30, 2023, the District has submitted
invoices for reimbursement of $770,904.

Principal payments are due and payable in semiannual installments beginning on or before December 22 of the
fiscal year following the year in which the project is completed and continuing thereafter on each June 22 and
December 22 until said principal shall be paid in full. As of June 30, 2023, the project was in progress and the
estimated date of completion is October 31, 2024.

Subscriptions-Based Information Technology Arrangements (SBITAs)
The District entered into SBITAs for the general operations of the District. At June 30, 2023, the District
recognized right-to-use subscriptions IT assets of $106,557 and a SBITA liability of $23,362 related to these

agreements. During the fiscal year, the District recorded $37,688 in amortization expense and $1,154 in interest
expense. The subscriptions have an interest rate of 4.00%.
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The remaining principal and interest payment requirements for the SBITA obligation debt as of June 30, 2023,
are as follows:

Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total
2024 S 23,362 S 392 S 23,754

Compensated Absences

Compensated absences (unpaid employee vacation) for the District at June 30, 2023, amounted to $479,222.

Note 10 - Other Postemployment Benefit (OPEB) Liability

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, the District reported net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources,
deferred inflows of resources, and OPEB expense for the following plans:

Net OPEB Deferred Outflows  Deferred Inflows OPEB
OPEB Plan Liability of Resources of Resources Expense
District Plan S 14,255,470 S 2,742,247 S 2,524,146 S 1,145,037
Medicare Premium Payment
(MPP) Program 287,486 - - (49,103)
Total S 14,542,956 S 2,742,247 S 2,524,146 S 1,095,934

The details of each plan are as follows:

District Plan

Plan Administration

The District’s governing board administers the Postemployment Benefits Plan (the Plan). The Plan is a
single-employer defined benefit plan that is used to provide postemployment benefits other than pensions
(OPEB) for eligible retirees and their spouses. No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in
paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75.

Plan Membership

At June 30, 2021, the valuation date, the Plan membership consisted of the following:

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits payments 38
Active employees 461
Total 499
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Benefits Provided

District employees may retire with District-paid medical and dental benefits after satisfaction of age and service
requirements that vary by bargaining unit or employee classification.

Classified: Age 55 and 13 years of consecutive service. Benefits for retirements prior to July 1, 2007 extend for a
maximum of five years and do not include District-paid dental premiums.

Certificated: Age 55 and 13 years of service, including five years immediately before retirement.

Management/Confidential/Professional: Age 55 and 10 years of service (13 years for those hired on or after
January 1, 2013).

Benefits end at the earlier of 10 years or age 65, which is age 65 in all cases due to the age 55 requirement.

Certificated retirees are subject to a maximum dollar contribution ("cap") for District-paid benefits. The cap is
equal to the sum of the composite premiums for medical, prescription drug, and dental coverages for active
employees, and is $1,324.41 per month for 2022-23. Classified employees retiring on or after July 1, 2007 are
eligible to receive District-paid medical, prescription drug and dental coverages, and the cap for these retirees is
$1,087.17 per month for 2022-23. Management, Confidential, and Professional Specialist retirees are subject to
a cap of $1,324.41 per month for 2022-23.

Contributions

The benefit payment requirements of the Plan members and the District are established and may be amended
by the District, the Hanford Elementary Teachers Association (HETA), the local California Service Employees
Association (CSEA), and unrepresented groups. The benefit payment is based on projected pay-as-you-go
financing requirements as determined annually through the agreements with the District, HETA, CSEA, and the
unrepresented groups. For measurement period of June 30, 2022, the District paid $542,659 to the plan which
includes $38,235 related to the implicit rate subsidy.

Total OPEB Liability of the District

The District’s total OPEB liability of $14,255,470 was measured as of June 30, 2022, and the total OPEB liability
was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2021.
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Actuarial Assumptions

The total OPEB liability as of June 30, 2022 was determined by applying updated procedures to the financial
reporting actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2021 and rolling forward the total OPEB liability to June 30, 2022. The
following assumptions were applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified:

Inflation 2.75%

Salary increases 3.00%, average

Discount rate 3.69%

Healthcare cost trend rates 4.50% for 2022-2023, 5.20% for 2024-2069 and 4.00% for 2070 and later

The discount rate was based on the Bond Buyer 20-bond General Obligation Index.

Mortality rates for certificated employees were based on CalSTRS Experience Analysis (2015-2018). Mortality
rates for classified employees were based on CalPERS Experience Study (2000-2019).

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2021 valuation were based on the results of an actual experience
study for the period July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2021.

Changes in the Total OPEB Liability

Total OPEB
Liability

Balance, June 30, 2021 S 16,359,852
Service cost 794,580
Interest 324,180
Changes of assumptions or other inputs (2,680,483)
Benefit payments (542,659)
Net change in total OPEB liability (2,104,382)
Balance, June 30, 2022 S 14,255,470

Changes in Benefit Terms - There were no changes in the benefit terms since the previous valuation.

Changes of Assumptions - The discount rate changed from 1.92% to 3.69% since the previous valuation.
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Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the District, as well as what the District’s total OPEB liability
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percent lower or higher than the current rate:

Total OPEB
Discount Rate Liability
1% decrease (2.69%) S 15,711,246
Current discount rate (3.69%) 14,255,470
1% increase (4.69%) 12,946,056

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rate

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the District, as well as what the District’s total OPEB liability
would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are one percent lower or higher than the

current healthcare costs trend rate:

Total OPEB
Healthcare Cost Trend Rate Liability
1% decrease (3.50%) S 12,510,325
Current healthcare cost trend rate (4.50%) 14,255,470
1% increase (5.50%) 16,317,317

OPEB Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources, and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

At June 30, 2023, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflow of resources related
to OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources
OPEB contributions subsequent to measurement date S 541,306 ! S -
Differences between expected and actual experience 537,165 -
Changes of assumptions 1,663,776 2,524,146
Total S 2,742,247 S 2,524,146

! Includes $38,140 for an implicit rate subsidy.

The deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB resulting from District contributions subsequent to the
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the OPEB liability in the subsequent fiscal year.
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The deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to changes of assumptions and the
difference between expected and actual experience will be amortized over the Expected Average Remaining
Service Life (EARSL) of all members that are provided benefits (active, inactive, and retirees) as of the beginning
of the measurement period and will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Year Ended Deferred Outflows
June 30, of Resources
2024 S 435,644
2025 435,644
2026 435,644
2027 435,646
2028 270,688
Thereafter 187,675
Total S 2,200,941
Year Ended Deferred Inflows
June 30, of Resources
2024 S 395,587
2025 395,587
2026 376,185
2027 330,924
2028 330,924
Thereafter 694,939
Total S 2,524,146

Medicare Premium Payment (MPP) Program
Plan Description

The Medicare Premium Payment (MPP) Program is administered by the California State Teachers’ Retirement
System (CalSTRS). The MPP Program is a cost-sharing multiple-employer other postemployment benefit plan
(OPEB) established pursuant to Chapter 1032, Statutes 2000 (SB 1435). CalSTRS administers the MPP Program
through the Teachers’ Health Benefits Fund (THBF).

A full description of the MPP Program regarding benefit provisions, assumptions (for funding, but not accounting
purposes), and membership information is listed in the June 30, 2021, annual actuarial valuation report,
Medicare Premium Payment Program Actuarial Valuation. This report and CalSTRS audited financial information
are publicly available reports that can be found on the CalSTRS website under Publications at:
http://www.calstrs.com/member-publications.
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Benefits Provided

The MPP Program pays Medicare Part A premiums and Medicare Parts A and B late enrollment surcharges for
eligible members of the State Teachers Retirement Plan (STRP) Defined Benefit (DB)Program who were retired
or began receiving a disability allowance prior to July 1, 2012 and were not eligible for premium free Medicare
Part A. The payments are made directly to the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) on a monthly
basis.

The MPP Program is closed to new entrants as members who retire after July 1, 2012, are not eligible for
coverage under the MPP Program.

The MPP Program is funded on a pay-as-you go basis from a portion of monthly District benefit payments. In
accordance with California Education Code Section 25930, contributions that would otherwise be credited to the
DB Program each month are instead credited to the MPP Program to fund monthly program and administrative
costs. Total redirections to the MPP Program are monitored to ensure that total incurred costs do not exceed
the amount initially identified as the cost of the program.

Net OPEB Liability and OPEB Expense

At June 30, 2023, the District reported a liability of $287,486 for its proportionate share of the net OPEB liability
for the MPP Program. The net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2022, and the total OPEB liability used
to calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2021. The District’s
proportion of the net OPEB liability was based on a projection of the District’s long-term share of contributions
to the OPEB Plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating school districts, actuarially
determined. The District’s proportionate share for the measurement period June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021,
respectively, was 0.0873% and 0.0844%, resulting in a net increase in the proportionate share of 0.0029%.

For the year ended June 30, 2023, the District recognized OPEB expense of $(49,103).
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions
The June 30, 2022 total OPEB liability was determined by applying update procedures to the financial reporting

actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2021, and rolling forward the total OPEB liability to June 30, 2022, using the
assumptions listed in the following table:

Measurement Date June 30, 2022 June 30, 2021

Valuation Date June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020

Experience Study July 1, 2015 through July 1, 2015 through
June 30, 2018 June 30, 2018

Actuarial Cost Method Entry age normal Entry age normal

Investment Rate of Return 3.54% 2.16%

Medicare Part A Premium Cost Trend Rate 4.50% 4.50%

Medicare Part B Premium Cost Trend Rate 5.40% 5.40%
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For the valuation as of June 30, 2021, CalSTRS uses a generational mortality assumption, which involves the use
of a base mortality table and projection scales to reflect expected annual reductions in mortality rates at each
age, resulting in increases in life expectancies each year into the future. The base mortality tables are CalSTRS
custom tables derived to best fit the patterns of mortality among members. The projection scale was set equal
to 110% of the ultimate improvement factor from the Mortality Improvement Scale (MP-2019) table, issued by
the Society of Actuaries.

Assumptions were made about future participation (enrollment) into the MPP Program because CalSTRS is
unable to determine which members not currently participating meet all eligibility criteria for enrollment in the
future. Assumed enrollment rates were derived based on past experience and are stratified by age with the
probability of enrollment diminishing as the members’ age increases. This estimated enrollment rate was then
applied to the population of members who may meet criteria necessary for eligibility and are not currently
enrolled in the MPP Program. Based on this, the estimated number of future enrollments used in the financial
reporting valuation was 209 or an average of 0.14% of the potentially eligible population (145,282).

The MPP Program is funded on a pay-as-you-go basis with contributions generally being made at the same time
and in the same amount as benefit payments and expenses coming due. Any funds within the MPP Program as
of June 30, 2022, were to manage differences between estimated and actual amounts to be paid and were
invested in the Surplus Money Investment Fund, which is a pooled investment program administered by the
State Treasurer.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability as of June 30, 2022, is 3.54%. As the MPP Program is
funded on a pay-as-you-go basis as previously noted, the OPEB Plan’s fiduciary net position was not projected to
be sufficient to make projected future benefit payments. Therefore, a discount rate of 3.54%, which is the Bond
Buyer 20-Bond GO Index from Bondbuyer.com as of June 30, 2022, was applied to all periods of projected
benefit payments to measure the total OPEB liability. The discount rate increased 1.38% from 2.16% as of

June 30, 2021.

Sensitivity of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate
The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability calculated using the current

discount rate, as well as what the net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is
one percent lower or higher than the current rate:

Net OPEB
Discount Rate Liability
1% decrease (2.54%) S 313,415
Current discount rate (3.54%) 287,486
1% increase (4.54%) 265,035
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Sensitivity of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Medicare Costs
Trend Rates

The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability calculated using the current
Medicare costs trend rates, as well as what the net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using Medicare
costs trend rates that are one percent lower or higher than the current rates:

Net OPEB
Medicare Costs Trend Rates Liability
1% decrease (3.50% Part A and 4.40% Part B) S 263,779
Current Medicare costs trend rates (4.50% Part A and 5.40% Part B) 287,486
1% increase (5.50% Part A and 6.40% Part B) 314,359
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Note 11 -

Fund Balances

Fund balances are composed of the following elements:

Nonspenda

ble

Revolving cash
Stores inventories

Prepaid

expenditures

Total nonspendable

Restricted

Legally restricted programs

Student

activities

Food service
Capital projects
Debt services

Total restricted

Committed

Declining enrollment

Deferred maintenance program

Technology
Facility Construction
CEC solar loan

Total committed

Assigned

Retiree postemployment benefits

Capital projects

Total assigned

Unassigned

Total

Special Reserve Non-Major
General Fund for Capital Governmental

Fund Outlay Projects Funds Total
S 5050 S - S 410 S 5,460
235,239 - 48,434 283,673
36,460 - - 36,460
276,749 - 48,844 325,593
27,701,461 - 1,486,546 29,188,007
- - 19,771 19,771
- - 3,293,608 3,293,608
- - 1,601,029 1,601,029
- - 1,445,298 1,445,298
27,701,461 - 7,846,252 35,547,713
6,583,277 - - 6,583,277
- - 676,516 676,516
2,412,653 - - 2,412,653
3,000,000 - - 3,000,000
4,538,338 - - 4,538,338
16,534,268 - 676,516 17,210,784
13,194,604 - - 13,194,604
- 3,285,082 - 3,285,082
13,194,604 3,285,082 - 16,479,686
5,191,211 - - 5,191,211
S 62,898,293 S 3,285,082 S 8,571,612 S 74,754,987
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Note 12 - Risk Management
Property and Liability

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft, damage, and destruction of assets; errors
and omissions; injuries to employees and natural disasters. During fiscal year ending June 30, 2023, the District
contracted with Northern California Regional Excess Liability Fund for property and liability insurance coverage.
Settled claims have not exceeded this commercial coverage in any of the past three years. There has not been a
significant reduction in coverage from the prior year.

Workers’ Compensation

For fiscal year 2023, the District participated in the Kings County Self-Insured Schools (KCSIS), an insurance
purchasing pool. The intent of KCSIS is to achieve the benefit of a reduced premium for the District by virtue of
its grouping and representation with other participants in KCSIS. The workers’ compensation experience of the
participating districts is calculated as one experience and a common premium rate is applied to all districts in
KCSIS. Each participant pays its workers’ compensation premium based on its individual rate. Total savings are
then calculated and each participant’s individual performance is compared to the overall savings percentage. A
participant will then either receive money from or be required to contribute to the “equity-pooling fund.” This
“equity pooling” arrangement insures that each participant shares equally in the overall performance of KCSIS.
Participation in KCSIS is limited to districts that can meet KCSIS’ selection criteria.

Employee Medical and Vision Benefits

The District has contracted with the Self-Insured Schools of California (SISC Ill) to provide employee medical
benefits. SISC lll is a shared risk pool comprised of agencies in California. Rates are set through an annual
calculation process. The District pays a monthly contribution, which is placed in a common fund from which
claim payments are made for all participating Districts. Claims are paid for all participants regardless of claims
flow. The Board of Directors has a right to return monies to a district subsequent to the settlement of all
expenses and claims if a district withdraws from the pool. The District has a contract with Keenan-Medical Eye
Services for employee vision benefits. The plan is fully insured.
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Employee Dental Benefits Claims Liabilities

The District records an estimated liability for dental claims paid out of the Internal Service Fund of the District.
Claims liabilities are based on estimates of the ultimate cost of reported claims (including future claim
adjustment expenses) and an estimate for claims incurred, but not reported based on historical experience. The
following represent the changes in approximate aggregate liabilities for the District from June 30, 2021 to

June 30, 2023 (in thousands):

Dental Care
Liability Balance, July 1, 2021 S 66,980
Claims and changes in estimates 7,551
Liability Balance, June 30, 2022 74,531
Claims and changes in estimates 3,869
Liability Balance, June 30, 2023 S 78,400
Assets available to pay claims at June 30, 2023 S 858,090

Note 13 - Employee Retirement Systems

Qualified employees are covered under multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans maintained by
agencies of the State of California. Academic employees are members of the California State Teachers’
Retirement System (CalSTRS) and classified employees are members of the California Public Employees’
Retirement System (CalPERS).

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, the District reported its proportionate share of net pension liabilities,
deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, and pension expense for each of the above plans
as follows:

Net Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
Pension Plan Pension Liability of Resources of Resources Pension Expense
CalSTRS S 40,406,750 S 11,397,625 S 5,253,313 S 3,988,902
CalPERS 28,234,960 10,756,822 1,251,467 3,706,850
Total S 68,641,710 S 22,154,447 S 6,504,780 S 7,695,752

56



262

Hanford Elementary School District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2023

The details of each plan are as follows:
California State Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS)
Plan Description

The District contributes to the State Teachers Retirement Plan (STRP) administered by the California State
Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS). STRP is a cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee retirement
system defined benefit pension plan. Benefit provisions are established by State statutes, as legislatively
amended, within the State Teachers’ Retirement Law.

A full description of the pension plan regarding benefit provisions, assumptions (for funding, but not accounting
purposes), and membership information is listed in the June 30, 2021, annual actuarial valuation report, Defined
Benefit Program Actuarial Valuation. This report and CalSTRS audited financial information are publicly available
reports that can be found on the CalSTRS website under Publications at: http://www.calstrs.com/member-
publications.

Benefits Provided

The STRP provides retirement, disability and survivor benefits to beneficiaries. Benefits are based on members’
final compensation, age, and years of service credit. Members hired on or before December 31, 2012, with

five years of credited service are eligible for the normal retirement benefit at age 60. Members hired on or after
January 1, 2013, with five years of credited service are eligible for the normal retirement benefit at age 62. The
normal retirement benefit is equal to 2.0% of final compensation for each year of credited service.

The STRP is comprised of four programs: Defined Benefit Program, Defined Benefit Supplement Program, Cash
Balance Benefit Program, and Replacement Benefits Program. The STRP holds assets for the exclusive purpose of
providing benefits to members and beneficiaries of these programs. CalSTRS also uses plan assets to defray
reasonable expenses of administering the STRP. Although CalSTRS is the administrator of the STRP, the state is
the sponsor of the STRP and obligor of the trust. In addition, the state is both an employer and nonemployer
contributing entity to the STRP.

The District contributes exclusively to the STRP Defined Benefit Program, thus disclosures are not included for
the other plans.
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The STRP provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2023, are summarized as follows:

STRP Defined Benefit Program

On or before On or after
Hire date December 31, 2012 January 1, 2013
Benefit formula 2% at 60 2% at 62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years of service 5 years of service
Benefit payments Monthly for life Monthly for life
Retirement age 60 62
Monthly benefits as a percentage of eligible compensation 2.0%-2.4% 2.0%-2.4%
Required employee contribution rate 10.25% 10.205%
Required employer contribution rate 19.10% 19.10%
Required state contribution rate 10.828% 10.828%

Contributions

Required member, District and State of California contributions rates are set by the California Legislature and
Governor and detailed in Teachers’ Retirement Law. The contributions rates are expressed as a level percentage
of payroll using the entry age normal actuarial method. In accordance with AB 1469, employer contributions
into the CalSTRS will be increasing to a total of 19.1% of applicable member earnings phased over a seven-year

period. The contribution rates for each plan for the year ended June 30, 2023, are presented above and the
District’s total contributions were $6,968,882.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources, and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2023, the District reported a liability for its proportionate share of the net pension liability that
reflected a reduction for State pension support provided to the District. The amount recognized by the District
as its proportionate share of the net pension liability, the related state support and the total portion of the net
pension liability that was associated with the District were as follows:

Total net pension liability, including State share

Proportionate share of net pension liability S 40,406,750
State’s proportionate share of the net pension liability 20,235,543
Total $ 60,642,293
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The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2022. The District’s proportion of the net pension liability
was based on a projection of the District’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the
projected contributions of all participating school districts and the State, actuarially determined. The District’s
proportionate share for the measurement periods June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021, respectively, was 0.0582%

and 0.0561%, resulting in a net increase in the proportionate share of 0.0021%.

For the year ended June 30, 2023, the District recognized pension expense of $3,988,902. In addition, the
District recognized pension expense and revenue of $1,631,983 for support provided by the State. At
June 30, 2023, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to

pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources

of Resources

Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date S 6,968,882 S -
Change in proportion and differences between contributions

made and District’s proportionate share of contributions 2,391,717 247,681
Differences between projected and actual earnings

on pension plan investments - 1,975,968
Differences between expected and actual experience

in the measurement of the total pension liability 33,146 3,029,664
Changes of assumptions 2,003,880 -

Total S 11,397,625 S 5,253,313

The deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from District contributions subsequent to the
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the subsequent fiscal year.

The deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the difference between
projected and actual earnings on pension plan investments will be amortized over a closed five-year period and

will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Deferred
Year Ended Outflows/(Inflows)
June 30, of Resources

2024 S (1,451,494)
2025 (1,572,449)
2026 (2,362,139)
2027 3,410,114
Total S (1,975,968)
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The deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the change in proportion and
differences between contributions made and District’s proportionate share of contributions, differences
between expected and actual experience in the measurement of the total pension liability, and changes of
assumptions will be amortized over the Expected Average Remaining Service Life (EARSL) of all members that
are provided benefits (active, inactive, and retirees) as of the beginning of the measurement period. The EARSL
for the measurement period is seven years and will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Deferred
Year Ended Outflows/(Inflows)
June 30, of Resources
2024 S 1,677,311
2025 43,417
2026 (78,598)
2027 (134,887)
2028 (336,538)
Thereafter (19,307)
Total S 1,151,398

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Total pension liability for STRP was determined by applying update procedures to the financial reporting
actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2021, and rolling forward the total pension liability to June 30, 2022. The
financial reporting actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2021, used the following methods and assumptions, applied
to all prior periods included in the measurement:

Valuation date June 30, 2021

Measurement date June 30, 2022

Experience study July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2018
Actuarial cost method Entry age normal

Discount rate 7.10%

Investment rate of return 7.10%

Consumer price inflation 2.75%

Wage growth 3.50%

CalSTRS uses a generational mortality assumption, which involves the use of a base mortality table and
projection scales to reflect expected annual reductions in mortality rates at each age, resulting in increases in
life expectancies each year into the future. The base mortality tables are CalSTRS custom tables derived to best
fit the patterns of mortality among its members. The projection scale was set equal to 110% of the ultimate
improvement factor from the Mortality Improvement Scale (MP-2019) table, issued by the Society of Actuaries.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block
method in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension
plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. The best estimate ranges were
developed using capital market assumptions from CalSTRS general investment consultant as an input to the
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process. The actuarial investment rate of return assumption was adopted by the board in January 2020 in
conjunction with the most recent experience study. For each current and future valuation, CalSTRS’ independent
consulting actuary (Milliman) reviews the return assumption for reasonableness based on the most current
capital market assumptions. Best estimates of 20-year geometrically linked real rates of return and the assumed
asset allocation for each major asset class for the year ended June 30, 2022, are summarized in the following

table:

Long-Term
Assumed Asset Expected Real
Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return
Public equity 42% 4.8%
Real estate 15% 3.6%
Private equity 13% 6.3%
Fixed income 12% 1.3%
Risk mitigating strategies 10% 1.8%
Inflation sensitive 6% 3.3%
Cash/liquidity 2% (0.4%)

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.10%. The projection of cash flows used to
determine the discount rate assumed the contributions from plan members and employers will be made at
statutory contribution rates. Projected inflows from investment earnings were calculated using the long-term
assumed investment rate of return of 7.10% and assume that contributions, benefit payments and
administrative expense occurred midyear. Based on these assumptions, the STRP’s fiduciary net position was
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments to current plan members. Therefore, the
long-term assumed investment rate of return was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to

determine total pension liability.

The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the current
discount rate as well as what the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is

one percent lower or higher than the current rate:

Net Pension
Discount Rate Liability
1% decrease (6.10%) S 68,625,649
Current discount rate (7.10%) 40,406,750
1% increase (8.10%) 16,976,580
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California Public Employees Retirement System (CalPERS)
Plan Description

Qualified employees are eligible to participate in the School Employer Pool (SEP) under the California Public
Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee retirement system
defined benefit pension plan administered by CalPERS. Benefit provisions are established by State statutes, as
legislatively amended, within the Public Employees’ Retirement Law.

A full description of the pension plan regarding benefit provisions, assumptions (for funding, but not accounting
purposes), and membership information is listed in the June 30, 2021 annual actuarial valuation report, Schools
Pool Actuarial Valuation. This report and CalPERS audited financial information are publicly available reports
that can be found on the CalPERS website under Forms and Publications at:
https://www.calpers.ca.gov/page/forms-publications.

Benefits Provided

CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments and death benefits
to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries. Benefits are based on years of service
credit, a benefit factor and the member’s final compensation. Members hired on or before December 31, 2012,
with five years of total service are eligible to retire at age 50 with statutorily reduced benefits. Members hired
on or after January 1, 2013, with five years of total service are eligible to retire at age 52 with statutorily reduced
benefits. All members are eligible for non-duty disability benefits after five years of service. The Basic Death
Benefit is paid to any member’s beneficiary if the member dies while actively employed. An employee’s eligible
survivor may receive the 1957 Survivor Benefit if the member dies while actively employed, is at least age 50 (or
52 for members hired on or after January 1, 2013), and has at least five years of credited service. The cost of
living adjustments for each plan are applied as specified by the Public Employees’ Retirement Law.

The CalPERS provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2023, are summarized as follows:

School Employer Pool (CalPERS)

On or before On or after
Hire date December 31, 2012 January 1, 2013
Benefit formula 2% at 55 2% at 62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years of service 5 years of service
Benefit payments Monthly for life Monthly for life
Retirement age 55 62
Monthly benefits as a percentage of eligible compensation 1.1% - 2.5% 1.0% - 2.5%
Required employee contribution rate 7.00% 8.00%
Required employer contribution rate 25.37% 25.37%
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Contributions

Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law requires that the employer contribution
rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and shall be effective on July 1
following notice of a change in the rate. Total plan contributions are calculated through the CalPERS annual
actuarial valuation process. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the
costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded
accrued liability. The District is required to contribute the difference between the actuarially determined rate
and the contribution rate of employees. The contributions rates are expressed as percentage of annual payroll.
The contribution rates for each plan for the year ended June 30, 2023, are presented above and the total District
contributions were $4,259,140.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources, and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions

As of June 30, 2023, the District reported net pension liabilities for its proportionate share of the CalPERS net
pension liability totaling $28,234,960. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2022. The District’s
proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the District’s long-term share of
contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating school districts,
actuarially determined. The District’s proportionate share for the measurement period June 30, 2022 and

June 30, 2021, respectively, was 0.0821% and 0.0775%, resulting in a net increase in the proportionate share of
0.0046%.

For the year ended June 30, 2023, the District recognized pension expense of $3,706,850. At June 30, 2023, the
District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the
following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources
Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date S 4,259,140 S -
Change in proportion and differences between contributions
made and District’s proportionate share of contributions 947,634 548,946
Differences between projected and actual earnings on
pension plan investments 3,333,781 -
Differences between expected and actual experience
in the measurement of the total pension liability 127,605 702,521
Changes of assumptions 2,088,662 -
Total S 10,756,822 S 1,251,467

The deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from District contributions subsequent to the
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the subsequent fiscal year.
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The deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the difference between
projected and actual earnings on pension plan investments will be amortized over a closed five-year period and
will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Deferred
Year Ended Outflows/(Inflows)
June 30, of Resources
2024 S 555,969
2025 493,105
2026 251,885
2027 2,032,822
Total S 3,333,781

The deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the change in proportion and
differences between contributions made and District’s proportionate share of contributions, differences
between expected and actual experience in the measurement of the total pension liability, and changes of
assumptions will be amortized over the Expected Average Remaining Service Life (EARSL) of all members that
are provided benefits (active, inactive, and retirees) as of the beginning of the measurement period. The EARSL
for the measurement period is 3.9 years and will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Deferred
Year Ended Outflows/(Inflows)
June 30, of Resources
2024 S 620,115
2025 571,668
2026 711,899
2027 8,752
Total S 1,912,434
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Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Total pension liability for the SEP was determined by applying update procedures to the financial reporting
actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2021, and rolling forward the total pension liability to June 30, 2022. The
financial reporting actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2021, used the following methods and assumptions, applied
to all prior periods included in the measurement:

Valuation date June 30, 2021

Measurement date June 30, 2022

Experience study July 1, 1997 through June 30, 2015
Actuarial cost method Entry age normal

Discount rate 6.90%

Investment rate of return 6.90%

Consumer price inflation 2.30%

Wage growth Varies by entry age and service

The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS-specific data. The rates incorporate Generational
Mortality to capture ongoing mortality improvement using 80% of Scale MP-2020 published by the Society of
Actuaries.

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account long-term market return
expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Projected returns for all asset classes are
estimated and, combined with risk estimates, are used to project compound (geometric) returns over the long
term. The discount rate used to discount liabilities was informed by the long-term projected portfolio return.
The target asset allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are
summarized in the following table:

Long-Term

Assumed Asset Expected Real

Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return
Global Equity - cap-weighted 30% 4.45%
Global Equity non-cap-weighted 12% 3.84%
Private Equity 13% 7.28%
Treasury 5% 0.27%
Mortgage-backed Securities 5% 0.50%
Investment Grade Corporates 10% 1.56%
High Yield 5% 2.27%
Emerging Market Debt 5% 2.48%
Private Debt 5% 3.57%
Real Assets 15% 3.21%
Leverage (5%) (0.59%)
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Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.90%. The projection of cash flows used to
determine the discount rate assumed the contributions from plan members and employers will be made at the
current member contribution rates and that contributions from employers will be made at statutorily required
rates, actuarially determined. Based on these assumptions, the School Employer Pool fiduciary net position was
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments to current plan members. Therefore, the
long-term expected rate of return on the School Employer Pool investments was applied to all periods of
projected benefit payments to determine total pension liability.

The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the current
discount rate as well as what the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is
one percent lower or higher than the current rate:

Net Pension
Discount Rate Liability
1% decrease (5.90%) S 40,786,829
Current discount rate (6.90%) 28,234,960
1% increase (7.90%) 17,861,301

Social Security

As established by Federal law, all public sector employees who are not members of their employer’s existing
retirement system (CalSTRS or CalPERS) must be covered by Social Security or an alternative plan. The District
has elected to use Social Security. Contributions made by the District and an employee vest immediately. The
District contributes 6.2% of an employee’s gross earnings. An employee is required to contribute 6.2% of his or
her gross earnings Social Security.

On Behalf Payments

The State of California makes contributions to CalSTRS on behalf of the District. These payments consist of State
General Fund contributions to CalSTRS in the amount of $3,396,989 (10.828% of annual payroll). Contributions
are no longer appropriated in the annual Budget Act for the legislatively mandated benefits to CalPERS.
Therefore, there is no on behalf contribution rate for CalPERS. Under accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America, these amounts are to be reported as revenues and expenditures. Accordingly,
these amounts have been recorded in these financial statements. On behalf payments have been included in the
calculation of available reserves.
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Note 14 - Commitments and Contingencies

Grants

The District received financial assistance from Federal and State agencies in the form of grants. The
disbursement of funds received under these programs generally requires compliance with terms and conditions
specified in the grant agreements and are subject to audit by the grantor agencies. Any disallowed claims
resulting from such audits could become a liability of the General Fund or other applicable funds. However, in
the opinion of management, any such disallowed claims will not have a material adverse effect on the overall
financial position of the District at June 30, 2023.

Litigation
The District is not currently a party to any legal proceedings.

Construction Commitments

As of June 30, 2023, the District had the following commitments with respect to the unfinished capital projects:

Remaining Expected
Construction Date of
Capital Project Commitment Completion
Wilson HVAC Gym/Locker Room S 1,245,855 August 2023
Kennedy HVAC Gym/Locker Room 458,581 August 2023
HVAC Replacement 12,471 September 2023
Core Switch Replacement 15,261 September 2023
Washington Solar 810,000 December 2024
Lincoln Campus Roofing 399,908 December 2023
Wilson HVAC Project 656,171 December 2023
Wilson Admin Building 3,017,629 December 2025
JFK Campus HVACs 157,364 October 2024
Hamilton Solar 624,186 December 2024
Monroe Campus Roofing 99,908 December 2023
Central Kitchen Refigerator/Freezer 79,151 October 2023
Total S 7,576,485

67



273

Hanford Elementary School District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2023

Note 15 - Participation in Joint Powers Authorities

The District is a member of the Northern California Regional Excess Liability Fund (NorCal ReLiEF), the Self-
Insured Schools of California (SISC 1l1), the Kings County Self-Insured Schools (KCSIS), and the Kings Schools
Transportation Authority (KSTA) joint powers authorities (JPAs). The District pays an annual premium to each
entity for its health, workers’ compensation, and property liability coverage. The relationships between the
District, the pools, and the JPAs are such that they are not component units of the District for financial reporting
purposes.

These entities have budgeting and financial reporting requirements independent of member units and their
financial statements are not presented in these financial statements; however, fund transactions between the
entities and the District are included in these statements. Audited financial statements are available from the
respective entities.

The District has an appointed representative to the governing board of NorCal ReLiEF.

During the year ended June 30, 2023, the District made payment of $458,100 to NorCal ReLiEF for property and
liability insurance.

The District has appointed no members to the governing board of SISCIII.
During the year ended June 30, 2023, the District made payment of $7,500,334 to SISC Il for health insurance.
The District has an appointed representative to the governing board of KCSIS.

During the year ended June 30, 2023, the District made payment of $1,089,439 to KCSIS for workers’
compensation insurance.

The District has an appointed representative to the governing board of KSTA.

During the year ended June 30, 2023, the District made payment of $599,354 to KSTA for student transportation
services.
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Note 16 - Adoption of New Accounting Standard

As of July 1, 2022, the District adopted GASB Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology
Arrangements (SBITAs). The implementation of this standard establishes that a SBITA results in a right-to-use
subscription IT asset — an intangible asset — and a corresponding liability. The standard provides the
capitalization criteria for outlays other than subscription payments, including implementation costs of a SBITA.
The Statement requires recognition of certain SBITA assets and liabilities for SBITAs that previously were
recognized as outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the contract. Beginning net position
and fund balance were restated to retroactively adopt the provisions of GASB Statement No. 96 as follows:

Governmental Activities

Net Position - Beginning, as previously reported on June 30, 2022 S 13,673,639
Right-to-use subscription IT assets, net of amortization 91,832
Subscription liabilities (45,962)
Prepaid asset (45,870)

Net Position - Beginning as Restated on July 1, 2022 $ 13,673,639

General Fund

Fund Balance - Beginning, as previously reported on June 30, 2022 S 38,388,628
Prepaid asset (45,870)

Fund Balance - Beginning as Restatedon July 1, 2022 S 38,342,758
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Budgetary Comparison Schedule — General Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2023

Revenues
Local Control Funding Formula
Federal sources
Other State sources
Other local sources

1
Total revenues

Expenditures

Current
Certificated salaries
Classified salaries
Employee benefits
Books and supplies
Services and operating expenditures
Other outgo

Capital outlay

Debt service
Debt service - principal
Debt service - interest and other

Total expenditures !

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in
Sources from financed purchases
Sources from subscription-based IT
arrangements
Transfers out

Net financing sources (uses)
Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balance - Beginning, as Restated

Fund Balance - Ending

Variances -

Positive

(Negative)

Budgeted Amounts Final

Original Final Actual to Actual
S 71,515,502 $§ 73,858,478 S 73,858,478 S -
12,350,693 9,199,120 9,199,120 -
16,837,204 28,852,394 28,852,394 -
3,085,883 3,684,843 3,684,843 -
103,789,282 115,594,835 115,594,835 -
36,944,696 35,989,289 35,989,289 -
15,091,730 14,424,013 14,424,013 -
25,523,419 24,216,969 24,216,969 -
4,588,260 2,919,171 2,919,171 -
6,707,015 6,722,587 6,722,587 -
1,895,376 1,299,986 1,299,986 -
4,011,802 3,078,737 3,078,737 -
137,397 174,722 174,722 -
- 1,154 1,154 -
94,899,695 88,826,628 88,826,628 -
8,889,587 26,768,207 26,768,207 -
- 1,699 1,699 -
- 770,904 770,904 -
- 14,725 14,725 -
(4,285,000) (3,000,000) (3,000,000) -
(4,285,000) (2,212,672) (2,212,672) -
4,604,587 24,555,535 24,555,535 -
38,342,758 38,342,758 38,342,758 -
S 42,947,345 S 62,898,293 S 62,898,293 S -

! Due to the consolidation of Fund 15, Pupil Transportation Fund and Fund 20, Special Reserve Fund for

Postemployment Benefits for reporting purposes into the General Fund, additional revenues and expenditures

pertaining to these other funds are included in the Actual (GAAP Basis) revenues and expenditures, however are
not included in the original and final General Fund budgets.

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information
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Year Ended June 30, 2023

Total OPEB Liability
Service cost
Interest
Difference between expected and actual experience
Changes of assumptions
Benefit payments
Net change in total OPEB liability
Total OPEB Liability - Beginning

Total OPEB Liability - Ending
Covered Payroll

Total OPEB Liability as a Percentage of Covered Payroll

Measurement Date

2023 2022 2021

$ 794,580 $ 870,370 $ 711,522

324,180 359,742 408,564

- 632,998 -

(2,680,483) 948,996 878,429

(542,659) (527,282) (526,211)

(2,104,382) 2,284,824 1,472,304

16,359,852 14,075,028 12,602,724

$ 14,255,470 $ 16,359,852 $ 14,075,028
N/AY N/A ! N/A?!
N/A?! N/A ! N/A?!

June 30, 2022

! The OPEB Plan is not administered through a trust and contributions are not made based on a measure of pay;

therefore, no measure of payroll is presented.

Note: In the future, as data becomes available, ten years of information will be presented.

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information

June 30, 2021

June 30, 2020
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Total OPEB Liability
Service cost
Interest
Difference between expected and actual experience
Changes of assumptions
Benefit payments
Net change in total OPEB liability
Total OPEB Liability - Beginning

Total OPEB Liability - Ending
Covered Payroll

Total OPEB Liability as a Percentage of Covered Payroll

Measurement Date

2020 2019 2018
$ 600,382 $ 634,895 $ 616,403
406,651 334,563 321,583
120,927 - -
1,109,739 (497,902) -
(531,418) (524,045) (522,503)
1,706,281 (52,489) 415,483
10,896,443 10,948,932 10,533,449
$ 12,602,724 $ 10,896,443 $ 10,948,932
N/A?! N/A! N/A!
N/A?! N/A?! N/A?!

June 30, 2019

! The OPEB Plan is not administered through a trust and contributions are not made based on a measure of pay;

therefore, no measure of payroll is presented.

Note: In the future, as data becomes available, ten years of information will be presented.

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information

June 30, 2018

June 30, 2017
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Year ended June 30, 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

Proportion of the net OPEB liability 0.0873% 0.0844% 0.0966% 0.0945% 0.0927% 0.0914%

Proportionate share of the net OPEB liability S 287,486 S 336,589 S 409,297 S 352,053 S 354,948 S 384,710

Covered payroll N/A* N/A* N/AY N/A* N/A* N/A!
Proportionate share of the net OPEB liability

as a percentage of it’s covered payroll N/A! N/A ! N/AY N/A® N/A® N/A*
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage

of the total OPEB liability (0.94%) (0.80%) (0.71%) (0.81%) (0.40%) 0.01%
Measurement Date June 30, 2022 June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019 June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017

1 As of June 30, 2012, active members are no longer eligible for future enrollment in the MPP Program;
therefore, the covered payroll disclosure is not applicable.

Note: In the future, as data becomes available, ten years of information will be presented.

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information 73



280

Hanford Elementary School District
Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
Year Ended June 30, 2023

CalSTRS
Proportion of the net pension liability

Proportionate share of the net pension liability
State’s proportionate share of the net pension liability

Total
Covered payroll

Proportionate share of the net pension liability
as a percentage of its covered payroll

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total
pension liability

Measurement Date

CalPERS

Proportion of the net pension liability
Proportionate share of the net pension liability
Covered payroll

Proportionate share of the net pension liability
as a percentage of its covered payroll

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total
pension liability

Measurement Date

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
0.0582% 0.0561% 0.0554% 0.0534% 0.0517%
$ 40,406,750 $ 25,547,989 $ 53,714,913 $ 48,265,346 $ 47,482,880
20,235,543 12,854,757 27,690,044 26,331,969 27,186,169
$ 60,642,293 $ 38,402,746 $ 81,404,957 $ 74,597,315 $ 74,669,049
33,536,407 $ 30,179,858 29,909,842 $ 28,765,405 27,570,305
120.49% 84.65% 179.59% 167.79% 172.22%
81% 87% 72% 73% 71%

June 30, 2022

June 30, 2021

June 30, 2020

June 30, 2019

June 30, 2018

0.0821% 0.0775% 0.0808% 0.0781% 0.0781%

S 28,234,960 S 15,763,604 S 16,206,327 S 23,035,615 S 20,819,169
$ 12,587,988 $ 11,127,430 $ 11,636,555 $ 10,948,001 $ 10,303,580
224.30% 141.66% 139.27% 210.41% 202.06%

70% 81% 70% 70% 71%

June 30, 2022

June 30, 2021

Note: In the future, as data becomes available, ten years of information will be presented.

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information

June 30, 2020

June 30, 2019

June 30, 2018
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2018 2017 2016 2015

CalSTRS
Proportion of the net pension liability 0.0505% 0.0511% 0.0510% 0.0482%
Proportionate share of the net pension liability S 46,711,085 S 41,305,968 S 34,307,537 S 28,163,133
State’s proportionate share of the net pension liability 27,633,883 23,514,751 18,144,905 17,006,116

Total S 74,344,968 S 64,820,719 S 52,452,442 S 45,169,249
Covered payroll S 26,685,429 25,643,541 23,320,878 21,702,145
Proportionate share of the net pension liability

as a percentage of its covered payroll 175.04% 161.08% 147.11% 129.77%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total

pension liability 69% 70% 74% 77%
Measurement Date June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014
CalPERS
Proportion of the net pension liability 0.0790% 0.0798% 0.0771% 0.0740%
Proportionate share of the net pension liability S 18,847,723 S 15,760,087 S 11,366,384 S 8,395,535
Covered payroll $ 10,066,302 $ 9,581,751 S 8,524,832 S 7,842,555
Proportionate share of the net pension liability

as a percentage of its covered payroll 187.24% 164.48% 133.33% 107.05%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total

pension liability 72% 74% 79% 83%
Measurement Date June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014

Note: In the future, as data becomes available, ten years of information will be presented.
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CalSTRS

Contractually required contribution

Less contributions in relation to the contractually
required contribution

Contribution deficiency (excess)

Covered payroll

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll

CalPERS

Contractually required contribution

Less contributions in relation to the contractually
required contribution

Contribution deficiency (excess)

Covered payroll

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

$ 6,968,882 S 5,674,360 S 4,874,047 $ 5,114,583 4,683,008

6,968,882 5,674,360 4,874,047 5,114,583 4,683,008

S -8 -8 -3 - -

S 36,486,293 S 33,536,407 S 30,179,858 S 29,909,842 28,765,405
19.10% 16.92% 16.15% 17.10% 16.28%

S 4,259,140 $ 2,883,908 S 2,303,378 S 2,294,845 1,977,428

4,259,140 2,883,908 2,303,378 2,294,845 1,977,428

$ -8 -8 - s : :

$ 16,788,096 $ 12,587,988 S 11,127,430 $ 11,636,555 10,948,001
25.370% 22.910% 20.700% 19.721% 18.062%

Note: In the future, as data becomes available, ten years of information will be presented.

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information
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CalSTRS

Contractually required contribution

Less contributions in relation to the contractually
required contribution

Contribution deficiency (excess)

Covered payroll

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll

CalPERS

Contractually required contribution

Less contributions in relation to the contractually
required contribution

Contribution deficiency (excess)

Covered payroll

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll

2018 2017 2016 2015
S 3,978,395 3,357,027 S 2,751,552 2,070,894
3,978,395 3,357,027 2,751,552 2,070,894
$ - -8 - -
S 27,570,305 26,685,429 S 25,643,541 23,320,878
14.43% 12.58% 10.73% 8.88%
S 1,600,249 1,398,008 $ 1,135,150 1,003,458
1,600,249 1,398,008 1,135,150 1,003,458
S - - s : :
S 10,303,580 10,066,302 $ 9,581,751 8,524,832
15.531% 13.888% 11.847% 11.771%

Note: In the future, as data becomes available, ten years of information will be presented.

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information
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Note 1- Purpose of Schedules
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

The District employs budget control by object codes and by individual appropriation accounts. Budgets are
prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United State of America as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board and
provisions of the California Education Code. The governing board is required to hold a public hearing and adopt
an operating budget no later than July 1 of each year. The adopted budget is subject to amendment throughout
the year to give consideration to unanticipated revenue and expenditures primarily resulting from events
unknown at the time of budget adoption with the legal restriction that expenditures cannot exceed
appropriations by major object account.

The amounts reported as the original budgeted amounts in the budgetary statements reflect the amounts when
the original appropriations were adopted. The amounts reported as the final budgeted amounts in the
budgetary statements reflect the amounts after all budget amendments have been accounted for.

This schedule presents information for the original and final budgets and actual results of operations, as well as
the variances from the final budget to actual results of operations.

Schedule of Changes in the District’s Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios
This schedule presents information on the District’s changes in the total OPEB liability, including beginning and

ending balances, the plan’s fiduciary net position, and the total OPEB liability. In the future, as data becomes
available, ten years of information will be presented.

e Changes in Benefit Terms - There were no changes in the benefit terms since the previous valuation.
e Changes of Assumptions - The discount rate changed from 1.92% to 3.69% since the previous valuation.

Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability - MPP Program
This schedule presents information on the District’s proportionate share of the net OPEB Liability - MPP Program
and the plan’s fiduciary net position. In the future, as data becomes available, ten years of information will be
presented.

e Changes in Benefit Terms - There were no changes in the benefit terms since the previous valuation.

e Changes of Assumptions - The plan rate of investment return assumption was changed from 2.16% to
3.54% since the previous valuation.
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Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability

This schedule presents information on the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability (NPL), the
plans’ fiduciary net position and, when applicable, the State’s proportionate share of the NPL associated with
the District. In the future, as data becomes available, ten years of information will be presented.

e Changes in Benefit Terms - There were no changes in benefit terms since the previous valuations for both
CalSTRS and CalPERS.

e Changes of Assumptions - There were no changes in economic assumptions for the CalSTRS plan from the
previous valuations. The CalPERS plan rate of investment return assumption was changed from 7.15% to
6.90% since the previous valuation.

Schedule of District’s Contributions
This schedule presents information on the District’s required contribution, the amounts actually contributed,

and any excess or deficiency related to the required contribution. In the future, as data becomes available, ten
years of information will be presented.
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Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year Ended June 30, 2023

Pass-Through

Federal Financial Entity
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Assistance Identifying Federal
Grantor/Program or Cluster Title Listing Number Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Education
Passed Through California Department of Education (CDE)
Special Education Cluster
Special Education Grants to States - Basic Local
Assistance 84.027 13379 S 231,597
Special Education Grants to States - Private School ISPs 84.027 10115 4,146
Special Education Grants to States - Mental Health 84.027A 15197 63,273
Special Education Grants to States - ARP Basic Local 84.027 15638 44,141
Total Special Education Cluster 343,157
COVID-19, Elementary and Secondary School Emergency
Relief II (ESSER II) Fund 84.425D 15547 651,041
COVID-19, Elementary and Secondary School Emergency
Relief Il (ESSER IIl) Fund 84.425U 15559 1,960,789
COVID-19, Elementary and Secondary School Emergency
Relief Il (ESSER I1I) Fund, Learning Loss 84.425U 10155 2,258,327
COVID-19, Governor's Emergency Education Relief (GEER)
Fund: Learning Loss Mitigation 84.425C 15517 51,460
COVID-19, Expanded Learning Opportunities (ELO) Grant
ESSER Il State Reserve 84.425D 15618 142,431
COVID-19, Expanded Learning Opportunities (ELO) Grant
ESSER 11l State Reserve, Learning Loss 84.425U 15621 608,830
COVID-19, American Rescue Plan - Homeless Children and
Youth Il (ARP HYC II) 84.425W 15566 19,026
Subtotal (84.425) 5,691,904
Title | Grants to Local Educational Agencies 84.010 14329 2,298,606
Title | Grants to Local Educational Agencies, ESSA School
Improvement 84.010 15438 159,872
Subtotal (84.010) 2,458,478
Supporting Effective Instruction State Grants - Teacher Quality 84.367 14341 394,028
Title 1V, Student Support and Academic Enrichment 84.424 15396 174,056
English Language Acquisition State Grants - LEP 84.365 14346 137,497
Total U.S. Department of Education 9,199,120
U.S. Department of Agriculture
Passed Through California Department of Education
Child Nutrition Cluster
National School Lunch Program 10.555 13391 2,601,965
National School Lunch Program - Meal Supplements 10.555 13391 122,040
Commodities - Food Distribution 10.555 13391 236,256
Supply Chain Assistance (SCA) Funds 10.555 15655 146,412
Subtotal (10.555) 3,106,673
National School Lunch Program - Needy Breakfast 10.553 13526 665,610
National School Lunch Program - Summer Food
Program 10.559 13004 38,516
Total Child Nutrition Cluster 3,810,799
Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 3,810,799

Total Federal Financial Assistance

See Notes to Supplementary Information

$13,009,919
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Hanford Elementary School District
Local Education Agency Organization Structure
June 30, 2023

Organization

The Hanford Elementary School District was established in August 1891 and consists of an area comprising
approximately 12.92 square miles. The District operates eight elementary schools, one K-8 magnet school,
two junior high schools, and one community day school. There were no boundary changes during the year.

Governing Board
Member

Timothy Revious

Greg Strickland

Lupe Hernandez
Robert “Bobby” Garcia
Jeff Garner

Administration

Joy C. Gabler
David Endo
Jaime Martinez
Jill Rubalcava
Karen McConnell

Office Term Expires
President 2024
Vice President 2024
Clerk 2026
Trustee 2026
Trustee 2026

Superintendent

Chief Business Official

Assistant Superintendent Human Resources

Assistant Superintendent Curriculum, Instruction and Professional Development
Assistant Superintendent, Special Services

See Notes to Supplementary Information 81
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Hanford Elementary School District
Schedule of Average Daily Attendance
Year Ended June 30, 2023

Second Period Annual
Report Report
Regular ADA
Transitional kindergarten through third 2,331.62 2,335.68
Fourth through sixth 1,709.30 1,713.40
Seventh and eighth 1,101.90 1,100.03
Total regular ADA 5,142.82 5,149.11
Extended Year Special Education
Transitional kindergarten through third - 1.78
Fourth through sixth - 0.34
Seventh and eighth - 0.29
Total extended year special education - 2.41
Special Education, Nonpublic, Nonsectarian Schools
Seventh and eighth 0.94 0.98
Extended Year Special Education, Nonpublic, Nonsectarian Schools
Seventh and eighth 0.15 0.31
Community Day School
Transitional kindergarten through third 2.97 3.02
Fourth through sixth 2.26 2.18
Seventh and eighth 9.39 10.83
Total community day school 14.62 16.03
Total ADA 5,158.53 5,168.84

See Notes to Supplementary Information 82
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Hanford Elementary School District

Schedule of Instructional Time
Year Ended June 30, 2023

1986-1987 2022-2023
Minutes Actual Number of

Grade Level Requirement Minutes Actual Days Status
Kindergarten 36,000 52,446 180 Complied
Grades1-3 50,400

Grade 1 52,026 180 Complied

Grade 2 52,026 180 Complied

Grade 3 52,026 180 Complied
Grades 4 -8 54,000

Grade 4 55,206 180 Complied

Grade 5 55,206 180 Complied

Grade 6 55,206 180 Complied

Grade 7 57,448 180 Complied

Grade 8 57,448 180 Complied

See Notes to Supplementary Information
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Hanford Elementary School District
Reconciliation of Annual Financial and Budget Report with Audited Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2023

Summarized below are the fund balance reconciliations between the Unaudited Actual Financial Report and the
audited financial statements.

General*
Fund
Fund Balance
Balance, June 30, 2023, Unaudited Actuals S 49,376,770
Decrease in
Prepaid expenditures (30,580)
Balance, June 30, 2023, Audited Financial Statements S 49,346,190

* Does not reflect the impact of GASB 54 consolidation of Pupil Transportation Fund and Special Reserve
Fund for Postemployment Benefits into the General Fund.

See Notes to Supplementary Information 84
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Hanford Elementary School District
Schedule of Financial Trends and Analysis
Year Ended June 30, 2023

(Budget)
20241 2023 20221 2021"

General Fund ®

Revenues $ 103,189,192 $ 115,426,326 93,355,718 S 84,329,182

Other sources 1,431,680 772,603 2,954,863 618,288

Total Revenues
and Other Sources 104,620,872 116,198,929 96,310,581 84,947,470
Expenditures 105,373,253 88,781,903 86,429,013 76,215,993
Other uses and transfers out 273,524 4,701,524 4,388,340 1,710,735
Total Expenditures
and Other Uses 105,646,777 93,483,427 90,817,353 77,926,728

Increase/(Decrease)

in Fund Balance (1,025,905) 22,715,502 5,493,228 7,020,742
Prior Period Adjustment - - (45,870) -
Ending Fund Balance S 48,320,285 S 49,346,190 26,630,688 S 21,183,330
Available Reserves > S 10,504,037 S 5,191,211 6,598,856 S 16,411,929
Available Reserves as a

Percentage of Total Outgo 3 9.94% 5.55% 7.27% 21.06%
Long-Term Liabilities® Not Available $ 110,683,714 85,831,203 $ 120,031,840
Average Daily Attendance at P-2 5,158 5,159 4,966 5,741

The General Fund balance has increased by $28,162,860 over the past two years. The fiscal year 2023-2024
budget projects a decrease of $1,025,905 (2.08%). For a district this size, the State recommends available
reserves of at least three percent of total General Fund expenditures, transfers out, and other uses (total outgo).

The District has incurred operating surpluses in each of the past three years but anticipates incurring an
operating deficit during the 2023-2024 fiscal year. Total long-term liabilities have decreased by $9,348,126 over
the past two years due to decreases in the District’s net pension liability.

Average daily attendance has decreased by 582 over the past two years. An additional decrease of one ADA is
anticipated during fiscal year 2023-2024.

! Financial information for 2024, 2022, and 2021 is included for analytical purposes only and has not been

subjected to audit.

2 Available reserves consist of all undesignated fund balances and all funds designated for economic uncertainty
contained within the General Fund.

3 General Fund amounts do not include activity related to the consolidation of the Pupil Transportation Fund or
the Special Reserve Fund for Postemployment Benefits as required by GASB Statement No. 54.

* Long-term liabilities balance was restated as of June 30, 2022, due to the implementation of GASB

Statement 96.

See Notes to Supplementary Information 85
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Hanford Elementary School District
Combining Balance Sheet — Non-Major Governmental Funds
June 30, 2023

Bond Total
Student Deferred Capital County School Interestand  Non-Major
Activities Charter Schools Cafeteria Maintenance Facilities Facilities Redemption Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds
Assets
Deposits and investments S 19,771 S 62 $2,540,250 S 676,516 $1,403,573 S 46,363 S 1,445,298 $6,131,833
Receivables - - 807,290 - 197,456 - - 1,004,746
Due from other funds - - 4,539 - - 1,440,121 - 1,444,660
Stores inventories - - 48,434 - - - - 48,434
Total assets S 19,771 S 62 $3,400,513 S 676,516 $1,601,029 S 1,486,484 S 1,445,298 §$ 8,629,673
Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabilities
Accounts payable S - S - § 58061 S - S - S - S - § 58,061
Fund Balances
Nonspendable - - 48,844 - - - - 48,844
Restricted 19,771 62 3,293,608 - 1,601,029 1,486,484 1,445,298 7,846,252
Committed - - - 676,516 - - - 676,516
Total fund balances 19,771 62 3,342,452 676,516 1,601,029 1,486,484 1,445,298 8,571,612
Total liabilities and
fund balances S 19,771 S 62 $3,400,513 S 676,516 $1,601,029 S 1,486,484 S 1,445,298 S 8,629,673

See Notes to Supplementary Information 86
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Hanford Elementary School District
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances — Non-Major Governmental Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2023

Revenues
Local control funding formula
Federal sources
Other State sources
Other local sources

Total revenues

Expenditures
Current
Pupil services
Food services
Administration
All other administration
Plant services
Ancillary services
Facility acquisition and construction
Debt service
Principal
Interest and other

Total expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures

Other Financing Sources(Uses)
Transfers in
Transfers out

Net Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balance - Beginning

Fund Balance - Ending

See Notes to Supplementary Information

Bond Total
Student Deferred Capital County School Interest and Non-Major
Activities Charter Schools Cafeteria Maintenance Facilities Facilities Redemption Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds

$ - S - S - $ 300,000 S - 8 - S - $ 300,000
- - 3,854,416 - - - - 3,854,416

- 1,697 997,592 - - 1,955,678 14,358 2,969,325

30,969 62 54,559 (4,908) 814,515 56,611 1,586,371 2,538,179
30,969 1,759 4,906,567 295,092 814,515 2,012,289 1,600,729 9,661,920

- - 3,824,671 - - - - 3,824,671

- - 102,000 - 3,363 - - 105,363

- - 1,635 266,200 97,581 1,459 - 366,875

44,191 - - - - - - 44,191

- - - 183 - 1,219,751 - 1,219,934

- - - - - - 865,000 865,000

- - - - - - 907,360 907,360

44,191 - 3,928,306 266,383 100,944 1,221,210 1,772,360 7,333,394
(13,222) 1,759 978,261 28,709 713,571 791,079 (171,631) 2,328,526

- - - 308,425 - 353,422 - 661,847
- (1,699) - - - (570,810) - (572,509)

- (1,699) - 308,425 - (217,388) - 89,338

(13,222) 60 978,261 337,134 713,571 573,691 (171,631) 2,417,864
32,993 2 2,364,191 339,382 887,458 912,793 1,616,929 6,153,748

S 19,771 S 62 $ 3,342,452 S 676,516 S 1,601,029 S 1,486,484 S 1,445,298 S 8,571,612
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Hanford Elementary School District
Notes to Supplementary Information
June 30, 2023

Note 1- Purpose of Schedules
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (SEFA)

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the schedule) includes the federal award
activity of the Hanford Elementary School District (the District) under programs of the federal government for
the year ended June 30, 2023. The information is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S.
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the schedule presents only a selected portion of
the operations of the Hanford Elementary School District, it is not intended to and does not present the net
position, changes in net position or fund balances of Hanford Elementary School District.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Expenditures reported in the schedule are reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting. When
applicable, such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance,
wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. No federal financial
assistance has been provided to a subrecipient.

Indirect Cost Rate
The District has not elected to use the ten percent de minimis cost rate.

Food Donation
Nonmonetary assistance is reported in this schedule at the fair market value of the commodities received and
disbursed. At June 30, 2023, the District had spent food commodities totaling $236,256.

SEFA Reconciliation

The following schedule provides reconciliation between revenues reported on the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances, and the related expenditures reported on the Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards. The total federal expenditures reported on the schedule differs from the total
federal revenue recognized within the financial statements due to the unspent portion of the Supply Chain
Assistance (SCA) Funds.

Federal Financial

Assistance
Listing Number Amount
Description
Total Federal Revenues reported on the financial statements S 13,053,536
Supply Chain Assitance (SCA) Funds 10.555 (43,617)
Total federal financial assistance S 13,009,919

Local Education Agency Organization Structure

This schedule provides information about the District’s boundaries and schools operated, members of the
governing board, and members of the administration.
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Hanford Elementary School District
Notes to Supplementary Information
June 30, 2023

Schedule of Average Daily Attendance (ADA)

Average daily attendance (ADA) is a measurement of the number of pupils attending classes of the District. The
purpose of attendance accounting from a fiscal standpoint is to provide the basis on which apportionments of
State funds are made to school districts. This schedule provides information regarding the attendance of
students at various grade levels and in different programs.

Schedule of Instructional Time

The District has received incentive funding for increasing instructional time as provided by the Incentives for
Longer Instructional Day. The District has met its target funding. This schedule presents information on the
amount of instructional time offered by the District and whether the District complied with the provisions of

Education Code Sections 46200 through 46207.

Districts must maintain their instructional minutes at the 1986-87 requirements, as required by Education Code
Section 46201.

Reconciliation of Annual Financial and Budget Report with Audited Financial Statements

This schedule provides the information necessary to reconcile the fund balance of all funds reported on the
Unaudited Actual Financial Report to the audited financial statements.

Schedule of Financial Trends and Analysis
This schedule discloses the District’s financial trends by displaying past years’ data along with current year
budget information. These financial trend disclosures are used to evaluate the District’s ability to continue as a

going concern for a reasonable period of time.

Non-Major Governmental Funds - Combining Balance Sheet and Combining Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

These schedules are included to provide information regarding the individual funds that have been included in

the Non-Major Governmental Funds column on the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet and Statement of
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances.

89



297

Independent Auditor’s Reports
June 30, 2023

Hanford Elementary School District
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EideBailly.

CPAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance
and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards

To the Governing Board
Hanford Elementary School District
Hanford, California

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing Standards), the financial
statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of Hanford Elementary School District (the District), as of and for the year ended

June 30, 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
District’s basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated December 14, 2023.

Adoption of New Accounting Standard

As discussed in Notes 1 and 16 to the financial statements, the District has adopted the provisions of
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information
Technology Arrangements, for the year ended June 30, 2023. Accordingly, a restatement has been made
to the governmental activities beginning net position and to the General Funds beginning fund balance
as of July 1, 2022. Our opinions are not modified with respect to this matter.

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

What inspires you, inspires us. | eidebailly.com
6051 N. Fresno St., Ste. 101 | Fresno, CA 93710-5280 | T559.248.0871 | F 559.248.0875 | EOE
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
District’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

5/0,4«/9 L2.7°

Fresno, California
December 14, 2023
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EideBailly.

CPAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS

Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program; Report on Internal
Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance

To the Governing Board
Hanford Elementary School District
Hanford, California

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Hanford Elementary School District’s (the District) compliance with the types of
compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could
have a direct and material effect on each of the District’s major federal programs for the year ended
June 30, 2023. The District’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results
section of the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs.

In our opinion, the District complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred
to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year
ended June 30, 2023.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America (GAAS); the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing
Standards); and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of the District and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the District’s compliance
with the compliance requirements referred to above.

What inspires you, inspires us. | eidebailly.com
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Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements
of laws, statutes, regulations, rules and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the
District’s federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an
opinion on the District’'s compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect
material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from
fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above is considered material, if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the
report on compliance about the District’s compliance with the requirements of each major federal
program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform
Guidance, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

¢ |dentify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a
test basis, evidence regarding the District’s compliance with the compliance requirements
referred to above and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

e Obtain an understanding of the District’s internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report
on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in
internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
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compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.
A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal
control over compliance may exist that were not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

@M 147

Fresno, California
December 14, 2023
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EideBailly.

CPAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS

Independent Auditor’s Report on State Compliance

To the Governing Board
Hanford Elementary School District
Hanford, California

Report on Compliance
Qualified and Unmodified Opinions on State Compliance

We have audited Hanford Elementary School District’s (the District) compliance with the requirements
specified in the 2022-2023 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State
Compliance Reporting, applicable to the District’s state program requirements identified below for the
year ended June 30, 2023.

Qualified Opinion on Instructional Materials

In our opinion, except for the noncompliance described in the Basis for Qualified and Unmodified
Opinions section of our report, the District complied, in all material respects, with the compliance
requirements referred to above that are applicable to the laws and regulations of the state programs
noted in the table below for the year ended June 30, 2023.

Unmodified Opinion on Each of the Other Programs

In our opinion, the District complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred
to above that are applicable to the laws and regulations of the state programs noted in the table below
for the year ended June 30, 2023, except as described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and
Questioned Costs.

Basis for Qualified and Unmodified Opinions

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America (GAAS), the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing
Standards), and the 2022-2023 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State
Compliance Reporting. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report.

What inspires you, inspires us. | eidebailly.com
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We are required to be independent of the District and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. Our audit
does not provide a legal determination of the District’s compliance with the compliance requirements
referred to above.

Matter Giving Rise to Qualified Opinion on Instructional Materials

As described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, the District did not
comply with requirements regarding Instructional Materials, Finding 2023-001.

Compliance with such requirements is necessary, in our opinion, for the District to comply with the
requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements
of laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the
District’s state programs.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an
opinion on the District’s compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the 2022-2023 Guide for Annual Audits of
K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting will always detect a material
noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material noncompliance resulting from fraud is
higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above is considered material, if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the
report on compliance about the District’s compliance with the requirements of the state programs as a
whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the 2022-2023
Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the District’s compliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we consider
necessary in the circumstances.
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Obtain an understanding of the District’s internal control over compliance relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and
report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the 2022-2023 Guide for Annual
Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal controls over
compliance. Accordingly, we express no such opinion; and.

Select and test transactions and records to determine the District’s compliance with the state
laws and regulations applicable to the following items:

Procedures
2022-2023 K-12 Audit Guide Procedures Performed
Local Education Agencies Other Than Charter Schools
Attendance Yes
Teacher Certification and Misassignments Yes
Kindergarten Continuance Yes
Independent Study Yes
Continuation Education No (see below)
Instructional Time Yes
Instructional Materials Yes
Ratios of Administrative Employees to Teachers Yes
Classroom Teacher Salaries Yes
Early Retirement Incentive No (see below)
Gann Limit Calculation Yes
School Accountability Report Card Yes

Juvenile Court Schools
Middle or Early College High Schools

No (see below)
No (see below)

K-3 Grade Span Adjustment Yes
Transportation Maintenance of Effort Yes
Apprenticeship: Related and Supplemental Instruction No (see below)
Comprehensive School Safety Plan Yes
District of Choice No (see below)
Home to School Transportation Reimbursement Yes
Independent Study Certification for ADA Loss Mitigation Yes

School Districts, County Offices of Education, and Charter Schools

California Clean Energy Jobs Act

No (see below)

After/Before School Education and Safety Program Yes
Proper Expenditure of Education Protection Account Funds Yes
Unduplicated Local Control Funding Formula Pupil Counts Yes
Local Control and Accountability Plan Yes

Independent Study - Course Based
Immunizations

Educator Effectiveness

Expanded Learning Opportunities Grant (ELO-G)
Career Technical Education Incentive Grant
Transitional Kindergarten

No (see below)
No (see below)
Yes
No (see below)
No (see below)
Yes
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Procedures
2022-2023 K-12 Audit Guide Procedures Performed
Charter Schools

Attendance No (see below)
Mode of Instruction No (see below)
Nonclassroom-Based Instruction/Independent Study No (see below)
Determination of Funding for Nonclassroom-Based Instruction No (see below)
Annual Instructional Minutes - Classroom Based No (see below)
Charter School Facility Grant Program No (see below)

We did not perform Continuation Education procedures because the program is not offered by
the District.

The District did not have any employees retire under the CalSTRS Early Retirement Incentive
program; therefore, testing was not required.

We did not perform Juvenile Court Schools procedures because the program is not offered by
the District.

We did not perform Middle or Early College High Schools procedures because the program is not
offered by the District.

We did not perform Apprenticeship: Related and Supplemental Instruction procedures because
the program is not offered by the District.

The District did not elect to operate as a school district of choice; therefore, we did not perform
procedures related to District of Choice.

We did not perform California Clean Energy Jobs Act procedures because the related procedures
were performed in a previous year.

The District does not offer an Independent Study - Course Based program; therefore, we did not
perform any procedures related to the Independent Study - Course Based Program.

The District was not listed on the immunization assessment reports; therefore, we did not
perform any related procedures.

We did not perform Expanded Learning Opportunities Grant (ELO-G) procedures because the
program did not have any expenditures.

We did not perform Career Technical Education Incentive Grant procedures because the District
did not receive funding for this grant.

Additionally, the District does not operate any Charter Schools; therefore, we did not perform
procedures for Charter School Programs.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in
internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.
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Other Matters

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed an instance of noncompliance, which is described in the
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as item 2023-001.

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the District’s
response to the noncompliance finding identified in our audit and described in the accompanying
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. The District’s response was not subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies in internal control over compliance and therefore, material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies may exist that were not identified. However, as discussed below, we did identify a certain
deficiency in internal control over compliance that we consider to be a significant deficiency.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance on a timely basis. A material
weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material noncompliance with
compliance requirement will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal control over compliance that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over
compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We consider
the deficiency in internal control over compliance described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings
and Questioned Costs as item 2023-001 to be a significant deficiency.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the District’s
response to the internal control over compliance findings identified in our audit described in the
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. The District’s response was not subjected to
the other auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no
opinion on the response.
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The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the 2022-2023 Guide

for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting. Accordingly, this
report is not suitable for any other purpose.

@M 2.7

Fresno, California
December 14, 2023

100



309

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
June 30, 2023

Hanford Elementary School District

eidebailly.com
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Hanford Elementary School District

Summary of Auditor’s Results
Year Ended June 30, 2023

Financial Statements

Type of auditor’s report issued
Internal control over financial reporting

Material weaknesses identified

Significant deficiencies identified not considered

to be material weaknesses

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?
Federal Awards
Internal control over major program

Material weaknesses identified

Significant deficiencies identified not considered

to be material weaknesses

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance
for major programs

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with Uniform Guidance 2 CFR 200.516(a)

Identification of major programs

Name of Federal Program or Cluster

Unmodified

No
None Reported

No

No

None Reported

Unmodified

No

Federal Financial Assistance
Listing Number

COVID-19, Elementary and Secondary School Emergency
Relief Il (ESSER II) Fund

COVID-19, Elementary and Secondary School Emergency
Relief Il (ESSER Ill) Fund

COVID-19, Elementary and Secondary School Emergency
Relief 11l (ESSER IIl) Fund, Learning Loss

COVID-19, Governor’s Emergency Education Relief (GEER)
Fund: Learning Loss Mitigation

COVID-19, Expanded Learning Opportunities (ELO) Grant
ESSER Il State Reserve

COVID-19, Expanded Learning Opportunities (ELO) Grant
ESSER Ill State Reserve, Learning Loss

COVID-19, American Rescue Plan - Homeless Children and
Youth Il (ARP HYC I1)

Child Nutrition Cluster

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A
and type B programs

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

84.425D

84.425U

84.425U

84.425C

84.425D

84.425U

84.425W

10.553, 10.555, 10.559
$ 750,000

Yes
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Hanford Elementary School District
Summary of Auditor’s Results
Year Ended June 30, 2023

State Compliance

Internal control over state compliance programs
Material weaknesses identified
Significant deficiencies identified not
considered to be material weaknesses

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance
for programs

Unmodified for all programs except for the following program
which was qualified

Name of Program

Instructional Materials

No

Yes

Unmodified
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Hanford Elementary School District

Financial Statement Findings
Year Ended June 30, 2023

None reported.
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Hanford Elementary School District

Federal Awards Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2023

None reported.
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Hanford Elementary School District
State Compliance Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2023

The following finding represents a significant deficiency that is required to be reported by the 2022-2023 Guide
for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting. The finding has been coded
as follows:

Five Digit Code AB 3627 Finding Type
70000 Instructional Materials
2023-001 70000 - Instructional Materials

Criteria or Specific Requirements

According to the requirements of Education Code Section 60119, the school district governing board or
county board of education, prior to making a determination through a resolution as to the sufficiency of
textbooks or other instructional materials, is required to hold a public hearing or hearings on or before
the end of the eighth week from the first day pupils attended school for that year, or, in a school district
or county office of education having schools that operate on a multi-track, year-round calendar, on or
before the end of the eighth week from the first day pupils attended school for that year on any track
that began in August or September.

Condition

During our audit of the Hanford Elementary School District’s Instructional Materials Funding
Realighment Program, we found that the District did not pass a Resolution on or before the eighth week
of school from the first day pupils attended school for that year.

Questioned Costs

There is no questioned cost associated with this exception.

Context

The condition was identified through inquiry with District personnel and review of available District
records related to Instructional Materials.

Effect
The District was not in compliance with Education Code Section 60119 by not holding a public hearing
and making a determination through a resolution as to the sufficiency of textbooks or other

instructional materials on or before the end of the eighth week from the first day pupils attended
school.
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Hanford Elementary School District
State Compliance Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2023

Cause

A resolution was not passed regarding the sufficiency of textbooks within the first eight weeks of school.
The District submitted a resolution at a public board hearing on April 26, 2023.

Repeat Finding (Yes or No)

No.

Recommendation

The District should implement procedures to ensure that future public hearings are held on or before
the eighth week of school from the first day pupils attended for the year and to pass a Resolution on the
matter.

Corrective Action Plan and Views of Responsible Officials

The timing for the public hearing for the sufficiency of instructional materials has been added to the
District’s master calendar of board items.
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Hanford Elementary School District

Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings
Year Ended June 30, 2023

There were no audit findings reported in the prior year’s Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs.
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HANFORD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

AGENDA REQUEST FORM

TO: Joy C. Gabler
FROM: David Endo

DATE: 01/13/2024

FOR: [X] Board Meeting
[] Superintendent's Cabinet

FOR: [ ] Information
X]  Action

Date you wish to have your item considered: 01/24/2024

ITEM:
Consider acceptance of the audit corrective action plan.

PURPOSE:

The Kings County Office of Education requires school districts to submit an acceptable plan for
correction relating to any audit findings by March 15, 2024. The audit corrective action plan has
been attached for your review.

FISCAL IMPACT:
None.

RECOMMENDATIONS:
Accept the audit corrective action plan.

ADM-018
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AUDIT FINDING CORRECTIVE ACTION
Due March 15, 2024

DISTRICT: Hanford Elementary School District

FINDING: 70000 — Instructional Materials

State audit finding and describe specific corrective action used in resolving it:
Attach all pertinent documentation.

Criteria or Specific Requirements:

According to the requirements of Education Code Section 60119, the school district governing
board or county board of education, prior to making a determination through a resolution as to
the sufficiency of textbooks or other instructional materials, is required to hold a public hearing
or hearings on or before the end of the eighth week from the first day pupils attended school for
that year, or, in a school district or county office of education having schools that operate on a
multi-track, year-round calendar, on or before the end of the eighth week from the first day
pupils attended school for that year on any track that began in August or September.

Condition:

During ther audit of the Hanford Elementary School District’s Instructional Materials Funding
Realignment Program, we found that the District did not pass a Resolution on or before the
eighth week of school from the first day pupils attended school for that year.

Corrective Action Plan and Views of Responsible Officials:

The timing for the public hearing for the sufficiency of instructional materials has been added to
the District’s master calendar.

https://hesd-my.sharepoint.com/personal/dendo_hanfordesd_org/Documents/23-24/Board/01.24.24/AudCal-Cert-Corr.docx
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HANFORD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

AGENDA REQUEST FORM

TO: Joy C. Gabler
FROM: David Endo

DATE: 01/13/2024

FOR: [X] Board Meeting
[] Superintendent's Cabinet

FOR: [ ] Information
X]  Action

Date you wish to have your item considered: 01/24/2024

ITEM:
Consider adoption of Resolution No. 13-24: Kings County Investment Policy.

PURPOSE:

The Hanford Elementary School District is required to annually adopt the Director of Finance’s
investment policy. This resolution approves the investment parameters set forth by the
investment policy and delegates the District’s investment authority to the Kings County Director
of Finance. The policy has been reviewed and approved by the County Treasury Oversight
Committee and the Board of Supervisors.

FISCAL IMPACT:
None.

RECOMMENDATIONS:
Adopt Resolution No. 13-24: Kings County Investment Policy.

ADM-018
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BEFORE THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE
HANFORD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
COUNTY OF KINGS, STATE OF CALIFORNIA

*khkkhkkhkkkkkik

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING

THE KINGS COUNTY DIRECTOR OF RESOLUTION NO. 13-24
FINANCE’S STATEMENT OF INVESTMENT

POLICY AND DELEGATING

INVESTMENT AUTHORITY TO THE

KINGS COUNTY DIRECTOR OF FINANCE

UNDER CALIFORNIA GOVERNMENT CODE

SECTIONS 53607, 53646 AND 53684 /

WHEREAS, under Government Code section 53646, the Kings County Director of Finance
("Treasurer") may render an annual statement of investment policy to the Kings County Board of
Supervisors and to the governing board of any local agency which has funds on deposit in the Kings
County Treasury; and

WHEREAS, on December 5, 2023 the Kings County Board of Supervisors approved the
Director of Finance’s Statement of Investment Policy dated January 1, 2024 (“Investment Policy");
and

WHEREAS, the Investment Policy has been submitted to the District Board of Trustees
("District Board") for approval under Government Code section 53646; and

WHEREAS, under Government Code section 53646, the Treasurer may render a quarterly
report ("Quarterly Report™) to each local agency which has funds on deposit in the County Treasury
and for which the Treasurer has made investments; and

WHEREAS, the Hanford Elementary School District ("District") has funds on deposit with
the Kings County Director of Finance ("Treasurer"); and

WHEREAS, when keeping, holding, depositing and investing District funds on the District's
behalf, the Treasurer acts as the "ex-officio" treasurer of the District; and

WHEREAS, the District Board has authority under Government Code sections 53607 and
53684 to delegate authority to the Treasurer to deposit and invest District funds under the provisions
of Government Code sections 53601 and 53635; and

WHEREAS, the District Board now wishes to approve the Director of Finance's Statement of
Investment Policy and to delegate investment authority to the Kings County Director of Finance
("Treasurer") for the ensuing twelve-month period.



321
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED as follows:

1. Pursuant to Government Code section 53646, the District Board hereby approves the
Investment Policy.

2. Pursuant to Government Code section 53646, the District Board acknowledges and
approves the procedures utilized by the Treasurer in rendering and submitting each Quarterly
Report, under the provisions of which the Treasurer shall render each such report. Under the
provisions of Government Code section 53607, the Treasurer shall prepare a monthly report and
maintain it on file in his/her office for review and inspection by the District Board, staff and
designated agents.

3. Pursuant to Government Code sections 53607 and 53684, and subject to the
requirements of Government Code sections 53601 and 53635, the District Board hereby delegates to
the Kings County Director of Finance (“Treasurer”) the discretionary authority to deposit, invest or
reinvest the funds of the District in the County Treasury commencing on the date of approval of this
resolution and continuing for the ensuing twelve months. Without limiting his discretion in any
way, the Treasurer is hereby expressly authorized to invest such District funds in the Treasurer's
Pooled Investment Portfolio.

4. The District Board hereby delegates to the Treasurer the discretionary authority to
determine which District funds on deposit in the Kings County Treasury are monies which are
sinking funds or money not required for immediate use within the meaning of Government Code
section 53601 and which monies are excess funds within the meaning of Government Code section
53684.

5. The Treasurer shall assume full responsibility for such deposit and investment
transactions until such time as the District Board revokes this delegation of authority or until the
date which is twelve months from the date of approval of this resolution, unless renewed on or
before that date by the District Board.

The foregoing resolution was adopted upon motion by Trustee :
seconded by Trustee , at a regular meeting held on the
24" day of January, 2024, by the following vote:

AYES: Trustees
NOES: Trustees
ABSENT: Trustees

President of the Board of Trustees
Hanford Elementary School District

WITNESS my hand and seal of said Board of Trustees this 24th day of January, 2024.

Clerk of said Board of Trustees



COUNTY OF KINGS 322
DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE

ERIK URENA, CPA = DIRECTOR OF FINANCE
1400 W. LACEY BLVD = HANFORD, CA 93230

o ACCOUNTING BI;ISION TAX COLLECTOR = TREASURER DIVISION
(559) 852-2455 = FAX: (559) 587-9935 TAX: (559) 852-2479 = TREASURER (559) 852-2477
FAX: (559) 582-1236

DATE: December 13, 2023 Rp
TO: Kings County School Districts /(\QS
FROM: Tammy Phelps, Assistant Director of Finance —Treas}er
SUBJECT: 2024 Director of Finance’s Investment Policy

| am sending a copy of the 2024 Investment Policy. The Policy was reviewed
and approved by the County Treasury Oversight Committee on November 6,
2023, and the Board of Supervisors on December 5, 2023. Also included is a
sample district resolution approving the Statement of Investment Policy and
delegating investment authority to the Kings County Director of Finance.
Annually, your District Board must act on the resolution. For your convenience,
the Office of Education is distributing these documents electronically via email.
Please return approved resolutions to the Office of Education.

The 2023 Local Agency Investment Guidelines incorporates the following California statutory changes:
Govermment Code Sections 53601 and 53646.

Chapter 427, Statutes of 2022 (SB 1489), the Local Govermment Omnibus Act, amended Government Code
sections related to the investment of surplus funds by county treasurers. This bill amended Government
Code Section 53601 to clarify that a public agency investment’s term or remaining maturity is to be
measured from the settlement date to final maturity. In addition, this code section was amended to prohibit
the purchase of a security with a forward settlement date exceeding 45 days from the time of investment. A
provision of this bill also amended 53646(b)(1) to increase the timeline that the treasurer or chief fiscal
officer has for presenting a quarterly report to the chief executive officer, the internal auditor, and the
legislative body of the local agency by 15 days, from 30- to 45 days following the end of the quarter.

The changes to the 2024 Director of Finance’s Statement of Investment Policy are as
follows:

1. Section VII, B. RESTRICTIONS ON AUTHROIZED INVESTMENTS — add
“No funds shall be invested in securities with a forward settlement date exceeding
45 days from the time of investment.”

2. Section VIII, B. MAXIMUM MATURITIES - change “No investment shall be
made in any security... which at the time of investinent settlement has a term
remaining to maturity in excess of five years...
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3. Section IX, A. METHODS — change "The report will be provided within 304§
days following the end of the quarter covered by the report...”

4. SCHEDULE 1 - STATEMENT OF AUTHORIZED FIRMS, B. — delete
“CalTRUST”

S. Schedule 2 -INVESTMENT PARAMETERS — Corporate Notes — change “Max
$4560mm any one name”

6. Schedule 2 — INVESTMENT PARAMETERS — add “California Asset

Management Program — CAMP, 15% Max., Max. Transactions allowed by
CAMP Administration, overnight liquidity, N/A”

If you have any questions, please feel free to call me at 852-2462.
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HANFORD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

AGENDA REQUEST FORM

TO: Joy C. Gabler
FROM: David Endo

DATE: 01/13/2024

FOR: [X] Board Meeting
[] Superintendent's Cabinet

FOR: [ ] Information
X]  Action

Date you wish to have your item considered: 01/24/2024

ITEM:
Consider adoption of Resolution No. 14-24, which allows the District to apply for funding from
the Public Benefits Grant — New Alternative Fuel Vehicle Purchase Program.

PURPOSE:

The San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District is accepting Public Benefits Grant — New
Alternative Fuel Vehicle Purchase Program applications. This program provides funding for
public agencies for electric vehicles which would be deployed in the Facilities and Food Service
department replacing the need for those individuals to use their personal vehicles.

FISCAL IMPACT:
There will be upfront costs associated with the purchase of new electric vehicles with up to
$100,000 ($20,000/vehicle) being reimbursed by the San Joaquin Air Pollution Control District.

RECOMMENDATIONS:
Adopt Resolution No. 14-24, which allows the District to apply for funding from the Public
Benefits Grant — New Alternative Fuel Vehicle Purchase Program.
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RESOLUTION# 14-24
Hanford Elementary School District
Public Benefits Grant
New Alternative Fuel Vehicle Purchase Program

WHEREAS, the Hanford Elementary School District recognizes the importance of improving air quality in the San
Joaquin Valley of California; and

WHEREAS, the Public Benefit Grant Program has been designed to meet the needs and challenges faced by valley
public entities and provides a wide variety of clean-air public benefit programs which will provide a direct benefit to
valley residents; and

WHEREAS, use of electric vehicles improve air quality; and

WHEREAS, the San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District (SJVAPCD) is currently accepting applications
from public entities located within the boundaries of the SJTVAPCD requesting funding for new electric school
vehicles; and

WHEREAS, the Hanford Elementary School District Board authorizes the submittal of the application(s) for the
Public Benefits Grant — New Alternative Fuel Vehicle Purchase Program.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that effective the 24" day of January, 2024 that the Hanford Elementary
School District appoints Hanford Elementary School District Chief Business Official, David Endo the contract signing
authority, as the duly authorized official to make financial decisions and the individual authorized to implement the
Public Benefits Grant — New Alternative Fuel Vehicle Purchase Program.

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION was duly passed and adopted this 24" day of
January, 2024.

Ayes:
Noes:
Absent:

Greg Strickland, President
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